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3¢ City of Las Cruces

PEOPLE HELPING PEOPLE

Council Action and Executive Summary
Item #_8 Ordinance/Resolution#16-202

For Meeting of For Meeting of April 18, 2016
(Ordinance First Reading Date) {Adoption Date}

Please check box that applies to this item:
[(]QUASI JUDICIAL [JLEGISLATIVE [XADMINISTRATIVE

TITLE: A RESOLUTION ACCEPTING THE CITY OF LAS CRUCES COMPREHENSIVE
ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDING JUNE 30, 2015.

PURPOSE(S) OF ACTION:

Accept report.

COUNCIL DISTRICT: N/A

Drafter/Staff Contact: Department/Section: Phone:
Maria Villa Finance/ Accounting 541-2085

City Manager Signature: — Z,f_/\/
\‘h_, ) \)c‘/-m:__ﬂ__m

BACKGROUND / KEY ISSUES / CONTRIBUTING FACTORS:

On December 1, 2015, Moss Adams, LLP submitted the Comprehensive Annual Financial
Report (CAFR) for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2015 to the Office of the State Auditor on
behalf of the City of Las Cruces (City) Financial Services Department.

The Office of the State Auditor published Requirements for Contracting and Conducting Audits
of Agencies in which Section 2.2.2.10 J (3d) states, “Once the audit report is officially released to
the agency by the State Auditor (by an authorizing letter) and the required waiting period of five
calendar days has passed, the audit report shall be presented by the IPA (auditor) to a quorum
of the governing authority of the agency at a meeting held in accordance with the Open
Meetings Act, if applicable. The presentation of the audit report should be documented in the
minutes of the meeting”.

On December 30, 2015, the Office of the State Auditor released the 2015 audit and approved
the City’s written request to waive the five day waiting period required by Section 12-6-5 NMSA
1978. The City requested a wavier to the five day waiting period in order to submit the CAFR for
consideration of the Government Finance Officers Association award.

The CAFR for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2015 will be published and may be accessed

through the City's website, City Clerk's Office and Thomas Branigan Memorial Library upon
acceptance.

(Continue on additional sheets as required)

Rev. 02/2012
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SUPPORT INFORMATION:

i Resolution.
2. Exhibit “A”, CAFR.
3. Attachment “A”, Letter from Office of the State Auditor, dated December 30, 2015.

SOURCE OF FUNDING:

Is this action already budgeted?
Yes |[ || See fund summary below
N/A No | [ ]| If No, then check one below:
Budget ] Expense reallocated from:
Adjustment
Attached | [ ]| Proposed funding is from a new revenue
source (i.e. grant; see details below)
[1| Proposed funding is from fund balance in
the _ Fund.
Does this action create any
revenue? Yes | [_]| Funds will be deposited into this fund:
in the amount of $ for
N/A FY .
No [_1| There is no new revenue generated by
this action.
BUDGET NARRATIVE
N/A
FUND EXPENDITURE SUMMARY:
Fund Name(s) Account Expenditure| Available | Remaining | Purpose for
Number(s) | Proposed Budgeted | Funds Remaining Funds
Funds in
Current FY
N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A

OPTIONS / ALTERNATIVES:

1. Vote “Yes”; this will accept the CAFR for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2015; the report
will be published.

2. Vote “No”; this will not accept the CAFR for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2015, which
prevents the City from publishing the CAFR.

3: Vote to “Amend”; this could provide an avenue to change the resolution but would not
change the CAFR for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2015.

4, Vote to “Table”; this could delay the acceptance of the CAFR for the fiscal year ending
June 30, 2015, which prevents the City from publishing the CAFR.

(Continue on additional sheets as required)

Rev. 02/2012
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REFERENCE INFORMATION:

The resolution(s) and/or ordinance(s) listed below are only for reference and are not included as
attachments or exhibits.

N/A

(Continue on additional sheets as required)

Rev. 02/2012
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COUNCIL ACTION AND EXECUTIVE SUMMARY PACKET ROUTING SLIP

For Meeting of For Meeting of  April 18, 2016

{Ordinance First Reading Date) (Adoption Date)

TITLE: A RESOLUTION ACCEPTING THE CITY OF LAS CRUCES COMPREHENSIVE ANNUAL
FINANCIAL REPORT FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDING JUNE 30, 2015,

Purchasing Manager’s Request to Contract (PMRC) {Required?} Yes [ | No [X

DEPARTMENT SIGNATURE r PHONE NO.| DATE
Drafter/Staff Contact Maria Villa, Accounting Manager LM'&/ 541-2085 3/ ""21/ [ (e
RO A DSl
Department Director Victoria Fredrick, CMA, CGFM 541-2080 313@]\(,)
N
Other

Assistant City Manager /CAO  |David Dollahon, CAO ()i r(ﬁ/ 1, 5a1-2078 ’/»?V/Mé
Management & Budget Manager [Robert Coleman, Budget IVIg 541-2107 3/2%/,,-?41/(

Assistant City Manager/COO QOW_QQ OJ %5‘//
’f}_\ T QA M
City Attorney QA al29 QoL

Y-b-ll

A

City Clerk - A ‘:,\) DN 2US

Rev. 8/2011
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RESOLUTION NO. _16-202

A RESOLUTION ACCEPTING THE CITY OF LAS CRUCES COMPREHENSIVE
ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDING JUNE 30, 2015.

The City Council is informed that:

WHEREAS, the City of Las Cruces (City) completed the Comprehensive Annual
Financial Report (CAFR) for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2015; and

WHEREAS, on December 1, 2015, Moss Adams, LLP submitted the CAFR to
the Office of the State Auditor on behalf of the City’s Financial Services Department;
and

WHEREAS, the Office of the State Auditor has published 2.2.2 NMAC Audit Rule
2013, Requirements for Contracting and Conducting Audits of Agencies in which
Section 2.2.2.10 J (3) states, “Once the audit report is officially released to the agency
by the State Auditor (by an authorizing letter) and the required waiting period of five
calendar days has passed, the audit report shall be presented by the IPA to a quorum of
the governing authority of the agency at a meeting held in accordance with the Open
Meetings Act, if applicable. The presentation of the audit report should be documented
in the minutes of the meeting”; and

WHEREAS, on December 30, 2015, the Office of the State Auditor released the
audit report and granted the City’s written request to waive the five day waiting period
required by Section 12-6-5, NMSA 1978; and

WHEREAS, the CAFR for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2015, is hereby
presented to the City Council for publishing.

NOW, THEREFORE, Be it resolved by the governing body of the City of Las

Cruces:
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(1)
THAT the CAFR, attached hereto as Exhibit “A”, and made part of this resolution,
is hereby accepted the fiscal year ending June 30, 2015.
)]
THAT City staff is hereby authorized to do all deeds necessary in the

accomplishment of the herein above.

DONE AND APPROVED this day of , 20

APPROVED:
Mayor

ATTEST:

City Clerk

(SEAL)
VOTE:
Mayor Miyagishima:

Councillor Gandara:
Councillor Smith:
Councillor Pedroza:
Councillor Eakman:
Councillor Sorg:
Councillor Levatino:

T

Moved by:

Seconded by:

APPROVED AS TO FORM:

W%

City Attorney




ATTACHMENT "A"

Timothy Keller RL7E MDY Sanjay Bhakta, cpa, cGFM, CFE, cGMA
State Auditor Deputy State Auditor

State of New Mexico
OFFICE OF THE STATE AUDITOR

December 30, 2015

SAO Ref. No. 6102

The Honorable Ken Miyagishima, Mayor
City of Las Cruces

PO Box 20000

Las Cruces, NM 88004-

SUBJECT: Audit Report—City of Las Cruces—2014-2015 Fiscal Year—Prepared by Moss Adams, LLP

The audit report for your agency was received by the Office of the State Auditor (Office) on December 7, 2015.
The State Auditor’s review of the audit report required by Section 12-6-14(B) NMSA 1978 and 2.2.2.13 NMAC
has been completed. This letter is your authorization to make the final payment to the Independent Public
Accountant (IPA) who contracted to perform the agency’s financial and compliance audit. In accordance with
Section 2 of the audit contract, the IPA is required to deliver the specified number of copies of the audit report to
the agency.

Pursuant to Section 12-6-5 NMSA 1978, the audit report does not become public record until five days after
the date of this release letter, unless your agency has already submitted a written waiver to the Office. Once
the five-day period has expired or upon the Office’s receipt of a written waiver, the audit report shall be:

» released by the Office to the Legislative Finance Committee and the Department of Finance and
Administration;

e posted by the Office on our website; and
¢ presented by your agency to a quorum of the agency’s governing authority at a public meeting, per Section
2.2.2.103)(3)(d) NMAC, Requirements for Contracting and Conducting Audits of Agencies.

The IPA’s findings and comments are included in the audit report on pages 263-267. It is ultimately the
responsibility of the governing authority of the agency to take corrective action on all findings and
comments.

Sincerely,

";Z:Mé Y/

Timothy Keller
State Auditor

cc:  Moss Adams, LLP

2540 Camino Edward Ortiz, Suite A, Santa Fe, New Mexico 87507
Local (505) 476-3800 * Fax (505) 827-3512
http://www.saonm.org * 1-866-OSA-FRAUD
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i City of Las Cruces

Financial Stalements
and gt -
Report of Independent -Aud'itofs

“Tiine 30, 2015

MOSS-ADAMS v.»
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CITY OF LLAS CRUCES

COMPREHENSIVE ANNUAL
FINANCIAL REPORT

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015

Prepared by
Finance Department
Victoria Fredrick,
Financial Services Director

Cover photo courtesy of City of Las Cruces
Mitchell Carleton, Public Information Office, and
Enhanced by Leesa Mandlman
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%% Gity of Las Cruces-

November 30, 2015

Honorable Mayor and City Council,
City of Las Cruces, New Mexico

We are pleased to submit the Comprehensive Annual Financial Report for the City of Las Cruces (City),
New Mexico, for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2015, in accordance with Article V, Section 5.09, of the
City Charter. Responsibility for the accuracy of the presented data and the completeness and fairness of
presentation, including all disclosures, rests with the City. We believe the data, as presented, are accurate
in all material respects and are presented in a manner that fairly sets forth the financial position and results
of operations of the City. Furthermore, we believe that all disclosures necessary to enable the reader to
gain an understanding of the City’s financial activities have been included.

In the Financial Section of this report, the independent auditor’s report is immediately followed by
Management’s Discussion & Analysis (MD&A). The MD&A provides a narrative introduction,
overview, and analysis of the basic financial statements. The MD&A complements this letter of
transmittal and should be read in conjunction with it.

Profile of the City

The City of Las Cruces, incorporated in 1946 and chartered in 1985, is a home-rule municipality with a
Council/Manager form of government consisting of a mayor and six council members. The mayor is
elected at large for a four-year term. Council members are elected from six member districts for a four-
year term. Elections are held on a bi-annual basis. The city manager, appointed by the City Council, is
responsible for the management of all City employees and the administration of all City affairs.

This report includes financial statements of the funds required for those activities, organizations, and
functions related to the City and that are controlled by or dependent upon the City’s governing body, the
City Council. The financial reporting entity consists of the City, a discretely presented component unit:
South Central Solid Waste Authority, and one blended component unit: the Downtown Tax Increment
Development District. These component units are included in the City’s reporting entity because of the
significance of their operational relationship or financial relationship with the City. Considering the above
criteria, this report includes all funds of the City.

The City provides a full range of services. These services include public safety (police and fire);
community services (culture and recreation); facilities; streets, public improvements; planning, zoning,
engineering; public utilities (gas, water, wastewater, and solid waste) and general administration of
services.

Economic Condition and Outlook

The local economy is expected to follow the U.S. economy in a slow and uneven recovery. Health Care,
Service, and Leisure/Hospitality are two sectors that are expected to do well over the near term. The local
job picture, in total, will still underperform the nation in part due to our dependence on Public Sector jobs.
Private sector job growth should offset public sector job losses leading to a 0.5 percent growth in FY15.

1

PO BOX 20000 LAS CRUCES  HEW IMEXICO . 38004-9002 | 675 541 2000 AN EGUAL DPPORTUNITY EMFLOYER
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Honorable Mayor and City Council,
City of Las Cruces, New Mexico
11/30/2015

Population growth which slowed along with the national economy is expected to show a very modest gain
in FY15. While the City is expected to add approximately 1,000 net new residents in FY'15, the rate of
growth will be under 2 percent for the fifth year in a row. The slowly expanding population base is
directly linked to local jobs opportunities and to the national housing market. As retirees planning to
relocate begin to see some progress on selling houses in other areas of the U.S., Las Cruces should see a
pick-up in people moving into the area.

The City’s revenue growth has been influenced by the slow economic conditions. Gross Receipts Tax,
which is by far the City’s largest revenue source, is largely dependent on construction activity and
personal income gains that come from wage and salary jobs.

A key to achieving the rate of employment growth forecast for the Las Cruces area is the relationship
between the private and government sectors. Las Cruces is highly dependent on public sector employment
because of the presence of the Federal Government and New Mexico State University. The recovery to
date has been concentrated in private jobs with public jobs actually declining in recent years. The outlook
anticipates all new jobs being created in the private sector while the public sector slowly returns to a level
close to zero growth.

The City has navigated the recession and managed its finances by taking a prudent, conservative
approach. The balances in the City’s general fund reflect this philosophy and have been consistently
maintained at twice the amount required by the State.

While the General Fund balances are anticipated to ebb slightly over the time horizon, the City can
continue to provide its citizens services. This ability is a dividend of the City’s prudent fiscal management
practice for the past several years, and is allowing the City to navigate the recession while maintaining
services.

Long-Term Plans and Major Initiatives

During FY15, the MPO Transportation Plan, which guides multi-modal transportation planning,
construction, operation, and maintenance of an integrated transportation network for the Las Cruces
Urbanized Area, was approved and will be implemented through the City’s development standards. Parks
and Recreation worked with local developers to provide additional neighborhood parks in newly
developed areas; four developer agreements were completed and two new parks were fully constructed.

The City reduced its kilowatt hour consumption in City buildings by 1 percent from the 2013 baseline,
saving $40,000 annually from renewable and energy efficient projects. In other sustainability efforts, the
City continued LED street light upgrade projects on major corridors in order to reduce transportation
operating costs. The Transportation department continues to build the required infrastructure of the City’s
Intelligent Transportation Systems to improve traffic flow in the City, including adaptive signal timing
software, Bluetooth technology implementation and fiber optic installation projects.

Long range plans continue to include fleet replacement and facility maintenance as well as the need to
provide utility services, public safety, and recreational facilities in newly developed areas.
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Honorable Mayor and City Council,
City of Las Cruces, New Mexico
11/30/2015

During FY 14 the City Council formalized a five-year strategic plan, which serves as a guide to plan the
use of City resources and direct the future of City programs. The guiding four themes under which all of
the goals will align are Fiscal Responsibility, Service Delivery Excellence, Infrastructure Development,
and Quality of Life/Community Identity. Each year the City’s financial and operational performance is
measured against the plan and outcomes are reported to the City Council and the community at large.

There were 25 goals identified by City Council, with the top ten listed below:

1. Increase city focus on strategic job creation;

2. Promote responsible, stable, and sustainable economic development;

3. Develop a diverse/perpetual funding strategy for capital and operating needs;

4. Support neighborhood vitality and downtown revitalization;

5. Increase educational, recreational, and cultural opportunities and amenities;

6. Foster regional collaboration and partnerships to maximize mutually beneficial outcomes;
7. Foster creativity and innovation;

8. Define the City's infrastructure policy;

9. Provide and maintain reliable infrastructure to support community needs; and

10. Support cost-effective energy initiatives.

The strategic plan, with progress updates, is available on the City’s website for public review.
Internal Control Framework

Integrated within the business systems of the City are the policies and procedures over accounting and
financial reporting that make up the internal control framework. The internal control framework provides
assurance that the accounting systems and underlying data are reliable; however, there are certain
limitations inherent in the internal control framework. Management may choose to accept certain risks
because the cost to prevent all risks is not reasonable. Management is responsible for establishing and
maintaining effective internal controls. Although some level of risk within the internal control framework
is unavoidable, the City’s management maintains an attitude of supporting strong and effective internal
controls.

Financial Information, Management and Control

The financial position and operating results of the City are provided in the financial statements.
Management’s discussion and analysis includes financial highlights, describes the financial statements,
and provides financial analysis of the City’s financial position and results of operations. Following is a
brief description of financial information, management of financial resources, and financial obligations.

Budgetary Control
In New Mexico, state statutes mandate that municipalities operate within the confines of a balanced

budget. Annual budgets are adopted for all funds. If a fund is not overspent, it is in compliance with state
law. All unexpended budget appropriations lapse at the end of the fiscal year.

(U]



158

Honorable Mayor and City Council,
City of Las Cruces, New Mexico
11/30/2015

The City Manager is responsible for presenting an annual budget to the City Council. The Council sets
hearings for annual budget review and approves the final budget. The final budget is then submitted to the
New Mexico Department of Finance and Administration, Local Government Division. The Local
Government Division must then approve and certify the City’s operating budget, budget increases, and
budget transfers between funds.

The adopted budget becomes a document that details a clear and precise picture of the cost of public
services that will be provided. The budget is controlled through an integrated accounting system to assure
effective fiscal management and accountability. Budget adjustments requested throughout the fiscal year
that increase fund expenditures must be approved by the City Council.

Taxes

The allocation of the property tax for FY15 and the two preceding years is based on the mill levy below:

Purpose 2015 2014 2013
Operational mill levy:

Residential 6.806 6.801 6.757
Non-residential 7.120 7.120 7.120

The City has no outstanding general obligation bonds. Therefore, the debt service levy for all three years
is zero.

The gross receipts tax rate on receipts within the City was 7.9375 percent at June 30, 2015. The
breakdown and sources of the gross receipts tax rate include:

Percent of
Tax Rate Total Rate
State shared 5.1250% 65.0%
Municipal GRT- general purpose 1.2500% 16.0%
Municipal GRT-infrastructure 0.2500% 3.0%
Municipal Environmental GRT 0.0625% 1.0%
Municipal Hold Harmless GRT 0.3750% 5.0%
Dona Ana County-local option taxes 0.8750% 10.0%
7.9375% 100.0%

Debt Administration

The City has significant capacity for future capital and infrastructure acquisitions, should the need arise.
The City’s current unused general obligation (G.O.) bond capacity is in excess of $70 million. The City
currently has no outstanding G.O. bonds.

The City had 14 bond issues outstanding at June 30, 2015. Gross receipts tax revenues finance nine bond
issues outstanding. Five issues are Joint Utilities Revenue Bonds secured by the net operating revenues of
the utility system. The amount of bonds outstanding at June 30, 2015 was $72.0 million in governmental
bonds and $53.1 million in utility revenue bonds. Principal payments on bonds totaled $6.9 million during
the fiscal year excluding refinancing activities. In addition, the City had 15 loans outstanding from New
Mexico Finance Authority and other entities totaling $15.4 million with principal payments during the
fiscal year of $3.6 million.
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Honorable Mayor and City Council,
City of Las Cruces, New Mexico
11/30/2015

Independent Audit

New Mexico State law requires that an annual audit of a governmental unit’s financial statements be
performed by independent public accountants. Federal law requires that a single audit be performed for
federal grant funds as required by the Single Audit Act Amendments of 1996, Office of Management and
Budget Circular A-133, and ARRA requirements. Additionally, the City Charter requires an annual audit
of all accounts of the City by an independent certified public accountant.

The independent auditor’s reports on the financial statements, required supplementary information, and
other supplementary information are included in the financial section of this report. The auditor’s reports
related specifically to the single audit are included in the single audit section of this report.

The independent firm of certified public accountants, Moss Adams, LLP, has audited the financial
statements and related notes. The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles (GAAP) for local governments as prescribed by the Governmental
Accounting Standards Board (GASB).

GFOA Award

The Government Finance Officers Association of the United States and Canada (GFOA) awarded a
Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting to the City of Las Cruces for the
comprehensive annual financial report for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2014. This was the ninth
consecutive year that the City has achieved this prestigious award. In order to be awarded a Certificate of
Achievement, a government must publish an easily readable and efficiently organized comprehensive
annual financial report. This report must demonstrate proficiencies in both generally accepted accounting
principles and applicable legal requirements.

We believe that this current comprehensive annual financial report continues to meet the Certificate of
Achievement Program’s requirements and we are submitting it to GFOA to determine eligibility for the
certificate. This award represents the highest form of recognition in governmental accounting and
financial reporting. This is an outstanding accomplishment that demonstrates the professionalism residing
in the City’s Financial Services Department.

The preparation of the annual CAFR is primarily the responsibility of the Accounting Department. 1
would like to recognize Victoria Fredrick, Financial Services Director, Melissa Nelson and Maria Villa,
Accounting Managers, and the Accounting staff including Natalia Dominguez, Gilbert Rodriguez, James
Williams, Josie Medina, Karin DeVogel, Maria Sanchez, Maricela Ortiz, and Victoria Delgado for their
efforts in this accomplishment.

Acknowledgments
The annual audit cannot be completed without the efforts and dedication of the Financial Services

Department staff. I would like to express my appreciation to staff for their many hours of hard work
devoted to this year’s audit.
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Honorable Mayor and City Council,
City of Las Cruces, New Mexico
11/30/2015

[ would also like to thank the Mayor, City Council, and City Management for their interest and support in
planning and conducting the financial affairs of the City in a responsible and progressive manner.

Respectfully submitted,
YOl L

Robert L. Garza, PE

City Manager
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City of Las Cruces
June 30, 2015
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Report of Independent Auditors

Mr. Timothy Keller, New Mexico State Auditor
and the Honorable Mayor and City Council Members
of the City of Las Cruces

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-
type activities, the discretely presented component unit, each major fund, the aggregate remaining fund
information, and the budgetary comparisons for the general fund and major special revenue funds of
the City of Las Cruces, New Mexico (the City), as of and for the year ended June 30, 2015, which
collectively comprise the City’s basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents. We also
have audited the financial statements of each of the nonmajor governmental, nonmajor enterprise,
internal service funds, agency funds and the budgetary comparisons for the debt service fund, special
revenue funds, capital project funds, proprictary funds, and all nonmajor funds presented as
supplementary information, as defined by the Government Accounting Standards Board (GASB), in the
accompanying combining and individual fund financial statements as of and for the year ended June
30, 2015, as listed in the table of contents.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes
the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair
presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We
conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards,
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from
material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in
the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s
preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness
of the City’s internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion.

An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the
overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for oy
our audit opinions. Praxity:

11
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Mr. Timothy Keller, New Mexico State Auditor
and the Honorable Mayor and City Council Members
of the City of Las Cruces

Opinions

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
respective financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, the discretely
presented component unit, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City
of Las Cruces, New Mexico as of June 30, 2015, the respective changes in financial position and,
where applicable, cash flows thereof, and the respective budgetary comparisons for the general fund
and major special revenue funds for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America. In addition, in our opinion, the financial statements
and schedules referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective financial position
of each nonmajor governmental, nonmajor enterprise, internal service funds, and agency funds of the
City of Las Cruces, New Mexico as of June 30, 2015, the respective changes in financial position, cash
flows, where applicable thereof, and the respective budgetary comparisons of the debt service fund,
special revenue funds, capital project funds, proprietary funds and all nonmajor funds for the year then
ended in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Emphasis of a Matter

In the year ended June 30, 2015, the City adopted new accounting guidance, GASB Statement No. 68,
Accounting and Financial Reporting for Pensions, as amended by GASB Statement No. 71, Pension
Transition for Contributions Made Subsequent to the Measurement Date, which modified the
presentation of the financial statements by establishing standards for measuring and recognizing net
pension liabilities, deferred outflows of resources, deferred inflows of resources, and expenses related
to pension benefits provided through defined benefit pension plans. [n addition, Statement 68 requires
disclosure of information related to pension benefits. As discussed in Note 22 to the basic financial
statements, the adoption of GASB statements 68 and 71 resulted in the restatement of beginning net
position. Our opinions are not modified with respect to this matter.

Other Matters

Required Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the
management's discussion and analysis and schedule of the City’s proportionate share of the net pension
liability and the schedule of the City’s contributions as listed in the table of contents be presented to
supplement the basic financial statements. Such information, although not a part of the basic financial
statements, is required by the GASB who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for
placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We
have applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with
auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of
management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for
consistency with management's responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other
knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an
opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us
with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.

12
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M. Timothy Keller, New Mexico State Auditor
and the Honorable Mayor and City Council Members
of the City of Las Cruces

Other Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the City’s financial statements, the
combining and individual fund financial statements, and the budgetary comparisons. The
accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards, as required by the Office of Management
and Budget Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations, the
introductory and statistical section, and the other schedules required by 2.2.2 NMAC included as Other
Supplementary Information as listed in the table of contents, are presented for purposes of additional
analysis and are not a required part of the basic financial statements.

The schedule of expenditures of federal awards and other schedules required by 2.2.2 NMAC included
as Other Supplementary Information as listed in the table of contents are the responsibility of
management and were derived from and relate directly to the underlying accounting and other records
used to prepare the basic financial statements. Such information has been subjected to the auditing
procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and certain additional procedures,
including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other
records used to prepare the basic financial statements or to the basic financial statements themselves,
and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America. In our opinion, the schedule of expenditures of federal awards and other schedules
required by 2.2.2 NMAC included as Other Supplementary Information as listed in the table of contents
are fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the basic financial statements as a whole.

The introductory, statistical and other information sections as noted in the table of contents have not
been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and,
accordingly, we do not express on opinion or provide any assurance on them.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated November
30, 2015 on our consideration of the City’s internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of
its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other
matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over
financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on
internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit
performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the City's internal control
over financial reporting and compliance.

%W%M* oy

November 30, 2015
Albuquerque, New Mexico
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City of Las Cruces
Management’s Discussion and Analysis
June 30, 2015

Management’s Discussion and Analysis

The Management Discussion and Analysis presents an overview of the City’s financial activities
for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2015. It is intended to be read in conjunction with the Letter of
Transmittal and the City’s financial statements. In accordance with Governmental Accounting
Standards Board (GASB) standards, comparisons to prior-year balances and activity are
presented.

Financial Highlights

o The assets and deferred outflows of resources of the City of Las Cruces exceeded its
liabilities at the close of the most recent fiscal year by $571,277,001 (net position). Of
this amount, $106,688,636 represents unrestricted net position, which may be used to
meet the government’s ongoing obligations to citizens and creditors.

e The City’s total net position decreased $93,454,377 due to the implementation of GASB
68, which requires the recognition of liabilities, deferred outflows of resources, and
deferred inflows of resources related to pension plans.

e At the close of the current fiscal year, the City of Las Cruces’ governmental funds
reported combined fund balances of $142,955,557, an increase of $29,405,204 in
comparison with the prior year. Approximately 22 percent of this amount ($31,379,100)
is available for spending at the government’s discretion (unassigned fund balance).

e At the end of the current fiscal year, unrestricted fund balance (the total of the committed,
assigned, and unassigned components of fund balance) for the general fund was
$40,380,639 or approximately 45.5 percent of total general fund expenditures.

e The pooled cash and investments for governmental and business-type activities increased
$6,815,226 and $645,258, respectively.

e The total bond and certificate of obligation debt for governmental and business-type
activities increased $10,252,935 and $5,364,726 respectively. During the fiscal year, total
debt outstanding increased to $140,454,454 due to the issuance of new debt to fund
public parks, recreational facilities, street improvements, as well as to acquire public
buildings and fund the environmental remediation of public property.

Overview of the Financial Statements

This discussion and analysis is intended to serve as an introduction to the City’s basic financial
statements. The City’s basic financial statements are comprised of three components: 1)
government-wide financial statements, 2) fund financial statements, and 3) notes to the financial
statements. This report also contains other supplementary information in addition to the basic
financial statements.

14
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City of Las Cruces

Management’s Discussion and Analysis
June 30, 2015

The financial statements presented herein include all of the activities of the City of Las Cruces
using the integrated approach as prescribed by GASB Statement No. 34, Basic Financial
Statements — and Management’s Discussion and Analysis — for State and Local Governments,
and all amendments thereafter.

The following illustration summarizes the sections and reporting requirements of this financial
report.

o~ % .
REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY Y ! . . .
{ INFORMATION ;—————)v- Management’s Discussion and Analysis (MD&A)
: d l e
—P Government-wide Financial Statements
r — ————
— Governmental Fund Financial Statements 4
/" FINANCIAL SECTION-BASIC ‘ ) S Mandatory
foer] dF | Stat t :a n
{  FINANCIAL STATEMENTS —®|  Proprietary Fund Financial Statements » Reporting
T
—}| Fiduciary Fund Financial Statements == A
—b‘ Notes to the Financial Statements
|

f REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY
\ INFORMATION {Other than MD&A) /

Budgetary Basis Reporting with Notes

I |
/" OTHER SUPPLEMENTARY '\ | Combining Fund Financial Statements/ Non-Mandatory
{ R —J

INFORMATION (Not Required} | Schedules ‘ Reporting

Government-wide Financial Statements

The government-wide financial statements consist of two statements and are designed to provide
readers with a broad overview of the City’s finances in a manner similar to a private-sector
business.

The Statement of Net Position is a presentation of the City’s assets and liabilities, including
capital and infrastructure assets, and long-term liabilities. This statement reports the difference
between the two as net position. Over time, increases or decreases in net position may help
indicate whether the financial position of the City is improving or deteriorating.

15
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City of Las Cruces
Management’s Discussion and Analysis
June 30,2015

The Statement of Activities presents information showing how the government’s net position
changed during FY15. All changes in net position are reported as soon as the underlying event
giving rise to the change occurs, regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Thus, revenues
and expenses are reported in this statement for some items that will only result in cash flows in
future fiscal periods (e.g., uncollected taxes and earned, but unused, vacation leave). Both of
these financial statements distinguish functions of the City that are principally supported by taxes
and intergovernmental revenues (governmental activities) from other functions that are intended
to recover all or a significant portion of their costs through user fees and charges (business-type
activities). The governmental activities of the City include General Government, Police, Fire,
Community Development, Public Works, Information Technology, Transportation, and
Community and Cultural Services. The business-type activities of the City include Gas, Water,
Waste Water, Solid Waste, Transit, and Alternative Fuels.

The government-wide financial statements include not only the City itself (known as the primary
government), but also the following legally separate component units: South Central Solid Waste
Authority (SCSWA), and the Las Cruces Downtown Tax Increment Development District
(TIDD). SCSWA is a discretely presented component unit and the financial information for this
component unit is reported separately from the primary government in the government-wide
financial statements.

The TIDD is a blended component unit of the City, whose board is comprised of the members of
the City Council. The purpose of the TIDD is to finance public infrastructure serving the
downtown area. The TIDD is presented as a special revenue fund in the financial statements. The
funds to acquire or construct public infrastructure within the TIDD District is presented as a
capital project fund in the financial statements.

Fund Financial Statements

A fund is a grouping of related accounts that is used to maintain control over resources that have
been segregated for specific activities or objectives. The City, like other state and local
governments, uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-related
legal requirements. The focus of the fund financial statements is on the City’s major funds,
although nonmajor funds are also presented in aggregate and further detailed in the
supplementary statements. All of the funds of the City can be divided into three categories:
governmental funds, proprietary funds, and fiduciary funds. Fund financial statements allow the
City to present information regarding fiduciary funds, since they are not reported in the
government-wide financial statements.

Governmental Funds

Governmental funds are used to account for essentially the same functions reported as
governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. However, unlike the
government-wide financial statements, governmental fund financial statements focus on near-
term inflows and outflows of spendable resources, as well as on balances of spendable resources
available at the end of the fiscal year. Such information may be useful in evaluating a
government’s near-term financing requirements.

16
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City of Las Cruces
Management’s Discussion and Analysis
June 30, 2015

The focus of governmental funds is narrower than that of the government-wide financial
statements; therefore, it is useful to compare the information presented for governmental funds
with similar information presented for governmental activities in the government-wide financial
statements. Because governmental fund financial statements do not encompass the additional
long-term focus of the government-wide financial statements, additional information is provided
that explains the relationship (or differences) between them.

The City maintains five governmental fund types for financial reporting purposes. The
governmental fund types are General Fund, Special Revenue Funds, Capital Projects Funds,
Debt Service Funds, and Fiduciary Funds. The City maintains 150 governmental funds, nine of
which combine into the General Fund. Information is presented separately in the Governmental
Funds Balance Sheet and in the Governmental Funds Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and
Changes in Fund Balances for the funds that comprise the General Fund, which is considered to
be a major fund. Three other governmental funds, Sonoma Ranch, Telshor Facility, and Debt
Service are also reported as major funds. The remaining 138 governmental funds are combined
into a single, aggregated presentation as Other Governmental Funds. Individual fund data for
each of these non-major governmental funds is provided in the form of combining statements in
the Combining Financial Statements section of this report.

Proprietary Funds

The City maintains two different types of proprietary funds. Enterprise funds are used to report
the same functions presented as business-type activities in the government-wide financial
statements. The City uses enterprise funds to account for the fiscal activities relating to Gas,
Water, and Wastewater utilities, as well as Solid Waste disposal. The City also uses enterprise
funds to account for Transit and Alternative Fuels, which are reported as non-major enterprise
funds. Internal service funds are an accounting device used to accumulate and allocate costs
internally among the City’s various functions. The City uses internal service funds to account for
its vehicle maintenance and self-insurance. These services have been allocated to governmental
activities in the government-wide financial statements as they predominantly serve governmental
functions.

Proprietary funds provide the same type of information as the government-wide financial
statements, only in more detail. The proprietary fund financial statements provide separate
information for the Gas, Water, and Wastewater Utilities, as well as Solid Waste funds, which
are considered to be major funds of the City. Data from the non-major enterprise funds, as well
as all the internal service funds, are combined into single, aggregated presentations in the
proprietary fund financial statements. Individual fund data for the non-major enterprise funds
and the internal service funds is provided in the form of combining statements in the Combining
Financial Statements section of this report.

17



172

City of Las Cruces
Management’s Discussion and Analysis
June 30, 2015

Fiduciary Funds

Fiduciary funds are used to account for resources held for the benefit of parties outside of the
primary government. Fiduciary funds are not reflected in the government-wide financial
statement as the resources of those funds are not available to support the City’s programs and
operations. The Statement of Fiduciary Assets and Liabilities for the agency funds is presented in
the basic financial statements section of this report.

Notes to the Financial Statements

The Notes are an integral part of the financial statements and provide additional information that
is essential to a full understanding and fair presentation of the data provided in both the
government-wide and fund financial statements.

Other Information

In addition to the basic financial statements and the accompanying notes, this report also presents
the required supplementary information of the City’s governmental and proprietary funds:
general, debt service, special revenue, capital project, enterprise, and internal service funds.
Budgetary comparison schedules have been provided which demonstrates budgetary compliance.

Statistics

The statistical section provides statistical data on financial trends, revenue and debt capacity,
demographic and economic data, and operating information.

Government-Wide Overall Financial Analysis
Net position over time, may serve as a useful indicator of a government’s financial position. In
the case of the City of Las Cruces, assets and deferred outflows of resources exceeded liabilities

by $571,277,819, at the close of the most recent fiscal year.

Net Position (in 000’s)

Governmental Activities Business - type Activities Total
2015 2014 2013 2015 2014 2013 2015 2014 2013

Current and Other Assets $ 187,667 3 154687 $ 158,101 § 76785 § 63384 $ 62,274 $ 264452 $ 218071 $ 220,375
Capital Assets 362,515 _ 365,533 _ 367,401 214,557 216,152 _ 218,756 577,072 _ 581,685 _ 386,157

Total Assers $ 550.182 § 520,220 $ 525,502 $ 291342 §$ 279536 § 281,030 § 841,524 § 799.756 $ B06,532
Deferred Outflows of Resouices 9,143 - - 1978 123 - 1zl
Current and Other Liabilities $ 22,074 $ 18,661 $ 31900 $ 11366 § 7579 % 9,540 % 33,440 $ 26,240 $ 41,440
Long-term Liabilives _ 159,298 79218 86586 63722 _49.9%4 53,601 223,020 129212 140,187

Total Liabilities 181,372 97.879 118486 75.088 57.573 63,141 256460 155452 181.627
Deferred Inflowof Resowces 21.643 - - 3253 820 - 24 899
Net Position:
Net investment in

capital assels 190,995 289,785 277,394 166,565 173,829 135,584 357,560 463,614 432,978
Restricted Net Position 80.631 61.253 58994 26.407 13,718 22,077 107,038 74971 81.071
Unrestricted Net Position 84.682 71,303 70628 22,007 33,719 40,228 106,689 105022 _ 110,856

Total Net Position _356.308 422,341 407,016 214,979 221,266 217,889 571,287  643.607 624,905
Total Liabilities and
Net Position $ 559,325 $ 520,220 § 525,502 § 293320 §$ 279,659 $ 281,030 $ 852,646 $ 799,059 $ 806,532

18



173

City of Las Cruces
Management’s Discussion and Analysis
June 30,2015

63 percent of the City’s net position is investment in capital assets (i.e., land, land improvements,
buildings, equipment, utility infrastructure), net of any related outstanding debt used to acquire
those assets. This compares with 67 percent in FY 4. The City uses these capital assets to
provide services to citizens; consequently, these assets are not available for future spending.
Resources needed to repay this debt must be provided from other sources, since the capital assets
themselves cannot be used to liquidate these liabilities.

Nineteen percent of the City’s net position is resources that are subject to external restrictions on
how they may be used. This amount increased by 6 percent from 2014. The remaining balance of
unrestricted net position ($107 million) may be used to meet the government’s ongoing
obligations to citizens and creditors.

Changes in net position during 2015 and comparative amounts for 2014 and 2013 were:

Summary of Changes in Position (in 000’s)

Governmental Activities Business - typic Activities Total
2015 2014 2013 2015 2014 2013 2015 2014 2013
Revenues:
Program Revenues:
Charges for services $ 12347 § 15761 $ 19245 § 49952 § 49930 § 64,008 § 62,299 § 65691 § 83253
Operating grants and
conlributions 4,398 5,729 5,626 2,253 2459 3,426 6,651 8,188 9.052
Capital grants and
conlributions 6,044 8,423 10,888 294 - 1,289 6,338 8,423 12,177
General Revenue:
Taxes-GRT and property 108,145 96,148 97,284 - - - 108,145 96,148 97,284
Franclise fees/lodpers tax 2438 2,701 2,691 - - - 2438 2,701 2,691
Investment income (loss) 5,515 5,892 (545) 2,797 1,465 (1,827) 8,312 7,357 (2,372)
Telshor Facility income - - - - - - - - -
Miscellaneous - 10 - - - (62) - 10 -
Capital asset contiibulion - - - - 231 - - 231 -
Total Revenue 138,887 134,664 135,189 55,296 54,085 66,834 194,183 188,749 202,085
Expenses:
General Government 17,465 16,476 13,125 ] - - 17,465 16,476 13,125
Police 26,926 28,115 27744 - - - 26,926 28,115 27.744
Fire 13,828 12,734 12.408 - - - 13,828 12,734 12,408
Comumunity Development 4,859 4,592 4,394 - - - 4,859 4,592 4,394
Community and Cultwral Services 9,273 9315 9,011 - - - 9,273 9,315 9,011
Public Works 21,885 21,168 20,184 - - - 21,885 21,168 20.184
Information Technology 3416 3,341 3,638 - - - 3,416 3,341 3.638
Transportation 8,161 8,159 10,448 - - - 8,161 8,159 10,448
Parks and Recreation 9,798 9,120 8,482 - - - 9,798 9,120 8,482
Gas - = - 10,776 10,957 24,105 10,776 10,957 24,105
Water - - - 15,009 14,306 14610 15,009 14,306 14,610
Wasle water - - . 13,246 12,536 12,383 13,246 12,536 12,383
Solid waste - - - 10,942 11,438 11,387 10,942 11,438 11,587
Other - = - 4393 4,632 4,396 4,393 4,632 4.396
Intevest an long-teym debt ____2,07 | — 3.1 5_'8 3469 - - 3,071 3 I58_ - 3,469
Total Expenses 118,682 116,178 112,903 54,366 53,869 66,881 173,048 170,047 179,784
Increase (decrease) in net position
before transfers 20,205 18,486 22,286 930 216 47 21,135 18,702 22,301
Tiansfers (2,943) (3,161) (2.945) 2,943 3,161 2,945 -
Change in net position 17,262 15,325 19,341 3,873 3,377 2,898 21,135 18,702 22,501
Nel Position - beginning 422,341 407,016 387,310 221,266 217,890 214,992 643,607 624,906 602,302
Prior period adjustment (Nole 22) (83,295) _ - (10,160) - - (93,455) - -
Net Position - ending § 356,308 § 422,341 § 406,651 § 214979 § 221,267 § 217,890 § 571,287 § 643,608 § 624,603
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City of Las Cruces
Management’s Discussion and Analysis
June 30, 2015

Governmental Activities

During the current fiscal year, net position for governmental activities increased $17,262,401
from the prior fiscal year before the implementation of GASB 68, which required a prior period
adjustment of ($83,294,777), for an ending balance of $356,308,665. Gross receipts tax, property
tax, and franchise fees increased from $98.8 million in FY14 to $110.6 million in FY15.

Governmental Revenues

Charges for  Operating

Investment Income . .

Franchise Fees 4% Servic _Grants;’Cc;l;trlbutlons
]

2%

Capital
Grants/Contributions
4%

Revenue by Source — Governmental Activities

$120,000
$100,000
$80,000
$60,000
$40,000
$20,000
$0
-$20,000

B Charges for Services B Operaling Grantg/Cantributions 0 Capital Granisonltribulions

B Taxes 0 Franchise Fees 0 Investment Income
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City of Las Cruces
Management’s Discussion and Analysis
June 30, 2015

Expenses of the City’s governmental activities increased from $116.2 million in FY 14 to $118.7
million in 2015 due to increased Police protection.

Business-type Activities

For the City’s business-type activities, the net position decreased by $6,287,936 to reach an
ending balance of $214,978,336. Charges from services increased slightly from $49.93 million in
FY14 to $49.95 million in FY15. Expenses increased from $53.8 million in 2014 to $54.4
million in 2015. Prior to FY14, the cost of gas in the Gas fund was reported as an operating
expense. Beginning in FY14, the cost of gas was reduced from operating expenses and is
currently being reflected in the gross margin.

Revenues by Source — Business-type Activities

80,000
70,000
60,000
50,000
40,000 -
30,000
20,000
10,000 1

B  Charges for setvices 8 Capilal grans/contribulions
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2 Olher

Expenses and Program Revenues — Business-type Activities
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LI FY14 Revenues [ FY14 Expenses

$25,000,000

$20,000,000 B FY13 Revenues DO FY13 Expenses
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$5,000,000

s . : :
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Financial Analysis of the City’s Funds

Gross receipts tax, the largest revenue source in the general fund, increased by $11.8 million
from 2014 due to the increase in gross receipts tax authorized by the Legislature to make up for
the state funding reductions. Charges for services decreased by $3.4 million due to a decrease in
fees and fines as well as licenses and permits.

Governmental Funds

The focus of the City’s governmental funds is to provide information on near-term inflows,
outflows, and balances of spendable resources. Unlike the government-wide financial
statements, governmental fund financial statements focus on current sources and uses of
spendable resources, as well as on balances of spendable resources available at the end of the
fiscal year. This information is useful in assessing the City’s financing requirements. Non-
financial assets such as governmental buildings, roads, drainage ways as well as long-term
liabilities, such as payables or long-term liabilities that will not be paid with current assets, are
excluded. Such information is useful in assessing the City’s financing requirements. In
particular, the Unassigned Fund Balance may serve as a useful measure of the government’s net
resources available for spending at the end of the fiscal year.

The General Fund, Sonoma Ranch, Debt Service, and Telshor Facility funds are reported as
major governmental funds. As of the end of FY15, the City’s governmental funds reported
combined ending fund balances of $142.9 million, an increase of $29.4 million from the prior
year due to the issuance of refunding debt.

The fund balance of the General Fund is reported in the five categories defined by GASB 54: (1)
The nonspendable fund balance of $1.4 million is for inventories; (2) The restricted fund balance
of $87k is for grants for public safety programs, community development and community, public
works, and cultural services; (3) The committed fund balance of $5.9 million is for health-related
programs; (4) The assigned fund balance in the General Fund is $3.1 million and is associated
with public works, community development, information technology, office of emergency
management reserve, economic development, transportation and vehicle acquisition activities;
(5) The allocation to each function is presented in the governmental funds balance sheet. The
unassigned fund balance in the General Fund is $31.4 million. The total fund balance in the
General Fund is $41.9 million.

Fund balances of other major governmental funds are committed and restricted. The fund
balance in Sonoma Ranch of $1.5 million is committed for public works. The Telshor Facility
fund has $36.3 million restricted for health related programs. All other governmental funds are
combined and reported as non-major governmental funds. Non-major governmental funds have a
restricted fund balance of $38.5 million public safety, housing and community development,
debt service, public works, community and cultural services, parks and recreation, and
transportation. The committed fund balance of $19 million is for debt service, health-related
programs, public works, public safety programs, and parks and recreation.
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis
June 30, 2015

General Fund

The General Fund is the chief operating fund of the City. At the end of FY15, unassigned fund
balance of the general fund was $31.4 million, while total fund balance was $41.9 million. Of the
$31.4 million in unassigned fund balance, $7.9 million represents the amount required by state
and local policy to be held in reserve in the General Fund.

The fund balance of the City’s General Fund increased $5.9 million during the current fiscal
year, attributed primarily to an increase in tax revenue combined with prudent budgetary controls
and fiscal monitoring of expenditures throughout the year.

Revenues — The difference between the original budget and the final amended budget for
revenues is an increase of approximately $178k for the year as there were no unexpected changes
throughout the year.

Actual revenues for the fiscal year were approximately $4.6 million more than the final budget.
Actual revenues from other revenues exceeded the final budget by approximately $2 million.
Charges for services actual revenues fell under the final budget by approximately $996k than the
final budget mainly due to an unexpected reduction in police security services.

Expenditures — Differences between the original expenditures budget and the final amended
expenditures budget totaled approximately $1.0 million and are briefly summarized as follows:

e The budget for general government decreased by $1.3 million due to a revision in the
City Manager contingency.

e The budget for police increased by $316k due to an increase in software and minor
equipment.

e The budget for fire increased $354k due to an increase in salary and benefits resulting in
additional staffing.

e The budget for community development increased by $212k due to an increase for
purchased services and salaries for additional staffing.

e The budget for capital outlay increased by $1.24 million for the purchase of vehicles and
major equipment.

Actual expenditures were approximately $6.6 million less than the final expenditures budget.
These variances can be briefly summarized as follows:

e The general government actual expenditures were approximately $2 million less than the
final budget primarily due to salary savings.

» Actual expenditures for police were $2 million less than budget due to salary savings.

e Actual expenditures for public works were $1.2 million less than budget due to a later
than expected project completion date.
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis
June 30,2015

Long-Term Debt
At the end of FY15, the City had total long-term debt outstanding of $140,454,454 in bonds,
notes and leases, with a net increase of $15,617,661 over the prior year due to the issuance of

new debt.

Outstanding Bonds and Liabilities to Financial Institutions 2015

Gaver. | Business-type Tolal

2015 2014 Change 2015 2014 Change 2013 2014 Change
Revenuce Bonds: Quistanding  $ 72015000 $ 39350.000 % (12,665.000) $§ 33050000 $ 49.865.000 § (3.185000) § 125,065,000 § 109215000 § (13,850,000)
Notes Payable: Quistanding 11,576,819 13,948 884 2,412,065 3,812,635 1,632,909 (2.179.726) 15,389,454 15,621,793 232,339
Total Quistanding § 83591819 & 73,338884 § (10,252,935) § 56,862,635 $ 51,497,909 S (5364,726) $ 140,454,454 § 124,836,793 S (15617,661)

Additional information on the City’s debt can be found in Note 7.
Capital Assets

The City’s investment in capital assets for its governmental and business-type activities as of
June 30, 2015 amounts to $577,072,017 million, net of accumulated depreciation. This
investment in capital assets includes land, buildings, land, and building improvements, leasehold
improvements, equipment, infrastructure, and construction in progress. The total decrease in the
City’s investment in capital assets for the current fiscal year, net of accumulated depreciation,
was 0.8 percent.

Additional information on the City’s capital assets can be found in Note 4.
Economic Outlook

The local economy is expected to follow the U.S. economy in a slow and uneven recovery.
Health Care, Service and Leisure/Hospitality are two sectors that are expected to do well over the
near term. The local job picture, in total, will still underperform the nation in part due to our
dependence on Public Sector jobs. Private sector job growth should offset public sector job
losses leading to a 0.5 percent growth in FY'15.

Population growth which slowed along with the national economy is expected to show a very
modest gain in FY15. While the City is expected to add approximately 1,000 new residents in
FY15, the rate of growth will be under 2 percent for the fifth year in a row. The slowly
expanding population base is directly linked to local jobs opportunities and to the national
housing market. As retirees planning to relocate begin to see some progress on selling houses in
other areas of the U.S., Las Cruces should see a pick-up in people moving into the area.

The City’s revenue growth has been influenced by the slow economic conditions. Gross Receipts

Tax, which is by far the City’s largest revenue source, is largely dependent on construction
activity and personal income gains that come from wage and salary jobs.
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City of Las Cruces
Management’s Discussion and Analysis
June 30, 2015

A key to achieving the rate of employment growth forecast for the Las Cruces area is the
relationship between the private and government sectors. Las Cruces is highly dependent on
public sector employment because of the presence of the Federal Government and New Mexico
State University. The recovery to date has been concentrated in private jobs with public jobs
actually declining in recent years. The outlook anticipates all new jobs being created in the
private sector while the public sector slowly returns to a level close to zero growth.

The City has navigated the recession and managed its finances by taking a prudent, conservative
approach. The balances in the City’s general fund reflect this philosophy and have been
consistently maintained at twice the amount required by the state.

While the General Fund balances are anticipated to ebb slightly over the time horizon, the City
can continue to provide its citizens services. This ability is a dividend of the City’s prudent fiscal
management practice for the past several years, and is allowing the City to navigate the recession
while maintaining services.

Requests for Information

This financial report is designed to present users with an overview of the City’s finances and to
demonstrate the City’s accountability. If you have questions concerning any of the information
provided in this report or need additional financial information, contact:

Financial Services Director
City of Las Cruces
P.O. Box 20000
Las Cruces, NM 88004
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Assets

Cash and investments
Receivables, net
Other assets
Due from other governmental units
Due from South Central Solid Waste
Notes receivable
Restricted cash and investments
Capital assets:
Land and construction in
progress
Other capital assets, net of depreciation
Total capital assets
Total assets

Deferred Outflows of Resources
Deferred amount from refundings
Deferred charges related to pensions

Total deferred outflows of resources

Liabilities
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities
Unearned revenue
Customer deposits
Long-term liabilities:

Due within one year

Due in more than one year

Total liabilities

Deferred Inflows of Resources
Deferred gain of revenue for cost of gas
Deferred inflows related to pensions

Total deferred inflows of resources

Net Position

Net investiment in capital assets
Restricted for:

Public safety programs

Housing and conumunity development

Debt service

Public works

Health-related programs

Community and cultural services

Parks and recreation

Transportation

Customer deposits

Curbside recycling program
Unrestricted

Total net position
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City of Las Cruces

Statement of Net Position

June 30, 2015

Primary Government

South Central

Governimental ~ Business-type Solid Waste
Activities Activities Total Authority
$ 68175262 § 42,963,346 § 111,138,608 $ 2,572,618
14,184,724 4,005,566 18,190,290 493,008
1,791,372 2,326,062 4,117,434 -
16,908,903 556,445 17,465,348 -
1.989.170 - 1,989,170 -
- 526,936 526,936 -
84,618,183 26,406,539 111,024,722 3,731,743
36,348,953 8,003,513 44,352,466 1,693,315
326,166,418 206,553,133 532,719,551 6,590,705
362,515,371 214,556,646 577,072,017 8,284,020
550,182,985 291,341,540 841,524,525 15,081,389
414,788 796,501 1,211,289 -
8,728,295 1,181,835 9,910,130 322,322
9,143,083 1,978,336 11,121,419 322,322
7,847,145 4,419,478 12,266,623 740,378
2,004,778 - 2,004,778 -
- 1,159,024 1,159,024 -
12,222,061 5,787,253 18,009,314 539,661
159,298,136 63,722,372 223,020,508 4,650,685
181,372,120 75,088,127 256,460,247 5,930,724
- 263,916 263,916 -
21,645,283 2,989,497 24,634,780 815,326
21,645,283 3,253,413 24,898,696 815,326
190,995,174 166,565,164 357,560,338 4,242,549
2,888,735 - 2,888,735
444,514 - 444,514 -
6,186,609 14,260,400 20,447,009 -
29,994,060 10,987,116 40,981,176 -
2,876,476 - 2,876,476
36,303,430 - 36,303,430 -
1,833,429 - 1,833,429
104,234 - 104,234 -
- 1,159,024 1,159,024 -
- - - 300,341
84,682,004 22,006,632 106,688,636 4,114,771
$ 356,308,665 $ 214,978,336 § 571,287,001 § 8,657,661

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Assets

Pooled cash and investments
Restiicted cash and invesunents
Receivables, net

Due from other fimds

Due from other governmental units
[nventones

Tolal assets
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City of Las Cruces

Balance Sheet—Governmental Funds

Liabilities, Deferred Infllows of Resources, and Fund Balances

Liabilities
Accounts and contracls payable
Due to other govermments
Due to other funds
Accrued liabilities
Uneamed revenue
Total liabilities

Deferred Inflows of Resources
Unavailable revenue

Total Deferred Inflows of Resources

Total Liabilities and Deferred Inflows of Resources

Fund Balances
Non-spendable:
Inventories
Restricted for:
Public safety programs
Housmg and commimity development
Debt service fimds
Public woiks
Conmnunity and cultral services
Health-related programs
Parks and recreation
Transportation
Committed for:
Debt service
Health-related programs
Public safety progranms
Public woiks
Parks and recreation
Assigned fo:
Public works
Community development
Information technology
Office ofemergency management reserve
Econoinic development
Transportation
Vehicle acquisition fimd
Unassigned:
Unassigned
Total fimd balances

Total liabiliues, deferred inflows and flnd balances

June 30, 2015
Other Total
Governniental — Govermmental
General Fund ~ Sonoma Ranch  Telshor Facility  Debt Service Funds Funds

$ 30057266 § 1,503,102 $ - 3 - § 15286432 $ 46,846,800
. - 36,352.942 5,827,576 42,437,665 84,618,183
723,834 7,900,390 56,682 1.369 5,493,450 14,175,725
1,303,517 - - - - 1,303,517
13,454,045 - - = 3,454,858 16,908 903
1,431,060 - - ~ - 1,431,060
$ 46,969,722 $§ 9403492 $ 36409624 $ 5828945 $ 66,672,405 § 165,284,188
$ 2,353,894 § - 3 106,194 § 3929 $ 2,189,794 $ 4.653811
- - - 68,603 1,234 914 1,303,517
2,613,666 - - - 116,241 2,729,907
3,450 - - - 4,586,544 4,589,994
4,971,010 S 106,194 72,532 8,127,493 13,277,229
99,976 7,900,390 - - 1,051,036 9,051,402
99,976 7,900,390 - - 1,051,036 9,051,402
5,070,986 7,900,390 106,194 72,532 9,178,529 22,328,631
$ 1,431,060 §$ - $ - 3 - $ - $ 1,431,060
2,960 - - - 2,885,775 2,888,735
20,135 - - - 424,379 444,514
- - - 5,756,413 430,196 6,186,609
26,999 - . - 29,967,06] 29,994,060
36,943 - - - 2,839,533 2,876,476
- - 36,303,430 - - 36,303,430
- - . - 1,833,429 1,833,429
- - - 104,234 104,234
- - - - 2,330,552 2,330,552
5,937,791 - - - 33,486 5,971,271
- - - - 1,562,871 1,562,871
- 1,503,102 - - 11,745,557 13,248,659
- . = = 3,336,803 3,336,803
477,974 - - - - 477,974
378 - - - - 378
29,228 - - - - 29,228
50,000 - - - - 50,000
11,347 - - - - 11,347
78,492 - = s S 78,492
2,416,329 . - - - 2,416,329
31,379,100 _ - - - - 31,379,100
41.898,736 1,503,102 36,303.430 5,756,413 57,493,876 142,955,557
5 46,969,722 $§ 9403492 § 36,409,624 § 50828945 § 66,672,405 $ 165,284,188

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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City of Las Cruces
Reconciliation of the Governmental Funds
Balance Sheet to the Statement of Net Position
June 30, 2015

Total fund balances tor governmental funds $ 142,955,557

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement
of net position are different because:

Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial resources and,
therefore, are not reported in the funds (excludes $85,534 of capital assets of
internal service funds reported below) 362.429.837

Other assets are not available to pay for current-period expenditures
and, therefore, are reported as unearned revenue in the funds 12,918,210

The contribution of certain capital assets is deferred in the statement of
net position (1,281,592)

Long-term liabilities applicable to the City's governmental activities are

not due and payable in the current period and, accordingly, are not

reported in the funds (netted with the deferred outflows of the bond refunding

of $414,788 and excludes $6,232,736 of long term liabilities of internal

service funds reported below) (96,044,695)

The amount due from South Central Solid Waste Authority is not
available to pay current-period expenditures and is, therefore, not

reported in the funds 1,989,170

Deferred outflows of pensions (excludes $123,836 of deferred outflows from

pensions of internal service funds reported below) 8,605,459

Net pension liability (net of pension contribution payable of $1,528,147) (68,129,407)

Deferred inflows of pensions (excludes $310,717 of deferred inflows from
pensions of internal service funds reported below) (21,334,566)

Assets and liabilities of internal service funds are

included in net position ot governmental activities 14,200,692
Net position of governmental activities $ 356,308,665

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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City of Las Cruces
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in
Fund Balance—Governmental Funds
For the Year Ended June 30, 2015

Other Total
General Sonoma Telshor Debt Govemmental  Governmental
Fund Ranch Facility Service Funds Funds
Revenues
Taxes $ 89,728,390 $ - 5 - - $ 18,416,521 § 108,144,911
Charges for services $2,750,235 - - - 121,705 2,871,940
Fees and fines $654,159 - - - 2.305,944 2,960,103
Inveshment income (loss) $972.412 66,822 1,852,290 308,585 1,432,557 4,632,666
Franchise fees $2,438,470 - - - - 2,438,470
Licenses and permits $1,072,697 - - - 1,072,697
Intergovemnental:
Federal - = - - 2919,185 2,919,185
State - - - - 4,309,526 4,309,526
Local 7,440 - - 29,653 37,093
Other 6,157,893 - - 513.962 2,126,501 8,798,356
Total 1evenues 103,781,696 66,822 1,852,290 822,547 31,661,592 138,184,947
Expenditures
Curent
General government 14,600,868 - = 5,854 933,581 15,540,303
Police 22,790,188 - - - 3,174,250 25,964,438
Fire 12,150,566 - - - 1,080,788 13,231,354
Comimmity development 3,093,414 - - - 1,762,493 4,855,907
Cormmunity and cultural services 5,206,661 - - - 3,201,630 8,408,291
Public works 8,426,615 - - - 1,686,450 10,113,065
Information technology 3,307,482 - - - - 3,307,482
Transportation 5,006,488 - - - 2,043,748 7,050,236
Parks and recreation 9,083,711 - - - 12,430 9,096,141
Capital outlay 5,148,122 - - - 11,259,316 16,407,438
Debt service:
Principal - - - 9,418,765 - 9,418,765
Interest and other charges - - - 3,485,553 - 3,485,553
Debt issuance costs - - - 370.268 - 370,268
Total expenditures 88,814,115 - - 13,280,440 25,154,686 127,249,241
Revenues over (under) expenditures 14,967,581 66,822 1,852,290 (12,457,893) 6,506,906 10,935,706
Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Issuance of refunding debt 104,500 - - 19,195,000 24,743,325 44,042,825
Premiums on issuance of debt - - 1,157,983 676,394 1,834,877
Debt issuance costs - - (241.825) (241,825)
Refunded bonds redeeimed - - - (19,545,000) - (19,545,000)
Proceeds fiom sale of capital assets 87,238 - - 35,657 122,895
Paynent to agency —~ F - = - -
Transfers in 2,332,789 - - 12,691,042 6,909,620 21,933,45]
Transfers out (11,587,058) - (300,000) (59,623)  (17,731,044)  (29,677,725)
Total other financing sources (uses) (9,062,531) - (300,000) 13,439,402 14,392,627 18,469,498
Net change in fund balances 3,905,050 66,822 1,552,290 981.509 20.899,533 29,405,204
Fund balances, beginning of year 33,993,686 1,436,280 34,751,140 4,774,904 36,594,343 113,550,353
Fund balances, end of vear $ 41,898736 § 1,503,102 § 36303430 $ 5756413 § 57493876 § 142955557

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

35



190

City of Las Cruces
Reconciliation of the Statement of Revenues,
Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance of

Governmental Funds to the Statement of Activities
For the Year Ended June 30,2015

Net change in fund balances—gove rnmental funds

Total revenues and other financing sources in the governmental funds differ from total revenues for
governmenlal activities in the statement of activities. The difference results primarily from the long-
term economic focus of the statement of activities versus the current financial sources focus of the
governmental tunds The main components of the difference are describe below: $ 29,405,204

Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures. However, in the statement of

activities, the cost of certain capital outlays is allocated over the estimated useful lives of the assets
acquired and reported as depreciation expense As a result, fund balance decreased by the amount of
financial resources expended, whereas net position decreased by the amount of depreciation expense
charged for the year:

Capital outlay $ 16407438
Depreciation (18,583,189)
Difference in proceeds and net capital assets sold (122,895)
Disposal of capital assets not recorded in governmental funds (720,069)
Total (3,018,715)

Proceeds from the issuance of long-term obligations provide current financial resowces to
governmental funds and increase long-term liabilities in the statement of net position
Repayment of debt principal is an expenditure in the governmental funds, but the current
year principal repayment reduces long-term liabilities in the statement of net position.

Repayments of bonds and notes payable 9,418,765

Repayments of mortgage 4,800,000

Refunded bonds redeemed 19,545,000
Premiums on issuance of debt (1,834,877)
Proceeds from bonds and notes payable (44,042,825)
Interest expense related to bond refunding 414,788
Amortization of premiunv/discount of bond and notes payable 203,464

Total (11,495,685)

The change in the liability for compensated absences affects expenses reported in the statement
of activities but does not require the use of current financial resources and, therefore, is not
reported as expenditures in governmental funds. (615,591)

Revenues in the statement of activities that do not meet the "availability" criteria for revenue recognition
and, therefore, are not reported as revenues in the funds 290,256

Principal payments by South Central Solid Waste to the City's debt service fund are reported
as revenue in the debt service fund but reduce assets on the statement of net position (470,000)

Change in PERA liability affects expenses reported in the statement
of activities but does not require the use of current financial resources and, therefore, is not
reported as expenditures in governmental funds 1,499,472

Internal service funds are used by management to charge the costs of certain activities such as
insurance and telecommunications to individual tunds. The change in net position

of internal service tunds is reported within governmental activities 1,667,460
Change in net position ol governme ntal activities $  17.262.401

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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City of Las Cruces

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and
Changes in Fund Balance—Budget and Actual
General Fund
For the Year Ended June 30, 2015

(With Comparative Actual Amounts for the Year Ended June 30,2014)

2015 2014
Variance with
Final Budget -
Budgeted Amounts Positive
Original Tinal Actual (Negative) Actual
Revenues
Local taxes

Gross receipts $ 73,518280 $ 73.518,280 § 76,932,663 § 3,414383 § 62,231,616

Property 10,959,401 10,959,401 11,060,833 101,432 10,878,783

Utility franchise 1,253,304 1,253,304 1,259,748 6,444 1,205,265
Total local taxes 85.730,985 85,730,985 89,253,244 3,522,259 74 315,664

State-shared taxes 472,671 472,671 475,146 2,475 474,354
Charges for services 3,746,079 3.746,079 2,750,235 (995,844) 2,853,924
Fees and fines 790,583 790,583 654,159 (136,424) 950,956
Investment income (loss) 432,593 432,593 972,412 539819 456,734
Franchise fees 2,892,619 2,892619 2,438,470 (454,149) 2,700,727
Licenses and permits 1,137,936 1,137.936 1,072,697 (65,239) 1,090,909
Operating grants and contributions 25,625 25,625 7,440 (18,185) 24,102
Other 3,796,963 3,975,212 6,157,893 2,182 681 5,706,425
13,295,069 13,473,318 14,528,452 1,055,134 14,258,131
Total revenues 99,026,054 99,204,303 103,781,696 4,577,393 88,573,795
Expenditures
Current

General government 17,866,988 16.599,224 14,600,868 1,998,356 13,589,958

Police 24,446,159 24,762,629 22,790,188 1,972,441 20,904,786

Fire 11.852.522 12,206,804 12,150,566 56,238 9,874,369

Community development 3,294 135 3,500,260 3,093,414 412 846 3,139,753

Community and cultwal services 5,524 301 5,541,708 5,206,661 335,047 5,202,617

Public works 9,410,585 9,585,707 8,426,615 1,159,092 8,187,894

Information technology 3,790,546 3721335 3,307,482 413,853 3,261,809

Transportation 5,389,389 5,379,352 5,006,488 372,864 5,091,356

Parks and recreation 9,801,504 9.739,689 9,083,711 655,978 8,395,006

Capital outlay 2,976,988 4,325,228 5,148,122 (822,894) 4,163,268
Debt service

Interest - - -

Principal 2 = =
Total expenditures 94,353,117 95.367,936 88,814,115 6,553,821 81,810,816
Revenues over (under) expenditures 4,672,937 3,836,367 14,967,581 B 11,131,214 6,762,979

Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Issuance of debt - 104,500 104,500 - 1,600,000
Proceeds from sale of capital assels 10,000 10,000 87,238 77,238 159,840
Payment to agency - - - - (1,600,000)
Transfers in 2,301,519 4.301,519 2,332,789 (1,968,730) 3,052,511
Transters out (11,761,127)  (12,017,796) (11,587,058) 430,738 (9,243,481)
Total other financing sources (uses) (9,449,608) (7,601,777) (9,062,531) (1,460,754) (6,031,130)
Net change in fund balance (4,776,671)  (3.765,410) 5,905,050 9,670,460 731,849
Fund balance, beginning of year 35,993 686 35,993 686 35,993,686 - 35,261,837
Fund balance, end 0fyea| $ 31,217015 § 32,228‘276 $ 41 ,898,736 3 9,670,460 $ 35,993,686

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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City of Las Cruces

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and
Changes in Fund Balance—Budget and Actual
Sonoma Ranch
For the Year Ended June 30, 2015
(With Comparative Actual Amounts for the Year Ended June 30, 2014)

2015 2014
Variance wilth
Final Budget -
Budgeted Amounts Positive
Origmal Final Actual (Negative) Actual
Revenues
Investiment income $ - 3 - 3 66,822 $ 66,822 §$ 29,893
Other - - - - -
Total revenues - - 66,822 66,822 29,893
Net change in fund balance - - 66,822 66,822 29,893
Fund balance, beginning of year 1,436,280 1,436,280 1,436,280 31,055 1,406,387
Fund balance, end of year $ 1,436,280 $ 1,436,280 $ 1,503,102 § 97,877 $§ 1,436,280

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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City of Las Cruces
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and
Changes in Fund Balance—Budget and Actual
Telshor Facility
For the Year Ended June 30,2015
(With Comparative Actual Amounts for the Year Ended June 30, 2014)

2013 2014
Vanance with Final
Budget -
Budgeted Amounts Positive
Orignal Final Actual (Negative) Actual
Revenues
Investment income $ 1,100,000 $ 1,100,000 $ 1,852,290 $ 752,290 §$ 4,002,608
Other - = - - 12,782
Total revenues 1,100,000 1,100,000 1,852,290 752,290 4,015,390
Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Transfers out (300,000) (300,000) (300,000) - (300,000)
Total other financing sources (uses) (300,000) (300,000) (300,000) - (300,000)
Net change in fund balance 800,000 800,000 1,552,290 752,290 3,715,390
Fund balance, beginning of year 34,751,140 34,751,140 34,751,140 2,011,532 31,035,750
Fund balance, end of year $ 35,551,140 $ 35551,140 § 36,303,430 §$ 2,763,822 $ 34,751,140

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Gitylo A" ACGUCCY,

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Assets

Current assets
Cash and mvestments
Accounts receivable, net of allowance
for uncollectible accounts
Due from other governments
Inventories

Tolal cwrent assets

Non-current assets
Restricted cash and investments
Noles recervable
Advance to other fimds
Other
Capital assels
Less accumulated depreciation

Net capital assets

Total non-current assets
Total assets

Deferred outllows of resources

Deferred amount from refundings
Deferred charges related to pensions

Tolal deferred outflows of resources

Liabilities

Cunent liabilities
Accounts and contracts payable
Accrued liabilities
Current portion of non-current liabilities

Tolal current labilities

Non-current liabilities
Customer deposits
Revenue bonds payable
Notes payable
Compensated absences
Claimns
Accrued landfill closwe cost
Advance from other funds
Net pension liability

Total non-current liabilities
Total liabilities

Deferred inflows of resources
Deferred gam of revenue for cosl of gas
Deferred inflows related to pensions

Total defened inflows of resources
Nelt Position

Net investmient in capital assets
Restricted for customer deposits
Resvricted for capilal projects
Restricted for debt service
Unrestricted

Total net position

195

City of Las Cruces

Statement of Net Position—Proprietary Funds

June 30, 2015
Entemprise Funds
Other Internal
Waste Solid Enlerprse Service
Gas Water Waler Wasle Funds Totals Funds
$ 16,529,554 $ 6,680,276 § 13,154,998 § 6,598,518 § 42963346 $ 21,328,462
981,751 1,310,975 752,592 932,136 28,112 4,005,566 8,999
- 9,756 - 546,689 556,445 -
881,858 485,432 426,707 532,065 - 2,326,062 360,312
18,393,163 8,486,439 14,334,297 8,062,719 574,801 49,851,419 21,697,773
639,075 12,723,835 10,710,054 2,333,575 - 26,406,539 -
- 336,070 190,866 - - 526,936 -
= 2,781,022 - : 2,781,022 -
65,509,279 132917132 132,761 882 14,527,713 12,774,076 358,490,082 2376317
(38,975,963) (41,427,724) (49.586,792) (7,995,989) (5,946,968) {143,933,436) (2,290,783)
26533316 91,489,408 83,175,090 6,531,724 6,827,108 214,556,646 85,534
27,172,391 104,549,313 96,857,032 8,865,299 6,827 108 244,271,143 85,534
45,565,554 113,035752 111,191,329 16,928,018 7,401,909 294122562 21,783,307
- 384,740 411,761 - 796,501 -
306,268 223,125 235976 194,075 222,39) 1,181,835 122,836
306,268 607,865 641,737 194,075 222,391 1,978,336 122,336
787,805 687,827 389,313 1,230,903 222,100 3,317,948 404,738
262,014 321,270 262,170 154,664 101,412 1,101,530 58,689
57,926 2,758,328 2,166,127 779,458 25414 5,787,253 1,854,444
1,107,745 3,767,425 2,817,610 2,165,025 348,926 10,206,731 2,317,87)
639,075 202,206 143,518 174,225 1,159,024 =
. 25,588,674 25,780,935 = # 50,869,609 .
- - - 3,116,172 - 3,116,172 -
231,702 201,843 138,790 127,980 101,657 801,972 42,698
- . - - - . 4,335,594
- - - 1,067,000 - 1,067,000 z
- 2,781,022 . 5 2 2781,022 .
2,122,178 1,463,376 1,595,837 1,280,490 1,405,738 7,867,619 698,571
2,992,955 30,237,121 27,159,080 5,765,867 1,507,395 67,662,418 5,076,863
4,100,700 34,004,546 29,976,690 7,930,892 1,856,321 77,869,149 7.394,734
263,916 - - - - 263,916 -
774,711 564,403 596,911 490,920 562,546 2,989,497 310,717
1,038,633 564,403 596,911 490,920 562,546 3,253,413 310,717
26,533.316 70,157,246 57,421,012 5,626,482 6,827,108 166,565,164 85,534
639,075 202,206 143,518 174,225 - 1,159,024 -
= 7,820,023 1,699,292 1,467,802 - 10,987,116
- 4,701,607 8,867,245 691,548 - 14,260,400 .
13,560,098 (3,806,413) 13,134,398 740,224 (1,621,675) 22,006,632 14.115.158
$ 40,732,489 § 79,074,668 3 81265465 §$ 8,700,281 5205433 $ 214978336 $§ 14,200,692

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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City of Las Cruces

Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position
Proprietary Funds
For the Year Ended June 30, 2015

Enterpuse Funds

Other Internal
Wasle Solid Enteiprise Service
Gas Walter Waler Waste Funds Totals Funds
Operating Revenues
Sales/charges $22,939,107 $15,079,195 $ 11,486,287 $11,756,914 $617,210 $ 61,878,713 $4,892,878
Provision for uncollectible accounts (121,918) 37,153 (23.052) (37,485) - (145,302) -
Net sales/charges 22,817.189 15,116,348 11.463,235 11.719.429 617,210 61,733,411 4,892,878
Utility extension/service fee 232,599 105,811 9,240 - - 347,650 -
Rentals - 1,369 - - - 1,369 1,117,000
Other 38,915 142,066 84,754 20,961 3,288 289,984 6,965,311
Total operating revenues 23,088,703 15,365,594 11,557,229 11,740,390 620,498 62,372,414 12,975,189
Cosl of gas, water and services, respectively (12,354,195) (179,097) - - - (12,533,292) (2,946,237)
Gross Margin 10,734,508 15,186,497 11,557,229 11,740,390 620,498 49,839,122 10,028,952
Operating Expenses
Personnel services 3,144,874 2,580,341 2,457,110 2,238,085 2,487,796 12,908,206 1,295,235
Supplies 196,326 522,054 913,849 363,090 85,358 2,080,677 84,691
Utilities 14,859 1,565,473 897,195 38,478 33,968 2,549,973 67,294
Professional services 360,084 1,800,646 652,785 4,633,958 95,578 7,543,051 1,064,201
Motor pool charges - - - - 474,360 474,360 7915
Motor fuel - - - - 389,334 389,334 -
Repairs and maintenance 938,261 1,588,838 734,641 969,295 125,646 4,356,681 100,888
Rent 277 21,796 2,387 644 - 25,104 -
Depreciation and amortization 2,221,998 2,348,500 3,312,901 842,887 612,156 9,338,442 22,666
Payment in lieu of taxes 659,206 579,544 532,504 276,126 - 2,047,380 -
Administrative charges from other funds 641,405 651,149 607,938 279,965 - 2,180,457 -
Customer service 2,242.722 1,940,164 1,829,951 1,767,413 - 7,780,250 -
Closure/post-closure costs - - - (795,335) - (795,335) -
Claims and judgments - - - - - - 6,521,498
Insurance 323,029 191,148 119,288 205,442 39,942 878,849 55,000
Other 33,078 9,725 (12,224) - 48,808 79.387 12,723
Total operating expenses 10,776,119 13,799,378 12,048,325 10,820,048 4,392,946 51,836,816 9,232,111
Operating income (10ss) (41,611) 1,387,119 (491,096) 920,342 (3,772,448)  (1,997,694) 796,841
Non-operating Revenues (Expenses)
Gain (loss) on sale of capital assets 1,617 20,281 13,146 77,561 - 112,605 (13,719
Investment {loss) income 709,870 848,056 961,238 285,296 (7,238) 2,797,222 882,761
Grants - federal - - - - 2,252,591 2,252,59] -
Interest expense - (1,209,453) (1,197,853) (122,084) - (2,529,390) -
Total non-opeiating revenues (expenses) 711,487 (341,116) (223,469) 240,773 2,245,353 2,633,028 869,042
Income (loss) before capital 669,876 1,046,003 (714,565) 1,161,115 (1,527,095) 635,334 1,665,883
Capital contributions 32,748 139,312 121,573 - - 293,633 -
Transfers
Transfers in - 314,535 685,525 224207 1,718,430 2,942,697 1,577
Transfers out x - x < = = =
Change in net position 702,624 1,499,850 92,533 1,385,322 191,335 3,871,664 1,667,460
Net position, beginning of yeas 42,746,001 79,470,910 83,226,407 8.971.826 6,851,128 221,266,272 13,470.023
Prior period adjustinent (Note 22) (2,716,136} (1,896,092) (2,053.475) (1,656,867) {(1,837,030) (10,159.600) (936,791)
Net position, end of year $ 40,732,489 $ 79,074,668 $ 81,265,465 $ 8,700,281 $ 5205433 §214,978336 $ 14,200,692

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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City of Las Cruces
Statement of Cash Flows—Proprietary Funds
For the Year Ended June 30, 2015

Enterprise Funds

Wasle Other [rermnal
Gas Water Water Solid Wasle Enterprise Funds Totals Senrvice Funds
Cash flows from operating activities
Cash received from customers (including other funds) $22,953,497 315,349,620 $11,555,847 $11,631,556 $707,454 % 62,197,974 $12,981,348
Cash paid to suppliers (17,751,099)  (8.617,041) (6,076,881} (6,473,457) (1,084,221)  (40,002,699)  (4,444,487)
Cash paid Lo employees (3,333,513)  (2.793,067) (2,296,020)  (2,374,513) (2,537,048)  (13,334,161)  (1,177,484)
Claims paid - - . = - - (6,141,617)
Other receipts 38,915 142,066 84,754 20,961 3,288 289,984 -
Net cash provided (used) by operating activities 1,907,800 4,081,578 3,267,700 2,804,547 (2,910,527) 9,151,098 1,217,760
Cash Nlows from non-capital financing activities
Granls and contributions - - - - 2,252,591 2,252,591 -
Transfers in . 314,535 685,525 224,207 1,718,430 2,942,697 1,577
Transfers out - - - - - - -
Investment income - - - - - - -
Loans for development impact fees E (353,678) (137,961) - - (491,639) -
Advance to/from other funds - (289,238) 289,238 - . . .
Net cash provided (used) by non-capital
financing activities = (328,381) 836,802 224,207 3,971,021 4,703,649 1,577
Cash flows from capilal and related
financing activities
Purchase of capital assets (463,565) (1,264.104) (2,201,237) (2,346,282) {1,068,863) (7,344,051) (37,092)
Acquisition of other assets - - - - - = =
Proceeds fiom revenue bonds and notes payable - - - 2,838,681 - 2,838,681 -
Principal paid: revenue bonds/lease purchase/advances - (133,998) 4,877,690 (658,955) - 4,084,737 -
Interest paid: revenue bonds/lease purchase/advances - (1,209,453) (1,566,400) (122,084) . (2,897,937) -
Net cash provided (used) by capital and
related financing activities (463,565) (2,607,555) 1,110,053 (288,640) (1,068,863) (3,318,570) {37,092)
Cash llows from investing aclivities
Cash interest received 709,870 848,056 961,238 285,296 (1,239) 2,797,221 882,761
Net cash provided (used) by investing activities 709,870 848,056 961,238 285,296 (7,239) 2,797,221 882,761
Net increase (decrease) in pooled
cash and investments 2,154,105 1,993,698 6,175,793 3,025,410 (15,608) 13,333,398 2,065,006
Cash and investments, beginning of year 15,014,524 17,410,413 17,689,259 5,906,683 15,608 56,036,487 19,263,456
Cash and investments, end of year $ 17168629 $ 19,404,111 § 23865052 $ 8932093 § - § 69369885 § 21328462
Cash and investments at June 30 consisted of:
Current assets
Cash and investments $ 16,529,554 § 6680276 § 13,154,998 § 6,598,518 $ - § 42,963,346 $ 21,328,462
Non-current assets
Restricted cash and investments 639,075 12,723,835 10,710,054 2,333,575 - 26,406,539 =
Total cash and invesunents, June 30 $ 17,168,629 $ 19404,)11 § 23865052 § 8932,093 § - § 69369885 § 21328462
(Continued)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Statement of Cash Flows—Proprietary Funds — continued
For the Year Ended June 30, 2015

Reconciliation of operating income 1o nct cash
provided (used) by operating aclivities

Operating income (l0ss)

Adjustments to reconcile operating income to net
cash provided by operating activilies:

Depreciation and amonization

Provision for uncollectible accounts

Increase in liability for landfill closure costs
Change in assets, deferred outflows, liabilities, and
deferred inflows:

Accounts receivable

Inventories

Due from other governmental agencies

Accounts and contracts payable

Estimated liability for insurance claims

Wages payable and accrued liabilities

Deferred gain of revenue for cost of gas

Deferred charges related to pensions

Net pension Liability

Deferred inflows related to pensions

Customer deposits

Total adjustmenis
Net cash provided (used) by operating aclivities
Non-cash investing/financing activities
Capital contributons of capital assets

Tolal non-cash investing/financing activities

Enterprise Funds
Waste Other Intemal

Gas Water Water Solid Waste  Enterprise Funds Totals Service Funds

$ (41,611) § 1387319 § (491,096) $ 920342 § (3,772,448) $ (1,997,694) $ 796,841
2,221,998 2,348,500 3,312,901 842,887 612,156 59,338,442 22,666
121,918 (37,154) 23,052 37,485 145,301 5

- - - 65,000 - 65,000 .

206,901 148,144 45,465 (139,934) 90,244 350,820 6,158
(27,162) (63,967) (56,003) (63,022) (210,154) 46,568

- 145,607 - = - 145,607 -
35914 259,514 160,732 1,182,584 208,774 1,847,518 (6.287)

. - - N - - 379,881

62,379 274,723 354,496 24,161 41,884 757,643 22,272
(556,207) . B - - (556,207) .
3,561) (316,383) (7,121) (9,421) (17,658) (354,144) 28,717
(896,665) (644,030) (686,493) (561,031) (636,025)  (3,424,244) (342,623)
774,117 564,403 596,911 490,920 362,546 2,989,497 263,567

9,179 15,102 14,856 14,576 - 53,713 -
1,949,411 2,694,459 3,758,796 1,884,205 361,921 11,148,792 420,919

$ 1907800 $ 4,081,578 $  3267,700 $ 2804547 $  (2910,527) $ 9,151,098 § 1,217,760
$ - 3 139,312 § 121,573 - 8 - % 260,885 $ -
3 - 3 139312 % 121,573 § - % - 5 260,885 § -

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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City of Las Cruces
Statement of Fiduciary Assets and Liabilities

Agency Funds
June 30,2015
Assets
Pooled cash and investments $ 5,411,542
Accounts receivable 83,557
Due from other governments 619,892
Total assets $ 6,114,991
Liabilities
Accounts and contracts payable $ 175,832
Accrued wages payable 309,213
Due to fiscal agent 40,609
Deferred Revenue 2,350
Funds held for others 5,586,987
Total liabilities $ 6,114,991

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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City of Las Cruces
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2015

ity eff Law Crucey
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City of Las Cruces

Notes to Financial Statements

June 30, 2015

Description and Reporting Entity

The City of Las Cruces (the City) is a municipal corporation established under the laws
of the state of New Mexico and operates under a Home Rule Charter. The City was
incorporated in 1946 and operates under a council/manager form of government
consisting of a Mayor and six council members. The Mayor is elected at large for a four-
year term. Council members are elected from six single-member districts to four-year
terms. Elections are held bi-annually. The City Manager, appointed by the City Council,
is responsible for the management of all City employees and the administration of all

City affairs.

The accompanying financial statements present the activities of the City of Las Cruces
and its two component units; legally separate organizations for which the City is
financially accountable. The component units are:

Included in the Separate
Component Unit Reporting Entity Because: Financial Statements
South Central Solid In accordance with the joint powers Separate financial
Waste Authority agreement (JPA), SCSWA statements are
(SCSWA) revenues are the primary source of  available for SCSWA

Downtown Tax
Increment
Development District
(TIDD)

debt service for City bonds issued  at 700 N. Church St.,
to construct a regional landfill and  Las Cruces, New
transfer station. According to Mexico 88001.
GASB No. 61, the SCSWA

qualifies as a discretely presented

component unit, due to the

following reasons. There is a joint

powers agreement (JPA) between

the City of Las Cruces and SCSWA

and the City of Las Cruces is still

considered one of the largest

customers for SCSWA. If SCSWA

ever defaults, then the City of Las

Cruces will take over the

organization and pledged EGRT to

cover the outstanding

debt/loan/leases. The criteria of

equity interest also exists and the

City of Las Cruces will receive any

assets if the component unit ever

decides to dissolve.

The Board members for the TIDD Presented as a blended

are also the City Councilors, which component unit of the
allow the City to impose its will. City.
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City of Las Cruces
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2015
Description and Reporting Entity (continued)

SCSWA is reported as a discretely presented component unit in the accompanying
financial statements, while the TIDD is reported as a blended component unit.

Basis of Presentation, Basis of Accounting

Basis of Presentation

Government-Wide Statements — The statement of net position and the statement of
activities display information about the primary government (the City) and its component
units. These statements include the financial activities of the overall government, except
for fiduciary activities. Eliminations have been made to minimize the double-counting of
internal activities. These statements distinguish between the governmental and business-
type activities of the City. Governmental activities generally are financed through taxes,
intergovernmental revenues, and other non-exchange transactions. Under GASB 33, the
City defines “available” to be 60 days after the fiscal year end. Business-type activities
are financed in whole or in part by fees charged to external parties.

The statement of activities presents a comparison between direct expenses and program
revenues for the different business-type activities of the City and for each function of the
City’s governmental activities. Direct expenses are those that are specifically associated
with a program or function and, therefore, are clearly identifiable to a particular function.

Program revenues include: (a) fees, fines, and charges paid by the recipients of goods or
services offered by the programs; and (b) grants and contributions that are restricted to
meeting the operational or capital requirements of a particular program. Revenues that
are not classified as program revenues, including all taxes, are presented as general
revenues.

Proprietary fund operating revenues, such as charges for services, result from exchange
transactions associated with the principal activity of the fund. Exchange transactions are
those in which each party receives and gives up essentially equal values. Non-operating
revenues, such as subsidies and investment earnings, result from non-exchange
transactions or ancillary activities. Proprietary fund operating expenses include the cost
of services, administrative and general expenses, and depreciation on capital assets.

Fund Financial Statements — The fund financial statements provide information about the
City’s funds, including its fiduciary funds. Separate statements for each fund category—
governmental, proprietary, and fiduciary—are presented. The emphasis of fund financial
statements is on major governmental and enterprise funds, each displayed in a separate
column. All remaining governmental and enterprise funds are aggregated and reported as
non-major funds.
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The City reports the following as major governmental funds:

General Fund:
The general fund is the City’s primary operating fund. It accounts for all financial
resources of the general government, except those required to be accounted for in
another fund.

Special Revenue Funds:

The Sonoma Ranch fund accounts for the reimbursements to the City from local
developers for debt service on special roadway/utility projects.

The Telshor Facility fund accounts for the net proceeds of the facility lease with
LifePoint Hospitals, doing business as Memorial Medical Center. Lease proceeds are
used for health-related programs and projects.

Debt Service Fund:

The Debt Service Fund accounts for the accumulation of financial resources for the
payment of interest and principal on the general long-term debt of the City, other
than debt service payments made by enterprise funds.

The City reports the following major enterprise funds:

The Gas fund accounts for the activities of the City’s natural gas utility, which
provides service to the residents of the City and some residents within the County.

The Water fund accounts for the activities of the City’s natural water utility, which
provides service to the residents of the City and some residents within the County.

The Wastewater fund accounts for the activities of the City’s wastewater utility,
which provides service to the residents of the City and some residents within the
County.

The Solid Waste fund accounts for the activities of the City’s solid waste utility,

which provides service to the residents of the City and some residents within the
County.
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The City also reports the following fund types:

Internal Service Funds — used to report activities that provide goods or services to
other funds, departments or agencies of the City and its component units on a cost-
reimbursement basis. These activities include fleet services, document services,
general liability, and workers’ compensation.

Agency Funds — used to account for monies held by the City in a custodial capacity.
These funds do not report operations or have a measurement focus. The funds held by
the City in a fiduciary capacity include: Mesilla Valley Regional Dispatch Authority;
Metro Narcotics Agency; Animal Service Center of the Mesilla Valley; Mesilla
Valley Safety Council; Branigan Estate (proceeds of sales of assets are used to
purchase books for the library); Employee Benefits Committee; Veteran’s Memorial
Wall; Veteran’s Museum; and Gifts and Memorials.

Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting

Government-Wide, Proprietary, and Fiduciary Fund Financial Statements — The
government-wide and proprietary fund financial statements are reported using the
economic resources measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting. Revenues
are recorded when earned and expenses are recorded at the time liabilities are incurred,
regardless of when the related cash flows take place.

Non-exchange transactions, in which the City gives (or receives) value without directly
receiving (or giving) equal value in exchange, include gross receipts and property taxes,
grants, entitlements, and donations. On an accrual basis, revenue from property taxes is
recognized in the fiscal year for which the taxes are levied. Revenues from gross receipts
taxes are recognized when the underlying transaction takes place. Revenue from grants,
entitlements, and donations is recognized in the fiscal year in which all eligibility
requirements have been satisfied.

Governmental Fund Financial Statements — Governmental funds are reported using the
current financial resources measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of
accounting. Under this method, revenues are recognized when measurable and available.
The City considers all revenues reported in the governmental funds to be available if the
revenues are collected within 60 days after year end. Property taxes, sales taxes, franchise
taxes, licenses, and interest are considered to be susceptible to accrual. Expenditures are
recorded when the related fund liability is incurred, except for principal and interest on
general long-term debt, claims and judgments, and compensated absences, which are
recognized as expenditures to the extent they have matured. General capital asset
acquisitions are reported as expenditures in governmental funds. Proceeds of general
long-term debt and acquisitions under capital leases are reported as other financing
sources.

50



2)

205

City of Las Cruces
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30,2015

Basis of Presentation, Basis of Accounting (continued)

Under the terms of grant agreements, the City funds certain programs by a combination
of specific cost-reimbursement grants, categorical block grants, and general revenues.
Thus, when program expenses are incurred, there are both restricted and unrestricted net
position available to finance the program. It is the City’s policy to first apply cost-
reimbursement grant resources to such programs, followed by categorical block grants,
and then by general revenues.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America requires management to make
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and
disclosure of contingent liabilities at the date of the financial statements. Actual results
could differ from those estimates.

Fair Value of Financial Instruments

The City’s financial instruments consist of investments in securities, bonds and notes
payable. The City estimates that the fair value of all its financial instruments does not
differ materially from their aggregate carrying values in the accompanying statement of
net position. The estimated fair value amounts have been determined by the City using
available market information and appropriate valuation methodologies. Considerable
judgment is necessarily required in interpreting market data to develop the estimates of
fair value, and, accordingly, the estimates are not necessarily indicative of the amounts
that the City could realize in a current market exchange. None of the {inancial
instruments are held for trading purposes.

Assets, Liabilities, and Equity

Cash Equivalents and Investments — The City pools idle cash from all funds for the
purpose of increasing income through investment activities. A “Pooled Cash” concept is
used in maintaining the cash and investment accounts in the accounting records. Under
this method, all cash is pooled for investment purposes and each fund has equity in the
pooled amount. All amounts included in pooled cash and investments with an original
maturity of 90 days or less are considered to be cash equivalents for the purposes of the
statement of cash flows.

Investments are stated at fair value.

Restricted Cash and Investments — The amount of cash held representing utility deposits
is classified as restricted on the Statement of Net Position—Proprietary Funds. Also,
certain proceeds of joint utility revenue bonds, as well as resources set aside for their
repayment, and resources set aside to fund capital asset replacements and landfill closure
obligations, are classified as restricted as their use is limited.
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Receivables — Property taxes attach as an enforceable lien on property as of January 1.
Taxes are levied each year on July 1 on the taxable valuation of property location in the
City as of the preceding January 1. The taxable valuations for the various classes of
property are determined by the County Assessor and the State of New Mexico
Department of Taxation and Revenue at one-third of assessed valuation. Taxes are
payable in two equal installments on November 10 and April 10 and become delinquent
after 30 days. Property taxes receivable are deemed to be substantially collectible.

All trade receivables are shown net of an allowance for uncollectible amounts. The
allowance for doubtful accounts is based on management’s assessment of the
collectability of specific customer accounts, the aging of the accounts receivable,
historical experience, and other currently available evidence. Notes receivable in the

statement of net position consist of rehabilitation and redevelopment loans that are

generally not expected or scheduled to be collected in the subsequent year.

Inventories and Prepaid Items — Inventories are valued at cost using the first-in/first-out
(“FIFO) method. The costs of governmental fund-type inventories are recorded as
expenditures when consumed rather than when purchased.

Certain payments to vendors reflect costs applicable to future accounting periods and are
recorded as prepaid items in both government-wide and fund financial statements.

Capital Assets — Capital assets are defined as assets with an initial individual cost or fair
value of more than $5,000 and an estimated useful life in excess of one year. Purchased
and constructed capital assets are reported at cost or estimated historical cost. Donated
capital assets are recorded at their estimated fair value at the date of donation. The cost of
normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the asset or materially
extend assets’ lives are not capitalized. The City has retroactively reported all major
general infrastructures in these financial statements.

In accordance with provisions of GASB No. 34, the City regards library materials (e.g.,
books, tapes, etc.), and public exhibits as individual assets versus collections and,
therefore, they are not capitalized. Also, the initial purchase of software meeting the
City’s capital asset definition is capitalized; however, periodic costs for software
upgrades are not capitalized due to the rapid change in technology.

Capital assets are depreciated using the straight-line method over the following estimated
useful lives:

Asset Class Estimated Useful Lives
Infrastructure 30-50

Land improvements 30
Buildings and improvements 30

Vehicles 4-12

Office equipment 3-10
Computer equipment 3-10

52



2)

207

City of Las Cruces
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30,2015

Basis of Presentation, Basis of Accounting (continued)

Compensated Absences — The liability for compensated absences reported in the
government-wide and proprietary fund statements consists of unpaid, accumulated
annual, and sick leave balances. The liability has been calculated using the vesting
method, in which leave amounts for both employees who currently are eligible to receive
termination payments and other employees who are expected to become eligible in the
future to receive such payments upon termination are included.

Pollution Remediation — The City has implemented the provisions of GASB Statement
No. 49, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Pollution Remediation, obligations.
Accordingly, liabilities are accrued in government-wide and proprietary fund financial
statements when certain obligating events occur.

Accrued pollution remediation costs are expensed unless they meet the criteria for
capitalization in GASB Statement No. 49.

Fund Balance — The City reports the governmental fund balances in five categories,
which include:

1) Non-spendable fund balance — includes amounts that are not in a spendable form
or are required to be maintained intact. Examples are inventory or long-term
receivables.

2) Restricted fund balance — includes amounts that can be spent only for the specific
purposes imposed by creditors, grantors, contributors, or laws and regulations of
other governments. An example is federal grants.

3) Committed fund balance — includes self-imposed limitations on amounts that can
be used only for a specific purpose, set in place prior to the end of the period by a
formal action of the City’s highest level of decision-making authority.
Commitments established by the City Council may be changed or lifted only by
an action of the City Council through resolution, taking the same formal action
that imposed the original constraint.

4) Assigned fund balance — includes intended uses established by policies of the
Governing Body by resolution, which delegates the authority to constrain monies
for the intended purpose to the City Manager. The purposes of these resolutions
include miscellaneous capital projects, debt service, and general government.

5) Unassigned fund balance — is the residual classification of the General Fund and
includes all amounts not contained in other classifications. Unassigned amounts
are technically available for any purpose. Unassigned Fund Balance is only
reported in the General Fund.
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It is essential that the City maintain adequate levels of fund balance in the General Fund
to mitigate revenue fluctuations and unanticipated expenditures. Therefore, the City has
adopted a formal fund balance policy. The fund balance policy establishes a minimum
amount to be held in the fund balance of the General Fund of 8.33 percent, or 1/12, of the
annual budgeted expenditures. This policy applies only to the chief operating fund of the
City — the General Fund. In addition to the GASB requirement, the State of New Mexico
requires that a 1/12 reserve be maintained in the General Fund. The 1/12 reserve is
reported in the financial statements as Unassigned Fund Balance.

When multiple categories of fund balance are available for expenditure (for example, a
construction project is being funded partly by a grant, funds set aside by the City
Council, and unassigned fund balance), the City will start with the most restricted
category and spend those funds first before moving down to the next category of
available funds.

Pensions — The City implemented GASB Statement No. 68, Accounting and Financial
Reporting for Pensions during the current year. For purposes of measuring the net
pension liability, deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related
to pensions, and pension expense, information about the fiduciary net position of the
New Mexico Public Employees Retirement Association (PERA) and additions
to/deductions from PERA’s fiduciary net position have been determined on the same
basis as they are reported by PERA, on the economic resources measurement focus and
accrual basis of accounting. For this purpose, benefit payments (including refunds of
employee contributions) are recognized when due and payable in accordance with the
benefit terms. Investments are reported at fair value.

Budgets
The City budget is prepared on a basis consistent with accounting principles generally

accepted in the United States of America (GAAP), using an estimate of the anticipated
revenues and expenditures. Annual appropriated budgets are adopted for all funds. All
unexpended appropriations will lapse at the end of the fiscal year. The State of New
Mexico Department of Finance and Administration (DFA) allows GAAP budgeting to
the extent cash and investments required for operations are available. Budgets of the
City’s component units (TIDD and SCSWA) are also prepared on a GAAP basis.

New Mexico State law prohibits a municipality from making expenditures in excess of
approved appropriations. If a fund is not overspent, it is in compliance with state law. The
budget may be amended by the City Council; however, DFA approval must be obtained
on budget increases and budget transfers between funds. The 2014/2015 budget has been
legally amended.

Deficit fund balance
The 2003 Sales Tax Street Lights fund had a deficit balance of $256 and the Internal
Services fund had a deficit balance of $548,711 at June 30, 2015.
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Deferred outflows/inflows of resources

In addition to assets, the statement of financial position will sometimes report a separate
section for deferred outflows of resources. This separate financial statement element,
deferred outflows of resources, represents a consumption of net position that applies to a
future period and so will not be recognized as an outflow of resources until then. The
City has deferred charges on refunding reported in the government-wide statement of net
position and the statement of net position for proprietary funds. A deferred charge on
refunding results from the difference in the carrying value of refunded debt and its
reacquisition price. This amount is deferred and amortized over the shorter of the life of
the refunded or refunding debt.

In addition to liabilities, the statement of financial position will sometimes report a
separate section for deferred inflows of resources. This separate financial statement
element, deferred inflows of resources, represents an acquisition of net position that
applies to a future period and so will not be recognized as an inflow of resources until
that time. At this time, the City has gains on the sale of gas that meet the definition of
deferred inflows of resources.

Cash and Investments

The City follows the practice of pooling cash and investments of all funds with the City
Treasurer except for restricted funds generally held by outside custodians and certain
special revenue, debt service reserve, and capital projects funds. The cash and investment
pool is not reported as a trust and agency fund. Each fund’s equity in the pool is included
in “Cash and Investments” on its balance sheet or statement of net position.

Cash and investments

Governmental activities $ 68,175,262
Business-type activities 42,963,346
Total primary government 111,138,608
South Central Solid Waste Authority 2,572,618
113,711,226
Restricted cash and investments
Governmental activities 84,618,183
Business-type activities 26,406,539
Total primary government 111,024,722
Fiduciary funds (includes $189,301 due from fiscal agent) 5,222,241
South Central Solid Waste Authority 3,731,743
Total Cash and Investments $ 233,689,932
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Total cash and investments at fair value are as follows:

Pooled Cash Other Cash

& Investments & Investments Total
Carrying amount of bank deposits $ 21,081,988 % 22,703,221 % 43,785,209
[nvestments 139,210,670 40,751,202 179,961,872
Cash with fiscal agent - 9,265,564 9,265,564
Cash on hand - 12,636 12,636
Accrued interest 664,651 - 664,651
Total Cash and Investments $ 160,957,309 § 72,732,623 § 233,689,932

Bank Balance of Deposits

Custodial Credit Risk — Deposits — Custodial credit risk is the risk that in the event of a
bank failure, the government’s deposits may not be returned to it. The City’s investment
ordinance requires collateralization of 100 percent of the uninsured portion of the City’s
deposits with financial institutions. Securities pledged by financial institutions are
accepted at market value, except obligations of the state of New Mexico and its
subdivisions, which are accepted at par value. As of June 30, 2015, the City’s deposits,
totaling $45,383,583 was insured by FDIC or collateralized by securities held in trust by
a third-party bank for the depository bank in the City’s name and thus was not exposed to
custodial credit risk.

Investments

The City’s investment policy allows investment in: a) U.S. Treasury obligations; b) U.S.
government agency and instrumentality obligations; c¢) repurchase agreements whose
underlying securities and/or collateral consist of allowed investments described in (a) or
(b) above; d) commercial paper rated not less than A-1, P-1, F-1, or equivalent by a
nationally recognized rating agency; e) pooled funds maintained by the State Treasurer;
and f) mutual funds whose portfolios consist solely of allowed investments.

The City may also invest money identified as long-term in the pools of the New Mexico
State Council (“SIC”) subject to annual review and approval by the City Council. The
SIC is a component unit of the primary government of the State of New Mexico. The fair
value of the City’s position in the SIC pools is the same as the value of the pool shares.
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As of June 30, 2015, the City had the following investments:

Weighted-Avg
Investment Type Fair Value Maturity (Yrs)
Pooled Investments:
Ovemnight repurchase agreement $ 15,234,123 0.00
U.S. agency coupon bonds 123,976,547 10.67
139,210,670
Telshor Facility Fund:
U.S. agency coupon bonds 14,007,760 12.81
External investment equity pools 20,914,360 N/A
Total Telshor Facility Fund 34,922,120
Debt Service Reserve Funds:
U.S. agency coupon bonds 1,584,33 2.39
Total Debt Service Reserve Funds 1,584,33
Project Funds:
Money market funds 420 0.09
420
Water and Wastewater Funds:
U.S. agency coupon bonds 4,244 326 2.61

Total Investments $ 179,961,872

Interest Rate Risk — The City does not have a formal investment policy that limits
investment maturities as a means of managing its exposure to fair value losses arising
from increasing interest rates. The investment pool includes step-up coupon securities
that total $123,963,893 issued by U.S. government agencies that are callable by the issuer
under certain circumstances. For purposes of calculating weighted average maturity, the
City uses duration.

Credit Risk — The City’s investment policy lists the criteria for selecting investments and
the order of priority as follows: 1) safety; 2) liquidity; and 3) yield. As of June 30, 2015,
the City’s investments in coupon bonds of U.S. agencies were rated AA+ by Standard &
Poor’s and Aaa by Moody’s Investors Service. The City’s money market fund
investments were rated AAAm by Standard & Poor’s and/or Aaa by Moody’s. The
external investment pools of the NM State Investment Council are not rated.



3)

212

City of Las Cruces
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30,2015

Cash and Investments (continued)

Custodial Credit Risk — For an investment, custodial credit risk is the risk that, in the
event of the failure of the counterparty, the City will not be able to recover the value of
its investments or collateral securities that are in the possession of an outside party. The
City’s investment policy requires that securities held in street name with a broker or
dealer be insured, and that all other securities be held by the City or a third-party
safekeeping financial institution acting as trustee for the City. As of June 30, 2015, all of
the City’s securities are held in either the street name or by a third-party financial
institution in the City’s name.

Concentration of Credit Risk — The City’s formal investment policy places no limit on the
amount the City may invest in any one issuer. As of June 30, 2015 58 percent of the
City’s investment pool was in Fannie Mae (FNMA), 11 percent was in Federal Home
Loan Mortgage Corporation (FHLMC) and 31 percent in Federal Home Loan Bank
(FHLB). Of the Telshor Fund, 7 percent was in the Federal Farm Credit Bank (FFCB)
and 93 percent was in FNMA. Of the Debt Service Funds portfolio, 100 percent was in
FNMA. Of the Water and Wastewater Funds portfolio, 100 percent was in FNMA.
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Primary Government
Capital asset activity for the City for the year ended June 30, 2015 was as follows:

Beginning Ending
Balance Increases ~ Decreases Transfers Balance
Governmental activities
Capital assets not being depreciated
Land and land rights $ 14,638,486 $ 104,500 $ (41,701) $§ - $ 14,701,285
Land improvements 19,072,599 - - - 19,072,599
Construction in progress 2,596,966 1,737,548 - (1,759,445) 2,575,069
Total capital assets not being
depreciated 36,308,051 1,842,048 (41,701) (1,759,445) 36,348,953
Other capital assets
Buildings and building improvements 134,308,558 1,677,506 (1,018,130) 1,759,445 136,727,379
Leasehold improvements 3,124,131 - - - 3,124,131
Afrport runways 27,742013 - - - 27,742,013
Park improvements 20,838,917 781,181 - - 21,620,098
Land improvement remediation 1,633,551 - - - 1,633,551
Machinery and equipment 50,030,851 3,012,237 (5,255,599) (34,038) 47,753,451
Roads network 305,664,680 6,309,085 (173,781) 34,038 311,834,022
Flood control network 32,631,571 2,434,769 (2,723) - 35,063,617
Total other capital assets at cost 575,974,272 14214778 (6,450,233) 1,759,445 585,498,262
Less accumulated depreciation for
Buildings and building improvements (31,586,681) (4,104,582) 1,018,130 - (34,673,133)
Leasehold improvements (1,531,587) (90,018) - - (1,621,605)
Airpott runway (8,569,037) (855,657) - - (9,424,694)
Park improvements (4,151,059) (714,242) - - (4,865,301)
Land improvement remediation (54,452) - - - (54,452)
Machinery and equipment (39,699,317) (3,093,266) 4,805,655 - (37,9806,928)
Roads network (151,850,137) (8,826,008) 173,781 - (160,502,364)
Flood control network (9,306,674) (899,416) 2,723 - (10,203,367)
Total accumulated depreciation (246,748,944) (18,583,189) 6,000,289 - (259,331,844)
Total other capital assets at
historic cost, net 329,225,328 (4,368.411) (449,944) 1,759,445 326,166,418
Governmental activities
capital assets, net $ 365,533,379 § (2,526,363) § (491,645) § - § 362,515,371

Land and land rights was increased by $104,500 with the purchase of land for Fire
Station #3 and decreased by $41,701 with the sale of land from the City's Public Works
Department to the City's Joint Utilities Department.

Construction in progress (CIP) was increased by $1.7 million related to ongoing projects:

the Airport Fuel Farm, East Mesa Public Safety Complex, Castaneda Building, and
Mesilla Valley Regional Dispatch Emergency Building.
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Building complex increased by $1.678 million, which included Branigan Library,
Community of Hope, Meerscheidt Center, Munson Center, Police Dept., Fire Station #4,
Fire Station #3, Young Park Stage, Museum of Nature, etc. The Old City Hall located on
575 S Alameda Street and valued at $1.018 million has been exchanged with La Clinica
de Familia, who will then provide health and dental services in Las Cruces and Dofia Ana
County, New Mexico.

In addition, transfers from CIP to Buildings and Improvements included the Airport Fuel
Farm and Castaneda Building which was valued at $1.760 million. A building valued at
$208,532 was donated to the animal shelter center as well.

Roads and Floods increased by approximately 8.7 million. Pavement and sidewalks
improvements included: Bruins, El Paseo, Phillips, Wyatt drive, and El Molino Phase
VIL. Also, it consisted of traffic signals and lighting. Increases to capital assets of
governmental activities include donated subdivisions from developers in the amount of
$1.014 million to the City’s roads and flood network.

The City spent $3 million for equipment purchases of vehicles for Las Cruces Police

Department and Parks and Recreation. Decreases in machinery and equipment were due
to the retirement of items sent to auction and donations made to outside agencies.
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Business-type Activities
Beginning Ending
Balance Increases Decreases Transfers Balance
Business-type activities
Cupital assets not being depreciated
Land and land nghts $ 7,743482 § - 8 - % - 7,743,482
Construction in progress 1,543,642 260,033 - (1,543,644) 260,031
Total capital assets not being
depreciated 9,287,124 260,033 - (1,543,644) 8,003,513
Other capital assets
Buildings and building improvements 9,205,100 119,117 - 1,543,646 10,867,863
Land improvements 150,500 27,916 - 156,756 335,172
Distribution and collection system 79,990,292 285,998 - - 80,276,290
Utilities transmission 227,958,171 2,930,037 (21,338) - 230,866,870
Machinery and equipment 27,338,859 4,130,751 (3,259,154) (328,489) 27,881,967
Total other capital assets at
historic cost 344,642,922 7,493,819 (3,280,492) 1,371,913 350,228,162
Less accumulated depreciation for
Buildings and bulding improvements (3,173,680) (365,719) - - (3,539,399)
Land improvements (73,184) (8,740) - (108,859) (190,783)
Distribution and collection system (36,543,527) (1,696,085) - - (38,239,612)
Utllities transmission (77,071,721) (5,622,096) 21,338 - (82,672,479)
Machinery and equipment (20,915,516) (1,645,802) 3,247,972 280,590 (19,032,756)
Total accumulated depreciation _(137,777,628) (9,338,442) 3,269,310 171,731 (143,675,029)
Total other capilal assets at
historic cost, net 206,865,294 (1,844,623) (11,182) 1,543,644 206,553,133
Business-type activities
capital assets, net § 216,152,418 §  (1,584,590) § (11,182) § - § 214,556,646

Business-type Activities
There were no decreases in land or land rights during the year.

CIP was increased primarily by $260,033 related to Transit Center. The total amount that
was transferred out of CIP to buildings was approximately $1.5 million for Solid Waste.

Buildings and buildings improvements increased $119,117 primarily due to adjustment
costs for Transit Center and Solid Waste buildings.

The Utilities transmission increased by $3.2 million primarily due to Gas infrastructure
additions and donated Subdivisions as well as adjustment costs for interest.

Machinery and equipment increased $4.2 million due to various purchases such as the
several 2015 Peterbuilts (3-Front Loaders,1- Roll Off, 6-Side Loaders), a 2014
International-Vactor truck, a 2015 International 7600-Dump Truck, Caterpillar, and
several utility trucks.
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Depreciation expense was charged to functions as follows:

Business-
Governmental type
Activities Activities

General government $ 1,685,371 -
Police 1,440,538 -
Fire 896,154 -
Community development 3,000 -
Public services 865,007 -
Public works 11,771,874 -
Information technology 108,749 -
Transportation 1,110,290 -
Parks and recreation 702,206 -
Gas - 2,221,998
Water - 2,348,500
Wastewater B 3,312,901
Solid waste - 842,887
Other - 612,156
In addition, depreciation on capital assets held
by the City's internal service funds is charged
to the various functions based on their usage of
the assets = 2

Total depreciation expense $ 18,583,189 9,338,442
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Capital asset activity for SCSWA for the year ended June 30, 2015 was as follows:

Balances Balances
June 30, 2014 Increases Decreases Transfers June 30, 2015
Capital assets not being depreciated
Land 5 807,276 § 5 $ - S 807,276
Landfill celysite 708,875 - 708,875
Construction in progress = 177,164 5 177,164
Total capital assets not being depreciated 1,516,151 177,164 1,693,315
Capital assets being depreciated
Buildings 4,540,840 - - - 4,540,840
Equpment 9,230,228 729,027 (162,078) 171,733 9,968,910
Infrastructure 1,056,988 - - 1,056,988
Landfill celV/site 7,413.352 - - - 7,413,352
Total 22,241,408 729,027 (162,078) 171,733 22,980,090
Less accumulated depreciation
Buildings (2,418,627) (93,899) - . (2,512,526)
Equipment (6,477,286) (659,841) 123,569 (171,733 (7,185,290)
Infiastructure (449,220) (385,801) - - (835,021)
Landfill celVsite (5,670,519) (186,029) - S (5,856,548)
Total accumulated depreciation (15,015,652) (1,325,570) 123,569 (171,733) (16,389,385)
Total capital assets, net $ 8,741,907 $ (419,379) § (38,509) § - 8 8,284,020
Receivables and Payables
Governmental activities receivables were as follows at June 30, 2015:
Other Internal Total
General Debt Sonoma Telshor Govemimental Service Govemmental
Fund Service Ranch Facility. Funds Funds Activities
Accounls $ 684,121 § - § - % - 3 3,575,723 § 8999 & 4,268,843
Dockets 5,120,713 - - 5,120,713
Interest = 1,369 2,247,598 56,682 493,423 - 2,799,072
Contracts - - 3,888,878 3,888,878
Special assessments - 5,652,792 557,613 - 6.210,405
Less: allowance for
doublidl accounts (5,081,000) - - . (3,022,187) . (8,103,187)
Total governmental
receivables $ 723834 § 1369 $ 7900390 $§ 56,682 § 5493450 § 8999 § 14,184.724

Governmental Activities

Special assessments receivables of $5,652,792 and related interest receivable of
$2,247,598 represent amounts due from local developers to reimburse the City for the
construction of subdivisions or other improvements for residential development. Though
a majority of special assessments are not scheduled for collection within the next fiscal
year, amounts are expected to be fully collected. The receivables are deferred and
reported in the Sonoma Ranch Fund.
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Receivables and Payables (continued)

Business-type activities receivables were as follows at June 30, 2015:

Allowance Accounts
Accounts for Doubtful Receivable,
Receivable Accounts Net
Gas 8§ 2,276,720 $§ (1,294,969) § 981,751
Water 1,915,094 (604,119) 1,310,975
Wastewater 1,299,364 (546,772) 752,592
Solid waste 1,551,275 (619,139) 932,136
Other enterprise funds 28,112 - 28,112
Total business-type activities § 7,070,565 $§ (3,064,999) § 4,005,566

Business-type Activities

The accounts receivable for business-type activities are related to the provision of utility
services to City customers. Receivables are shown net of an allowance for doubtful
accounts. The allowance for doubtful accounts is based on management’s assessment of
the collectability of specific customer accounts, the aging of the accounts receivable,
historical experience, and other currently available evidence.

Governmental activities accounts payable and accrued liabilities at June 30, 2015 were as
follows:

Total
Accounts
Payable
Salaries and Accrued
Vendors and Benefits Liabilities
Governmental activilies

General Fund $ 2,353,894 § 2,613,666 § 4,967,560
Sonoma Ranch - - -
Debt service 3,929 - 3,929
Telshor Facility 106,194 - 106,194
Other govermmental 2,189,794 116,241 2,306,035
Internal service fnds 404,738 58,689 463,427
Total governmental activities $ 5,058,549 $ 2,788,596 $ 7,847,145
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Receivables and Payables (continued)

Business-type activities accounts payable and accrued liabilities at June 30, 2015 were as

follows:

Total Accounts

Payable
Salaries Accrued Taxes and Accrued

Vendors and Benefits Interest Payable Liabilities

Business-type activities

Gas $ 787,805 3 185814 $ -3 76,200 $ 1,049,819
Water 687,827 177,717 75.588 67,965 1,009,097
Wastewater 389,313 148,413 74,344 39,413 651,483
Solid waste 1,230,903 88,849 11,129 54,686 1,385,567
Other enterprise funds 222,100 101,412 - - 323,512
Total business-type activities $ 3,317,948 § 702,205 $ 161,061 § 238264 §$ 4,419,478

Interfund Assets, Liabilities, and Transfers

Primary Government

Governmental interfund receivables and interfund payables as of June 30, 2015 were as

follows:
Interfund Interfund
Receivables Payables Total

Governmental activities
General fund

Nonmajor governmental funds $ 1,234,914  § - $ 1,234,914

Debt service fund 68.603 - 68,603
Nonmajor governmental funds

General fund - (1,234,914) (1,234,914)
Debt service fund

General fund - (68,603) (68,603)
Total governmental activities 3 1,303,517  § (1,303,517) $ -

The governmental fund balances reflect short-term advances from the General Fund to
funds with a credit cash balance. Credit cash balances are related to grant activity where
grant expenditures are followed by grant reimbursements. Grant funding is generally used
for senior programs, certain police activities, and capital grants for equipment, roadways,

flood control, and airport improvements.
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6) Interfund Assets, Liabilities, and Transfers (continued)

Business-type Activities
Business-type activities receivables and payables as of June 30, 2015 were as follows:

Intertund Intertund
Receivables Payables Total
Business-type activities
Major enterprise funds
Water Development Fund $ - % (2,781,022) § (2,781,022)
Waste Water Development Fund 2,781,022 - 2,781,022
Total business-type activities $ 2,781,022 § (2,781,022) § -

Business-type Activities

The business-type activities interfund balances reflect long-term advances of pooled cash
between utilities. The water development fund borrowed cash from the wastewater
development fund in fiscal year 2012, with a ten-year repayment schedule including
interest. The water development fund advance will be repaid in 2023.

Interfund Transfers
Interfund transfers for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2015 consisted of the following:

Amount _'

Transfets From Transfets To 2015 2014 Purpose

BETWEEN GOVERNMENTAL AND BUSINESS-TYPE COLUMNS:

Oparaling or Debt Subsidy:
General Fund Transit Funds 5 1,141,809 % 1,489,062 Opcrating subsidy for transit fund
Gasoline Tax Fund Transit Funds 376,621 330.000 Operaling subsidy for transit fund

Revenuc Aliocation:
Environmental gross receipts tax fund Was(ewaler fund 683,525 639,800 Transler share ol 1ax revenue
Environmental gross receipts taxfund  Waler fuud 314335 293308 Transfer share of lax revenue
Environmental gross 1cceipts tax fund Solid wastc fund 224.207 208369 Transler shaic of 1ax revenue

BETWEEN FUNDS WITHIN GOVERNMENTAL OR BUSINESS-TYPE COLUMNS

Operalng or Dcbt Subsidy :
Gengral fund Debl service funds 7,023,672 6,093,883 DcbI service for subsidy from pledged revenucs
General fund Nonmajor governmental funds 1,420,000 1,370,000 Transfer 1o prisoner care and affordable housing,
General Fund Intemal serviee funds 1,577 1,377 Funding loy City Tcet and insuance funds
Debt service funds Debt senvice funds 59.623 V89069 Transfer excess resenes o debt service funds
Debt scrvice funds Genaral fund - 334171 Transfer excess debt senvice funds to gencral fund
Nommajor goveramental funds Debt service funds 3,607 M7 4.739 k9% Debt senvice subsidy from pledacd res cnues
Nonmajor governmental lunds General fund 2332 789 F910042 Translers for admmnisirative and engineering costs
Internal service funds General fund 788,298 Move services 10 genaral fund, adiministrative fees
Clean Communities fund Gas fund . Transfer operalion of natural gas fucl pumps
Watcr fund Wastewater fund - 406,784 Water borrow cd cash in 2012 with a [0-yca repay ment
Nonmajor goverumental funds Nonmajor goveminental funds 115,444 Thransfer fiom court award

Capital Contiibutions:
Nonmajor governmental funds Nonmajor governmental funds 2 K00 887 3 785.692 Thransficr to capital projects
General fund Nonmajor yovernnental funds 2 000,000 288957 Transfer Lo capital impioyciment resen es

Revenue Allocation:
Telshor Facility fund Nonmajor governmnental funds 300,000 300,000 Reeurrmg allocation of special revenue
Environment gross receipts tlax fund Nonmajor govenunental funds 388,733 362,448 Transfer share of 1ax revenue
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Interfund Assets, Liabilities, and Transfers (continued)

Transfers are used to (1) move revenues from the fund that statute or budget requires to
collect them to the fund that statute or budget requires to expend them, (2) move receipts
restricted to debt service from the funds collecting the receipts to the debt service fund as
debt service payments become due, and (3) use unrestricted revenues collected in the
general fund to finance various programs accounted for in other funds in accordance with
budgetary authorizations.

Long—term Liabilities

Primary Government
Changes in long-term liabilities were as follows:

Primary Government

Beginning Amount
Balance Ending Due Within
Governmental Activities (as restated) Increases Decreases Balance One Year
Tax revenue bonds $ 59,350,000 § 38,695,000 $ 26,030,000 $§ 72015000 $ 6,460,000
Unamortized premiun/discount
on sales tax revenue bonds 2,409,916 1,834,877 203,464 4,041,329 254,492
Notes payable 13,988,884 547,825 2,959,890 11,576,819 2,971,589
Net pension liability 91,147,613 - 22,319,635 68,827,978 -
Pollution remediation 5,411,307 - - 5,411,307 -
Claims and judgments 5,800,145 6,911,389 6,521,498 6,190,036 1,844,434
Compensated absences 2,811,903 4,874,587 4228762 3,457,728 691,546
180,919,768 52,863,678 62,263,249 171,520,197 12,222,061
Business-type Activities
Ultility revenue bonds 49,865,000 27,445,000 24,260,000 53,050,000 4,670,000
Unamortized discount/premium
on utility revenue bonds 563,895 2,179,920 84,910 2,658,905 169,297
Notes payable 1,632,909 2,775,819 596,093 3,812,635 696,463
Net pension liability 11,291,863 - 3,424 244 7,867,619 -
Landfill closure and post-closure
costs (Note 8) 1,053,000 65,000 - 1,118,000 51,000
Compensated absences 779,239 1,348,594 1,125,367 1,002,466 o 200_,@3_
65,185,906 33,814,333 29,490,614 69,509,625 5,787,253
Total long-term liabilities $ 246,105,674 § 86,678,011 § 91753863 $ 241,029822 § 18,009,314

Compensated absences typically have been liquidated in the fund to which the employees
are assigned. For governmental activities, most compensated absences liquidate in the
General Fund. For business-type activities, each major fund and transit have a significant
share of the liquidations. Claims and judgment liabilities have typically been liquidated in
the General Fund and the self-insurance fund (an internal service fund). The balances for
compensated absences and claims and judgments are adjusted to include all internal
service fund balances in governmental activities.
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Long—term Liabilities (continued)

Description of Bonds

Gross Receipts Tax Revenue Bonds, Series 2005, were issued to fund public parks and
recreational facilities, improve streets, acquire public buildings, construct and furnish
public buildings, and fund the environmental remediation of public property. These
bonds were secured by state-shared gross receipts tax revenues through maturity. Such
revenues were $33.2 million in 2015. For the current year, principal and interest paid on
the bonds was $3,165,000 and $1,001,568, respectively.

On March 11, 2015, the City issued $19,195,000 bond par amount in Gross Receipts Tax
Refunding Bonds, Series 2015 to defease and refund the Series 2005 State-shared Gross
Receipts tax bonds and pay the costs of issuance. The proceeds for the advance refunding
were deposited in an irrevocable trust and the associated debt was defeased and
subsequently called on June 1, 2015. The true interest cost on the new bond series is 2.73
percent with a final maturity of June 1, 2035. The net present value savings resulting
from this refunding is $2,724,805. The difference in cash flow requirements to service the
old debt of $29,526,983 and the cash flows to service the debt of $26,014,758 is
$3,512,225.

In 2010, Municipal Gross Receipts Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series A and B, were
issued to refund the 1999 A and B Gross Receipts Tax Bonds and the 2006 Street
Improvement and Flood Control NMFA notes. The bonds are secured by a pledge of
certain future gross receipts tax through maturity. For the current year, such pledged
revenues totaled $12.9 million. Principal payments on the bonds for the current year for
the Series A and Series B bonds were $680,000 and $170,000, respectively. Interest
payments were $122,150 and $38,150, respectively.

State-shared Gross Receipts Tax Revenue Bonds, Series 2010, were issued to refund the
2008 NMFA Convention Center note. The bonds are secured through maturity by state-
shared gross receipts tax revenues. Such revenues totaled $36.3 million in 2015. For the
current year, principal and interest paid was $595,000 and $991,619, respectively.

In 2012, Municipal Gross Receipts Revenue Bonds, Series 2011 A and 2011B were issued
to fund street and facilities improvements and improve flood control. Series 2011 A bonds
are secured by state-shared gross receipts tax revenues through maturity. These pledged
revenues were $33.2 million in 2015. Series 2011B bonds are secured by certain future
gross receipts tax through maturity. In FY'15, such pledged revenues totaled $6.5 million.
Principal payments on the bonds for the current year for the Series A and Series B bonds
were $205,000 and $355,000, respectively. Interest payments were $281,725 and
$29,769, respectively.

68



7)

223

City of Las Cruces
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2015

Long—term Liabilities (continued)

State-shared Gross Receipts Tax Revenue Bonds, Series 2014, were issued to fund
roadway construction and facility construction and equipment. The bonds are secured
through maturity by state-shared gross receipts tax revenues. Such revenues totaled $36.3
million in 2015. For the current year, principal and interest paid was $0 and $267,522,
respectively.

In 2014, Municipal Gross Receipts Revenue Bonds, Series 2014A and 2014B were issued
to fund street improvements and improve flood control. Series 2014A bonds are secured
by certain future gross receipts tax through maturity. For the current year, such pledged
revenues totaled $6.5 million. Series 2014B bonds are secured by certain future gross
receipts tax through maturity. In FY15, such pledged revenues totaled $6.5 million.
Principal payments on the bonds for the current year for the Series A and Series B bonds
were $1,030,000 and $50,000 respectively. Interest payments were $182,558 and $29,697
respectively.

State-shared Gross Receipts Tax Revenue Bonds, Series 2015, were issued to refund the
State-shared Gross Receipts Tax Improvement Bonds, Series 2005. The bonds are
secured through maturity by state-shared gross receipts tax revenues. Such revenues
totaled $36.3 million in 2015. For the current year, principal and interest paid was
$235,000 and $148,508 respectively.

Debt Service Requirements
Tax revenue bonds payable by governmental activities are summarized as follows:

Original Due Balance Interest
Type Purpose Date Date Issue Outstanding Rates %
Gross receipts tax refunding Street projects refunding 9/28/2010 2021 12,255,000 3,505,000 2.5-3.0
Gross receipts tax refunding Flood control refunding 9/28/2010 2021 4,390,000 1,130,000 25-30
Gross receipts tax refunding Convention center refunding  9/28/2010 2037 24 330,000 21,675,000 20-50
Gross 1eceipts tax revenue Facilities and improve stieets  7/12/2011 2023 9,640,000 7,725,000 30-40
Gross receipls tax revenue Flood control 7/12/2011 2021 1,530,000 600,000 2 0-3.625
Gross receipts tax 1evenue Facilities and improve streels  7/29/2014 2026 10,000,000 10,000,000 20-4.0
Gross receipfs tax revenue Street improvemeni 712972014 2028 8,000,000 6,970,000 20-40
Gross receipts tax revenue Flood control 7/29/2014 2024 1,500,000 1,450,000 2.0-30
Gross receipts tax 1efunding City Hall refunding 3/11/2015 2035 19,195,000 18,960,000 225-40

$ 90,840,000 $ 72,015,000
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Debt Service Requirements
Future debt service requirements for governimental activities revenue bonds are:

Years ending June 30, Principal Interest Total
2016 $ 6,460,000 § 2,616,719  § 9,076,719
2017 6,530,000 2,416,756 8,946,756
2018 4,345,000 2,205,156 6,550,156
2019 4,380,000 2,063,106 6,443,106
2020 4,545,000 1,906,238 6,451,238
2021-2025 18,975,000 7,284,213 26,259,213
2026-2030 11,860,000 4,300,281 16,160,281
2031-2035 11,945,000 2,079,050 14,024,050
2036-2037 2,975,000 203,800 3,178,800

$ 72,015,000 § 25075319 $ 97,090,319

Defeased Bonds

During prior fiscal years, the City entered into various advance refunding transactions
related to certain of its bonded debt. A portion of the proceeds of the refunding issues
was placed in trust and used to purchase securities of the U.S. government and related
agencies at various interest rates and maturities sufficient to meet all debt service
requirements of the refunded debt. The assets are administered by trustees and are
restricted for retirement of refunded debt. The liability for the refunded bonds and the
related securities and escrow accounts are not included in the accompanying financial
statements since the City defeased its obligation for the payment of the refunded debt
upon completion of the refunding transactions.

The Joint Utilities Bond Series 2006 issue balance of $12,230,000 is outstanding but has
been defeased and is payable from an escrow account.

Non-recourse (Conduit) Debt

The City has issued Industrial Revenue Bonds to provide financial assistance to private
sector entities for the acquisition and construction of industrial and commercial facilities
deemed to be in the public interest. The bonds are secured by the property financed and
are obligated for repayment of the bonds. Accordingly, the bonds are not reported as
liabilities in the accompanying financial statements.

As of June 30, 2015, no Industrial Revenue Bonds are outstanding.
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Arbitrage

Under U.S. Treasury Department regulations, all governmental tax-exempt debt issued
after August 31, 1986 is subject to arbitrage rebate requirements. The requirements
stipulate, in general, that the earnings from the investment of tax-exempt bond proceeds,
which exceed related interest expenditures on the bonds, must be remitted to the federal
government on every fifth anniversary of each bond issue. The City periodically engages
an independent consultant to determine whether the City has an arbitrage liability. No
arbitrage liability is reported in the financial statements as of June 30, 2015.

Governmental Activities Notes Payable
Details of governmental activities notes payable are:

Original Due Original Interest

Type Purpose Date Date Issue Outstanding Rates %
2007 NMFA Note Fire pumper trucks 11/16/2007 2016  § 896,598 §$ 127,123 3.644
2008 NMFA Note Flood control 12/23/2008 2016 4,563,829 675,261 3.246
2009 NMFA Note Parking deck 1/23/2009 2021 4,999,890 2,250,000 4.650
2010 NMFA Note Fire apparatus 7/30/2010 2020 938,875 793,361 2.108
2010 NMFA Note Griggs Walnut 1/18/2008 2012 1,478,799 1,324,060 2.000
2010 HUD Loan Facllities 7/21/2010 2030 2,000,000 1,738,000 1.700
2011 NMFA Note Gas tax refunding 10/14/2011 2016 2,045,000 415,000 0919
2011 NMFA Note Fire apparatus 11/18/2011 2019 964,250 519,446 0.230
2012 NMFA Note 2003 SSGRT refunding 6/1/2012 2018 2,280,000 930,000 0.400
2014 NMFA Note SCSWA projects 6/20/2014 2028 2,780,000 2,310,000 0.250
2014 NMFA Note Fire apparatus 12/12/2014 2022 443,325 416,193 1.975
2015 Estate Loan Land Purchase 4/16/2015 2020 104,500 78,375 0.000

$ 23495066 $ 11,576,819

2007 NMFA-Fire Pumper Trucks, and 2010 NMFA-Fire Pumper Trucks are secured
through maturity by fire protection fund revenues which totaled $571,798 in 2015. The
2008 NMFA Flood control note is secured by the 1990 Gross Receipt Tax at a percentage
of 0.25 percent which totaled $6.5 million in 2015. The 2010 NMFA Griggs Walnut
Plume note is secured by the 1995 environmental gross receipts tax revenues which
totaled $1,616,984 in 2015. The 2010 HUD loan is secured by property. The 2011 Gas
Tax Refunding loan is secured by gasoline tax revenues which totaled $1,502,770 in
2015. The 2014 SCSWA Projects loan is secured by the SCSWA operating revenues and
City and County Environmental Gross Receipts taxes.

The remaining notes payable in the table above are secured through maturity by the state-
shared gross receipts tax which totaled $33.2 million in 2015.

Principal and interest paid on the outstanding notes in the current year was $2,959,890
and $385,227, respectively.
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Debt Service Requirements
Future debt service requirements for governmental activities notes payable are:

Years ending June 30, Principal Interest Total
2016 $ 2,971,589 § 332,546 § 3,304,135
2017 1,465,265 260,401 1,725,666
2018 1,484,618 221,071 1,705,689
2019 911,842 178,760 1,090,602
2020 781,206 151,483 932,689
2020-2024 2,054,706 470,420 2,525,126
2025-2029 1,621,718 178,195 1,799,913
2030-2032 285,875 7,788 293,663

$ 11,576,819 $ 1,800,664 $ 13,377,483

Joint Utility Revenue Bonds
In 2005, the City issued $11.05 million in joint utility revenue bonds (Series 2005) to
provide funds for water expansion projects.

On August 26, 2014, the City issued $7,125,000 of joint utility refunding revenue bonds
(Series 2014 A) to defease and refund the 2005 joint utility revenue bonds. Proceeds were
deposited in an escrow fund that then paid the outstanding balance of the bonds on June
1, 2015. Certain other proceeds were used to fund a debt service reserve account and pay
costs of issuance relating to these bonds. The average interest of the Series 2014A bonds
is 3.42 percent. The City had a gain of $266,052 and obtained a net present value savings
from this refunding of $529,520. The cash flows to service the refunding bonds is
$985,728 less than the cash flows required to service the debt on the 2005 bonds.

In 2006, the City issued $17,575,000 in joint utility revenue bonds (Series 2006). Certain
proceeds of this issuance were deposited in the Acquisition Fund and used to finance the
acquisition, installation, and construction of water and wastewater capital improvements.
Additionally, certain proceeds were used to fund the Reserve Requirement and pay costs
of issuance relating to these bonds.

On May 12, 2015, the City issued $16,895,000 of 2015 joint utility refunding bonds to
defease the Series 2006 bonds. The total interest cost on the new bond is 2.4 percent with
a final maturity of June 1, 2035. The gain from this refunding is $429,226 and the present
value savings resulting from this refunding is $1,038,837. The difference in cash flow
requirements to service the old debt of $15,746,075 and the cash flows to service the debt
of $12,914,300 is $2,831,775.
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In 2009, the City issued $17.6 million in joint utility refunding revenue bonds (Series
2009) to defease $18.2 million of outstanding 1997 Series bonds and refund $2.0 million
of outstanding 2000 Series bonds. These monies contemporaneously funded a reserve
account for the Series 2009 bonds and paid all costs and expenses pertaining to their
issuance.

In 2010, the City issued $24.8 million in joint utility refunding revenue bonds (Series
2010) to refund eight 2003 through 2007 NMFA notes with $24.8 million outstanding.
This refunding also established a reserve account and paid all costs of issuance.

In 2014, the City issued $7.1 million in joint utility refunding revenue bonds (Series
2014A) to advance refund and defease $7.0 million of outstanding 2005 Series bonds.
This refunding also established a reserve account and paid all costs of issuance.

The City issued $3.4 million in joint utility improvement revenue bonds (Series 2014B).
The proceeds of these bonds were used to improve the City’s Joint Utility System, fund a
reserve account and pay costs of issuance relating to these bonds.

In 2015, the City issued $16.9 million in joint utility refunding and improvement revenue
bonds (Series 2015) to refund and defease $13.1 million of outstanding 2006 Series
bonds. The proceeds were also used to improve the City’s Joint Utility System, fund a
standalone surety reserve, and pay all costs of issuance.

Joint utility revenue bonds are summarized as follows as of June 30, 2015;

Issue Due Original Interest

Purpose Date Date Issued Outstanding Rates %

Series 2009 refunding bond 4/14/2009 2016 $ 17,575,000 $ 2,740,000 2.5-3.0
Series 2010 refunding bond 9/14/2010 2027 24,840,000 23,585,000 2.0-4.0
Series 2014 A refunding bond 8/26/2014 2025 7,125,000 6,505,000 2.0-4.0
Series 2014B system improvement 8/26/2014 2034 3,425,000 3,325,000  3.0-5.0
Series 2015 refunding and rehabilitation  5/12/2015 2035 16,895,000 16,895,000  2.0-5.0

$  69.860,000 $ 53,050,000
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Future debt service requirements for business-type activities joint utility revenue bonds
are:

Year ending June 30, Principal Interest Total
2016 $ 4,670,000 $ 1,799,179 § 6,469,179
2017 3,655,000 1,642,669 5,297,669
2018 3,765,000 1,538,219 5,303,219
2019 3,850,000 1,442,619 5,292,619
2020 3,930,000 1,341,869 5,271,869
2021-2025 21,840,000 4,494,981 26,334,981
2026-2030 8,895,000 951,281 9,846,281
2031-2035 2,445,000 208,344 2,653,344

$ 53,050,000 $ 13,419,161 § 66,469,161

The 2009, 2010, 2014A, 2014B, and 2015 joint utility revenue bond ordinances provide
that the net revenue of the City’s utility systems shall be at least 125 percent of the
maximum outstanding debt requirements for the utility system. These bonds are not a
general obligation to the City, but are payable and collectible solely out of the net
revenues of the systems. Net revenue as defined in the bond ordinances means the
revenue after deducting operation and maintenance expenses. Operation and maintenance
expenses include all reasonable and necessary current expenses of the City, paid or
accrued, for operating, maintaining, and repairing the system; and shall include, without
limiting the generality of the foregoing, legal and overhead expenses of the various City
departments directly related and reasonably allocable to the administration of the system,
insurance premiums, the reasonable charge of depository banks and paying agents,
contractual services, professional services required by this ordinance, salaries and
administrative expenses, labor, and the cost of materials and supplies used for current
operation; but shall not include any allowance for depreciation, payments in lieu of taxes,
liabilities incurred by the City as a result of its negligence in the operation of the system,
improvements, extension, enlargements or betterment, or any charges for the
accumulation of reserves for capital replacements. The net revenue for the fiscal year
ended June 30, 2015 exceeded the maximum annual debt service requirement. Bond
reserve accounts have been established to accumulate funds.
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The bond ordinances provide that any monies in any fund or account may be invested in
any legal investment permitted by law, with the stipulation that investments of amounts
in the escrow account will be made only in federal securities. The obligations so
purchased as an investment of monies in a fund or account will be deemed at all times to
be part of such fund or account, and the interest accruing thereon and any profit realized
therefrom will be credited to the fund or account, and any loss resulting from each
investment will be charged to the fund or account. The City Treasurer will present for
redemption or sale on the prevailing market any obligations so purchased as an
investment of monies in the fund or account whenever it will be necessary to do so in
order to provide monies to meet any payment or transfer from such fund or account.

Bond covenants require reporting of the number of utility customers served, which were
as follows for the year ended June 30, 2015:

Water Wastewater Gas Sold Waste
Residential 28,174 29,771 36,284 31,204
Commercial/other 3,016 3,327 3,016 2,668
Total 31,190 33,098 39,300 33,872

Business-type Activities Notes Payable

The notes payable for the business-type activities are paid from the net revenues of the
utility system. City ordinance 1593, adopted by the City Council on December 18, 1996,
provides authority for the City to issue additional debt with a parity lien on the pledged
revenues of the utility system.

A comparison of the pledged revenues recognized during the year with the required debt
service for the year is presented in the Pledged-Revenue Bond/Note Coverage Schedule
located in the statistical section.

Details of business-type activities notes payables are:

Original Due Original Interest

Type ) Purpose Date Date Issued Outstanding Rates %

2008 NMFA Note  Vehicle Maintenance Shop 9/12/2008 2018  § 1,708,755 § 590,511  1.9-3.85
2011 NMFA Note  Solid Waste Vehicles 12/16/2011 2019 1,016,561 561,114 032-2.11
2015 NMFA Note  Solid Waste Equipment 1/9/2015 2022 2,775,819 2,661,010 021-2.01

$ 5501,135 § 3,812,635
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Long—term Liabilities (continued)

Future debt service requirements for business-type activities notes payable are:

Year ending December 30 Principal Interest Total

2016 $ 696,463 § 66,775  $ 763,238

2017 707,054 56,185 763,239

2018 719,353 43,886 763,239

2019 521,704 29,669 551,373

2020 382,858 21,761 404,619
2021-2022 785,203 24,034 809,237

$ 3,812,635 § 242,310 § 4,054,945

SCSWA changes in long-term liabilities for the year are as follows:

Amount
Balances Balances Due Within
June 30, 2014 Increases Decreases June 30,2015 One Year
Long-term debt
due to City of Las Cruces $ 2459170 $ - § 470,000 $ 1,989,170 § 455,000
Other non-current liabilities:
Net Pension Liability 2,054,461 - 831,098 1,223,363 245,833
Estimated landfill closure/
post-closure liability 1,434,945 30,028 - 1,464,973 30,385
Compensated absences 90,795 198,031 111,919 176,907 35,381
Capital lease 234,908 - 47,010 187,898 47,967

§ 6274279 % 228,059 § 1,460,027 § 5,042,311  § 814,566

Landfill Closure and Post-closure Care Cost

State and federal laws and regulations require placement of a final cover on landfill sites
when waste is no longer accepted and performance of certain maintenance and
monitoring functions at the sites for 30 years after closure. Although closure and post-
closure care costs will be paid only near or after the date that a landfill stops accepting
waste, a portion of the closure and post closure costs are reported as an operating expense
in each period based on landfill capacity used as of each balance sheet date.

The City’s landfill closure and post-closure care liability is reported as $1,118,000 as of
the year ended June 30, 2015. Actual closure and post-closure care costs may be higher
due to inflation, changes in technology, or changes in regulations. The liability reported
reflects an increase in the estimate of total closure and post-closure costs of $65,000
during the fiscal year ended June 30, 2015. The Foothills landfill is at 100 percent
capacity and closed.
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Landfill Closure and Post-closure Care Cost

In FY15, the SCSWA implemented GASB Statement No. 18, Accounting for Municipal
Solid Waste Landfill Closure and Post-Closure Care Costs. The $1,613,007 reported as
SCSWA’s landfill closure and post-closure liability at June 30, 2015, is based on the
Financial Assurance required to be in place for the currently lined area (cells 1-3) is
$2,041,782. Using the 2015 volumetric and landfill life survey data, the active lined area
of cells 1-3 is currently at 79 percent capacity. The current financial assurance required to
be currently in place would therefore be $1,613,007 (79 percent of $2.04 million).

The City enacted a 1/16™ cent environmental gross receipts tax that became effective
January 1, 1995, to raise funds for environmental costs such as for landfill closure and
post-closure care. The landfill closure was not funded from the EGRT fund during the
year due to additional revenues from landfill charges and investment income.

Pollution Remediation Obligation

Certain property owned by the City has been declared a Superfund Site by the
Environmental Protection Agency (EPA). The EPA has determined that the City is a
responsible party along with Dofia Ana County, which also owns part of the
contaminated property. On April 20, 2005, the City and Dofia Ana County established a
memorandum of understanding for a Joint Superfund Project (JSP) to work
collaboratively with the EPA to complete the Remedial Investigation and Feasibility
Study (RIFS) within the Superfund process. In December 2004, the JSP submitted a
good-faith offer to the EPA for a Funding Agreement to achieve this objective. In April
2005, a negotiated funding agreement in the amount of $800,000, payable to the EPA to
complete the RIFS, was signed. In October 2005, the EPA and its contractor began the
remaining fieldwork, which was completed in fiscal year 2007. As a result of this study,
the City accrued a liability of $6,890,106 to pay its share of the pollution remediation
cost, as follows:

Total City's
Obligation Portion
Capital assets $ 5,151,978 § 2,575,989
Operating costs 1,459,664 729,832
Completion costs 7.168,571 3,584,285

$ 13,780,213 § 6,890,106

The pollution remediation obligation is reported in long-term liabilities in the statement
of net position (see Note 7). The pollution remediation obligation is an estimate and is
subject to revision because of the price increases or reductions, changes in technology or
changes in applicable laws or regulations.
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Pollution Remediation Obligation (continued)

The City and County each received a $3.5 million construction drawdown loan from the
New Mexico Finance Authority (NMFA) to cover some of the costs of the pollution
remediation project. City project costs of $1,478,799 were funded using loan proceeds.
The City has begun repayment of the loan using Environmental Gross Receipt Tax funds.

The City and County also received $243,000 for design and engineering in grant funds
from the New Mexico Environment Department. As of June 30, 2015, all $243,000 was
applied to design and engineering costs. Construction on the project completed and
remediation operations began August 2012.

The liability could be reduced in subsequent years by the sale of potable water, a by-
product of the remediation process, to cover operating and administrative costs. The sale
of potable water was $31,697 less than operating costs. EGRT funds were used to cover
the City’s share of the operating loss of $15,849.

Deferred Compensation Plan

The City offers its employees a deferred compensation plan created in accordance with
Internal Revenue Service Code Section 457. The plan, available to all City employees,
permits them to defer taxation on a portion of their salary until future years. The deferred
compensation is not available to employees until termination, retirement, death, or
unforeseeable emergency. All amounts of compensation deferred under the plan, all
property and rights purchased with those amounts, and all income attributable to those
amounts, property, or rights are solely the property and rights of the plan participants.
The City has 533 active participants in the plan as of June 30, 2015.

City of Las Cruces employees who work 20 or more hours a week participate in a
defined-benefit, contributory retirement plan through the Public Employees Retirement
Act of the State of New Mexico, a cost-sharing multiple employer public employee
retirement system administered by the Public Employees Retirement Association
(PERA). Benefit provisions are established and may only be amended by state statute.
Information pertaining to the actuarially computed present value of vested accumulated
plan benefits and non-vested accumulated plan benefits, the plan’s net position available
for benefits and the assumed rate of return used in computing the present value, and ten
year historical trend information presenting PERA’s progress in accumulating sufficient
assets to pay benefits when due is not available through individual government agencies
participating in the plan. Actuarial pension data for the State of New Mexico, as
employer, is provided at the state-wide level in a separately issued audit report of PERA.
The report may be obtained by writing to PERA, PO Box 2123, 1120 Paseo de Peralta,
Santa Fe, NM 88504-2323. Additional contact information 1is located at
www.pera.state.nm.us.
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New Mexico Retiree Health Care Plan

The New Mexico Retiree Health Care Act (the “Act” or “NMRHCA”) (Chapter 10,
Article 7C NMSA 1978) provides comprehensive core group health insurance for
persons who have retired from certain public services in New Mexico. The Retiree
Health Care Authority (the Authority) is the administrator of the plan and determines
required contributions under authority of the Act. The purpose is to provide eligible
retirees, their spouses, dependents, and surviving spouses and dependents with health
insurance consisting of a plan, or optional plans, of benefits that can be purchased by
funds flowing into the Retiree Health Care Fund and by co-payments or out-of-pocket
payments of eligible retirees.

Eligible employers include institutions of higher education, school districts, or other
entities participating in the Public School Insurance Authority, state agencies, state
courts, magistrate courts, municipalities, or counties, which are affiliated under or
covered by the Educational Retirement Act, Public Employees Retirement Act, Volunteer
Firefighters Retirement Act, Judicial Retirement Act, or the Magistrate Retirement Act.

Eligible Retiree — Employees are eligible to participate per the Act if:

e Employees receive a disability or normal retirement benefit from public service in
New Mexico with an NMRHCA-participating employer, and

e Employees did one of the following:

o Retired with a pension before their employer’s effective date with the NMRHCA
program, or

o Employees and/or their employer (on your behalf) made contributions to the
NMRHCA fund from their employer’s NMRHCA effective date until their date of
retirement, or

o Employees and/or their employer (on your behalf) made contributions to the
NMRHCA fund for at least five years before their date of retirement. (If
employees are awarded a duty-related disability retirement, they are not required
to meet the NMRHCA'’s five-year contribution rule.)

Each participating employer makes contributions to the fund in the amount of 2 percent
of each participating employee’s annual salary. Each participating employee contributes
to the fund an employee contribution equal to 1 percent of the employee’s annual
salary. Each participating retiree pays a monthly premium for the medical plus basic life
plan and an additional participation fee of five dollars if the eligible participant retired
prior to the employer’s NMRHCA effective date or is a former legislator and made no
contributions to the plan. After retirement, premiums are paid to the Authority by the
retiree.
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The City of Las Cruces has paid all of the employers’ required contributions, which
were as follows:

2015 $ 847,444
2014 831,594
2013 854,248
2012 711,422
2011 656,434

Contributions from participating employers and participating employees become the
property of the Retiree Health Care Fund and are not refundable under any
circumstances, including termination of employment or termination of the participating
employer’s operation or participation in the Retiree Health Care Act. The employer,
employee, and retiree contributions are required to be remitted to the Retiree Health
Care Authority on a monthly basis.

The Authority issues a separate, publicly-available audited financial report that
includes post-employment benefit expenditures of premiums and claims paid,
participant contributions (employer, employee, and retiree), and net expenditures for
the fiscal year. The report also includes the approximate number of retirees
participating in the plan. That report may be obtained by writing to the Retiree
Health Care Authority, 4308 Carlisle Blvd, NE, Suite 104, Albuquerque, New Mexico
87109.

Multiple-Employer Cost Sharing Pension Plans

General Information about the Pension Plan

Plan description — Compliant with the requirements of GASB Statement No. 68,
Accounting and Financial Reporting for Pensions, the State of New Mexico has
implemented the standard for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2015. The City as part of the
primary government of the State of New Mexico, is a contributing employer to a cost-
sharing multiple employer defined benefit pension plan administered by the PERA.
Disclosure requirements for governmental funds apply to the primary government as a
whole, and as such, this information will be presented in the Component Appropriation
Funds Annual Financial Report (General Fund) and the CAFR of the State of New
Mexico. Information concerning the net pension liability, pension expense, and pension
related deferred inflows and outflows of resources of the primary government will be
contained in the General Fund and the CAFR and will be available, when issued, from
the Office of State Controller, Room 166, Bataan Memorial Building, 407 Galisteo
Street, Santa Fe, New Mexico, 87501.

The Public Employees Retirement Fund (PERA Fund) is a cost-sharing, multiple
employer defined benefit pension plan. This fund has six divisions of members, including
State General, State Police/Adult Correction Officer, Municipal General, Municipal
Police/Detention Officers, Municipal fire, and State Legislative Divisions, and offers 24
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Multiple-Employer Cost Sharing Pension Plans (continued)

different types of coverage within the PERA plan. All assets accumulated may be used to
pay benefits, including refunds of member contributions, to any of the plan members or
beneficiaries, as defined by the terms of this plan. Certain coverage plans are only
applicable to a specific division. Eligibility for membership in the PERA Fund is set forth
in the Public Employees Retirement Act (Chapter 10, Article 11, NMSA 1978). Except as
provided for in the Volunteer Firefighters Retirement Act (10-11A-1 to 10-11A-7,
NMSA 1978), the Judicial Retirement Act (10-12B-1 to 10-12B-19, NMSA 1978), the
Magistrate Retirement Act (10-12C-1 to 10-12C-18, NMSA 1978), and the Educational
Retirement Act (Chapter 22, Article 11, NMSA1978), and the provisions of Sections 29-
4-1 through 29-4-11, NMSA 1978 governing the State Police Pension Fund, each
employee and elected official of every affiliated public employer is required to be a
member in the PERA Fund.

PERA issues a publicly available financial report and a comprehensive annual financial
report that can be obtained at http://saonm.org/ using the Audit Report Search function
for agency 366.

Benefits provided — For a description of the benefits provided and recent changes to the
benefits see Note 1 in the PERA audited financial statements for the fiscal year ended
June 30, 2014 available at:
http://www.pera.state.nm.us/pdf/AuditFinancialStatements/366_Public Employees Retir
ement Associati on_2014.pdf.

Contributions — The contribution requirements of defined benefit plan members and the
City of Las Cruces are established in state statute under Chapter 10, Article 11, NMSA
1978. The contribution requirements may be amended by acts of the legislature. For the
employer and employee contribution rates in effect for FY14 for the various PERA
coverage options, for both Tier I and Tier II, see the tables available in the note
disclosures on pages 29 through 31 of the PERA FY14 annual audit report at
http://osanm.org/media/audits/366 Public Emplovees Retirement Association 2014.pd.
The PERA coverage options that apply to City of Las Cruces are: General Municipal,
Police and Fire. Statutorily required contributions to the pension plan from the City of
Las Cruces were $6,870,339 and employer paid member benefits that were “picked up”
by the employer were $2,533,506 for the year ended June 30, 2015. These contributions
of the City includes it’s discretely presented component unit and fiduciary funds.

Pension Liabilities, Pension Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred
Inflows of Resources Related to Pensions — The PERA pension liability amounts, net
pension liability amounts, and sensitivity information were based on an annual actuarial
valuation performed as of June 30, 2013. The PERA pension liability amounts for each
division were rolled forward from the valuation date to the Plan year ending June 30,
2014, using generally accepted actuarial principles. Therefore, the employer’s portion
was established as of the measurement date June 30, 2014,
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The assets of the PERA fund are held in one trust, but there are six distinct membership
groups (municipal general members, municipal police members, municipal fire members,
state general members, state police members and legislative members) for whom separate
contribution rates are determined each year pursuant to chapter 10, Article 11 NMSA
1978. Therefore, the calculations of the net pension liability, pension expense and
deferred Inflows and Outflows were preformed separately for each of the membership
groups: municipal general members; municipal police members; municipal fire members;
state general members; state police members and legislative members. The City of Las
Cruces proportion of the net pension liability for each membership group that the
employer participates in is based on the employer contributing entity’s percentage of that
membership group’s total employer contributions for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2014.
Only employer contributions for the pay period end dates that fell within the period of
July 1, 2013 to June 30, 2014 were included in the total contributions for a specific
employer.

Regular and any adjustment contributions that applied to fiscal year ended June 30, 2014
are included in the total contribution amounts. In the event that an employer is behind in
reporting to PERA its required contributions, an estimate (receivable) was used to project
the unremitted employer contributions. This allowed for fair and consistent measurement
of the contributions with the total population. This methodology was used to maintain
consistent measurement each year in determining the percentages to be allocated among
all the participating employers.

For PERA Fund Division: General Municipal, at June 30, 2015, the City of Las Cruces
reported a liability of $36,171,147 for its proportionate share of the net pension liability.
At June 30, 2014, the Municipal’s proportion was 4.64 percent, which was unchanged
from its proportion measured as of June 30, 2013, due to the insignificance of the
difference.

For the year ended June 30, 2015, the City of Las Cruces recognized PERA Fund
Division Municipal’s pension expense of $3,208,065, which excludes the City’s fiduciary
funds and discretely presented component unit. At June 30, 2015, the City of Las Cruces
reported PERA Fund Division Municipal deferred outflows of resources and deferred
inflows or resources related to pensions from the following sources:

Deferred

Outflows of Deferred Inflows

Resources of Resources
Changes of Assumptions
Net giﬂérenc§ between projected and actual eamings on 5 B $ 13,787,270
pension plan investments
City of Las Cruces contributions subsequent to the
measurement date 6,016,189 -

Total $ 6,016,189 $ 13,787,270
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$9,081,004 reported as deferred outflows of resources related to pensions resulting from
City of Las Cruces contributions subsequent to the measurement date June 30, 2014 will
be recognized as a reduction of the net pension liability in the year ended June 30, 2016.
Other amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of
resources related to pensions will be recognized in pension expense as follows:

Year ended June 30:

2016 $ 3,797,967
2017 3,797,967
2018 3,797,967
2019 3,797,967
2020 -
Thereafter -

For PERA Fund Division: Police, at June 30, 2015, the City of Las Cruces reported a
liability of $16,640,441 for its proportionate share of the net pension liability. At June 30,
2014, the Police proportion was 5.1046 percent, which was unchanged from its
proportion measured as of June 30, 2013, due to the insignificance of the difference.

For the year ended June 30, 2015, the City of Las Cruces recognized PERA Fund
Division Police’s pension expense of $1,474,311. At June 30, 2015, the City of Las
Cruces reported PERA Fund Division Municipal deferred outflows of resources and
deferred inflows or resources related to pensions from the following sources:

Deferred

Outflows of Deferred Inflows

Resources of Resources
Changes of Assumptions
Net l.)ifferenc.e between projected and actual earnings on g i 5 7,539,422
pension plan investments
City of Las Cruces contributions subsequent to the
measurement date 1,740,991 -

Total $ 1,740,991 b 7,539,422
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Other amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of
resources related to pensions will be recognized in pension expense as follows:

Year ended June 30:

2016 $ 1,546,912
2017 1,546,912
2018 1,546,912
2019 1,546,912
2020 E
Thereafter -

For PERA Fund Division: Fire, at June 30, 2015, the City of Las Cruces reported a
liability of $23,884,004 for its proportionate share of the net pension liability. At June 30,
2014, the Fire proportion was 5.7221 percent, which was unchanged from its proportion
measured as of June 30, 2013, due to the insignificance of the difference.

For the year ended June 30, 2015, the City of Las Cruces recognized PERA Fund
Division Fire’s pension expense of $2,355,683. At June 30, 2015, the City of Las Cruces
reported PERA Fund Division Municipal deferred outflows of resources and deferred
inflows or resources related to pensions from the following sources:

Deferred

Outflows of Deferred Inflows

Resources of Resources
Changes of Assumptions $ 829,126 $ 3,308,088
Net difference between projected and actual earnings on
pension plan investments - -
City of Las Cruces contributions subsequent to the
measurement date 1,323,824 -

Total $ 2,152,950 ¥ 3,308,088
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$829,126 reported as deferred outflows of resources related to pensions resulting from
City of Las Cruces contributions subsequent to the measurement date June 30, 2014 will
be recognized as a reduction of the net pension liability in the year ended June 30, 2016.
Other amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of
resources related to pensions will be recognized in pension expense as follows:

Year ended June 30:

2016 $ 827,022
2017 827,022
2018 827,022
2019 827,022
2020 -
Thereafter E

For the SCSWA at June 30, 2015, a liability of $1,223,363 was recorded for its
proportionate share of the net pension liability. At June 30, 2014, SCSWA’s proportion
was 3.67 percent, which was unchanged from its proportion measured as of June 30,
2013, due to the insignificance of the difference.

For the year ended June 30, 2015, SCSWA recognized pension expense of $190,234. At
June 30, 2015, SCSWA reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows or
resources related to pensions from the following sources:

Deferred

Outflows of Deferred Inflows

Resources of Resources
Net difference between projected and actual earnings
on pension plan investments § - $ 815,326
SCSWA's contributions subsequent to the
measurement date 322,322 E

Total $ 322,322 $ 815,326

$322,322 reported as deferred outflows of resources related to pensions resulting from
SCSWA’s contributions subsequent to the measurement date June 30, 2014 will be
recognized as a reduction of the net pension liability in the year ended June 30, 2016.
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Actuarial assumptions — As described above, the PERA Fund member group pension
liabilities and net pension liabilities are based on actuarial valuations performed as of
June 30, 2013 for each of the membership groups. Then each PERA Fund member group
pension liability was rolled forward from the valuation date to the Plan year ending June
30, 2014 using generally accepted actuarial principles. There were no significant events
or changes in benefit provisions that required an adjustment to the roll-forward liabilities
as of June 30, 2014. These actuarial methods and assumptions were adopted by the Board
for use in the June 30, 2014 actuarial valuation.

Actuarial valuation date June 30, 2013

Actuarial cost method Entry age normal

Amortization method Level percentage of pay
Amortization period Solved for based on statutory rates
Asset valuation method Fair value

Actuarial assumptions:

Investment rate of return 7.75% annual rate, net of investment expense
Payroll growth 3.50% annual rate

Projected salary increases 3.50% to 14.25% annual rate

Includes inflation at 3.00% annual rate

The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was determined using
a statistical analysis in which best-estimate ranges of expected future real rates of return
(expected returns, net of pension plan investment expense and inflation) are developed
for each major asset class. These ranges are combined to produce the long-term expected
rate of return by weighting the expected future real rates of return by the target asset
allocation percentage and by adding expected inflation. The target asset allocation and
most recent best estimates of arithmetic real rates of return for each major asset class are
summarized in the following table:

Long-Term

ALL FUNDS - Asset Class  Target Allocation Expected Real

Rate of Return
U.S. Equity 21.1% 5.00%
International Equity 24.8% 5.20%
Private Equity 7.0% 8.20%
Core and Global Fixed Income 26.1% 1.85%
Fixed Income Plus Sectors 5.0% 4.80%
Real Estate 5.0% 5.30%
Real Assets 7.0% 5.70%
Absolute Return 4.0% 4.15%

Total 100.0%
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Discount rate — The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 7.75
percent. The projection of cash flows used to determine the discount rate assumed that
future contributions will be made in accordance with statutory rates. On this basis, the
pension plan’s fiduciary net position together with the expected future contributions are
sufficient to provide all projected future benefit payments of current plan members as
determined in accordance with GASBS 67. Therefore, the 7.75 percent assumed long-
term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was applied to all periods of
projected benefit payments to determine the total pension liability.

Sensitivity of the City of Las Cruces proportionate share of the net pension liability to
changes in the discount rate — The following tables show the sensitivity of the net
pension liability to changes in the discount rate. In particular, the tables present the City
of Las Cruces’ net pension liability in each PERA Fund Division that City of Las Cruces
participates in, under the current single rate assumption, as if it were calculated using a
discount rate one percentage point lower (6.75 percent) or one percentage point higher
(8.75 percent) than the single discount rate.

PERA Fund Division - Municipal 1% Decrease Current Discount 1% Increase
(6.75%) Rate (7.75%) (8.75%)

City of Las Cruces' proportionate

share of'the net pension liability 31,503,902 36,171,147 40,838,392

PERA Fund Division - Police 1% Decrease Current Discount 1% Increase
(6.75%) Rate (7.75%) (8.75%)

City of Las Cruces' proportionate

share of the net pension liability 14,493,287 16,640,441 18,787,595

PERA Fund Division - Fire 1% Decrease Current Discount 1% Increase
(6.75%) Rate (7.75%) (8.75%)

City of Las Cruces' proportionate
share of the net pension liability 20,802,201 23,884,009 26,965,817
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Sensitivity of the SCSWA'’s proportionate share of the net pension liability to changes in
the discount rate — The following table shows the sensitivity of the net pension liability to
changes in the discount rate. In particular, the table presents the SCSWA’s net pension
liability in each PERA Fund Division that SCSWA participates in, under the current
single rate assumption, as if it were calculated using a discount rate one percentage point
lower (6.75 percent) or one percentage point higher (8.75 percent) than the single
discount rate.

PERA Fund Division - SCSWA 1% Decrease Current Discount 1% Increase
(6.75%) Rate (7.75%) (8.75%)

SCSWA's proportionate share of
the net pension liability $ 1,065,509 $ 1,223,363 $ 1,381,216

Pension plan fiduciary net position — Detailed information about the pension plan’s
fiduciary net position is available in the separately issued FY 14 restated PERA financial
report. The report is available at http://www.pera.state.nm.us/publications.html.
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The City is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts and civil rights claims
(including law enforcement and employment related exposures); theft, damage, and
destruction of its real and personal assets; workers’ compensation losses; errors, and
omissions of City officers and officials; and natural disasters. The City uses the insurance
fund (an internal service fund) to account for and finance its uninsured risks of loss. At
various periods in past years, certain risk exposures were insured and the City continues
to benefit from case coverage on claims that were incurred during those claim years.

The insurance fund tracks claims on a fund-by-fund basis and assesses charges to each
fund based on historical claims experience and the need to establish a reserve for
unanticipated catastrophic losses. The claims liabilities reported in the insurance fund are
based on the requirements of GASB Statement No. 10, which requires that a liability for
claims be reported if information prior to the issuance of the financial statements
indicates it is probable that a liability has been incurred at the date of the financial
statements and the amount of the loss can be reasonably estimated.

The risk of loss associated with actions of employees resulting in damage to persons or
property of others is subject to limitations of the New Mexico State Tort Claims Act. The
self-insurance fund uses excess workers compensation insurance agreements to reduce its
exposure to large losses from employee on-the-job injuries. Excess insurance permits
recovery of a portion of losses from the excess insurer, although it does not discharge the
primary liability of the fund as direct insurer of the risks.

Self-insurance premiums and program costs (claims, fees, and transfers to other funds,
less reimbursed expenses) were:

2015 2014
Program Costs Program Costs
(Benefits) Premiums (Benefits) Premiums

Health Program $ 4,535,726 $ (4,624,033) $ 1,708,336 $ -
Workers compensation 1,040,444 (2,438,290) 2,105,665 (2,353,132)
Liability insurance 1,522,816 (593,851) 1,380,798 (585,236)
Unemployment insurance 102,135 (325,831) 135,738 (325,831)
Judgments insurance - - - -

Total § 7,201,121 § (7,982,005) $ 5,330,537 § (3,264,199)
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Risk Management (continued)

In prior years, a reserve was established in the self-insurance fund’s claims liability
account for four wrongful death claims filed against the City. In 2013 two of these
cases were dismissed and resulted in a significant reduction in the fund’s claim liability.
The City currently has two significant cases, that is, one remaining alleged wrongful
death case and an additional case involving a sexual assault. The City believes that the
reserve funds will more than cover any potential liability from these two cases. As of
June 30, 2015, litigation is still pending on remaining claims.

Changes in the insurance fund’s claims liability were:

2015 2014
Changes in fund's claims liability
Claims liability, beginning of year $ 5,800,147 $ 5,480,397
Current year claims and
changes in estimates 6,911,389 5,330,538
Payment of claims liability (6,521,498) (5,010,788)
Claims liability, end of year $ 6,190,038 $ 5,800,147

Development Impact Fees

The City collects and expends development impact fees in accordance with Ordinance
No. 1456, which requires impact fees to be used for capital improvements or facility
expansions identified in a capital improvements plan. In addition to capital
improvements, development impact fees may also be used to pay for debt service costs if
the proceeds of the debt issued were used in accordance with the capital improvements
plan.

The expenditures of collected fees must improve the following facilities:

1) Water supply, treatment, and distribution facilities, and wastewater collection
and treatment facilities;

2) Parks, recreational areas, open space, trails, and related areas and facilities;
and

3) Major roads, stormwater drainage, and public safety (police and fire)
facilities.
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Development Impact Fees (continued)

In addition to the construction of capital improvements or facility expansions, Ordinance
1456 §4 states that the development impact fee may also be used to pay for the
preparation and updating of the capital improvements plan, the estimated costs of the
plan, or up to three percent of administrative costs for City employees who are qualified
professionals. Additionally, debt service costs may be paid from impact fees assessed if
the proceeds of the debt issued were used in accordance with the capital improvements
identified in the capital improvements plan.

The initial land use assumptions and capital improvements plan prepared by Tischler &
Associates, Inc. on January 6, 1995 is a 10-to 20-year plan with professional engineering
estimates of costs well exceeding the assessed development impact fees. A significant
portion of the assessed development impact fees for the water and wastewater system
have been used to pay debt service on bonds. The expenditures from the bond proceeds
were spent on specific items listed in the initial capital improvements plan and were
expended within five years of the completion of the capital improvements plan.

In August 2011, the City Council adopted Resolution No. 12-024, Impact Fee Capital
Improvements Plan for Major Roads, Stormwater Drainage, and Public Safety (fire and
police) Facilities. The public safety fees apply to all new development in the City, while
the major roads and drainage fees apply only to new development located in the “growth
area” (i.e. outside the City’s designated infill area).

Development impact fee activity for the year ended June 30, 2015 is shown below.

Unspent fees collected in previous years are available for expenditure in the current fiscal
year.
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14)  Development Impact Fees (continued)

Parks Impact Fees

Impact fees collected $ 548,640
Investment gain 27,558
Expenditures (300,881)
Net Parks Impact Fees $ 275,317
Public Safety Impact Fees
Impact fees collected $ 264,900
Investment gain 20,240
Expenditures (15,035)
Net Public Safety Impact Fees $ 270,105
Water Impact Fees
Impact fees collected $ 1,656,917
Investment gain 74,170
Expenditures (1,186,664)
Net Water Impact Fees $ 544,423
Wastewater Impact Fees
Impact fees collected $ 1,005,002
Investment gain 176,181
Expenditures (1,209,966)
Net Wastewater Impact Fees $ (28,783)
Total Impact Fees
Collections $ 3,475,459
Investment gain 298,149
Expenditures (2,712,546)
Net Impact Fees $ 1,061,062
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Telshor Facility Lease
Memorial Medical Center / Province Hospital (Telshor Facility)

In 1966, the City and the County adopted a joint resolution to create a joint county-
municipal hospital to provide medical services to all of the citizens of Dofia Ana County.
The hospital was constructed and operated by the City and County through a Board of
Trustees until 1998, when it was leased to Memorial Medical Center, Inc. (MMCI), a
New Mexico not-for-profit corporation.

On June 1, 2004, the City, the County, and MMCI jointly terminated the lease. On that
date, the City and County executed a 40-year lease agreement for the hospital facilities
and equipment with PHC-Las Cruces, Inc. (PHC), a New Mexico corporation and a
wholly-owned subsidiary of Province Healthcare Corporation, a Delaware corporation. In
accordance with the lease agreement, PHC deposited amounts into escrow accounts to
cover contingencies of the hospital and pay hospital liabilities specified in the agreement,
including outstanding bonds.

The net lease proceeds, after these deposits and liabilities, are summarized as follows:

Total City Portion
Total lease amount $ 150,000,000 $ 75,000,000
Less:

Hospital liabilities assumed by PHC 9,247 375 4,623,688
Amounts deposited into escrow to cover

medical malpractice and other contingencies 14,445,892 7,222,946

Payment of outstandmg hospital bonds 50,038,987 25,019,493

Payment of hospital pension liabilities 24,100,000 12,050,000

Closing costs 1,000 500

Cash paid by PHC to the City and County $ 52,166,746 $ 26,083,373

As part of the PHC lease, the City and County received amounts needed to cover specific
future costs. The maximum amounts of these costs are as follows:

Total City Portion
Employee severance agreements $ 987,266 % 493,633
Construction costs 1,278,414 639,207
Future payments to MMCT for expanded care services 19,200,000 9,600,000
Hospital property taxes 5,000,000 2,500,000

§ 26,465,680 § 13,232,840

The proceeds of the PHC lease are reported in a special revenue fund (Telshor Facility
Fund) because the City Council adopted a resolution restricting the use of the lease
proceeds to fund health-related programs and health-related capital projects.
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Telshor Facility Lease (continued)

The asset purchase agreement entitles PHC to compensation solely from the escrow
account if PHC incurs any losses, including the discharge of malpractice liabilities, in
connection with events that occurred on or prior to the closing.

MMCI began distributing its cash and investments equally between the City and the
County in July 2004. MMCI retained cash to pay certain liabilities. Any cash remaining
at the end of the liquidation process will be distributed equally between the City and the
County. In April 2005, PHC merged with LifePoint Hospitals. The lease continues with
LifePoint Hospitals.

The City and County did not receive distributions from the escrow accounts in FY15.
Las Cruces Convention Center

In 2008, the City began construction of the Las Cruces Convention Center. Construction
and furnishing the convention center was completed in December 2010, with the grand
opening in January 2011. The City retains ownership of all the furnishings, equipment,
and the convention center facility.

During FY15 the City entered into an amended contract through June 30, 2015 with four
remaining optional one year extensions with Global Spectrum, henceforth referred to as
Spectra, to manage the facility and grounds on behalf of the City. Spectra is responsible
for operations and maintenance of all physical and mechanical facilities necessary for the
operation, maintenance, and management of the convention center. All facility staff and
other personnel are hired by Spectra and are employees or independent contractors of
Spectra. Compensation to Spectra during FY15 for management services was a fixed
management fee.

The City applied to the state for the governmental liquor license pursuant to 60-6A-101,
NMSA 1978. In accordance with the management agreement, the liquor license will be
leased to Spectra and will be used exclusively for the operation of the convention center.
The operations manager will ensure that all activities associated with the liquor license
shall strictly conform to New Mexico law and the regulations of the New Mexico
Alcohol and Gaming Division of the New Mexico Regulation and Licensing Department.

Each year the annual operating budget prepared by Spectra will be provided to the City.
The operating budget will include a projection of operating revenues and expenses for the
fiscal year. The annual budget is subject to the review and approval of the City. The City
has agreed to provide a one-time facility operating fee of $50,000 and restore any deficit
in this balance to the operating account on a monthly basis. During FY15, the City
provided funding of $147,547.
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Las Cruces Convention Center (continued)

In order to utilize energy incentives relating to the installation of solar panels, the City
must and does pay the electric bills directly. This funding totaled $69,900 in FY 15.

Spectra must maintain independent records, in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles, of the operations and maintenance of the convention center. The
City has the right to audit the records. Additionally, Spectra must provide monthly
financial statements to the City, and must provide the City with a copy of their audited
annual financial statements.

Major Construction Commitments

The City has the following construction commitments as of June 30, 2015. These projects
are evidenced by contractual arrangements with construction contractors:

Commitments of Business-type Activities

Contraet Spent 1o Commitment
Project Fund Amount Dale Remaining Source of Payment

Joint Utilities
Gas Strects Rehabilitation Projects Gas Capital lmprovements 5 1,240,908 § 179,756 5 1,061,152 Gas Utllity Rates
Water Production Projects ‘Water Capital Improvements 247155 101,743 145,412 Water Utility Rates
Water Streets Utllity Rehabilitation Waler Capital Improvements 1,351,797 147,058 1.204,739 Waler Ullity Rates
Water Line Relocation - Mesa Grande ‘Water NMF A Loan Projects 58,885 . 58,885 2010 Jomt Utility Bond
Wastewater Septic Systems ‘Wastewater Capital Improvements 131,432 : 131,432 2010 Jomt Utility Bond
Wastewater Street Utility Rehabilitation Wi Capital Improvements 568,018 1,619 566,399 Wastewaler Ulility Rates
Waslewater Treatment Plant Rehabilitati W Capital Inprovements 385,453 55,817 329,636 Wastewater Ulility Rates
Wastewaler Septic Systems-SAP-13-1449 321,000 - 321,000
NMED Granl Wastewater Capital Inpiovements Wastewater Utility Rates
Wastewaler Septic Systenms Phase [[-SAP-14- 241,356 147,689 93,667
L-1624 NMED Grant Wastewaler Capital Improvements Wastewater Utility Rates

Total 3 4,546,004 3 633,682 § 3,912,322

Contingent Liabilities

The City receives financial assistance from federal and state grants and entitlements.
Amounts received or receivable from grantor agencies are subject to audit and adjustment
by grantor agencies. Any disallowed claims may result in a liability of the applicable
funds. The City believes that liabilities resulting from disallowed amounts will not have a
material effect on the City’s financial statements.

The City is a defendant in various lawsuits. Management estimates that balances
available in the self-insurance fund are sufficient to settle such lawsuits. Management is
not aware of any other pending or threatened litigation that would adversely affect the
City’s financial position.
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Downtown Tax Increment Development District (TIDD)

In December of 2007, Las Cruces formed the state’s first Tax Increment Development
District (TIDD) for downtown revitalization. The Downtown TIDD is defined by certain
geographic boundaries and receives an incremental portion of the gross receipts tax and
property tax collected in this geographic area. The state of New Mexico, Dofia Ana
County, and the City contribute 75 percent of the incremental gross receipts tax is
collected in the district. Additionally, both the City and County contribute 75 percent of
the incremental property tax assessed in the district.

The tax revenues that go to the TIDD are used for downtown public improvements and
revitalization of the downtown area. Projects to be supported by TIDD funds include a
downtown plaza, pedestrian safety improvements, roadways, street lighting, and
landscaping.

Affiliated Organizations and Joint Powers Agreements

The City is a participant in the following five affiliated organizations, four of which are
joint ventures. Other than the City bonds secured by South Central Solid Waste
Authority, the City is unaware of any circumstances that would cause a significant benefit
or burden to the participating governments.

Mesilla Valley Regional Dispatch Authority

The City is a participant in a combined City—County communications/dispatch center for
police, fire, and emergency medical services for the City/County area. The organization
is governed by a board of thirteen individuals. The City and County each appoint four
members; the Town of Mesilla, the City of Sunland Park, the City of Anthony and the
Village of Hatch each appoint one member; and the final member is appointed at large by
the other members.

The City contributes 53 percent of the net annual operating cost while the County
contributes 47 percent. The joint powers agreement provides that if the agreement is
terminated, property and any funds accrued by the organization shall be distributed to the
City and County in proportion to the contributions made by the two entities.

The City is the fiscal agent for the organization and accounts for its resources in an
agency fund. Separate audited financial statements were prepared for the year ended
June 30, 2015. Requests for copies of financial statements can be made to the City of Las
Cruces’ Chief Administrative Officer.
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Affiliated Organizations and Joint Powers Agreements (continued)

Metro Narcotics Agency

The City is a participant in a joint City—County—State—University controlled substances
investigation project for the City/County area. The organization is governed by a board of
nine individuals. The City and County each appoint three members; the remaining three
members are the State Police Chief, the University Police Chief, and the District
Attorney.

All persons (agents and support staff) assigned to Metro are paid by their respective
agencies. The City and the County make contributions to cover the net operating
expenses of the organization in proportion to the number of agents assigned to the
organization by the two entities. The joint powers agreement provides that if the
agreement is terminated by all parties, assets and monies acquired without federal
involvement will be distributed in proportion equal to their investment. Assets received
from the federal government pursuant to the federal asset-sharing procedures will be
distributed to the parties in proportion to their contribution to operational expenses.

The City is the fiscal agent for the organization and accounts for it in an agency fund.
Separate audited financial statements were prepared for the year ended June 30, 2015.
Request for copies of financial statements can be made to the City of Las Cruces’ Chief
Administrative Officer.

Metropolitan Planning Organization

The City is a participant in a joint City/County/Town of Mesilla Metropolitan Planning
Organization jurisdictional area. The organization is governed by a board of nine; three
each appointed by the City of Las Cruces, Dofia Ana County and Town of Mesilla,
respectively. The committee was constituted for the purpose of establishing, overseeing
and directing transportation related policy within the Las Cruces urban area and to
accomplish overall transportation planning for the City, County and Town.

The parties agree that some of the expense of the transportation planning process will be
provided for by grant funds available under Section 112 of the Federal Highway Act of
1978 and Section 8 of the Urban Mass Transportation Act of 1964. Expenses not so
provided shall be assumed by participating agencies according to the listing of funding
sources contained in the annual Unified Work Program approved by the governing board.

The joint venture agreement may be terminated upon the mutual consent of both parties

and shall not be terminated so long as any revenue bonds issued under the agreement by
the City are outstanding.
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Affiliated Organizations and Joint Powers Agreements (continued)

South Central Solid Waste Authority

The City is a participant in South Central Solid Waste Authority (SCSWA), a City-
County joint venture that establishes a mechanism for designing, constructing, financing,
operating and maintaining regional solid waste landfills and related facilities. SCSWA is
reported as a component unit of the City because its revenues are the primary source of
debt service for City bonds issued to construct a regional landfill and transfer station.

The repayment of the bonds is secured by a pledge of the Authority’s net revenues from
operation of the facility. If the net revenues are not enough to satisfy the debt service
requirements, the proceeds of the 1/16 percent Municipal Environmental Services Gross
Receipts Tax of the City and the 1/8 percent County Environmental Services Gross
Receipts Tax of the County are pledged.

SCSWA is governed by a board comprised of six working members and two ex-officio
members. Three of the members are appointed from the City Council by the Mayor and
three members are appointed from the County Commission by the Chairman. The two ex-
officio members are the City Manager and the County Manager or their designees.

The City serves as the fiscal agent for the Authority for the term of the agreement. The
fiscal agent is compensated for services rendered to the Authority in the amount of
$70,000 per year base rate. The base rate increases each year by the Consumer Price
Index.

The joint venture agreement may be terminated upon the mutual consent of both parties
and shall not be terminated so long as any revenue bonds issued under the agreement by
the City are outstanding.

In 2015, the City of Las Cruces and Dona Ana County paid approximately $2.4 million
and $520,490, respectively, to SCSWA for solid waste services provided.

Animal Service Center of the Mesilla Valley

Animal Service Center of the Mesilla Valley was formed through a joint powers
agreement (JPA) between the City of Las Cruces and Dofia Ana County. The JPA
provides for a governing board for the Authority. The ASCMV is governed by a Board
that consists of six members and two ex-officio members. Three members are appointed
from the City Council by the Mayor with the advice and consent of the City Council.
Three members are appointed from the County Commission by the Chair with the advice
and consent of the County Commission. The two ex-officio members are the City
Manager and the County Manager, or their designees.
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Affiliated Organizations and Joint Powers Agreements (continued)

It is the mission of the center to provide safe shelter for all lost, mistreated, and
abandoned animals of the Mesilla Valley and surrounding communities. The operations
of the Authority began in February 2009. ASCMYV receives funding from members of the
joint powers agreement. During FY 15, ASCMV received $901,787 from the City of Las
Cruces and $901,787 from Dofia Ana County.

The City is the fiscal agent for the organization and accounts for it in an agency fund.
Separate audited financial statements were prepared for the year ended June 30, 2015.
Request for copies of financial statements can be made to the City of Las Cruces’ Chief
Administrative Officer.

Subsequent Events

On September 24, 2015, the City issued $23,075,000 of Hold Harmless Gross Receipts
Tax Improvement Revenue Bonds Series 2015A with a net effective interest rate of
3.1979 percent and a final maturity of June 1, 2035. These bonds are designated for
facilities and street improvement projects.

Additionally, on September 24, 2015, the City issued $4,020,000 of Hold Harmless Gross
Receipts Tax Improvement Revenue Bonds Series 2015B with a net effective interest rate
of 3.8486 percent and a final maturity of June 1, 2035. These bonds are designated for
economic development projects.

Restatement of Prior Period Net Position and Fund Balance
During the year ended June 30, 2015, the City implemented GASB Statement Nos. 68

and 71. As a result of these accounting standard changes, beginning net position/fund
balance were restated in the City’s financial statements as follows:

Component
Governmenl-Wide Unit
Governmental Business-Type
Activities Activities . SCSWA

Beginning net position/fund
balance, as originally reported § 422,341,041 § 221,266272  § 10,992,240

GASB 68 & 71- Pensions (83,294,777) (10,159,600) (1,848,453)
Beginning net position/fund
balance, as restated S 339.006,264 S 211,106,672 § 9143 785

Proprietary Funds

Other Enterprise Internal
Gas Water Waste Water SolidWaste ~ Tunds  Service Funds
Beginning net position/fund
balance, as originally reported $ 42,746,001 § 79470910 § 83,226407 § 8971826 § 6,851,128 § 13,470,023
GASB 68 & 71- Pensions (2,716,136) (1.896,092) _(2,053,475) (1,656,867) (1,837,030) (936,791)
Beginning net position/fund
balance, as restated § 40029865 § 77574818 § 81,172,932 § 7314959 § 5014098 § 12,533,232
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Subsequent Pronouncements

In March 2015, GASB Statement No. 72, Fair Value Measurement and Application,
would require state and local governments to measure investments at fair value. The
standard would enhance comparability of governmental financial statements by enforcing
fair value measurement for certain assets and liabilities, by using consistent definition
and accepted valuation methods. This standard magnifies fair value disclosures to provide
comprehensive information and impact of fair value measurements on the City’s financial
position. The requirements are effective for financial statements for periods beginning
after June 15, 2015.
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City of Las Cruces
Schedule of the City’s Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability
Public Employees Retirement Association (PERA)
Last 10 Fiscal Years*

2015
City of Las Cruces proportion of the net pension liability (assel)
Municipal 4.64%
Police 510%
Fire 5.72%
City of Las Cruces proportionale share of the net pension liability (asset)
Municipal $ 36,171,147
Police 16,640,441
Fire 23,884,004
City of Las Cruces covered-employee payroll
Municipal $ 37,425,872
Police 11,050,695
Fire 6,694,291
City of Las Cruces proportionate share of the net pension liability (asset) as a percentage of its covered-employee payroll
Municipal 96.65%
Police 150.58%
Fire 356.78%
Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage of the total pension liability 81.29%

The amounts presented were determined as of June 30. This schedule is presented to illustrate the requirement to show information for 10
years. However, until a full 10-year trend is compiled, the City of Las Cruces will present information for those years for which information
is available.
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Schedule of the City’s Contributions
Public Employees Retirement Association (PERA)
Last 10 Fiscal Years*

2015
Municipal
Contractually required contribution 5 6,016,189
Contributions in refation to the contractually required contribution 6,016,189
Contribution deficiency (excess)
City of Las Cruces covered-employee payroll $ 37,425,872
Contributions as a percentage of covered-employee payroll 16.07%
Police
Contractually required contribution $ 1,740,991
Contributions in relation to the contractually required contribution 1,740,991
Contribution deficiency (excess) -
City of Las Cruces covered-employee payroll $ 11,050,695
Contributions as a percentage of covered-employee payroll 15.75%
Fire
Contractually required contribution $ 1,323,824
Contributions in relation to the contractually required contribution 1,323,824
Contribution deficiency (excess) =
City of Las Cruces covered-employee payroll $ 6,694,291
Contributions as a percentage of covered-employee payroll 19.77%

The amounts presented were determined as of June 30 This schedule is presented to illustrate the requirement to show information for 10 years.
However, until a full 10-year trend is compiled, the City of Las Cruces will present information for those years for which information is available
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Changes of benefit terms The Public Employees Retirement Association (PERA) Fund,
COLA and retirement eligibility benefits changes in recent years are described in Note 1 of
the PERA FY 14 audit available at
hitp://www.pera.state.nm.us/pdf/AuditFinancialStatements/366_Public_Employees Retire
ment Associati on 2014.pdf.

Changes of assumptions The PERA of New Mexico Annual Actuarial Valuation as of June
30, 2014 report is available at

http://www .pera.state.nm.us/pdf/Investments/RetirementlFund ValuationReports/6-30-
2014%20PERA%20Valuation%20Report FINAL.pdf.

The summary of Key Findings for the PERA Fund (on page 2 of the report) states “based
on a recent experience study for the five-year period ending June 30, 2013, the economic
and demographic assumptions were updated for this valuation.” The changes in
assumptions resulted in a decrease of $30.8 million to Fund liabilities and an increase of
0.13 percent to the funded ratio. For details about changes in the actuarial assumptions, see
Appendix B on page 60 of the report.
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Combining Balance Sheet—Nonmajor Governmental Funds

Asscts

Pooled cash and investments
Restricled cash and investments
Receivables, net

Due from other governmental units

Tolal assels
Liabilities, Deferred Inflows and Fund Balances

Liabilities
Accounts and contracts payable
Due to other funds
Accrued liabilities
Unearned revenue
Total liabilitics

Deferred mflows of resources:
Deferred special assessment receipts
Total liabilities and deferred inflows of resources
Fund balances
Restricted for:
Public safety piograns
Housing and cominunity development
Debt service
Public works
Parks and recreation
Transportalion
Community and cultural services
Committed for:
Debl service
Public safety programs
Health-related programs
Public works
Parks and recreation
Assigned to:
Software fund
Office of Emergency Management Reserve
Vehicle acquisition fund
Public safety programs
Public woiks
Unassigned

Total fund balances

Total liabilities, deferred inflows and fund balances
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City of Las Cruces

June 30, 2015

Special Revenue Fund

Count Emergency
Community Awarded MPO Urban Police Medical
Development Funds Transportation Fire Piolection Services Traffic Safety
3 - 8 - 3 - 3 - $ - % - 3 -
64,147 313,339 = 437,007 290,101 125 50,704
3,888,378 = : z _ R .
70,684 = 119,064 140,241 203,431 = =
3 4,023,709 § 313339 § 119064 § 577,248 % 493,532 & 1,125 § 50,704
$ 84,078 § - 3 32646 8§ 39233 § 69,288 3 - 3 -
37,280 = 71,600 132,643 155,808 - -
11,164 - 833818 7338 302 - -
3,866,808 S - 181,063 19,47 273 s
3,999,330 E 119,064 360,277 245345 273 N
3,999,330 = 119,064 360,277 245345 273 -
- 313,339 - 216971 248,187 852 50,704
24379 S . > - R )
24379 313,339 - 216971 248,187 852 50,704
3 4,023,709 5 313339 3 119,064 § 577,248 3§ 493,532 § 1,125 § 50,704
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Assels

Pooled cash and investments
Resticted cash and investments
Receivables, nel

Due from other governmental units

Tolal assels
Liabilities, Deferred Inflows and Fund Balances

Liabilities
Accounts and contracts payable
Due to other funds
Accrued liabilities
Unearned revenue
Total liabilities

Deferred inflows of 1esources:
Deferred special assessmenl receipts
Total babilities and deferred inflows of resources
Fund balances
Restricted for:
Public safety programs
Housing and community development
Delt service
Public works
Parks and recrealion
Transportation
Comnunity and cultural services
Committed for
Debt service
Public safety programs
Health-related programs
Public works
Parks and recreation
Assigned Lo
Software fund
Office of Emergency Management Reserve
Vehicle acquisition fund
Public safety programs
Public works
Unassigned

Total fund balances

Total liabilities, deferred inflows and fund balances
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(Continued)
June 30, 2015

Special Revenue Fund

Safe
Traffic
Operations Court Juvenile Lodgers' Tax DWI Judicial
Program Autginaton Prisoner Care Recreation and LCCVB Prevemion Education
$ 227,25 % -5 -3 - ¥ - § . & -
= 470679 1,836,591 46,846 2,660,488 6,060 3,578
= a - 254,149 - -
$ 227,256 § 470,679 § 1,836,591 § 46846 § 2914637 § 6,060 § 3,578
3 9,551 $ 5584 § 273,720 § - % 47461 § 108 % 2,709
: : . e 27,64 : :
9,551 5,584 273,720 S 75,104 108 2,709
9,55 5,584 273,720 - 75,104 108 2,709
217,705 465,095 - 46,846 ES 5,952 865
s - 2,839,533 - -
- L 1,562,871 - =
217,705 465,095 1,562,871 46,846 2,839,533 5952 869
£ 227250 § 470679 § 1,836,591 § 46846 $ 2914637 3 6060 S 3,578
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(Continued)
June 30, 2015
Special Revenue Fund
Gasoline Tax
Environmental  Health Care Street Keep Older
Gross Services From  Maintenance Las Cruces  Americans Act
Receipts Tax ~ MMCI Lease Fund Beautiful Programs
Assets
Pooled cash and investments $ - $49969 § - 3 - $ -
Restricted cash and investments 3,984 - 81,090 - -
Receivables, net - - - - -
Due from other governmental units 289,675 - 128,729 32 24,544
Total assets $ 293659 $ 49969 $ 2093819 §$ 32 % 24,544
Liabilities, Deferred Inflows and Fund Balances
Liabilities
Accounts and contracts payable $ -3 16483 § 25026 % - 8 8,065
Due to other funds - - - 457) 7,163
Accrued liabilities - - 15,843 - 9316
Unearned revenue - - - 285 -
Total liabilities - 16,483 40,869 (172) 24,544

Deferred inflows of resources:
Deferred special assessment receipts - - - 5 =
Total liabilities and deferred inflows of resources - 16,483 40,869 (172) 24,544
Fund balances
Restricted for:
Public safety programs - - - 204 -
Housing and community development - - = =
Debt service 293,659 - - - .
Public works - - 168,950 - -
Parks and recreation - - - - =
Transportation - B < = 5
Community and cultural services - - - = =
Committed for:
Debt service - - ™ = =
Public safety programs .
Health-related programs - 33,486 - - -
Public works 4 & = 2 "
Parks and recreation - - - -
Assigned to:
Software fund - - = - .
Office of Emergency Management Reserve - - - . -
Vehicle acquisition fund - - - - =

Public safety programs = & > = =
Public works - = -~ =

Unassigned = = - . R

Total fund balances 293,659 33,486 168,950 204 -

Total habilities, deferred inflows and fund balances $ 293659 §$ 49969 $ 209,819

‘ 2]

32§ 24,544
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City of Las Cruces

Combining Balance Sheet—Nonmajor Governmental Funds

Assels

Pooled cash and investments
Restricted cash and investments
Receivables. net

Due from other governmental units

Total assels
Liabilities, Deferred Inflows and Fund Balances

Liabilities
Accowns and contracts payable
Due 10 other funds
Accrued liabilities
Uneamed revenue
Total liabilities

Deferred inflows of resources:
Deferred special assessinent receipts
Toral liabilities and deferied inflows of resources
Fund balances
Restricted for:
Public safety programs
Housing and community development
Debt service
Public works
Parks and recreation
Transportation
Community and cultural services
Comumiitted for:
Debt service
Public safety programs
Health-relaled programs
Public works
Parks and recieation
Assigned lo:
Software fund
Office of Emergency Management Reserve
Vehicle acquisition fund
Public safety programs
Public works
Unassigned
Total fund balances

Tolal liabilities, deferred inflows and fund balances

(Continued)
June 30, 2015

Special Revenue Fund

Special
State Library Street Assessments/ State
Resources Maintenance  Flood Control Northrise Downlown Operaling
Housing Tiust ~ Alaim F&F Grant Operalions Opeations Momingstar Revitali Granls
- 3 - % - 3 - 3 - 5 2330552 % - 3 -
400,000 650 1,397,029 1,424,757 - 54,842 5,603
- - . - - 1,051,036 600 -
- - 21,288 1,155,780 63,781 - - 15,406
400,000 § 650 § 21,288 § 2552809 § 1488538 § 3,381,588 §$ 55442 § 21,009
- 5 650 § 4563 % 235747 % 61,003 § - 5 5833 §$ -
. - 16,725 - - - 15,406
- . 521 20,546 - .
- = i . - - - 5,603
c 650 21,288 241018 $1,549 5 5833 21,009
- 5 % 1,051,036 - -
= 650 2),288 241018 81,549 1,051,036 5,833 21,009
400,000 < s . . « . -
. - . 2,311,791 1,406,989 . 49,609 "
. N . . < 2,330,552 = -
400,000 o - 2311.791 1,406,989 2,330,552 49,609 =
400,000 $ 650 § 21288 % 2,552,809 § 1488538 § 3381588 § 55442 § 21,009
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City of Las Cruces
Combining Balance Sheet—Nonmajor Governmental Funds
(Continued)
June 30, 2015

Special Revenue Fund

Valley View TIDD Las Cruces Federal
Heske Giigags Walnut Dedicated Convention Public Safety Stimulus
Garden Plume Revenues Center Impact Fee Operating HUD Facilities
Assels
Pooled cash and investments 3 - $ - % - § 28887 % - 3 - 8 -
Restricted cash and investments 168,824 2,249,352 5373,672 - 1,332,870 - 430
Receivables, net - 66,540 - 107,650 - - -
Due from other governmental units = - 310834 = - 46,851 -
Total assets $ 168824 $ 2315892 § 5,684,506 § 136537 § 1332870 $ 46,851 $ 430
Liabilities, Deferred Inflows and Fund Balances
Liabilities
Accounts and contracts payable & - 8 47443 - 3 - 3 13819 & - 5 -
Due to other funds - - - - - 46,851 -
Accrued liabilities - = = - = IS -
Unearned revenue - = = - = - -
Total liabilities - 47443 - - 13,819 46,851 -
Deferred inflows of resources:
Deferred special assessment receipts = - - - - - -
Total liabilities and deferred inflows of resources - 47,443 - - 13819 46,851 -
Fund balances
Restricted for:
Public safety progiams - - - - 1,319,051 - -
Housing and community development - - - - - - -
Debt service - - - 136,537 - - -
Public works . 2,268,449 5,684,506 = 5 s 430
Parks and recreation 168,824 - - = = = -
Transportalion - - - = - = =
Community and cultural services - - - - . - -
Committed for:
Debt service - - - - - - -
Public safety programs - - - - - -
Health-related programs - - - - - -
Public works - - = - - =
Parks and recreation - - - - -
Assigned to:
Software fund - - = - = S -
Office of Emergency Management Reserve - - - - -
Vehicle acquisition fund - - - - - - -
Public safety programs e - - - - -
Public works - - - s - - -
Unassigned = - - - - - -
Total fund balances 168,824 2,268,449 5,684,506 136,537 1,319,051 - 430
Total liabiliies, deferred inflows and fund balances S 16884 $ 2315892 5 5684506 5 136537 § 1332870 § 46851 S 430
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Assels

Pooled cash and imvesuments
Restricted cash and investments
Receivables, net

Due from other governmental units

Tolal assets
Liabilities, Deferred Inflows and Fund Balances

Liabilities
Accounls and conlracts pay able
Due (o other funds
Accrued liabilives
Uneamed revenue
Total liabilities

Deferred inflows of resources:
Deferred special assessment receipts
Total liabilities and deferred inflows of resources
Fund balances
Restricted for.
Public safety programs
Housing and communily development
Debt service
Public works
Parks and recreation
Transportation
Comununity and cullural services
Cominitted for:
Debt senvice
Public safety programs
Heallh-related programs
Public works
Parks and recreation
Assigned Lo
Software fund
Office of Emergency Managemeni Reserve
Vehicle acquisition fund
Public safety programs
Public works
Unassigned
Total fund balances

Tolal liabilities, deferred inflows and fund balances
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City of Las Cruces

Combining Balance Sheet—Nonmajor Governmental Funds
(Continued)

June 30, 2015

Capital Projects Fund

Sales Tax- Capilal Legislative
Street Airport Sueet Improvement Capital
Public Parks Improvement [inpiovement Mantenance Flood Control Resene Improvements
$ 1701306 § 1029499 § 483988 5 1387871 § 2679471 § 2,177.858 §
- - . 7,701,176 v = H
- - . 72228 35.489 - T
103,299 236513 84,246 - - - 15.562
$ 18M605 § 1266012 § 368234 $  9661.275 § 2.714.966 § 2177858 § 15362
3 39179 $ 38936 $ 62924 $ 224,945 § 67332 § 362302 § 15,150
103,299 221,325 - 132,981 35,707 - 412
- - - 10.000 - - -
- 20,000 401,076 91,489 - - -
142478 280.261 464.000 459.415 103.039 362302 15562
142478 280261 464,000 459415 103.039 362,302 15.562
- 985.751 - 101.489 (22518) = -
1,662,127 - - - -
= 104.234 - - -
- - - 9,100,371 2634445 - -
- - - * - 1.815.356 -
1,662,127 985,751 104,234 9.201.860 2,611.927 -
$ 18MH605 § 1266012 § 568234 § 9661275 § 2714966 $ 2177858 § 13,562
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City of Las Cruces

Combining Balance Sheet—Nonmajor Governmental Funds
(Continued)
June 30,2015

Capital Projects Fund

2003
EDA West Sales Tax 2003 2005 GRT
State Capital Mesa Industiial Facilities State Euipment Sales Tax Public
Improvements Park Fund and Parks Acquisition Street Lights  Tmprovements
Assets
Pooled cash and investments $ - %5 1504367 § 427561 § -3 (256) $ 170,852
Restricted cash and investments - - 10,837487 425234 - -
Receivables, net - 16,880 - - - -
Due from other govermnmental units 424,898 = < * ” =
Total assels $ 424898 $ 1521247 § 11265048 $ 425234 § (256) $ 170,852

Liabilities, Deferred Inflows and Fund Balances

Liabilities
Accounts and contracts payable $ 192907 § - $ 187041 § - §
Due to other funds 231,991 - 276 -
Accrued liabilities - c 3 -
Unearmed revenue - - . -

Total liabilities 424,898 - 187,317 -

Deferred inflows of resources:

Deferred special assessment receipts - - - =

Total liabdities and deferred inflows of resources 424,898 - 187317 -

Fund balances
Restricted for:
Public safety programs - - - <
Housing and conimunity development - = - ”
Debt service - £ - z
Public works - = 11,077,731 425234
Parks and recreation . - = =
Transportation - ~ - -
Community and cullwal services - - = -
Cominitted for:
Delt service = = = B
Public safety programs - - & )
Health-related programs - - = .
Public works - = = 3
Parks and recreation - 1,521247 - -
Assigned to:
Software fund - - = -
Office of Emergency Management Reserve - - = =
Vehicle acquisition fund - - - .
Publlic safety programs - - = -
Public works - . = E
Unassigned - - " -

(256) 170,852

Total fund balances - 1521247 11,077,731 425234

(256) 170,852

Total fiabilities, deferred inflows and fund balances § 424898 § 1521247 $ 11265048 § 425234 3

(256) $ 170,852

112



267

City of Las Cruces
Combining Balance Sheet—Nonmajor Governmental Funds
(Continued)
June 30, 2015

Capital Projects Fund

Convention  Stimulus Capital TIDD Street

Center Projects Projects Tolal
Assets
Pooled cash and investments $ 538054 § 38450 $ 10,741 § 15,286,432
Restricted cash and investments - - 4,800,000 42437665
Receivables, net - - - 5,493,450
Due from other governmental units - - - 3,454 858
Total assets 3 538054 § 38450 § 4810741 § 66,672,405
Liabilities, Deferred Inflows and Fund Balances
Liabilities
Accounts and contracts payable $ - $ 35972 $ - $ 2,209,698
Due Lo other funds - - - 1215010
Accrued liabllities - - - 116,241
Unearned revenue - - - 4,586,544
Total liabilities - 35972 - 8,127.493
Deferred inflows of resources:
Deferred special assessment receipts - - - 1,051,036
Total liabilities and deferred inflows of resources - 35972 - 9,178,529
Fund balances
Restricted for:
Public safety programs - - - 2,885,775
Housing and community development - - - 424,379
Debt service - - - 430,196
Public works 538,054 - 4,800,000 29,967,061
Parks and recreation - 2478 - 1,833,429
Transportalion - - - 104,234
Community and cultural services - - - 2,839,533
Committed for:
Debt service - - - 2,330,552
Public safety programs - - - 1,562,871
Health-related programs - - - 33,486
Public works - - 10,741 11,745,557
Parks and recreation - - - 3,336,803
Assigned to:
Software fund - - - -
Office of Emergency Management Reserve - - -
Vehicle acquisition tund S - - =
Public safety programs - = - -
Public works - - - -
Unassigned - v - .
Total fund balances 538,054 2478 4810741 57,493,876
Total habilities, deferred inflows and fund balances $ 538054 § 38450 $ 4810741 § 66672405
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City of Las Cruces
Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and

Changes in Fund Balance—Nonmajor Governmental Funds
For the Year Ended June 30, 2015

Special Revenue Fund

Conununity Court
Development Awarded MPO Urban Police
Block Grant Funds Transportation Fire Protection

Revenucs

Taxes
Gross receipts $ - 3 = $ - $ - $
Property - - - -
Lodgers - = - =
State-shared . = e =

Charges for services 6,753 - - -

Fees and fines

Investment income (loss) 17,708 14,183 - 39,337 16,244

Licenses and permits - - = =
Intergovernmental

Federal 1,193,521 - - 614,391 352,110
State - - 278,682 609,873 574073
Local - - 15,843 - 13810

Other 57413 - - - 102,746

Total revenues 1,275,395 14,183 294,525 1,263,601 1,058,983

Expenditures

Current
General government - - = =

Police - 634 = - 1,025,864

Fire - - - 1,052,303
Community development 1,410,460 - 294,525 -
Community and cultural services - = & &
Public works - - - -
Transportation - N - =
Parks and recreation - - = =

Capital outlay 3 - - 171,961 33,000

Debt service - - - -

Principal - . . :
Interest and other charges - z e B

Total expenditures 1,410,460 634 294,525 1,224 264 1,058,864

Revenues over (under) expenditures (135,065) 13,549

A 39,337 119

Other Financing Sources (Uses)

Issuance of debt - - - -
Premium on issuance of debt

Debt issuance cost

Sale of capital assets - - - - 32,908

Transfers in - - - -
Transfers out = ke o -

Total other financing sources (uses) = - - - - 32,908

Net change in fund balances (135,0653) 13,549 - 39,337 33,027

Fund balances, beginning of year 159,444 299,790 - 177,634 215,160

Fund balances, end of year $ 24379 % 313339 § - 3 216971 § 248,187
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City of Las Cruces
Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and
Changes in Fund Balance—Nonmajor Governmental Funds
(Continued)
For the Year Ended June 30, 2015

Special Revenue Fund

Safe
Emergency Traffic
Medical Operations Court Juvenile Lodgers' Tax
Services Traffic Safety Program Automatins  Prisoner Care Recreation and LCCVB

Revenues

Taxes
Gross receipts $ - $ - 3 - % - $ - 8 - 8
Property - - - - ] 2 5
Lodgers - - - - - . 1,941,158
State-shared - - = - - 1,950 =
Chaiges for services - - = : S % =
Fees and fines - 28,690 16,611 116,890 236,005 335 -
Investment income (loss) 569 1,786 10,148 - 81,216 2,206 125,594
Licenses and permits - - - ] 3 x
Inlergovernmental - - - - = = -
Federal - - = - N = 3
State 19,816 - - - - - =,
Local - - - - - - .
Other - - - 33,146 - - 6,848

Total revenues 20,385 30476 26,759 150,036 317221 4491 2,073,600

Expenditures

Current
General govermment - - - = - = -
Police - 13,179 19,994 135,443 1,530,536 - -
Fire 19816 - - - - . -
Community development - - - - - 3 -
Community and cultural services - - - - - - 2,121,430
Public works - - - - - - -
Transportation - - - 3 = - .
Parks and recreation - - - a : - -

Capital outlay - - 16,441 - - - -

Debt service - - - = - - .

Principal - - - - - - =
Interest and other charges - - - - - - =

Total expenditures 19,816 13,179 36435 135443 1,530,536 - 2,121,430

Revenues over (under) expenditures 569 17297 (9676) 1459 (1213315) 4491 (47.830)

Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Issuance of debt = - - - - - .
Premium on issuance of debt - - - - - = =
Debl issuance cost - - - . . - .
Sale of capital assets - - - . a = .
Transfers in - - - - 1,250,000 - -
Transfers out = - ] - - - (48,258)
Total other financing sources (uses) - - - - 1,250,000 - (48,258)

Net change in fund balances 569 17,297 (9.676) 14,593 36,685 4,491 (96,088)

Fund balances, beginning of year 283 33,407 227381 450,502 1,526,186 42355 2,935,621

Fund balances, end of year $ 852 % 50,704 § 217,705 % 465095 § 1562871 § 46,846 5 2,839,533




Revenues

Taxes

Gross receipts

Property

Lodgers

State-shared
Charges for services
Fees and fines
Investment income (loss)
Licenses and permits
Intergovernmental

Federal

State

Locatl

Other

Total revenues
Expenditures

Current
General government
Police
Fire

Community development

Public works

Transportation

Parks and recreation
Capital outlay

Debt service

Principal

Total expenditures

Revenues over (under) expenditures
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City of Las Cruces
Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and
Changes in Fund Balance—Nonmajor Governmental Funds
(Continued)
For the Year Ended June 30, 2015

Special Revenue Fund

Other Financing Sources (Uses)

Issuance of debt

Debt issuance cost
Sale of capital assets
Transfers in
Transfers out

Net change in fund balances

Fund balances, beginning of year

Gasoline Tax
Environmental ~ Health Care Street
DWI Judicial Gross Services From  Maintenance
Prevention Education Receipts Tax ~ MMCI Lease Fund

$ - § - $ 1709914 § - % -

- - - 1,393,296

5,078 34,189 - - -

(66) - - 3377 4975

5,012 34,189 1,709.914 3377 1,398,271

- - 55,572 309,750

3,153 36,852 - - -

Community and cultural services - - - - “
- - - 568,499

Interest and other charges - - - - -
3,153 36,852 55572 309,750 568,499

1,859 (2,663) 1,654,342 (306,373) 829,772

Premium on issuance of debt - - - - -
E 2 E 300,000 -
- - (1,613,000) - (945372)
Total other financing sources (uses) - - (1,613,000) 300,000 (945372)
1,859 (2,663) 41,342 (6,373) (115,600)

4,093 3,532 252317 39,859 284,550

5952 § 869 $ 293659 § 33486 §$ 168,950

Fund balances, end of year $
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City of Las Cruces

Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and

Changes in Fund Balance—Nonmajor Governmental Funds

Revenues

Taxes
Gross receipls
Property
Lodgers
Stale-shared
Charges for services
Fees and fines
Investment income (loss)
Licenses and permits
Intergovemimental
Federal
State
Local
Other

Total revenues
Expenditures

Current
General government
Police
Fire
Conununity development
Community and cultwral services
Public works
Transportation
Parks and recreation
Capital outlay
Debt service
Principal
Interest and other charges

Total expenditures
Rerenues over (under) expenditures

Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Issuance of debt
Premiuwm on issuance of debt
Debil issuance cost
Sale of capital assels
Transflers in
Transfers oul
Toual other financing sources (uses)

Net change in fund balances

Fund balances. beginning of year

Fund balances. end of' year

(Continued)

For the Year Ended June 30, 2015

Special Revenue Fund

Special
Keep Older Cashin State Librany Streel Assessments/
Las Cruces  Americans Acl Lieu of Aflordable Alarm Fines Resources Maintenance  Flood Control Northrise
Beautiful Programs dili Housing Trust and Fees Grant Qperations Operati Mominastar
-~ § - s - & $ 6840204 - %
& - - - 4.186.899
- = B 117.300 - - -
- - - - 17894 (34.430) 1024816
. 209.882 - . - - ) .
28.360 350191 171272 = - 114345 - - -
5,000 191,047 g = % 3 o 19102
33360 751.120 171272 - 117.500 114.345 6.858.158 4.152.469 121.918
. s = - 117.500 = = 5 5
33360 x = - - - - - =
- 751,120 171272 - - 114,345 - - -
- - - - - 1264.156 201.101 -
- - - - 361114 784,128 -
33360 751,120 171,272 - 117500 114.345 1.825,270 985229 =
* = - - - 5.032,488 3,167240 121.918
e 110.000 - - - = =
. . B : R - (4.084.120) _ (2,305,143) E
: 2 5 100.000 - - (4.084,120) (2,305,145) s
- - 100000 - - 948.768 862.095 121.918
24 - = 3t - - 1.363,023 544,804 2.208.634
204 3 = ) 400,000 - '3 - 5 2311791 1406989 3 2330332
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Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and
Changes in Fund Balance—Nonmajor Governmental Funds
(Continued)
For the Year Ended June 30, 2015

Revenues

Taxes
Gross receipts
Property
Lodgers
State-shared
Charges for services
Fees and fmes
Investment income (loss)
Licenses and peimits
Intergovernmental
Federal
State
Local
Other

Total revenues
Expenditures

Current
General government
Police
Fire
Community development
Community and cullural services
Public works
Transportation
Parks and recreation
Capital outlay
Debt service
Principal
Interest and other charges

Total expenditures

Revenues over (under) expenditures

Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Issuance of debl
Premium on issuance of debl
Debt issuance cost
Sale of capital assets
Transfers in
Transfers out
Total other financing sources (uses)

Net change in fund balances

Fund balances, beginning of year

Fund balances, end of year

Special Revenue Fund

State Valley View TIDD Las Cruces Federal
Downtown Operating Heske Griggs Walnut Dedicated Convention Public Safety Stimulus
Revitalization Grants Gaiden Plume Revenues Center Impact Fee Operating
$ - 5 3 - § $ 663337 § - 3 - -
= > 22408 . )
- - - 1,655.295 - - -
- . - 114,952 - 2 =
- - - . - 1,202,006 -
1,593 - 8,026 53,874 157,980 18,596 48,908
- - . - b = 5 360,200
57,508 39,635 - - - : - =
- 12497 - 1012345 - : 264,900 E
59,101 52,132 8,026 1,181,171 2,501,020 1,220,602 313,808 360,200
E E s 411,155 39,604 = 5 _
- = B - - - 15,035 360,200
- 8,669 - . - K c .
57,508 - . - . - .
- 43463 s . - . -
70,192 - = - = - -
- - 12,430 < = - ;
127,700 52,132 12,430 411,155 39,604 B 15,035 360,200
(68,599) - (4.404) 770016 2461416 1,220,602 298,773 -
70,000 S - 388,733 - - - -
- - - - (4,800,000) (1,759,249) : B
70,000 - 388733 (4,800,000) (1,759,249) - -
1,401 2 (4,404) 1,158,749 (2,338.584) (538,647) 298773
48,208 - 173,228 1,109,700 8,023,090 675,184 1.020278 -
3 49,609 § - 3 168824 § 2768449 § 5684500 § 136,537 & 1,319,051 -
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Revenues

Taxes
Gross receipts
Property
Lodgers
State-shared
Charges for services
Fees and fmes
Investment mcome (loss)
Licenses and permits
Intergovernniental
Federal
State
Local
Other

Total revenues
Expenditures

Cunent
General government
Police
Fie
Community development
Community and cultural services
Public works
Transporlalion
Parks and recrealion
Capital outlay
Debt service
Principal
Interest and other charges

Total expenditures
Revenues over (under) expenditures

Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Issuance of debt
Premium on issuance of debl
Debt issuance cost
Sale of capilal assets
Transfers in
Transfers out
Total other financing sowces (uses)

Net change in fund balances

Fund balances, begnning of year

Fund balances, end of year
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City of Las Cruces
Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and
Changes in Fund Balance—Nonmajor Governmental Funds

(Continued)
For the Year Ended June 30, 2015

Capital Project Fund

Sales Tax- Capital
Public Parks Street Airport Street Improvement
HUD Facilitics  Development Impi ovement Improvement _ Maintenance  Flood Control Reserve
$ - 5 - 8 - 5 - $ $ - 5 -
= 548,640 - - = = =
- 67,392 42,680 19,008 160,614 98,179 175,135
- . - 173,931 = = =
- 215583 696,452 50,267 - - -
- - 2437 - 197,107 214 41,264
- 831,615 741,569 243,206 357,72} 98,393 216,399
- 730 2,060 - - - 125,883
- - - 130,007 - - -
- 515,734 696,452 33,497 4,184,373 2,458,148 1,554,768
- 516,464 698,512 163,504 4,184,373 2,458,148 1,680,651
- 315,151 43,057 79,702 (3,826,652) (2,359,755) (1,464,252)
- - - - 8,000,000 1,500,000 -
- - - - 203,173 29,290
- - - - (99,789) (18,711) -
- - - - 2,749 - -
- - = - 1,900,887 900,000 2,000,000
- - (86,489) - (30,500) {12,290) (2,046,621)
- - (86,489) - 9,976,520 2,398,289 (46,621)
- 315,151 (43,432) 79,702 6,149,868 38,534 (1,510,873)
430 1,346,976 1,029,183 24,532 3,051,992 2,573,393 3,326,429
$ 430 § 1,662,127 § 985751 S 104234 § 9201860 § 2,611,927 § 1815556
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City of Las Cruces

Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and
Changes in Fund Balance—Nonmajor Governmental Funds
(Continued)

For the Year Ended June 30, 2015

Capital Pioject Fund
2003
Legislative EDA West Sales Tax NMFA Loans- 2003 2005 GRT
Capital State Capital Mesa Industrial Facilities Equipment Sales Tax Public
Improvements _ Improvements Paik Fund and Paiks Acquisition Street Lights  Improvements

Revenues

Taxes
Gross receipts $ - 5 - 5 - % - 3 - 5 - $ -
Property - - - = - - -
Lodgers - - - = - - -
State-shared - - - = - . &
Charges for services - = = - - = =
Fees and fines - - - - . . -
Investment income (loss) - - 59,234 33,544 234 - 11,776
Licenses and permits - - - - - - -
Intergovemmental
Federal 15,150 - - - a = =
State - 1,103,469 - - . - -
Local - - - = - E =
Other - - 180435 - . . -

Total revenues 15,150 1,103,469 239,669 33,544 234 - 11,776

Expenditures

Current
General government - - - ] - . =
Police B - - s = = ~
Fire - - - - - - -
Community developent - - . s . “ =
Community and culhwal services - - . - . - -
Public works - - - 19,308 - . =
Transportation - - - 3 - - &
Parks and recreation -

Capital outlay 15,150 1,103,469 - 250,463 - 45713 163,889

Debt service - 5 - - .

Principal - - - . . - .
Interest and other charges - = - - - - i

Total expenditures 15,150 1,103,469 - 269,771 E 45,713 163,889

Revenues over (under) expenditures B - 239,669 (216227 234 (45.713) (152,113)
Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Issuance of debt - - - 10,000,000 443325
Premium on issuance of debt - - - 444 431 - - -
Debl issuance cost - - - (105,000) (18,325) - -
Sale of capital assets - - - - - - -
Transfers in - - - - - - -

Transfers out - - - F =
Tolal other financing sources (uses) - - - 10,339,431 425,000 - -

Net change in fund balances - - 239,669 10,123,204 425234 (45,713) (152,113)

Fund balances, beginning of year - - 1,281,578 954,527 - 45457 322,965

Fund balances, end of year $ - % - % 1,521,247 § 11,077,731 § 425234 § (256) $ 170,852
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City of Las Cruces
Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and
Changes in Fund Balance—/Nonmajor Governmental Funds
(Continued)
For the Year Ended June 30,2015

Capital Project Fund

Las Cruces
Convention NMFA Street  Stimulus Capital TIDD Street
Center Improvements Projects Projects Total
Revenues
Taxes

Gross receipts $ - $ - 5 - 3 -3 9215515

Property = - - - 4,209,307

Lodgers - - - - 1,941,158

State-shared - - - 3,050,541

Charges for services = - - = 121,705
Fees and fines - - - - 2,305,944
Investment income (loss) 30,029 19,360 1,697 1,141 1,432,557
Licenses and permits = - - - -
Intergovernmental -

Federal - - - - 2,919,185

State = - - 4,309,526

Local - - - - 29,653

Other - - . - 2,126,501
Total revenues 30,029 19,360 1,697 1,141 31,661,592

Expenditures

Current

General government = & - - 933,581

Police - - - - 3,174,250

Fire - - - - 1,080,788

Community development - - - - 1,762,493

Community and cultural services - - - - 3,201,630

Public works 3,020 - - - 1,686,450

Transportation - - - - 2,043,748

Parks and recreation - - - - 12,430

Capital outlay - 16,258 - 11,259,316
Debt service - -

Principal - - - -

Interest and other charges - - - - -
Total expenditures 3,020 16,258 25,154,686
Revenues over (under) expenditures 27,009 1102 1697 1141 6,506,906

Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Issuance of debt - - - 4,800,000 24,743 325
Premium on issuance of debt - - - - 676,894
Debt issuance cost s (241,825)
Sale of capital assets - - - - 35,657
Transfers in - - - - 6,909,620
Transters out = = - - (17,731,044)
Total other financing sources (uses) - - - 4,800,000 14,392,627
Net change in fund balances 27,009 3,102 1,697 4,801,141 20,899,533
Fund balances, beginning of year 511,045 (3,102) 78] 9,600 36,594 343
Fund balances, end of year ) 538,054 $ - % 2478 § 4810741 § 57,493,876
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City of Las Cruces

Combining Statement of Net Position—Nonmajor Enterprise Funds

June 30, 2015
Clean
Alternative Fuel ~ Community
Transit Station Commission Totals
Assets
Current assets
Pooled cash and investments $ - 3 - $ - $ -
Accounts receivable, net of allowance for
uncollectible accounts 28,112 - - 28,112
Due from other governments 546,689 - - 546,689
Total current assets 574,801 - - 574,801
Capital assets 12,376,969 397,107 - 12,774,076
Less: accumulated depreciation (5,627,678) (319,290) - (5,946,968)
Net capital assets 6,749,291 77,817 - 6,827,108
Total noncurrent assets 6,749,291 77,817 - 6,827,108
Total assets 7,324,092 77,817 - 7,401,909
Deferred outflows of resources
Deferred charges related to pensions 222,391 - - 222,391
Total deferred outflows of resources 222,391 - - 222,391
Liabilities
Current liabilities
Accounts and contracts payable 222,100 - - 222,100
Accrued liabilities 101,412 - B 101,412
Deferred revenue - - B
Current portion of non-current liabilities 25,414 - - 25,414
Total current liabilities 348,926 - - 348,926
Non-current liabilities
Net pension liability 1,405,738 - - 1,405,738
Compensated absences 101,657 - - 101,657
Total non-current liabilities 1,507,395 - - 1,507,395
Total liabilities 1,856,321 - - 1,856,321
Deferred inflows of resources
Deferred inflows related to pensions 562,546 - - 562,546
Total deferred inflows of resources 562,546 - - 562,546
Net Position
Net investment in capital assets 6,749,291 77,817 - 6,827,108
Unrestricted (1,621,675) - - (1,621,675)
Total net position $ 5,127,616 § 77,817 % - § 5205433
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City of Las Cruces

Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in

Operating Revenues

Sales/charges
Other

Total operating revenues

Operating Expenses

Personnel services
Supplies

Utilities

Professional services
Motor pool charges
Motor fuel

Repairs and maintenance

Depreciation and amortization

Insurance
Other

Total operating expenses

Operating income (loss)

Net Position—Nonmajor Enterprise Funds
For the Year Ended June 30, 2015

Non-operating Revenues (Expenses)

Investment income
Grants

Total non-operating revenues (expenses)

Income (loss) before transfers

Transfers in

Increase (decrease) in fund net position

Net position, beginning of year

Restatement

Net position, beginning of year restated

Total net position, end of year

Clean
Alternative Fuel ~ Community
Transit Station Commission Totals
$ 617,210 $ - % - $ 617,210
3,288 - - 3,288
620,498 - - 620,498
2,487,796 - - 2,487,796
85,358 - B 85,358
33,968 - - 33,968
95,578 - E 95,578
474,360 - - 474360
389,334 - - 389,334
125,646 E B 125,646
607,464 4,692 B 612,156
39,942 - - 39,942
48,808 - - 48,808
4,388,254 4,692 - 4,392,946
(3,767,756) (4,692) - (3,772,448)
(7,238) - B (7,238)
2,252,591 - - 2,252,591
2,245 353 - - 2,245,353
(1,522,403) (4,692) - (1,527,095)
1,718,430 - - 1,718,430
196,027 (4,692) - 191,335
6,768,619 82,509 - 6,851,128
(1,837,030) - - (1,837,030)
4.931,589 82,509 - 5,014,008
$ 5,127,616 $ 77,817 § - $ 5,205,433
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City of Las Cruces

Combining Statement of Cash Flows—Nonmajor Enterprise Funds
For the Year Ended June 30, 2015

Cash flows from operating activities
Cash received from customers
Cash paid to suppliers

Cash paid to employees
Other receipts

Net cash (used by) operating activities

Cash flows from non-capital financing activities

Operatmg grants

Transfers in

Net cash provided by non-capital financing activities

Cash flows from capital financing activities
Sale (purchase) of capital assets
Net cash (used by) capital financing activities
Cash flows from investing activities
Interest received
Net cash provided (used) by investing activities
Net increase (decrease) in pooled
cash and investments

Pooled cash and mvestments, beginning
of'year

Pooled cash and investments, end of year

(Continued)

Alternative Fuel

Clean Community

Transit Station Commission Totals

707,454 § -3 - 707,454
(1,084,221) - - (1,084,221)
(2,537,048) - (2,537,048)
3,288 - - 3,288
(2,910,527) - - (2,910,527)
2,252,591 - - 2,252,591
1,718,430 - - 1,718,430
3,971,021 - - 3,971,021
(1,068,863) - - (1,068,863)
(1,068,863) - - (1,068,863)
(7,239) - - (7,239)
(7,239) - = (7,239)
(15,608) - - (15,608)
15,608 - - 15,608

- $ -3 - .

128



283

City of Las Cruces
Combining Statement of Cash Flows—Nonmajor Enterprise Funds — continued
For the Year Ended June 30, 2015

Alternative Fuel Clean Community
Transit Station Commission Totals

Reconciliation of ope rating income to net cash

provided (used) by operating activities

Operating mcome (loss) $ (3,858,892) § (4,692) $ - §  (3,863,584)
Adjustments to reconcile operating ncome

to net cash (used) by operating activities:

Depreciation and amortization 607,464 4,692 - 612,156
Change in assets and liabilities
Accounts receivable 90,244 - - 90,244
Accounts and contracts payable 208,773 - - 208,773
Wages payable and accrued liabilities 41,884 - - 41,884
Total adjustments 948,365 4,692 - 953,057
Net cash (used) by operating activities $  (2,910,527) $ - 3 - $  (2,910,527)

Cash and investments at June 30 consisted of.
Current assets:
Cash and investments $ -5 - 3 -3 -

Non-current assets:
Restricted cash and investiments - - - -

Total cash and investments, June 30 $ - $ - $ - $ -

129



284

Internal Service Funds



285

City of Las Cruces

Combining Statement of Net Position—Internal Service Funds

June 30, 2015
Internal Self
Services [nsurance Totals
Assets
Current assets
Pooled cash and investments $ 177,024 $ 21,151,438 § 21,328,462
Accounts receivable, net of allowance for
uncollectible accounts 2,400 6,599 8,999
Due from other governments B - -
Inventories 360,312 - 360,312
Total current assets 539,736 21,158,037 21,697773
Capital assets 2,336,207 40,110 2,376,317
Less accumulated depreciation (2,250,673) (40,110) (2,290,783)
Capital assets, net 85,534 - 85,534
Total assets 625,270 21,158,037 21,783,307
Deferred outflows of resources
Deferred charges related to pensions 104,196 18,640 122 836
Total deferred outtflows ot resources 104,196 18,640 122,836
Liabilities
Current liabilities
Accounts and contracts payable 317,008 87,730 404,738
Accrued liabilities 52,743 5,946 58,689
Current portion of non-current liabilities 10,010 1,844,434 1,854,444
Total current liabilities 379,761 1,938,110 2317,871
Non-current liabilities
Compensated absences 40,042 2,656 42,698
Estimated liability for insurance claims - 4,335,594 4,335,594
Net pension liability 594,807 103,764 698,571
Total non-current Jiabilities 634,849 4,442,014 5,076,863
Total liabilities 1,014,610 6,380,124 7,394,734
Deferred inflows of resources
Deferred inflows retated to pensions 263.567 47,150 310,717
Total deferred inflows of resources 263,567 47,150 310,717
Net Position
Invested in capital assets 85,534 - 85,534
Unrestricted _(634,245) 14,749,403 14,115,158
Tolal net position b (548711) § 14,749403 § 14,200,692
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Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in
Fund Net Position-—Internal Service Funds
For the Year Ended June 30, 2015

Operating Revenues
Motor pool charges
Rental charges and other
Charges for insurance

Total operating revenues

Cost of services

Gross margin

Operating Expenses
Personnel services
Supplies
Utilities
Professional services
Motor pool charges
Customer service
Repairs and maintenance
Rent
Depreciation
Claims and judgments (benefits)
Insurance
Other

Total operating expenses

Operating income (loss)
Non-operating Revenues (Expenses)

Investment income (loss)
Loss on sale of capital assets

Total non-operating revenues (€Xpenses)

Income (loss) before transfers

Transfers in
Transfers out
Increase (decrease) in fund net position

Net position, beginning of year
Restatement

Net position, beginning of year restated

Net position, end of year

Internal Self
Services Insurance Totals
$ 4892878 § - $  4,892878
100,306 1,016,694 1,117,000
= 6,965,311 6,965,311
4,993,184 7,982,005 12,975,189
(2,946,237) - (2,946.237)
2,046,947 7,982,005 10,028,952
1,149,417 145,818 1,295,235
82,887 1,804 84,691
67,294 - 67,294
532,487 531,714 1,064,201
7,915 7915
100,888 100,888
22,666 - 22,666
- 6,521,498 6,521,498
55,000 - 55,000
12,436 287 12,723
2,030,990 7,201,121 9,232111
15,957 780,884 796,841
(14,848) 897,609 882,761
(13,719) - (13,719)
(28,567) 897,609 869,042
(12,610) 1,678,493 1,665,883
- 1,577 1,577
(12,610) 1,680,070 1,667,460
260,777 13,209,246 13,470,023
(796,878) (139,913) (936,791)
(536,101) 13,069,333 12,533,232
$ (548,711) § 14749403 § 14,200,692
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City of Las Cruces
Combining Statement of Cash Flows—Internal Service Funds
For the Year Ended June 30, 2015

Internal Self
Services Insurance Totals

Cash flows from operating activities

Cash received from other funds $ 4,993,184 § 7988164 $ 12,981,348
Cash paid to suppliers (3,679,060) (765,427) (4,444 ,487)
Cash paid to employees (1.172,953) (4,531) (1,177,484)
Claims paid - (6,141,617) (6,141,617

Net cash provided (used) by operating activities 141,171 1,076,589 1,217,760

Cash flows from non-capital financing activities
Transfers in B 1,577 1,577
Transfers out - £ ;

Net cash provided by non-capital
financing activities - 1,577 1,577

Cash flows from capital and related financing activities

Transfer of capital assets (37,092) - (37,092)
Net cash (used) by capital and related financing
activities (37,092) - (37,092)

Cash flows from investing activities

Interest received (14,848) 897,609 882,761
Net cash provided (used) by investing activities (14,848) 897,609 882,761
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash
equivalents 89,231 1,975,775 2,065,006
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year 87,793 19,175,663 19,263,456
Cash and cash equivalents, end of year $ 177,024 § 21,151,438 § 21,328,462
(Continued)
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City of Las Cruces
Combining Statement of Cash Flows—Internal Service Funds — continued
For the Year Ended June 30, 2015

Reconciliation of operating income to net cash
provided (used) by operating activities
Operating income (loss)
Adjustments to reconcile operating income
to net cash provided (used) by operating activities:
Depreciation
Change in assets and liabilities:
Accounts receivables
Inventories
Accounts and contracts payable

Estimated liability for insurance claims
Deferred gain of revenue for cost of gas

Deferred charges related to pensions

Net pension liability

Wages payable and accrued liabilities
Total adjustments

Net cash provided (used) by operating activities

Cash and investments at June 30 consisted of:
Current assets
Cash and investments

Noncurrent assets

Restricted cash and investments

Total cash and investments, June 30

Internal Self
~Services [nsurance Totals

$ 15957 § 780,884 % 796,841
22,666 - 22.666

- 6,158 6,158

46,568 - 46.568
79,516 (85,804) (6,288)

- 379,882 379,882
(290,881) (51,742) (342,623)
(15,386) 44,103 28,717
263,567 - 263,567
19,164 3,108 22,272
125,214 295,705 420919
141,171 1,076,589 1,217,760
177,024 21,151,438 21,328,462

$ 177,024 § 21,151438 $ 21328462
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City of Las Cruces
Schedule of Changes in Assets and Liabilities
Agency Funds
For the Year Ended June 30, 2015

Balance Balance
June 30,2014 Additions Deductions June 30,2015
Mesilla Valley Regional Dispatch Authority
Assets
Pooled cash and investments $ 739,067 $ 3,504,133 $ 3281,149 % 962,051
Accounts receivable 16,775 25,982 42,757 -
Receivable from other governments 7,057 1,381,801 1,295,293 93,565
Total assets $ 762,899 $ 4911916 $§ 4,619,199 § 1,055,616
Liabilities
Accounts and contracts payable $ 36 § 683,015 $ 664431 3 18,620
Accrued wages payable 147,934 953,223 915,564 185,593
Funds held for others 614.929 259.847 23,373 851,403
Total liabilities $ 762.899 §$ 1,896,085 $§ 1603368 $§ 1055616
Metro Narcotics Fund
Assets
Pooled cash and investments 3 868,437 § 1431959 § 1,497,606 % 802,790
Accounts receivable 20,000 35,000 55,000 -
Receivable from other governments 29,962 946,032 885,441 90,513
Total assets $ 918399 § 2412991 § 2438087 _§ 893.303
Liabilities
Accounts and contracts payable $ 49071 § 1,061,443 § 1,085632 § 24,882
Accrued wages payable 11,360 33,336 29,202 15,494
Funds held for others 857,968 80,086 85,127 852,927
Total liabilities 3 918399 $ 1,174865 $§ 1,199.961 § 893,303
Branigan Estate Fund
Assets
Pooled cash and investments $ 2454443 § 198,989 §$ 261,186  $ 2392246
Accounts receivable - 104,500 26,125 78375
Total assets $ 2454443 § 303489 $ 287311  $ 2,470,621
Liabilities
Accounts and contracts payable $ 1347 § 365925 % 287,406 $ 79,866
Funds held for others 2,453,096 70.031 132,372 2.390,755
Total liabilities $ 2454443 § 435956 % 419778 § 2,470,621
Gifts and Memorials Fund
Assels
Pooled cash and investments $ 291,824 % 625,037 % 74442  § 842,419
Accounts receivable 2400 - 400 2.000
Total assets $ 294224 % 625,037 _$ 74842 § 844419
Liabilities
Accounts and contracts payable $ - 65.753  §$ 59985 § 5,768
Funds held for others 294224 558.291 13,864 838.651
Total liabilities b 294224 § 624044 $ 73849 § 844 419
(Continued)



Schedule of Changes in Assets and Liabilities — continued

Employee Benefits Committee
Assets
Pooled cash and investments
Accounts receivable
Total assets
Liabilities
Due to fiscal agent
Accounts and contracts payable
Funds held for others

Total liabilities

Veteran’s Memorial Wall

Assets
Pooled cash and investments

Total assets
Liabilities
Accounts and contracts payable
Funds held for others
Total liabilities

High Intensive Drug Trafficking Area
Assets
Accounts receivable
Receivable from other governments
Total assets

Liabilities
Due to fiscal agent
Accounts and contracts payable
Funds held for others
Total liabilities

Animal Services of Mesilla Valley
Assets
Pooled cash and investments
Accounts receivable
Receivable from other governments
Total assets

Liabilities
Accounts and conlracts payable
Accrued wages payable
Deferred revenue
Funds held for others

Total liabilities

(Continued)
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City of Las Cruces

Agency Funds

For the Year Ended June 30,2015

Balance Balance

June 30,2014 Additions Deduclions June 30,2015
$ 307§ 73 2178 % (1,798)
- 72 - 72
5 307 § 145 2178 § (1,726)
h) E ) - - 3 -
307 124 2,157 (1,726)
$ 307§ 124 2,157  § (1,726)
20,500 13,089 11,867 & 21,722

20,500 13,089 11867 § 21,722

$ - - R -
20,500 1,222 21,722

$ 20.500 $ 1,222 - § 21,722
$ - $ 30 - % 30
- 102,233 35,672 66,561

$ - § 102,263 35672 § 66,591
b - 3 40,609 - 8 40,609
- 113,852 92,186 21,666

- 4316 - 4316

5 - 158,777 92,186 § 66,591
$ 759,514 § 2,830,284 3,197,686 § 362,112
1,540 9275 7,733 3,080

- 1,083,720 714,467 369,253

$ 761054 § 3923279 3919888 § 764445
% 14497 § 961,985 951,452 § 25,030
60.431 544,944 501.565 103,810

- 2,350 - 2,330

686,126 171985 224 856 633.255

3 761,054 § 1,681.264 1,677,873 % 764 445
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City of Las Cruces

Schedule of Changes in Assets and Liabilities — continued
Agency Funds
For the Year Ended June 30, 2015

Total — All Fiduciary Funds

Assets
Pooled cash and investments 3 5,134092 § 8,603,564 § 8326114 § 5,411,542
Accounts recetvable 40,715 174,859 132,017 83,557
Recetvable from other governments = 37.019 3,513,786 2930913 619,892
Total assets $ 5211,826 § 12292209 § 11389044 § 6,114,991
Liabilities
Due to fiscal agent $ - 3 40,609 3 - % 40,609
Accounts and contracts payable 64,951 3,251,973 3,141,092 175,832
Accrued wages payable 219,725 1,535,819 1,446,331 309,213
Unearned revenue - 2,350 - 2,350
Funds held for others 4927150 1,141,586 481,749 5,586,987
Total liabilities $ 5211826 §% 5972337 § 5,069,172 § 6,114,991
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Budgetary Comparison Schedules

In accordance with GASB Statement No. 34 and the New Mexico State Auditor
Rule, the comparisons of budget and actual for the General Fund are presented in
the basic financial statements. All other fund budgetary comparisons are
presented in the following pages as supplementary information.
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Schedules of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in
Fund Balance—Budget and Actual—Governmental Funds

Debt Service Fund

Special Revenue Funds

Community Development

Court Awarded Funds

MPO Urban Transportation

Fire

Police Protection

Federal Stimulus Operating
Emergency Medical Services
Traffic Safety

Safe Traffic Operations Program
Court Automation

Prisoner Care

Juvenile Recreation

Lodgers’ Tax and LCCVB

DWI Prevention

Judicial Education

Environmental Gross Receipts Tax
Health Care Services from MMCI Lease
Gasoline Tax Street Maintenance Fund
Keep Las Cruces Beautiful

Older Americans Act Programs
Cash in Lieu of Commodities
State Library Resources Grant
Street Maintenance Operations
Flood Control Operations

Special Assessments-Northrise/Morningstar
Downtown Revitalization

State Operating Grants

Valley View Heske Garden

Griggs and Walnut Plume

TIDD Dedicated Revenues

Las Cruces Convention Center
Public Safety Impact Fee
Affordable Housing Trust

Alarm Fees

0000000000000000000000000000000000
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Capital Projects Funds

@ & 6 ¢ 6 6 6 ¢ 0 4+ 6 6 0 0 s 0 b

HUD Facilities Projects

Public Parks Development

Street Improvement

Airport Improvement

Sales Tax—Street Maintenance

Flood Control

Capital Improvement Reserve
Legislative Capital Improvements
State Capital Improvements

EDA West Mesa Industrial Park

2003 Sales Tax Facilities and Parks
NMFA Loans Equipment Acquisition
2003 Sales Tax Street Lights

2005 Gross Receipts Tax Public Improvements
Las Cruces Convention Center
NMFA Street Improvements
Stimulus Capital Projects

TIDD Street Projects
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Debt Service Fund

Debt Service Fund — Accounts for the resources accumulated and payments made for principal
and interest on long-term debt of the governmental funds.

Special Revenue Funds

Special revenue funds are used to account for specific revenues that are legally restricted to
expenditures for particular purposes.

Community Development Block Grant — The Community Development Fund accounts for the
operation and installation of capital improvement projects, home rehabilitation, and social
projects. Funding is from HUD, housing loan and interest repayment, and performance bond
payments. PL 93-383 Title 1 of the Housing and Community Development Act of 1974 requires
that this grant be used for these purposes.

Court Awarded Funds — To provide for drug enforcement activities. Funding is from federal
High Intensity Drug Traffic-seized funds and may only be used for drug enforcement activities,
and must comply with federal financial and administrative requirements of OJP M7100.1D.

MPO Urban Transportation — To provide for the transportation needs of the community.
Funding sources are from the Federal Highway Administration, the Urban Mass Transportation
Administration, and the General Fund. The fund was created in 1982 when the Metropolitan
Planning Organization was formed through a joint powers agreement. Such grants provide for
the payment of current transportation operating expenses and may be used only for that purpose.
City Resolution N. 94-236 requires the fund to be used only in this manner.

Fire — To provide for the purchase of fire equipment. Funding is provided by the State Fire Fund.
State law requires these funds to be used for fire supplies and equipment to help maintain the fire
department. (Section 979, Article 52, New Mexico State Insurance Code)

Police Protection — To provide for the purchase of police equipment and police expenses
associated with advanced law enforcement planning and training. The funding source is a state
grant. State law (Section 5, Chapter 289, Laws of 1983) requires these funds to be used to
operate the police department.

Federal Stimulus Operating — To account for various public operations and improvements.

Emergency Medical Services — To provide for emergency medical services provided through fire
department activities. Funding is through a state grant from the New Mexico Department of
Health, which requires separate fund accounting according to EMS Regulation DOH 94-11.

Traffic Safety — To provide for traffic safety education. Funding is provided by a penalty
assessment of $3.00 per traffic ticket. City Ordinance No. 0-1232, May 1991 requires the fund be
used only in this manner.
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Special Revenue Funds
— continued —

Safe Traffic Operations Program — To account for the programs that use cameras to enforce red
light and speeding violations.

Court Automation — To provide for Municipal Court Automation. Funding is provided by a
penalty assessment of $3.00 per traffic ticket. City Ordinance No. 0-1232, May 1991 requires the
fund be used only in this manner.

Prisoner Care — To provide for operations and maintenance of a municipal jail or for paying the
cost of housing municipal prisoners in the county jail. Funding is provided by a penalty
assessment of $5.00 per traffic ticket. City Resolution No. 81-69, August 1981 requires the fund
be used only in this manner.

Juvenile Recreation — To provide for the operation and development of community parks and
operation of recreation programs. Funding source is one-third of the cigarette tax (Section 7-12-1
through 7-12-17, NMSA, 1978). These taxes may only be used to finance the parks and
recreation programs.

Lodgers’ Tax and LCCVB — To account for the operations of the Las Cruces Convention and
Visitors’ Bureau to promote tourism within the area. Financing is provided from a lodgers’ tax.
State law (Section 3-38-13 through 3-38-24, NMSA, 1979) requires these taxes to be used to
operate the Convention and Visitors Bureau.

DWI Prevention — To account for the receipt of driving while intoxicated state fines (Section
31-12-7, NMSA 1978). Receipts are remitted to the state.

Judicial Education — To account for the receipt of imposed fees on all “guilty” traffic offenses in
accordance with NMSA 1978, 35-14-11 (B)(2) and to be used for the education and training,
including production of bench books and other written materials, of municipal judges and other
municipal court employees.

Environmental Gross Receipts Tax — To account for the receipt of environmental gross receipts
tax enacted by the City and the county as provided for in Ordinance 1484, October 12, 1995.

Health Care Services from MMCI Lease — To account for the receipt of proceeds pursuant to the
terms of the lease with Memorial Medical Center, Inc., to be used for healthcare services in the
City. The lease was approved by Ordinance 1655 in 1998.

Gasoline Tax Street Maintenance Fund — To account for the receipt of gasoline tax remittances
from the state. State law (7-1-6.9 NMSA 1978) requires the distributions to be received into a
separate road fund.
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Special Revenue Funds
— continued —

Keep Las Cruces Beautiful — To provide for beautification, litter eradication, graffiti abatement,
and education. Funding is from the New Mexico Clean & Beautiful Program of the New Mexico
Department of Tourism.

Older Americans Act Programs — To provide congregate meals to seniors at four program sites
and to homebound customers who receive two delivered meals a day. Funding is from the New
Mexico Aging and Long-term Services Department.

Cash in Lieu of Commodities — To provide congregate and home-delivered meals. Services will
be provided through the four City meal sites. Funding is through the U.S. Department of
Agriculture’s Cash in Lieu of Commodities program.

State Library Resources Grant — To provide funds for library materials and the equipment to
provide access to information resources. Funding is {rom the State of New Mexico General
Obligation Bond C.

Street Maintenance Operations — To account for operational expenditures for street maintenance
funded by transfers from the Gas Tax Street Maintenance Fund.

Flood Control Operations — To account for operational expenditures for flood control operations
funded by transfers from the Gas Tax Street Maintenance Fund.

Special Assessments—Northrise/Morningstar — To account for the reimbursement from
developers to the City, through certain assessments, for the construction of Northrise and
Morningstar streets.

Downtown Revitalization — To account for the redevelopment of the downtown area of Las
Cruces. Funding comes from the sale of property in the downtown area and other activities for
revitalization.

State Operating Grants — To account for the receipt of legislative appropriations provided for
operational expenditures in support of local service agencies.

Valley View Heske Garden — To account for the construction and maintenance of a park. Funding
comes from a portion of the Emma B. Heske Trust that was left to the City of Las Cruces for
construction of a park according to Ms. Heske’s wishes.

Griggs and Walnut Plume — To account for the operations of the Griggs and Walnut water
production area, and the remediation activities associated with the site.
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Special Revenue Funds
— continued —

TIDD Dedicated Revenues — To account for an amount of 75 percent of the State Gross Receipts
Tax increment generated within the district that may be dedicated for the purpose of securing tax
increment bonds issued by the district and to provide financing for projects within the TIDD
Streets Project fund.

Las Cruces Convention Center — To account for receipt of the convention center fees paid to
support the debt service payments for the convention center.

Public Safety Impact Fee — To account for revenues and expenditures related to city-wide public
safety fees. Funds are to be used for buildings for fire, police, rescue, and essential equipment
costing $10,000 or more and having a life expectancy of 10 years or more. Funding comes from
fees for all new development in the City based on rate tables for various land use.

Affordable Housing Trust Fund — This fund was established to set aside resources for the
creation/promotion of affordable housing within the City of Las Cruces. The City adopted an
ordinance within Chapter 13 of the Municipal code to create the local Housing Trust Fund. The
source of the funding is through a transfer from the Vehicle Acquisition Fund.

Alarm Fund — In January 2013 the City of Las Cruces (CLC) enacted an Alarm Ordinance in
which a registration and fine structure were developed. In turn CLC and MVRDA created an
MOA that authorized MVRDA to be the Alarm Administrator for the ordinance. MVRDA
collects all initial registrations, renewals penalties and fines.
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Revenues

Investment income (loss)
Other
Total revenues

Ex penditures
Current:

General government
Debt Service:

Principal

Interest

Debt issuance costs
Total expenditures

Revenues over (under) expenditures

Other Financing Sources (Uses)

Issuance of debt refunding

Refunded bonds redeemed

Premium on issuance of debt

Transfers in

Transfers out

Total other financing sources (uses)
Net change in fund balance

Fund balance, beginning of year

Fund balance, end of year
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Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in

Fund Balance—Budget and Actual
Debt Service Fund
For the Year Ended June 30,2015

2015 2014
Variance with
Final Budget-
Budgeted Amounts Positive
Original Final Actual (Negative) Actual

$ 94,800 $ 54,800 $ 308,585 § 253,785 % 334,532
839,212 516,589 513,962 (2,627) 311,741
934,012 571,389 822,547 251,158 646,273

- 5,855 5,854 [ -

8,386,633 9,420,397 9,418,765 1,632 9,313,208
2,872,240 3,486,517 3,485,553 964 3,158,108

- 279,642 370,268 (90,626) 100,850
11,258,873 13,192,411 13,280,440 (88,029) 12,572,166
(10,324,861) (12,621,022) (12,457,893) 163,129 (11,925,893)
- 19,195,001 19,195,000 (1) 1,180,000
- (19,966,659) (19,545,000) 421,659 (1,590,000)
- 1,157,983 1,157,983 - (80,000)
13,112,180 13,144,567 12,691,042 (453,525) 11,822,851
(50,598) (73,761) (59,623) 14,138 (1,343,239)
13,061,582 13,457,131 13,439,402 (17,729) 9,989,612
2,736,721 836,109 981,509 145,400 (1,936,281)
4,774,904 4,774,904 4,774,904 - 6,711,185

$ 7,511,625 % 5,611,013 § 5,756,413 § 145400 $ 4,774,904
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City of Las Cruces

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in
Fund Balance—Budget and Actual

Revenues

Charges for services
Investment income (loss)
Other

Intergovernmental - Federal

Total revenues

Expenditures
Current
Community development
Capital outlay
Total expenditures

Revenues over (under) expenditures

Net change in fund balance

Fund balance, beginning of year

Fund balance, end of year

Community Development

For the Year Ended June 30,2015

L 2015 2014
Variance with
FFinal Budget -
Budgeted Amounts Positive
Origmal Final Actual (Negative) Actual
$ 10,000 $ 10,000 $ 6,753 % (3,247 2,749
3,623 3,623 17,708 14,085 22,313
206,754 206,754 57,413 (149,341) 252,138
2,927,826 2,678,670 1,193,521 (1,485,149) 957,896
3,148,203 2,899,047 1,275,395 (1,623.652) 1,235,096
2,980,259 2,548,706 1,410,460 1,138,246 1,092,343
55,000 181,360 - 181,360 69,444
3,035,259 2,730,066 1,410,460 1,319,606 1,161,787
112,944 168,981 (135.065) (304,046) 73,309
112,944 168,981 (135,065) (304,046) 73,309
159,444 159,444 159,444 - 86,135
$ 272,388 § 328425 $ 24,379 § (304,046) $ 159,444
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City of Las Cruces

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in
Fund Balance—Budget and Actual
Court Awarded Funds
For the Year Ended June 30, 2015

Revenues
Investment income (loss)
Fees and fines
Total revenues
Expenditures
Current
Police
Total expenditures
Revenues over (under) expenditures

Net change i fund balance
Fund balance, beginning of year

Fund balance, end of year

2015 2014
Variance with
Fnal Budget -
Budgeted Amounts Positive
Origmal Final Actual (Negative) Actual
3 5,000 § 5.000 $ 14,183 § 9.183 § 6,817
15,000 15,000 = (15,000) 13,986
20,000 20,000 14,183 (5,817) 20,803
142,200 142,200 634 141,566 80,360
142,200 142,200 634 141,566 80,360
(122,200) (122,200) 13,549 135,749 (59,557)
(122,200) (122,200) 13,549 135,749 (59,557)
299,790 299,790 299,790 - 359,347
$ 177,590 $ 177,590 $ 313,339 § 135,749 ¥ 299,790
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Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in
Fund Balance—Budget and Actual

MPO Urban Transportation
For the Year Ended June 30, 2015

Revenues
Intergovernmental - State

Intergovernmental - Local

Total revenues

Expenditures

Current
Community development

Total expenditures
Revenues over (under) expenditures
Net change m fund balance

Fund balance, beginning of year
Fund balance, end of year

2015 2014
Variance with
Final Budget -
Budgeted Amounts Positive
Original Fnal Actual (Negative) Actual
$ 265,388 § 625,849 § 278,682 % (347,167) 296,096
15,843 15.843 15,843 - 15.843
281,231 641,692 294,525 (347,167) 311,939
281,231 641,692 294,525 347,167 311,939
281,231 641,692 294,525 347,167 311,939
$ - 3 - § - % - -
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Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in
Fund Balance—Budget and Actual

Fire

For the Year Ended June 30,2015

2015 2014
Variance with
Final Budget -
Budgeted Amounts Positive
Original Final Actual (Negative) Actual
Revenues
Investment income {loss) 3 14,000 $ 14,000 $ 39,337 § 25337 § 10,480
Intergovernmental - Federal - 616,691 614,391 (2,300) 452,190
Intergovernmental - State 594,226 790,936 609,873 (181,063) 689,916
Total revenues 608,226 1,421,627 1,263,601 (158,026) 1,152,586
Expenditures
Current
Fire 494226 1,271,464 1,052,303 219,161 946,142
Capital outlay 100,000 235,063 171,961 63,102 195,965
Total expenditures 594,226 1,506,527 1,224,264 282,263 1,142,107
Revenues over (under) expenditures 14,000 (84,900) 39,337 124,237 10,479
Net change in fund balance 14,000 (84,900) 39,337 124 237 10,479
Fund balance, beginning of year 177,634 177,634 177,634 - 167,155
Fund balance, end of year $ 191,634 § 92,734 § 216,971 § 124237 § 177,634
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Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in
Fund Balance—Budget and Actual

Police Protection

For the Year Ended June 30, 2015

2015 2014
Variance with
Fmnal Budget -
Budgeted Amounts Positive
Original Final Actual (Negative) Actual
Revenues

Investment ncome (loss) $ 3,200 § 3,200 § 16,244 $ 13,044 $ 3,879

Intergovernmental - Federal 510,387 617,923 352,110 (265,813) 287,392

Intergovernmental - State 576,950 726,302 574,073 (152,229) 560,149

Intergovernmental - Local - - 13,810 13,810 709

Other . 60,000 60,000 102,746 42,746 80,389
Total revenues 1,150,537 1,407,425 1,058,983 (348,442) 932,518

Expenditures
Current

Police 1,216,130 1,440,664 1,025,864 414,800 941,071

Capital Outlay - 33,000 33,000 - 16,897
Total expenditures 1,216,130 1,473,664 1,058,864 414,800 957,968
Revenues over (under) expenditures (65,593) (66,239) 119 66,358 (25,450)

Other Financing Sources (Uses)

Sale of Capital Assets - - 32,908 32,908 88,926
Total other financing sources (uses) e - 32,908 32,908 88,926
Net change in fund balance (65,593) (66,239) 33,027 99,266 63,476

Fund balance, beginning of year 215,160 215,160 215,160 = 151,684
Fund balance, end of year $ 149,567 § 148,921 § 248,187 $ 09,266 $ 215,160
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City of Las Cruces
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in
Fund Balance—Budget and Actual
Federal Stimulus Operating
For the Year Ended June 30, 2015

2015 2014
Variance with
Final Budget -
Budgeted Amounts Positive
Original Final Actual (Negative) Actual
Revenues
Intergovernmental - Federal $ 413,867 $ 413,867 $ 360,200 $ (53,667) § 397,866
Total revenues 413,867 413,867 360,200 (53,667) 397.866
Expenditures
Current
Police 413,867 413,867 360,200 53,667 397,866
Total expenditures 413,867 413,867 360,200 53,667 397,866
Revenues over (under) expenditures = z = : =
Net change in fund balance = = z s z
Fund balance, beginning of year = - = = -
Fund balance, end of year 5 - $ - 8 - § -3 -
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City of Las Cruces
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in
Fund Balance—Budget and Actual
Emergency Medical Services
For the Year Ended June 30,2015

2015 2014
Variance with
Final Budget -
Budgeted Amounts Positive
QOriginal Final Actual (Negative) Actual
Revenues
Investment income (loss) $ - $ - 8 569 $ 569 § 174
Intergovernmental - State 20,000 20,089 19,816 (273) 19.912
Total revenues 20,000 20,089 20,385 296 20,086
Expenditures
Current
Fire 20,000 20,088 19,816 272 19,912
Total expenditures 20,000 20,088 19,816 272 19912
Revenues over (under) expenditures = I 569 568 174
Net change in fund balance - 1 569 568 174
Fund balance, beginning of year 283 283 283 = 109
Fund balance, end of year 5 283 $ 284 § 852 1§ 568 § 283
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Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in
Fund Balance—Budget and Actual

Traffic Safety
For the Year Ended June 30, 2015
2015 2014
Variance with
Final Budget -
Budgeted Amounts Positive
Orgmal Final Actual (Negative) Actual
Revenues
Investment income (loss) $ 1,500 §$ 1,500 $ 1,786 §$ 286 % 587
Fees and fmes 35,000 35,000 28,690 (6,310) 24,976
Total revenues 36,500 36,500 30,476 (6,024) 25,563
Expenditures
Current
Police 55,000 55,000 13,179 41,821 22,301
Total expenditures 55,000 55,000 13,179 41,821 22,301
Revenues over (under) expenditures (18,500) (18,500) 17,297 35,7197 3,262
Net change in fund balance (18,500) (18,500) 17,297 35,797 3,262
Fund balance, beginning of year 33,407 33,407 33,407 - 30,145
Fund balance, end of year 3 14907 § 14907 § 50,704 35797 § 33,407
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Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in
Fund Balance—Budget and Actual
Safe Traffic Operations Program
For the Year Ended June 30,2015

Revenues
Investment income (loss)
Fees and fines

Total revenues

Expenditures
Current
Police
Capital outlay
Total expenditures
Revenues over (under) expenditures

Net change in fund balance
Fund balance, beginning of year

Fund balance, end of year

2015 2014
Variance with
Final Budget -
Budgeted Amounts Positive
Original Fmal Actual (Negative) Actual
$ - - 3 10,148 § 10,148 7,192
5 . 16,611 16,611 422 662
- - 26,759 26,759 429,854
- 24,400 19,994 4.406 578,680
- 207,570 16,441 191,129 -
- 231,970 36,435 195,535 578,680
- (231,970) (9,676) 222,294 (148,826)
- (231,970) (9,676) 222,294 (148,826)
227,381 227,381 227,381 - 376,207
$ 227381 § (4,589) § 217,705 § 222,294 227381
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City of Las Cruces
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in
Fund Balance—Budget and Actual
Court Automation
For the Year Ended June 30, 2015

2015 2014
Variance with
Final Budget -
Budgeted Amounts Positive
Orriginal Final Actual (Negative) Actual
Revenues
Fees and fines $ 157,978 § 157978 $ 116,890 §$ (41,088) § 109,898
Other - - 33,146 33,146 18.404
Total revenues 157,978 157,978 150,036 (7,942) 128,302
Expenditures
Curvent
Police 242,000 242,000 135,443 106.557 128.859
Total expenditures 242,000 242,000 135,443 106,557 128,859
Revenues over (under) expenditures (84,022) (84,022) 14,593 98,615 (557)
Net change in fund balance (84,022) (84,022) 14,593 98,615 (557)
Fund balance, beginning of year 450,502 450,502 450,502 - 451,059
Fund balance, end of year $ 366,480 § 366,480 $ 465,095 § 98,615 $ 450,502
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Revenues
[nvestment income (loss)
Fees and fines

Total revenues

Expenditures
Current
Police
Total expenditures

Revenues over (under) expenditures

Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Transfers in
Total other financing sources (uses)
Net change in fund balance
Fund balance, beginning of year
Fund balance, end of year

City of Las Cruces

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in
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Fund Balance—Budget and Actual
Prisoner Care
For the Year Ended June 30, 2015

2015 2014
Variance with
Fnal Budget -
Budgeted Amounts Positive
Original Final Actual (Negative) Actual
hY 20,000 $ 20,000 $ 81,216 § 61,216 $ 39,662
232,325 232,325 236,005 3,680 221,464
252,325 252,325 317,221 64,896 261,126
2,450,590 2,450,590 1,530,536 920,054 1,350,206
2,450,590 2,450,590 1,530,530 920,054 1,350,206
(2,198,265) (2,198,265) (1,213,315) 984,950 (1,089,080)
1,250,000 1,250,000 1,250,000 - 1,000,000
1,250,000 1,250,000 1,250,000 - 1,000,000
(948,265) (948,265) 36,685 984,950 (89,080)
1,526,186 1,526,186 1,526,186 - 1,615,266
$ 577,921 $ 577,921 $ 1,562,871 § 984,950 $ 1,526,186
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City of Las Cruces
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in
Fund Balance—Budget and Actual
Juvenile Recreation
For the Year Ended June 30, 2015

2015 2014
Variance with
Final Budget -
Budgeted Amounts Posilive
Onginal Final Actual (Negative) Actual
Revenues
Investment incomme (loss) $ - 3 - 8 2,206 $ 2,206 % 1,280
Fees and fines 10,000 10,000 335 (9,665) -
State-shared taxes 2,000 2,000 1,950 (50) 1,676
Total revenues 12,000 12,000 4,491 (7,509) 2.956
Expenditures
Current
Parks and recreation 30,000 30,000 - 30,000 35,488
Capital outlay 2 = = i 25,758
Total expenditures 30,000 30,000 32 30,000 61,246
Revenues over (under) expenditures (18,000) (18,000) 4,491 22,491 (58,290
Net change in fund balance (18,000) (18,000) 4,491 22,49] (58,290)
Fund balance, beginning of year 42,355 42,355 42,355 - 100,645
Fund balance, end of year $ 24355 § 24355 § 46,846 $ 22491 § 42,355
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City of Las Cruces
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in
Fund Balance—Budget and Actual
Lodgers’ Tax & LCCVB
For the Year Ended June 30, 2015

2015 2014

Variance with
Final Budget -

Budgeted Amounts Positive
Original Final Actual (Negative) Actual
Revenues
Local taxes

Lodgers' tax $ 2,060,741 % 2,060,741 § 1,941,158 § (119,583) § 1,846,177
Total local taxes 2,060,741 2,060,741 1,941,158 (119,583) 1,846,177

Investment income (loss) 40,000 40,000 125,594 85,594 59,001

Other 3,500 3,500 6,848 3,348 5,668
Total revenues 2,104,241 2,104,241 2,073,600 (30,641) 1,910,846

Expenditures
Current

Community and cultural services 2,331,871 2,350,761 2,121,430 229,331 2,236,406

Capital outlay - 107,555 = 107,555 5,321
Total expenditures 2,331,871 2,458,316 2,121,430 336,886 2,241,727
Revenues over (under) expenditures (227,630) (354,075) (47,830) 306.245 (330,881)

Other Financing Sources (Uses)

Transfers out (51,519) (51,519) (48,258) 3,261 (46,154)
Total other financing sources (uses) (51,519) (51,519) (48,258) 3.261 (46,154)
Net change in fund balance (279,149) (405,594) (96,088) 309,506 (377,035)

Fund balance, beginning of year 2,935,621 2,935,621 2,935,621 - 3,312,656
Fund balance, end of year $ 2,656,472 § 2,530,027 § 2,839,533 § 309,506 $ 2,935,621
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Revenues
Investment income (loss)

Fees and fines

Total revenues

Expenditures
Current
Police
Total expenditures
Revenues over (under) expenditures

Net change in fund balance
Fund balance (deficit), beginning of year
Fund balance, end of year
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Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in
Fund Balance—Budget and Actual

DWI Prevention
For the Year Ended June 30, 2015

2015 2014
Variance with
Final Budget -
Budgeted Amounts Positive
Original Final Actual (Negative) Actual
$ - $ - % ©6) $ 66) $ -
4,700 4,700 5,078 378 6,249
4,700 4,700 5,012 312 6,249
4,700 4,700 3,153 1.547 3.205
4,700 4,700 3,153 1,547 3,205
- - 1,859 1,859 3.044
- - 1,859 1,859 3,044
4,093 4,093 4,093 - 1,049
b 4,093 § 4,093 § 5952 $ 1,859 § 4,093
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Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in
Fund Balance—Budget and Actual

Judicial Education
For the Year Ended June 30, 2015

Revenues
Fees and fines

Total revenues

Expenditures
Current
Police

Total expenditures

Revenues over (under) expenditures

Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Total other financing sources (uses)

Net change in fund balance
Fund balance (deficit), begnning of year

Fund balance, end of year

2015 2014
Variance wilh
Final Budget -
Budgeted Amounts Positive
Original Final Actual (Negative) Actual
$ 35,000 $ 35,000 S 34,189 § (811) § 31,914
35,000 35,000 34,189 (811) 31,914
35,000 35.000 36,852 (1,852) 28,811
35,000 35,000 36,852 (1,852) 28,811
- - (2,663) (2,663) 3,103
- - (2,663) (2,663) 3,103
3,532 3,532 3,532 £ 429
$ 3532 § 3,532 § 869 $ (2,663) § 3,532
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City of Las Cruces
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in
Fund Balance—Budget and Actual
Environmental Gross Receipts Tax
For the Year Ended June 30, 2015

2015 2014
Variance with
Fnal Budget -
Budgeted Amounts Positive
Original Final Actual (Negative) Actual
Revenues
Local taxes

Gross receipts 3 2,578,000 $ 2,578,000 $ 1,709,914 § (868,086) $ 2,383,507

Total revenues 2,578,000 2,578,000 1,709,914 (868,086) 2,383,507
Expenditures
Current

General govermment 965,000 965,000 55,572 909,428 953,336
Total expenditures 965,000 965,000 55,572 909,428 953,336
Revenues over (under) expenditures 1,613,000 1,613,000 1,654,342 41,342 1,430,171

Other Financing Sources (Uses)

Transfers out (1,613,000) (1,613,000) (1,613,000) - (1,591,990)
Total other financing sources (uses) (1,613,000) (1,613,000) (1,613,000) - (1,591,990)
Net change in fund balance - - 41,342 41,342 (161,819)

Fund balance, beginning of year 252,317 252,317 252,317 - 414,136
Fund balance, end of year $ 252317 §$ 252317 § 293,659 §$ 41,342 § 252,317
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Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in

Revenues
Investment income (loss)

Total revenues

Expenditures
Current
General government

Total expenditures
Revenues over (under) expenditures

Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Transfers out

Total other financing sources (uses)

Net change in fund balance
Fund balance, beginning of year

Fund balance, end of year

Fund Balance—Budget and Actual
Health Care Services from MMCI Lease
For the Year Ended June 30, 2015

2015 2014
Variance with
Final Budget -
Budgeted Amounts Positive
Opriginal Final Actual (Negative) Actual
900 § 900 § 3,377 § 2,477 801
900 900 3,377 2477 801
300,000 319,500 309,750 9,750 278,939
300,000 319,500 309,750 9,750 278,939
(299,100) (318,600) (306,373) 12,227 (278,138)
300,000 300,000 300,000 - 300,000
300,000 300,000 300,000 - 300,000
900 (18,600) (6,373) 12,227 21,862
39,859 39,859 39,859 - 17,997
40,759 $ 21,259 § 33,486 §$ 12,227 39,859
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City of Las Cruces
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in
Fund Balance—Budget and Actual
Legislative Equipment Grants
For the Year Ended June 30, 2015

2015 2014
Variance with
Fmnal Budget -
Budgeted Amounts Positive
Original Final Actual (Negative) Actual
Revenues
Intergovernmental - State - 161,514
Intergovernmental - Federal 80,905 72,905
Total revenues 80,905 234,419
Expenditures
Current
Fire - 29,724
Capital outlay 80,905 204,695
Total expenditures 80,905 234419

Revenues over (under) expenditures

Net change in fund balance
Fund balance, beginning of year

Fund balance, end of year
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City of Las Cruces

Fund Balance—Budget and Actual
Gasoline Tax Street Maintenance Fund
For the Year Ended June 30, 2015

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in

2015 2014
Variance with
Final Budget -
Budgeted Amounts Positive
Original Final Actual (Negative) Actual
Revenues

Investment income (loss) $ 2,000 §$ 2,000 $ 4,975 % 2,975 § 2,027

State-shared taxes 1,480,938 1,480,938 1,393,296 (87.642) 1,476,335
Total revenues 1,482,938 1,482,938 1,398,271 (84,667) 1,478,362

Expenditures
Current

Public works 578,864 594,000 568,499 25,501 577,917
Total expenditures 578,864 594,000 568,499 25,501 577,917
Revenues over (under) expenditures 904,074 888,938 829,772 (59,166) 900,445

Other Financing Sources (Uses)

Transfers out (765,372) (945,372) (945,372) - (939,649)
Total other financing sources (uses) (765,372) (945,372) (945,372) B (939,649)
Net change in fund balance 138,702 (56,434) (115,600) (59,166) (39,204)

Fund balance, beginning of year 284,550 284,550 284,550 - 323,754
Fund balance, end of year § 423252 § 228,116 $ 168,950 $ (59.166) §  284.550
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City of Las Cruces
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in
Fund Balance—Budget and Actual
Keep Las Cruces Beautiful
For the Year Ended June 30, 2015

2015 2014
Variance with
Final Budget -
Budgeted Amounts Positive
Origmal Final Actual (Negative) Actual
Revenues
Intergovernmental - State $ 42900 § 71,900 $ 28,360 $ (43,540) $ 41,648
Other - 5,000 5,000 - -
Total revenues 42,900 76,900 33,360 (43,540) 41,648
Expenditures
Current
Police 42,900 76,900 33,360 43,540 41,648
Totat expenditures 42,900 76,900 33,360 43,540 41,648
Revenues over (under) expenditures T = = = =
Net change in fund balance - - - - -
Fund balance, beginning of year 204 204 204 - 204
Fund balance, end of year 5 204§ 204§ 204 § - § 204
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Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in
Fund Balance—Budget and Actual
Older Americans Act Programs
For the Year Ended June 30, 2015

Revenues
Intergovernmental - Federal
Intergovemmental - State
Other

Total revenues

Expenditures
Current
Community and cultural services
Total expenditures
Revenues over (under) expenditures
Net change in fund balance
Fund balance, beginning of year

Fund balance, end of year

2015 2014
Variance with
Fmal Budget -
Budgeted Amounts Positive
Original Final Actual (Negative) Actual
$ 202,104 $ 212,104 § 209,882 § 2,222) § 195,417
341,810 351,810 350,191 (1,619) 360,969
192,408 197,250 191,047 6,203) 203,955
736,322 761,164 751,120 (10,044) 760,341
736,322 757,414 751,120 6,294 760,341
736,322 757,414 751,120 6,294 760,341
- 3,750 ; (3,750) -
- 3,750 - (3,750) -
$ - § 3,750 § -5 (3,750) § -
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City of Las Cruces

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in
Fund Balance—Budget and Actual
Cash in Lieu of Commodities
For the Year Ended June 30, 2015

2015 2014
Variance with
Fnal Budget -
Budgeted Amounts Positive
Original Final Actual (Negative) Actual
Revenues
Intergovernmental - State $ 171,272 § 171,272 § 171,272 - 5 171,272
Total revenues 171,272 171,272 171,272 . 171,272
Expenditures
Current
Community and cultural services $ 171272 $ 171,272 § 171,272 % - % 171,272
Total expenditures 171,272 171,272 171,272 B 171,272
Revenues over (under) expenditures = = = - -
Net change in fund balance - - - - -
Fund balance, beginning of year = = = = -
Fund balance, end of year $ - 3 - 8 - $ - $ -
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City of Las Cruces
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in
Fund Balance—Budget and Actual
State Library Resources Grant
For the Year Ended June 30,2015

2015 2014

Variance with
Final Budget -

Budgeted Amounts Positive
Original Final Actual (Negative) Actual
Revenues
Intergovernmental - State $ 244499 § 277,986 $ 114,345 § (163,641) § 33,747
Total revenues 244,499 277,986 114,345 (163,641) 33,747
Expenditures
Current
Community and cultural services 244,499 277,986 114,345 163,641 33,747
Total expenditures 244,499 277,986 114,345 163,641 33,747
Revenues over (under) expenditures - z = = =
Net change in fund balance - - - - -
Fund balance, beginning of year = 5 T = =
Fund balance, end of year $ - 3 - 8 - § - % -
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City of Las Cruces

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in

Revenues
Investment income (loss)
Gross receipts

Total revenues

Expenditures
Current
Public works
Transportation
Total expenditures
Revenues over (under) expenditures

Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Transfers in
Transfers out
Total other financing sources (uses)

Net change in fund balance
Fund balance, beginning of year

Fund balance, end of year

Fund Balance—Budget and Actual
Street Maintenance Operations
For the Year Ended June 30, 2015

B 2015 2014
Variance with
Final Budget -
Budgeted Amounts Posilive
Original Final Actual (Negative) Actual
$ 9,000 $ 9,000 § 17,894 $ 8894 § 39,522
6,715,000 6,715,000 6,840,264 125.264 6,527,420
6,724,000 6,724,000 6,858,158 134,158 6,566,942
3,180,000 1,525,830 1,264,156 261,674 919,049
716,252 771,529 561,114 210,415 645,144
3,896,252 2,297,359 1,825,270 472,089 1,564,193
2,827,748 4.426,641 5,032,888 (337,931) 5,002,749
- - E = 99,327
(2,982,491) (4,773,344) (4,084,120) (689,224) (5,170,173)
(2,982,491) (4,773,344) (4,084,120) (689,224) (5,070,846)
(154,743) (346,703) 948,768 (1,027,155) (68,097)
1,363,023 1,363,023 1,363,023 3 1,431,120
$ 1208280 $ 1,016320 § 2311,791 $ (1,027,155) § 1,363,023
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City of Las Cruces

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in
Fund Balance—Budget and Actual

Revenues
Investment income (loss)
Property taxes

Total revenues

Expenditures
Current
Public works
Transportation
Capital outlay
Total expenditures
Revenues over (under) expenditures

Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Transfers out
Total other financing sources (uses)

Net change in fund balance
Fund balance, beginning of year

Fund balance, end of year

Flood Control Operations

For the Year Ended June 30, 2015

2015 2014
Variance with
FFmal Budget -
Budgeted Amounts Positive
Original Final Actual (Negative) Actual
$ 3,000 $ 3,000 $ (34,430) § (37,430) § 8,453
4,236,077 4,236,077 4,186,899 (49,178) 4,147,747
4,239,077 4,239,077 4,152,469 (86,608) 4,156,200
612,444 300,648 201,101 99,547 198,969
864,609 744,323 784,128 (39,805) 800,969
- 350,000 = 350,000 -
1,477,053 1,394,971 985,229 409,742 999,938
2,762,024 2,844,106 3,167,240 323,134 3,156,262
(3,581,390) (3,581,390) (2,305,145) (1,276,245) (2,799,995)
(3,581,390) (3,581,390) (2,305,145) (1,276,245) (2,799,995)
(819,366) (737,284) 862,095 (953,111) 356,267
544,894 544,894 544,894 - 188,627
$ (274,472) $ (192,390) § 1,406,989 $ (953,111) § 544,894
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City of Las Cruces

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in
Fund Balance—Budget and Actual
Special Assessments—Northrise/Morningstar
For the Year Ended June 30, 2015

2015 2014
Variance with
Fnal Budget -
Budgeted Amounts Positive
Original Final Actual (Negative) Actual
Revenues
Investment income (loss) 5 - 5 - 8 102,816 $ 102,816 § 47,907
Special assessment income = = 19,102 19,102 26,041
Total revenues - - 121,918 121,918 73,948
Net change in fund balance - - 121,918 121,918 73,948
Fund balance, beginning of year 2,208,634 2,208,634 2,208,634 - 2,134,686
Fund balance, end of year $ 2208634 $ 2208634 § 2330552 § 121918 § 2,208,634
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City of Las Cruces
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in
Fund Balance—Budget and Actual
Downtown Revitalization
For the Year Ended June 30, 2015

2015 2014
Variance with
Final Budget -
Budgeted Amounts Positive
Original Final Actual (Negative) Actual
Revenues

Investment income (loss) $ 1,000 $ 1,000 $ 1,593 § 593 § 1,094

Intergovernmental - State 75,280 75,280 57,508 (17,772) 40,819

Other 1,850 1,850 - (1,850) (50)
Total revenues 78,130 78,130 59,101 (19,029) 41,863

Expenditures
Current

Public works 70,000 70,000 70,192 (192) 70,000

Community development 75,280 75,280 57,508 17,772 40,819
Total expenditures 145,280 145,280 127,700 17,580 110,819
Revenues over (under) expenditures (67,150) (67,150) (68,599) (1,449) (68,956)

Other Financing Sources+(Uses)

Transfers in 70,000 70,000 70,000 - 70,000
Total other financing sources (uses) 70,000 70,000 70,000 - 70,000
Net change in fund balance 2,850 2,850 1,401 (1,449) 1,044

Fund balance, beginning of year 48208 48,208 48,208 - 47,164
Fund balance, end of year $ 51,058 % 51,058 § 49,609 % (1,449) $ 48,208
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City of Las Cruces
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in
Fund Balance—Budget and Actual
State Operating Grants
For the Year Ended June 30, 2015

2015 2014

Variance with
Final Budget -

Budgeted Amounts Positive
Original Final Actual (Negative) Actual
Revenues
Intergovernmental - State $ 38,389 $ 89,884 § 39,635 $ (50,249) § 27,994
Other 5,028 24,627 12,497 (12,130) 11,650
Total revenues 43,417 114,511 52,132 (62,379) 39,644
Expenditures
Current
General government 23,389 21,627 - 21,627 4,188
Fire - 14,168 8,669 5,499 4,000
Community and cultural 20,028 55,327 43,463 11,864 26,912
Parks and recreation = - = - 4,544
Total expenditures 43,417 91,122 52,132 38,990 39,644
Revenues over (under) expenditures - 23,389 = (23,389) -
Net change in fund balance - 23,389 - (23,389) -
Fund balance, beginning of year - = = - -
Fund balance, end of year $ - $ 23389 § - % (23,389) $ -
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City of Las Cruces
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in
Fund Balance—Budget and Actual
Valley View Heske Garden
For the Year Ended June 30,2015

2015 2014
Variance with
Final Budget -
Budgeted Amounts Positive
Original Final Actual (Negative) Actual
Revenues
Investment income (loss) 5 2500 $ 2,500 S 8,026 § 5,526 § 3,661
Total revenues 2,500 2,500 8,026 5,526 3,661
Expenditures
Current
Parks and recreation 20,000 20,000 12,430 7,570 19,963
Total expenditures 20,000 20,000 12,430 7,570 19,963
Revenues over (under) expenditures (17,500) (17,500) (4,404) 13,096 (16,302)
Net change in fund balance (17,500) (17,500) (4,404) 13,096 (16,302)
Fund balance, beginning of year 173,228 173,228 173,228 - 189,530
Fund balance, end of year $ 155,728 § 155,728 § 168,824 $ 13,096 $ 173,228
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City of Las Cruces

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in
Fund Balance—Budget and Actual

Revenues
Charges for services

Investment income (loss)
Other

Total revenues

Expenditures

Current
General government

Total expenditures
Revenues over (under) expenditures
Other Financing Sources (Uses)

Transfers in

Total other financing sources (uses)

Net change in fund balance
Fund balance, beginning of year
Fund balance, end of year

Griggs and Walnut Plume

For the Year Ended June 30, 2015

2015 o 2014
Variance with
Final Budget -
Budgeted Amounts Positive
Original Final Actual (Negative) Actual
$ 204,000 $ 204,000 $ 114,952 § (89,048) $ 121,978
17,939 17,939 53,874 35,935 $24,309
331,000 331,000 1,012,345 681,345 103,919
552,939 552,939 1,181,171 628,232 250,206
849,929 849,929 411,155 438,774 298,426
849,929 849,929 411,155 438,774 298,426
(296,990) (296,990) 770,016 1,067,006 (48,220)
388,733 388,733 388,733 - 362,448
388,733 388,733 388,733 - 362,448
91,743 91,743 1,158,749 1,067,006 314,228
1,109,700 1,109,700 1,109,700 - 795,472
$ 1,201,443 § 1,201,443  § 2,268,449 § 1,067,006 $ 1,109,700
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City of Las Cruces
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in
Fund Balance—Budget and Actual
TIDD Dedicated Revenues

For the Year Ended June 30, 2015
2015 2014

Variance with
Fmal Budget -

Budgeted Amounts Positive
Original Final Actual (Negative) Actual
Revenues
Investment income (loss) 3 -3 - 8 157,980 3 157,980 $ 76,416
Gross receipts tax 590,000 590,000 665,337 75,337 608,050
Property tax 25215 25215 22,408 (2,807) 26,031
State-shared 1,522,000 1,522,000 1,655,295 133,295 1,508,310
Total revenues 2,137,215 2,137215 2,501,020 363,805 2,308,807
Expenditures
Current
General govemment 84,823 84,955 39,604 45351 83,908
Total expenditures 84,823 84,955 39,604 45351 83,908
Revenues over (under) expenditures 2,052,392 2.052.260 2,461,416 409,156 2,224 R99

Other Financing Sources (Uses)

Transters out - (4,800,000) (4,800,000) B -
Total other financing sources (uses) - (4,800,000) (4,800,000) - =
Net change in fund balance 2,052,392 (2,747,740) (2,338,584) 409,156 2,224,899

Fund balance, beginning of year 8,023,090 8,023,090 8,023,090 - 5,798,191

Fund balance, end of year $ 10,075,482 $ 5275350 § 5,684,506 § 409,156 $ 8,023,090
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Revenues

Investment income (loss)

Fees and fines
Total revenues

Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Transfers out
Total other financing sources (uses)

Net change in fund balance
Fund balance, beginning of year

Fund balance, end ot'year
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City of Las Cruces
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in
Fund Balance—Budget and Actual
Las Cruces Convention Center
For the Year Ended June 30, 2015

2015 2014
Variance with
Final Budget -
Budgeted Amounts Positive
Original Final Actual (Negative) Actual
$ - % - $ 18,596 $ 18,596 $ 22,339
1,346,508 1,346,508 1,202,006 (144,502) 1,157,961
1,346,508 1,346,508 1,220,602 (125,906) 1,180,300
(1,767.779)  (1,767,779) _ (1,759,249) 8,530 (633,633)
(1.767,779)  (1,767,779) _ (1,759,249) 8,530 (633,633)
(421.271) (421,271) (538,647) (117,376) 546,667
675,184 675,184 675,184 - 128,517
$ 253913 § 253913 $§ 136,537 § (117,376) § 675,184
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City of Las Cruces
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in
Fund Balance—Budget and Actual
Public Safety Impact Fee
For the Year Ended June 30, 2015

2015 2014
Variance with
Final Budget -
Budgeted Amounts Positive
Original Final Actual (Negative) Actual
Revenues
Investment ncome (loss) $ - 3 - 8 48,908 $ 48,908 §$ 22,791
Other 315,000 315,000 264,900 (50,100) 368,511
Total revenues 315,000 315,000 313,808 (1,192) 391,302
Expenditures
Current
Police - 505,000 15,035 489,965 -
Total expenditures E 505,000 15,035 489,965 -
Revenues over (under) expenditures 315,000 (190,000) 298,773 488,773 391,302
Net change in fund balance 315,000 (190,000) 298,773 488,773 391,302
Fund balance, beginning of year 1,020,278 1,020,278 1,020,278 - 628,976
Fund balance, end of year $ 1,335,278 § 830,278 § 1,319,051 §$ 488,773 § 1,020,278
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City of Las Cruces
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in
Fund Balance—Budget and Actual
Affordable Housing Trust
For the Year Ended June 30, 2015

2015 2014
Variance with
Final Budget -
Budgeted Amounts Positive
Original Final Actual (Negative) Actual
Other Financing Sources (Uses)

Transfers in $ 100,000 $ 100,000 $ 100,000 § = 300,000
Total other financing sources (uses) 100,000 100,000 100,000 - 300,000
Net change in fund balance 100,000 100,000 100,000 - 300,000

Fund balance, beginning of year = - 300,000 - -
Fund balance, end of year $ 100,000 $ 100,000 § 400,000 $ B 300,000
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City of Las Cruces
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in
Fund Balance—Budget and Actual
Alarm Fee
For the Year Ended June 30, 2015

2015 2014
Variance with
Final Budget -
Budgeted Amounts Positive
Original Final Actual (Negative) Actual
Revenues
Fees $ - % 162500 $ 0 117,500 § (45,000) $§ 101,055
Total revenues - 162,500 117,500 (45,000) 101,055
Expenditures
Current
General government - 162,500 117,500 45,000 101,053
Total expenditures - 162,500 117,500 45,000 101,055
Revenues over (under) expenditures - - = - -
Net change in fund balance - - - - B
Fund balance, beginning of year = % = = =
Fund balance, end of year $ - $ - 3 - 3 - $ -
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Capital Projects Funds

Capital projects funds are used to account for the acquisition and construction of major capital
facilities other than those financed by proprietary funds.

HUD Facilities Projects — To provide financing for the acquisition and rehabilitation of the
Museum of Nature and Science on Main Street in downtown Las Cruces. The source of funding
is from HUD grants and Section 108 loans.

Public Parks Development — To provide for the establishment of parks and miniparks within
subdivisions. The source of funding is from state grants, interest earnings, and charges to
subdividers. If the parks using subdivision funds have not been started within a three-year period,
the charges revert to the subdividers.

Street Improvement — To provide for the paving or improvements to streets. The source of
funding is from a state grant and interest earned on investments.

Airport Improvement — To provide for the financing and construction of projects at the airport.
The source of funding is from federal grants, state grants, and local matching funds.

Sales Tax—Street Maintenance — To provide for street repaving projects. The source of funding is
one-quarter percent municipal gross receipts tax.

Flood Control — To construct a detention pond for the purpose of flood control and to serve as
recreation as part of a multi-sport complex to include baseball, softball, and soccer fields. The
source of funding is from the New Mexico Finance Authority.

Capital Improvement Reserve — To provide for the purchase of land and additions or
improvements to city facilities. The source of funding is net profit on sales of securities.

Legislative Capital Improvements — To provide for the purchase of capital improvements
approved by legislation.

State Capital Improvements — To provide for the purchase of capital improvements from state
funding.

EDA West Mesa Industrial Park — To provide for the financing and construction of
improvements, including installation of access roads and utilities for the airport and industrial
complex. The source of funding is federal grants, local matching funds, rental income, and
proceeds from the sale of land.

2003 Sales Tax Facilities and Parks — To provide for facilities/park improvements. The source
of funding is the 2005 Gross Receipts Tax Refunding Revenue Bonds.

NMFA Loans Equipment Acquisition — To provide for well improvements.

2003 Sales Tax Street Lights — To provide for the acquisition of street lighting systems. The
source of funding is the 2005 Gross Receipts Tax Refunding Revenue Bonds.

2005 Gross Receipts Tax Public Improvements — To account for various public improvements.
The source of funding is the 2005 Sales Tax Bond.
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Capital Projects Funds

— continued —

Las Cruces Convention Center — To provide for the design, construction, and equipping of the
Las Cruces convention center. The source of funding is a New Mexico Finance Authority loan.

NMFA Street Improvements — To provide for the paving or improvements to streets. The source
of funding is from New Mexico Finance Authority loans.

Stimulus Capital Projects — To account for various public improvements. The source of funding
is from the American Recovery and Reinvestment Act.

NMFA Parking Deck — To provide for the financing and construction of a parking deck and other
capital structures. The source of funding is from the New Mexico Finance Authority.

TIDD Street Projects — To account for the construction, operation, and maintenance of public
infrastructure improvements in the downtown area.

2008 NMFA Griggs/Walnut/Plume — To provide for the construction of the remediation site. The
source of funding is from New Mexico Finance Authority loans.
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City of Las Cruces
Budgetary Comparison for Multiple-Year Capital Projects
For the Year Ended June 30, 2015

Variance
with Project

Appropriations-

Project 2015 Expenditures Positive
Capital Project Fund Appropriations Expenditures Project to Date (Negative)

Facilities General Fund-4001 $ 4,784,741 % 130,194 § 2,049,082 $ 2,735,659
HUD Facilities Projects4010 2,000,000 751,844 2,000,000
Facilities Federal Grants-4011 896,244 42,945 846,244 50,000
Facilities State Grants-4012 6,834,921 622,589 5,556,498 1,278,423
GRT Bond Public Improvements-4010/4023 589,405 149,312 253,362 336,043
Convention Center Project-4024 22,830,445 196,353 22,830,445
GRT Facilities Projects-4026/4028/4029 15,430,512 2,192,647 4,023,392 11,407,120
State Grant Park/Land Improvements-4112 721,994 261,221 354,843 367,151
GRT Street Maintenance-4202 6,534,506 210,591 974,912 5,559,594
Special Street Projects-4205 1,203,061 3,903 475,062 727,999
State Grant Street Improvements4212 3,301,113 39,804 2,680,957 620,156
NMFA Street Projects4213/4214 2,183,024 567,051 2,183,024 -
GRT Streets Projects-4223/4224/4225/4226 15,818,264 4,850,705 7,196,237 8,622,027
Airport Improvement-4300 6,704,897 5,160,279 5,160,279 1,544,618
Flood Control-4400/4401/4413/4414 12,396,439 1,131,888 7,289,368 5,107,071

Total $ 102,229,566 § 16,311,326 $ 63,873,705 $ 38.355.861
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City of Las Cruces
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in
Fund Balance —Budget and Actual
HUD Facilities Projects
For the Year Ended June 30, 2015

2015 2014
Variance with
Final Budget -
Budgeted Amounts Positive
Origmnal Final Actual (Negative) Actual
Revenues
Investment income (loss) ) - 3 - 3 =3 -
Total revenues - = * -
Expenditures
Capital outlay = - = - 80,099
Tolal expenditures - = = = 80,099
Revenues over (under) expenditures = - = - (80,097)
Net change in fund balance - - - - (80,097)
Fund balance, beginning of year 430 430 430 - 80,527
Fund balance, end of year $ 430 $ 430 $ 430 $ - 430
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City of Las Cruces

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in

Revenues

Fines and fees

Investment income (loss)

Intergovernmental - State
Total revenues

Expenditures
Current
Public works
Capital outlay
Total expenditures
Revenues over (under) expenditures

Net change in fund balance
Fund balance, beginning of year

Fund balance, end of year

Public Parks Development

Fund Balance —Budget and Actual

For the Year Ended June 30, 2015

2015 2014
Variance with
Final Budget -
Budgeted Amounts Positive
Original Final Actual (Nepative) Actual

500,000 $ 500,000 $ 548,640 § 48,640 § 560,600
30,500 30,500 67,392 36,892 32,445
274,625 877,125 215,583 (661,542) 261,221
805,125 1,407,625 831,615 (576,010) 854,266
- . 730 (730) -
1,684,362 2,311,335 515,734 1,795,601 431,827
1,684,362 2,311,335 516,464 1,794,871 431,827
(879,237) (903,710) 315,151 1,218,861 422,439
(879,237) (903,710) 315,151 1,218,861 422,439
1,346,976 1,346,976 1,346,976 - 924,537
467,739 $ 443,266 $ 1,662,127 $ 1,218,861 § 1,346,976
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City of Las Cruces
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in
Fund Balance —Budget and Actual
Street Improvement
For the Year Ended June 30, 2015

2015 2014
Variance with
Final Budget -
Budgeted Amounts Positive
Original Final Actual (Negative) Actual
Revenues
Investment income (loss) $ 17,000 $ 17,041 § 42,680 % 25,639 $ 65,733
Other - s 2,437 2,437 730,537
Intergovernmental -State 478,464 3,008,386 696,452 (2,311,934) (67,041)
Total revenues 495,464 3,025,427 741,569 (2,283,858) 729229
Expenditures
Current
Public works 3,000 3,000 2,060 940 2,133
Capital outlay 1,178,464 3,733,385 696,452 3,036,933 (57,922)
Total expenditures 1,181,464 3,736,385 698,512 3,037,873 (55,789)
Revenues over (under) expenditures (686,000) (710,958) 43,057 754,015 785,018
Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Transfers in = - - - 39,500
Transfers out . (86,534) (86,489) 45 (737,587)
Total other financing sources (uses) - (86,534) (86,489) 45 (698,087)
Net change in fund balance (686,000) (797,492) (43,432) 754,060 86,931
Fund balance, beginning of year 1,029,183 1,029,183 1,029,183 - 942,252
Fund balance, end of year $ 343,183 § 231,691 §$ 985,75_1‘ 3 754,060 § 1,029,183
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Revenues
Investment income (loss)
Other

Intergovernmental - Federal
Intergovernmental - State

Total revenues

Expenditures
Current
Transportation

Capital outlay

Total expenditures

Revenues over (under) expenditures

Net change i fiund balance

Fund balance, beginning of year

Fund balance, end of year

City of Las Cruces
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Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in

Fund Balance —Budget and Actual
Airport Improvement
For the Year Ended June 30,2015

2015 2014
Variance with
Fal Budget -
Budgeted Amounts Positive
Original Final Actual (Negative) Actual
$ 20,000 $ 6,000 §$ 19,008 $ 13,008 $ 12,846
1,125,208 - - -

- 361,400 173,931 (187,469) -
537,292 62,572 50,267 (12,305) 511,683
1,682,500 429,972 243,206 (186,766) 524,529
- 390,475 130,007 260,468 8,964
1,425,208 33,497 33,497 - 502,689
1,425,208 423,972 163,504 260,468 511,653
257,292 6,000 79,702 73,702 12,876
257,292 6,000 79,702 73,702 12,876
24,532 24,532 24,532 - 11,656
$ 281,824 § 30,532 % 104,234 §$ 73,702 $ 24,532
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City of Las Cruces
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in
Fund Balance —Budget and Actual
Sales Tax—Street Maintenance
For the Year Ended June 30, 2015

- 2015 2014
Variance with
Fmal Budget -
Budgeted Amounts Positive
Original Final Actual (Negative) Actual

Revenues
Investment income (loss) $ 55,000 % 55,000 $ 160,614 § 105,614 $ (1,308)
Other 250,000 250,000 197,107 (52,893) 143,139

Total local taxes 305,000 305,000 357,721 52,721 141,831
Other - = = - -

Total revenues 305,000 305,000 357,721 52,721 141,831
Expenditures
Current

Public works - - = - -

Capital outlay 3,442,974 13,181,196 4,184,373 8,996,823 5,105,729

Total expenditures 3,442,974 13,181,196 4,184,373 8,996,823 5,105,729

Revenues over (under) expenditures (3,137,974) (12,876,196) (3,826,652) 9,049,544 (4,963,898)
Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Issuance of Debt - 8,000,000 8,000,000 - -
Bond Premium - 203,173 203,173 - -
Debt Issuance Cost - (99,790) (99,789) [€)) -
Sale of capital assets - - 2,749 2,749 2,749
Transfers in - 1,900,887 1,900,887 - 2,388,000
Transfers out = (30,500 (30,500) = =

Total other financing sources (uses) = 9,973,770 9,976,520 2,748 2,390,749

Net change in fund balance (3,137,974) (2,902,426) 6,149,868 9,052,292 (2,573,149)
Fund balance, beginning of year 3,051,992 3,051,992 3,051,992 - 5,625,141
Fund balance, end of year $ (85,982) § 149,566 $ 9,201,860 $ 9,052,292 § 3,051,992
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City of Las Cruces
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in
Fund Balance —Budget and Actual
Flood Control
For the Year Ended June 30, 2015

2015 2014
Variance with
Final Budget -
Budgeted Amounts Positive
Original Final Actual (Negative) Actual

Revenues
Property taxes $ - $ - 8 -3 - $ -
Investment income (loss) 10,000 10,072 98,179 88,107 56,965
Other 35,000 35,000 214 (34,786) 90,771

Total revenues 45,000 45,072 98,393 53,321 147,736
Expenditures
Current

Public works - - - - -

Capital outlay 2,438,653 5,088,360 2,458,148 2,630,212 1,131,888

Total expenditures 2,438,653 5,088,360 2,458,148 2.630,212 1,131,888

Revenues over (under) expenditures (2,393,653) (5,043,288) (2,359,755) 2,683,533 (984,152)
Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Issuance of debt - 1,500,000 1,500,000 - -
Bond premium 29,29} 29,290 [€))
Debt issuance cost - (18,711) (18,711) - -
Transfers in 900,000 900,000 900,000 - 1,207,765
Transfers out - (12,291) (12,290) [0))] (430,385)

Total other financing sources (uses) 900,000 2,398,289 2,398,289 (2) 777,380

Net change in fund balance (1,493,653) (2,644,999) 38,534 2,683,531 (206,772)
Fund balance, beginning of year 2,573,393 2,573,393 2,573,393 - 2,780,165
Fund balance, end of year $ 1,079,740 §$ (71,606) $ 2,611,927 § 2,683,531 § 2,573,393
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City of Las Cruces

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in
Fund Balance —Budget and Actual
Capital Improvement Reserve
For the Year Ended June 30, 2015

Revenues

Investment ncome (loss)
Other

Total revenues

Expenditures
Current
Public works

Capital outlay
Total expenditures
Revenues over (under) expenditures
Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Transfers in
Transfers out
Total other financing sources (uses)
Net change in fund balance
Fund balance, beginning of year as restated

Fund balance, end of year

- 2015 2014
Variance with
Fmal Budget -
Budgeted Amounts Positive
Original Final Actual (Negative) Actual
h) 60,000 § 60,000 $ 175,135 § 115,135 % 59,415
20,000 20,000 41,264 21,264 33,107
80,000 80,000 216,399 136,399 92,522
259,587 306,674 125,883 180,791 32,588
2,400,404 2,494,505 1,554,768 939,737 823,104
2,659,991 2,801,179 1,680,651 1,120,528 855,692
(2,579,991) (2,721,179) (1,464,252) 1,256,927 (763,170)
2,000,000 2,000,000 2,000,000 337,279
- (2,046,621) (2,046,621) - -
2,000,000 (46,621) (46,621) - 337,279
(579,991) (2,767,800) (1,510,873) 1,256,927 (425,891)
3,326,429 3,326,429 3,326,429 - 3,752,320
3 2,746,438 $ 558,629 $ 1,815,556 $ 1256927 $ 3,326,429
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347

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in
Fund Balance —Budget and Actual
Legislative Capital Improvements
For the Year Ended June 30, 2015

Revenues
Intergovernmental - Federal

Total revenues

Expenditures
Current

Public works

Capital outlay

Total expenditures
Revenues over (under) expenditures
Net change in fund balance

Fund balance, beginning of year

Fund balance, end of year

2015 2014
Variance with
Fmnal Budget -
Budgeted Amounts Positive
Original Final Actual (Negative) Actual
) 50,000 % 50,000 $ 15150 § (34,850) $ 42,945
50,000 50,000 15,150 (34,850) 42,945
50,000 50,000 15,150 34,850 42,945
50,000 50,000 15,150 34,850 42,945
$ - § - 8 - - 3 =
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City of Las Cruces

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in
Fund Balance —Budget and Actual
State Capital Improvements
For the Year Ended June 30, 2015

2015 2014

Variance with
Fmal Budget -

Budgeted Amounts Positive
Original Final Actual (Negative) Actual
Revenues
Intergovernmental - State $ 1,198,220 $ 1,757,873 $ 1,103,469 §$ (654,404) § 622,589
Total revenues 1,198,220 1,757,873 1,103,469 (654,404) 622,589
Expenditures
Current
Capital outlay 1,198,220 1,757,873 1,103,469 654,404 622,589
Total expenditures 1,198,220 1,757,873 1,103,469 654,404 622,589
Revenues over (under) expenditures - - = - -
Net change in fund balance - - - - "
Fund balance, beginning of year - - = - -
Fund balance, end of year $ - 3 - $ - 3 - $ -
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City of Las Cruces

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in

Revenues
Investment income (loss)
Other

Total revenues

Expenditures
Current

Public works
Capital outlay

Total expenditures

Revenues over (under) expenditures

Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Sales of capital assets
Transfer out

Total other financing sources (uses)

Net change in fund balance
Fund balance, beginning of year

Fund balance, end of year

Fund Balance —Budget and Actual
EDA West Mesa Industrial Park
For the Year Ended June 30, 2015

2015 2014
Variance with
Final Budget -
Budgeted Amounts Positive
Origmal Final Actual (Negative) Actual
3 15,000 $ 15,000 $ 59,234 § 44,234 § 25,155
100,000 100,000 180,435 80,435 138,358
115,000 115.000 239,669 124,669 163.513
- - - - 1,608
380,000 380,000 - 380,000 -
380,000 380,000 - 380,000 1,608
(265,000) (265,000) 239,669 504,669 161,905
= 5 . - (120,000)
- = - - (120,000)
(265,000) (265,000) 239,669 504,669 41,905
1,281,578 1,281,578 1,281,578 E 1,239,673
$ 1,016,578 § 1,016,578 § 1,521,247 $ 504,669 § 1,281,578
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City of Las Cruces
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in
Fund Balance —Budget and Actual
2003 Sales Tax Facilities and Parks
For the Year Ended June 30, 2015

2015 2014

Variance with
Final Budget -

Budgeted Amounts Positive
Original Final Actual (Negative) Actual
Revenues
Investment income $ 10,000 $ 10,000 $ 53,544 § 43,544 § 6,985
Total revenues 10,000 10,000 53,544 43 544 6,985
Expenditures
Current
Public works 100,000 - 19,308 (19,308) 136,409
; 896,149 11,292,697 250,463 11,042,234 2,277,029
Capital outlay
Total expenditures 996,149 11,292,697 269,771 11,022,926 2,413,438
Revenues over (under) expenditures (986,149) (11,282,697) (216,227) 11,066,470 (2,406,453)
Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Issuance of debt - 10,000,000 10,000,000 - -
Bond premum - 444 431 444,431 - -
Debt issuance cost - (105,000) (105,000) 5 =
Total other financing sources (uses) - 10,339,431 10,339,431 - -
Net change in fund balance (986,149) (943,266) 10,123,204 11,066,470 (2,406,453)
Fund balance, beginning of year 954,527 954,527 954,527 - 3,360,980
Fund balance, end of year 3 (31,622) § 11,261 $ 11,077,731 $§ 11,066470 §$ 954,527
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City of Las Cruces
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in
Fund Balance —Budget and Actual
NMFA Loans Equipment Acquisition
For the Year Ended June 30, 2015

B 2015 2014
Variance with
Final Budget -
Budgeted Amounts Positive
Origmnal Final Actual (Negative) Actual
Revenues
Investment income (loss) 3 - 3 - 8 234§ 234 %
Total revenues - - 234 234
Expenditures
Capital outlay - 425,000 - 425,000
Total expenditures - 425,000 ~ 425,000
Revenues over (under) expenditures : (425,000) 234 425,234
Other Financing Sources (Uses)
[ssuance of debt - 443,325 443,325 -
Debt issuance cost - (18,325) (18,325) -
Total other financing sources (uses) = 425,000 425,000 -
Net change m fund balance - - 425,234 425,234
Fund balance, beginning of year - = B =
Fund balance, end of year ) - 3 - 8 425,234 § 425234 §
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City of Las Cruces
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in
Fund Balance —Budget and Actual
2003 Sales Tax Street Lights
For the Year Ended June 30,2015

2015 2014
Variance with
Final Budget -
Budgeted Amounts Positive
Original Fmnal Actual (Negative) Actual
Revenues
Investment income (loss) $ - 3 - 38 ) - 1,254
Total revenues - £ - 1,254
Expenditures
Capital outlay - 45,714 45,713 | 25,340
Total expenditures ¥ 45,714 45,713 ! 25,340
Revenues over (under) expenditures - 45,714 (45,713) | (24,086)
Net change in fund balance - (45,714) (45,713) 1 (24,086)
Fund balance, beginning of year 45,457 45,457 45,457 - 69,543
Fund balance, end of year $ 45,457 % 257) $ 256) $ 1 45,457
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City of Las Cruces

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in
Fund Balance —Budget and Actual
2005 Gross Receipts Tax Public Improvements
For the Year Ended June 30,2015

Revenues
Investment income (loss)
Total revenues

Expenditures
Community development
Capital outlay

Total expenditures

Revenues over (under) expenditures

Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Transfers in

Total other financing sources (uses)

Net change mn fund balance
Fund balance, beginning of year

Fund balance, end of year

2015 2014
Variance with
Final Budget -
Budgeted Amounts Positive
Origmnal Final Actual (Negative) Actual
5 5,000 3§ 5,000 $ 11,776 § 6,776 9,381
5,000 5,000 11,776 6,776 9,381
- - - - 5378
312,643 336,043 163,889 172,154 143,934
312,643 336,043 163,889 172,154 149312
(307,643) (331,043) (152,113) 178,930 (139,931)
N a - - 2,778
- - s - 2,778
(307,643) (331,043) (152,113) 178,930 (137,153)
322,965 322,965 322,965 - 460,118
$ 15,322 % (8,078) $ 170,852 $ 178,930 322,965
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City of Las Cruces
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in
Fund Balance —Budget and Actual
Las Cruces Convention Center
For the Year Ended June 30, 2015

2015 2014
Variance with
Final Budget -
Budgeted Amounts Positive
Origmnal Final Actual (Negative) Actual
Revenues
Investment income (loss) $ - 5 - § 30,029 § 30,029 $ 8,965
Total revenues - - 30,029 30.029 8,965
Expenditures
Current
Public works . 4,500 3,020 1,480 -
Capital outlay = - = 5 196,353
Total expenditures - 4,500 3,020 1,480 196,353
Revenues over (under) expenditures - (4,500) 27,009 31,509 (187,388)
Net change in fund balance - (4,500) 27,009 31,509 (187,388)
Fund balance, beginning of year 511,045 511,045 511,045 - 698,433
Fund balance, end of year $ 511,045 § 506,545 $ 538,054 $ 31,509 § 511,045
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City of Las Cruces

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in

Revenues
Investment income (loss)

Total revenues

Expenditures
Current
Public works
Capital outlay
Total expenditures

Revenues over (under) expenditures

Net change in fund balance

Fund balance, beginning of year

Fund balance, end of year

Fund Balance —Budget and Actual

NMFA Street Improvements

For the Year Ended June 30, 2015

2015 2014
Variance with
Final Budget -
Budgeted Amounts Posttive
Original Final Actual (Negative) Actual
$ - 3 9% 3 19,360 § 19,264 (304)
B 96 19,360 19,264 (304)
- 16,258 16,258 - 46,834
- 16,258 16,258 = 46,834
- (16,162) 3,102 19,264 (47,138)
- (16,162) 3,102 19,264 (47,138)
(3,102) (3,102) (3,102) - 44,036
$ (3,102) § (19,264) $ - § 19,264 (3,102)

201



City of Las Cruces

356

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in
Fund Balance —Budget and Actual

Revenues
Investment ncome (loss)

Total revenues

Expenditures
Total expenditures
Revenues over (under) expenditures

Net change in fund balance

Fund balance, beginning of year

Fund balance, end of year

Stimulus Capital Projects

For the Year Ended June 30,2015

2015 2014
Variance with
Fmal Budget -
Budgeted Amounts Positive
Original Final Actual (Negatve) Actual

$ - § - $ 1,697 §$ 1,697 781
= e 1,697 1,697 781
- - 1,697 1,697 781
- - 1,697 1,697 781
781 781 781 - ~
$ 781 § 781 § 2478 § 1,697 781
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City of Las Cruces
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in
Fund Balance —Budget and Actual
TIDD Street Projects
For the Year Ended June 30,2015

2015 2014
Variance with
Final Budget -
Budgeted Amounts Positive
Original Final Actual (Negative) Actual
Revenues
Tnvestment income (loss) $ - 3 - 3 1,141 § 1141 § 204
Total revenues - - 1,141 1,141 204
Expenditures
Capital outlay - 4,800,000 . 4,800,000 >
Total expenditures - 4,800,000 = 4,800,000 -
Revenues over (under) expenditures - (4,800,000) 1,141 4,801,141 204
Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Issuance of debt - 4,800,000 4,800,000 - -
Debt issuance cost - - - - -
Total other financing sources (uses) - 4,800,000 4,800,000 - -
Net change in fund balance - (4,800,000) 4,801,141 4,801,141 204
Fund balance, beginning of year 9,600 9,600 9,600 - 9,396
Fund balance, end of year $ 9,600 $ (4,790,400) § 4,810,741 3 4,801,141 § 9,600
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Schedules of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in
Net Position —Budget and Actual—Proprietary Funds

Enterprise Funds

Gas

Water

Wastewater

Solid Waste

Transit

Alternative Fuel Station

Clean Community Commission

® & 6 ¢ ¢ o o

Internal Service Funds
+ Internal Services
+ Self-Insurance
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City of Las Cruces
Schedule of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Fund Net Position-Budget and Actual
Gas Fund
For the Year Ended June 30,2015

2015 2014
Variance with
Final Budget -
Budgeted Amounts Positive
Original Final Actual (Negative) Actual
Operating Revenues
Sales/charges $ 24792486 $ 24384254 $ 22,939,107 $ (1,445,147) § 25,419,357
Provision for uncollectible accounts (177,990) (174,928) (121,918) 53,010 (38,000)
Net sales/charges 24,614 496 24209,326 22,817,189 (1,392,137) 25,381,357
Utility extension/service fee 200,000 200,000 232,599 32,599 225,373
Other 10,000 10,000 38,915 28,915 9,647
Total operating revenues 24,824 496 24,419,326 23,088,703 (1,330,623) 25,616,377
Cost of gas purchased (13,582,121) (13,582,121) (12,354,195) 1,227,926 (14,697,387)
Gross margin 11,242,375 10,837,205 10,734,508 (102,697) 10,918,990
Operating Expenses
Personnel services 3,571,858 3,571,538 3,144,874 426,664 3,294,273
Supplies 368,000 368,450 196,326 172,124 213,810
Utilties 20,350 18,970 14,859 4,111 17,365
Professional services 805,918 855,893 360,084 495,809 436,422
Repairs and maintenance 1,329,614 1,328,990 938,261 390,729 1,011,572
Rent 3,000 3,000 277 2,723 3,772
Depreciation and amortization 2,346,521 2,229,854 2,221,998 7,896 2,207,349
Payment in lieu of taxes 632,885 632,885 659,206 (26,321) 642,407
Administrative charges fom other funds 641,405 641,405 641,405 - 578,320
Customer service 2,657,653 2,723,120 2,242,722 480,398 2,133,909
Insurance 332,855 332,855 323,029 9,826 349,546
Other 41,200 41,200 33,078 8,122 67914
Total operating expenses 12,751,259 12,748 200 10,776,119 1,972,081 10,956,659
Operating income (loss) (1,508,884) (1,910,995) (41,611) (2,074,778) (37,669)
Non-ope rating Revenues (Expenses)
Gain (loss) on sale of capital assels - - 1,617 1,617 12,637
Investment income (loss) 246,632 246,632 709,870 463,238 329,586
Interest expense (15,000) (15,000) - 15,000 -
Total non-operating revenues (expenses) 231,632 231,632 711,487 479,855 342,223
Income (loss) before transfers (1,277,252) (1,679,363) 669,876 (1,594,923) 304,554
Capital contributions 150,000 150,000 32,748 117,252 8.167
Change in fund nel position (1,127,252) (1,529,363) 702,624 (1,477,671) 312,721
Fund net position, begining of year 42,746,001 42,746,001 42,746,001 : 42,433,280
Restatement (Note 21) % - (2,716,136) (2,716,136) —
Net position, beginning of year restated 42,746,001 42,746,001 40,029,865 (2,716,136) 42433280
Net position, end of year $ 41,618,749 $ 41216638 $ 40,732,489 $  (4,193,807) $ 42,746,001
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360

Schedule of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Fund Net Position-Budget and Actual
Water Fund
For the Year Ended June 30, 2015

Operating Revenues

Sales/charges

Provision for uncollectible accounts
Net sales/charges

Utility extension/service fee

Rentals

Other

Net operating revenues
Cost of water

Gross margin

Operating Expenses
Personnel services

Supplies

Utilities

Professional services

Repairs and maintenance
Rent

Depreciation and amortization
Payment in lieu of taxes
Administrative charges from other funds
Customer service

Insurance

Other

Total operating expenses

Operating income

Non-operating Revenues (Expenses)

Gain (loss) on sale of capital assets
[nvestment income (Joss)
Gurants - federal

[nterest expense

Tolal non-operating revenues (expenses)

Income (loss) before contributions and  transters

Capilal contributions
Transters in

Tiansfers out
Transters, net
Change in fund net position
Fund net position, beginning ol year
Restatement (Note 21)
Net position, beginning of ycar restated

Net position, end of year

2015 2014
Varance with
Final Budget -
Budgeted Amounts Positive
Original Final Actual (Nepative ) Actual
$ 15957,182 $ 15957,182 § 15,079,195 § (877,987) 14,632,184
(111,488) (111,488) 37,153 148,641 (28,000)
15,845,694 15,845.694 15,116,348 (729,346) 14,604,184
75.000 75.000 105,811 30,811 105,976
12,795 12,795 1,369 (11,426) -
110,000 110,000 142,066 32,066 113,133
16,043,489 16,043.489 15,365,594 (677,895) 14,823,293
(204,000) (204,000) (179.097) 24,903 (121,978)
15,839,489 15,839,489 15,186,497 (652,992) 14,701,315
2,852,038 2,848,939 2,580,341 268,598 2,535,590
705,890 617,211 522,054 95,157 449,998
1,731,038 1,761,081 1,565,473 195,608 1,786,921
2,246,424 2,197.216 1,800,646 396,570 1,260,808
1,491,011 1,554,661 1,588,838 (34,177) 1,373,666
37,000 36,159 21,796 14,363 28,734
2,490,577 2,340,929 2,348,500 (7,571) 2,330,311
590,930 590,930 579,544 11,386 560,658
651,149 651,149 651,149 - 559,023
2,297,380 2,350,719 1,940,164 410,555 1,742,635
198,795 198,795 191,148 7,647 214,236
21,850 27.680 9,725 17,955 64,708
15,314,082 15,175,469 13,799,378 1,376,091 12,907,288
525,407 664,020 1,387,119 (2,029,083) 1,794,027
- - 20,281 20,281 15,059
316,223 350,523 848,056 497,533 420,223
- 241117 - (241,117) -
(1,062,500) (1,228.520) (1,209,453) 19,067 (1,413,725)
(746,277) (636,880) (341,116) 295,764 (978,443)
(220,870) 27,140 1,046,003 (1,733,319) 815,584
400,000 400.000 139,312 (260,688) 173,185
314.535 314.535 314,535 - 293,308
(406,784) (406,784) 406,784 .
(92,249) (92,249) 314,535 406,784 293,308
86,881 334 891 1,499,850 (1,587,223) 1,282,077
79,470,910 79,470910 79,470,910 - 78,188,833
= _ - (1,896,092) (1,896,092} -
79,470,910 79,470,910 77,574,818 (1,896,092) 78,188,833
$ 79,557,791 $ 79,805.801 $ 79,074,668 $ (3,483315) $ 79,470,910
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Operating Revenues

Sales/charges
Provision for uncollectible accounts

Net sales/charges

Line extension/service fee
Other

Total operating revenues

Operating Expenses

Personnel services

Supplies

Utllities

Professional services

Repairs and maintenance
Rent

Depreciation and amortization
Payment in lieu of taxes
Administrative charges from other funds
Custonier service

Insurance

Other

Total operating expenses
Operating incorme

Non-operating Revenues (Expenses)

Gain (loss) on sale of capital assets
Investment income (loss)
Grants - state

Interest expense

Total non-operating revenues (expenses)
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City of Las Cruces
Schedule of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Fund Net Position-Budget and Actual

Wastewater Fund
For the Year Ended June 30, 2015

Income (loss) before contributions and transfers

Capital contributions
Transfers in
Transfers, net

Change in fund net position
Fund net position, beginning of year
Restatement (Note 21)
Net position, beginning ot year restated

Net position, end ol year

2015 B 2014
Vanance with
Final Budget -
Budgeted Amounts Posilive

Original Final Actual (Negalive) Actual
$ 11,982,762 § 11,982,762 § 11,486,287 % (496,475) § 11,804,010
(79,276) (79,276) (23,052) 56,224 (3.000)
11,903,486 11,903,486 11,463,235 (440,251) 11,801,010
20,000 20,000 9,240 (10,760) 65,649
40,000 40,000 84,754 44,754 103,328
11,963.486 11,963,486 11,557,229 (406,257) 11.969,987
2,667,812 2,670,149 2,457,110 213,039 2,512,018
861,275 973,206 913,849 59,357 762,179
898,805 985,660 897,195 88,465 895,271
1,215,923 1.117,279 652,785 464,494 606,679
862,174 879,898 734,641 145,257 758,185
5,000 2,500 2,387 113 4,504
3,307,961 3271,638 3,312,901 (41,263) 3,220,072
519,669 519,669 532,504 (12,835) 514,399
607,938 607,938 607,938 - 547,350
2,181,404 2,234,078 1,829,951 404,127 1,499,530
126,310 126,310 119,288 7,022 149,254
22,078 21,063 (12,224) 33,287 90,188
13,276,349 13,409,388 12,048,325 1,361,063 11,559,629
(1,312,863) (1,445.902) (491,096) (1,767,320) 410,358
- - 13,146 13,146 13,085
271,116 305,416 961,238 655,822 561,430

- 2,250,000 - (2,250,000) -
(853,300) (1,220,306) (1,197,853) _ 28,453 (989.739)
1582,184) 1,329,110 (223,469) (1,552,579) (415,224)
(1,895,047) (116,792) (714,565) (3,319,899) (4,866)
400,000 400,000 121,573 (278,427) 49,516
1,092,309 1,092,309 685,525 (406,784) 639,809
1,492,309 1,492,309 807,098 (406,784) 689,325
(402,738) 1,375,517 92,533 (4,005,110) 684,459
83,226,407 83,226,407 83,226,407 - 82,541,948
- (2,053,475) (2,053,475) 5
83,226,407 83,226,407 81,172,932 (2,053,475) 82,541,948
§ 82,823,669 $ 84601924 $ 81,265465 %  (6,058,585) § 83,226,407
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Operating Revenues

Sales/charges
Provision for uncollectible accounts

Net sales/charges

Other

Net operating revenues

Operating Expenses
Personnel services

Supplies

Utilities

Professional services

Repairs and maintenance
Rent

Depreciation and amortization
Payment in lieu of taxes
Administrative charges from other funds
Customer service

Post closure costs

Insurance

Other

Total operating expenses
Operating income

Non-operating Revenues (Expenses)

Gain (loss) on sale of capilal assets
Investment income (loss)

Interest expense

Total non-operating revenues (expenses)
Income before transters
Transfers in
Transfers, net
Change in fund net position
Fund net position, beginning of year

Restatement (Note 21)

Nel position, beginning of year restated

Net position, end of year
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City of Las Cruces
Schedule of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Fund Net Position-Budget and Actual
Solid Waste Fund
For the Year Ended June 30,2015

2015 2014
Variance with
Final Budget -
Budgeted Amounts Positive
Original Final Actual (Negative) Actual
$ 11,678,202 $ 12,376,776 $ 11,756,914 §  (619,862) § 11,552,275
(191,157) (147,136) (37,485) 109,651 (18,000)
11,487,045 12,229,640 11,719,429 (510,211) 11,534,275
- - 20,961 20,961 54,860
11,487,045 12,229,640 11,740,390 (489,250) 11,589,135
2,359,686 2,446,253 2,238,085 208,168 2,134,735
490,180 494,880 363,090 131,790 233,660
54,912 63,305 38,478 24,827 47,753
5,025,476 4,889,156 4,633,958 255,198 4,333,472
1,202,001 1,294,984 969,295 325,689 1,086,133
1,000 1,000 644 356 28
972,254 851,246 842,887 8,359 715,495
226,663 223,663 276,126 (52,463) 246,571
284,167 284,167 279,965 4,202 239,413
2,146,945 2,199,873 1,767,413 432,460 1,736,389
40,000 40,000 (795,335) 835,335 404,120
215,338 215,338 205,442 9,896 217,957
10,550 10,550 - 10,550 -
13,029,172 13,014,415 10,820,048 2,194,367 11,395,732
(1,542,127) (784,775) 920,342 1,705,117 193,403
- - 77,561 77,561 15,089
114,908 114,908 285,296 170,388 146,780
(50,550) (148,319) (122,084) 26,235 (57,514)
64,358 (33,411) 240,773 274,184 104,355
(1,477,769) (818,186) 1,161,115 1,979,301 297,158
224,207 224,207 224,207 - 208,369
224,207 224,207 224,207 - 208,369
(1,253,562) (593,979) 1,385,322 1,979,301 506,127
8,971,826 8,971,826 8,971,826 - 8,465,699
- - (1,656,867) (1,656,867) -
8,971,826 8,971 826 7,314,959 (1,656,867) 8,465,699
§  7.718260 % 8377847 § 8,700,281 % 322434 § 8,971,826
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City of Las Cruces
Schedule of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Fund Net Position-Budget and Actual
Transit Fund
For the Year Ended June 30, 2015

2015 2014
Variance with
Final Budget -
Budgeted Amounts Positive
____ Original Final Actual (Negative) Actual

Operating Revenues
Sales $ 686,450 $ 698,750 % 617,210 § (81,540) % 720,589
Other - - - 3,288 3,288 16,872

Total operating revenues 686,450 698,750 620,498 (78,252) 737,461
Operating Expenses
Personnel services 2,708,030 3,124,726 2,487,796 636,930 2488363
Supplies 235,734 301,907 85,358 216,549 261,880
Utlities 37,602 43,389 33,968 9,421 27,953
Professional services 102,709 111,024 95,578 15,446 76,498
Motor pool charges - 634,843 474,360 160,483 636,080
Motor fuel 360,984 510,198 389,334 120,864 386,495
Repairs and maintenance 115,472 169,182 125,646 43,536 132,797
Depreciation and amortization 531,448 531,448 607,464 (76,016) 527,995
Insurance 39,942 39,942 39,942 - 39,941
Other 36,000 97,809 48,808 49,001 49,462

Total operating expenses 4,167,921 5,564,468 4,388,254 1,176,214 4,627,464

Operating income (3,481,471) (4,865,718) (3,767,756) 1,097,962 (3,890,003)
Non-operating Revenues (Expenses)
Investment income (loss) - - (7,238) (7,238) 7.238
Grants 3,088,599 4,274,099 2,252,591 (2,021,508) 2.459.354

Total non-operating revenues (expenses) 3,988,599 4,274,099 2,245,353 (2,028,746) 2466.592

Income (loss) before transfers 507,128 (591,619) (1,522,403) (930,784) (1,423,411)
Transfers in 1,225,000 1,718,430 1,718,430 - 2.019,062

Transfers, nel 1,225,000 1,718,430 1,718,430 - 2.019.062

Change i fund net position 1,732,128 1,126,811 196,027 (930,784) 595,651
Fund net position, beginning of year 6,768,619 6,768,619 6,768,619 - 6,172,968
Restatement (Note 21) - - (1,837,030) (1,837,030) =
Net position, beginning of year restated 6,768,619 6,768,619 4,931,589 (1,837,030) 6,172,968
Net position, end of year $ 8,500,747 § 7,895,430 $ 5,127,616 $ (2,767,814 § 6,768,619
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City of Las Cruces
Schedule of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Fund Net Position-Budget and Actual
Alternative Fuel Station Fund
For the Year Ended June 30, 2015

2015 2014
Variance with
Final Budget -
Budgeted Amounts Positive
Original Final Actual (Negative) Actual
Operating Expenses
Pepresiationandameriization $§ 29100 $ 29,100 $ 4692 § 24408 § 4,693
Total operating expenses 29,100 29,100 4,692 24,408 4,693
Loss before transters 29.100 29,100 (4,692) 33,792 (4,693)
Change in fund net position (29,100) (29,100) (4,692) (24,408) (4.693)
Net position, beginning of year 82.509 82,509 82,509 - 87,202
Net position, end of year $ 53,409 § 53,409 § 77,817 § (24,408) § 82,509
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City of Las Cruces

Schedule of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Fund Net Position-Budget and Actual

Operating Revenues
Motor pool charges

Rental charges and other

Total operating revenues

Cost of services

Gross Margin

Operating Expenses
Personnel services
Supplies

Utilities

Professional services
Motor pool charges
Repairs and maintenance
Insurance

Depreciation

Other

Total operating expenses

Operating incone (loss)

Non-operating Revenue (Expense)

Gain (loss) on sale of capital assets

Investment income (loss)

Total non-operating revenue (expense)

Income before transfers

Change in fund net position

Fund net position, beginning of year

Restatement (Note 21)

Net position, beginning of year restated

Net position, end of year

Internal Services Fund

For the Year Ended June 30,2015

2015 2014
Variance with
Fnal Budget -
Budgeted Amounts Positive

Original Final Actual (Negative) Actual
$ 5,801,524 § 5,961,524  $ 4,892,878 §$  (1,068,646) $ 5,375,049
120,000 120,000 100,306 (19,694) 97,325
5,921,524 6,081,524 4,993,184 (1,088,340) 5,472,374
(3,991,000) (3,594,714) (2,946,237) 648,477 (3,740,290)
1,930,524 2,486,810 2,046,947 (439,863) 1,732,084
1,290,259 1,324,114 1,149,417 174,697 1,015,080
99,850 109,859 82,887 26,972 65,926
64,950 69,050 67,294 1,756 59,310
231,650 647,050 532,487 114,563 519,612
25,000 25,000 7,915 17,085 23,128
58,000 102,792 100,888 1,904 60,828
55,000 55,000 55,000 - 55,000
68,000 68,000 22,666 45,334 57,305
15,450 16,250 12,436 3,814 20,523
1,908,159 2,417,115 2,030,990 386,125 1,876,712
22,365 69,695 15,957 (53,738) (144,628)
- - (13,719) (13,719) 10,710
- - (14,848) (14,848) (10,005)
= - (28,567) (28,567) 705
22,365 69,695 (12,610) (82,305) (143,923)
22,365 69,695 (12,610) (82,305) (143,923)
260,777 260,777 260,777 - 404.700
- - (796,878) (796,878) -
260,777 260,777 (536,101) (796,878) 404,700
$ 283,142 § 330,472 § (548,711) § (879,183) § 260,777
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City of Las Cruces

Schedule of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Fund Net Position-Budget and Actual
Self-Insurance Fund
For the Year Ended June 30, 2015

Operating Revenues
Rental charges and other
Charges for insurance

Total operating revenues

Operating Expenses
Personnel services

Supplies

Professional services

Other

Claims and judgments (benefits)

Total operating expenses
Operating mcome (loss)
Non-operating Revenue (Expense)
Investment income (loss)
Total non-operating revenue (expense)

Income before transfers

Transfers in
Transfers out

Transfers, net

Change in fund net position

Fund net position, beginning of year
Restatement (Note 21)
Net position, beginning of year restated

Net position, end of year

2015 2014
Variance with
Fmal Budget -
Budgeted Amounts Positive
Original Final Actual (Negative) Actual
5 918,104 § 918,104 % 1,016,694 $ 98,590 § 1,139,893
2,555,908 2,555,908 6,965,311 4,409,403 2,353,132
3,474,012 3,474,012 7,982,005 4,507,993 3,493,025
152,640 159,913 145,818 14,095 136,759
3,750 3,750 1,804 1,946 2,200
686,700 766,500 531,714 234,786 1,138,502
6,000 6,000 287 5,713 1,502
3,651,131 7,969,131 6,521,498 1,447,633 2,271,721
4,500,221 8,905,294 7,201,121 1,704,173 3,550,684
(1,026,209) (5,431,282) 780,884 (6,212,166) (57,659)
241,570 241,570 897,609 (656,039) 399,313
241,570 241,570 897,609 (656,039) 399,313
(784,639) (5,189,712) 1,678,493 (6,868,205) 341,654
1,577 1,577 1,577 - 1,577
- - - - (788,298)
1,577 1,577 1,577 - (786,721)
(783,062) (5,188,135) 1,680,070 (6,868,205) (445,067)
13,209,246 13,209,246 13,209,246 - 13,654,313
- - (139,913) (139,913) -
13,209,246 13,209,246 13,069,333 (139,913) 13,654,313
$ 12,426,184 §$ 8,021,111 § 14,749,403 § (7,008,118) $§ 13,209,246
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City of Las Cruces

Schedule of Pledged Collateral

June 30, 2015
Maturity  Safe Keeping Market
Institution/Security CUSIP # Date Location Value

Wells Fargo Bank, NA BNY Mellon
FMAC FGPC 3.000% 09/01/26 3128MC4M4  9/1/2026 § 1,271,475
FMAC FGPC 3.500% 04/01/42 31292LFZ3  4/1/2042 161,358
FNMA FNST 1.500% 01/01/34 3136FCDH6  1/1/2034 4,008,371
FNMA FNMS 3.000% 11/01/26 3138ABUK3  11/1/2026 1,530,839
FNMA FNMS 3.000% 06/01/42 3138LXRA9  6/1/2042 525,260
FNMA FNMS 3.000% 05/01/43 3138WQAY8 5/1/2043 24,639,944
FNMA FNMS 4.000% 09/01/43 3138X3XUl  9/1/2043 4,086,488
FNMA FNMS 3.000% 01/01/43 31417EKT7  1/1/2043 7,507,236
FNMS 03.000 CL 3.000% 05/01/43 31417GHW9  5/1/2043 741,882
FNMA FNMS 4.000 10/01/40 31419GP6S  10/1/2040 5,234,305

$ 49,707,158

Summary of Collateralization

Wells Fargo Bank
Ending bank balance
Less: FDIC insurance

Total uninsured public funds

Pledged collateral held by the pledging bank's

trust department in the City's name

100% collateral requirement

Pledged collateral in excess of requirement

Uninsured and uncollaterized

215

$ 45,383,583
(250,000)
$ 45,133,583

$ 49,707,158

45,133,583
5 453575
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City of Las Cruces

Schedule of Deposit Accounts and Investments

June 30, 2015
Type of Pooled Cash Other Cash Total Reconciled On Deposit
Account Account & Investments & Investments Balance 6/30/2015

DEPOSIT ACCOUNTS

Wells Fargo Bank

Community Development Checking 3 - 40,621 40,621 §$ 54,164
Community Development Home Rehab Checking - 22,169 22,169 22,169
Community Development Home Program Checking - 1,356 1,356 1,356
Metro Narcotics Agency Savings - 95,589 95,589 95,589
2006 Water Projects Savings 1,407,894 1,407,894 1,407,894
Fiscal Account SCSWA Savings - 300,341 300,341 300,341
Revenue Bonds Proceeds Savings . 20,835,251 20,835,251 20,835,251
Treasury Fund - Operating Checking 22,636,246 - 22,636,246 22,635,841
Payroll Direct Deposit Account Checking (37,236) - (37,236) -
Accounts Payable Checking (1,342,033) - (1,342,033) -
On Demand Checking 21,620 - 21,620 30,978
Deposttory Checking 67,591 = 67,591 -
Credit Card Checking 15,274 - 15,274 -
Electronic Checking (279,474) - (279,474) -
TOTAL DEPOSIT ACCOUNTS 21,081,988 22,703,221 43.785,209 45,383,583
INVESTMENTS

Wells Fargo Bank

Stagecoach Sweep Repo Sweep 15,234,123 - 15,234,123 -
Wells Fargo Brokerage Services, LLC

FHLB Step 1/24/2028-13 Investment 2911,710 - 2,911,710 -
FNMA Step 12/20/2027-13 Investment 2,957,538 - 2,957,538 -
SDWF MM Investment - 420 420 -
First Tennessee
FHLB Step 10/15/2027-13 Investment 8,780,670 - 8,780,670 -
FHLB Step 10/18/2027-13 [nvestment 11,458,800 - 11,458,800 -
FHLB Step 11/9/2027-13 Investment 7,909,040 - 7,909,040
FHLB Step 5/16/2028-14 Investment 6,852,370 - 6,852,370 -
FFCB 2.99 2/4/2028-14 Investment - 960,260 960,260 -
FHLMC Step 2/4/2030-15 Investment 14,049,195 - 14,049,195 -
FNMA 1.03 1/30/2018-14 Investrnent 1,001 2,485,962 2,486,963 -
FNMA 111/29/2017-13 Investment 9,664 1,584,336 1,594,000 -
FNMA Step 12/13/2027-13 Investment 8,336,435 - 8,356,435 -
FNMA 3,25 9/24/2032-13 Investment - 3,820,000 3,820,000
FNMA Step 9/20/2027-13 Investment 4,780,900 - 4,780,900 -
FNMA Step 9/27/2027-13 Investment 9,899,700 - 9,899,700 -
FNMA Step 10/4/2027-13 Investment 2,963,310 - 2,963,310 -
FNMA Step 7/23/2027-13 Investment 2,885,250 - 2,885,250 -
FNMA Step 8/16/2027-13 Investment 7,729,360 - 7,729,360 -
FNMA Step 8/27/2027-13 Investment 6,886,040 - 6,886,040 -
FNMA Step 8/23/2027-13 Investment 3,885,760 - 3,885,760 -
FNMA Step 8/23/2027-13 Tnvestment 4,851,650 - 4.851,650

FNMA 3 12/19/2031-13 [nvestment - 9,227,500 9,227,500 B
FNMA Step 12/21/2027-13 Investment 7,662,960 - 7,662,960

FNMA Step 1/28/2028-15 Investment 7,174,125 - 7,174,125 -
FNMA 1.05 3/27/2018-13 Investment 1,989 1,758,364 1,760,353 -
FNMA Step 4/28/2028-13 Investment 1,969,080 - 1,969,080 -

(Continued)
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City of Las Cruces

Schedule of Deposit Accounts and Investments — continued

June 30,2015
Type of Pooled Cash Other Cash Total Reconciled
Account Account & Investments & Investments Balance
NM State Investment Council

Large Cap Active Equity Pool Investment $ - 3 7,743,031 § 7,743,031

Large Cap Index Equity Pool Investment - 4,150,201 4,150,201

Non-U.S. Developed Equity Pool Investment - 2,333,432 2,333,432

Mid/Small Cap Equity Pool Investment - 6,687,696 6,687,696
TOTAL INVESTMENTS 139,210,670 40,751,202 179,961,872
TOTAL DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS 160,292,658 63,454,423 223,747,081
Other Cash:
Petty Cash & Change Funds Cash - 12,636 12,636

Bank of Albuquerque

City of Las Cruces TIDD Acq 2014 Program Funds - 4,800,000 4,800,000
New Mexico Finance Authority

2008 IB PP-2102 Debt Service - 90,353 90,353
IB DW-1974 Debt Service - 5 5
2008 B PP-2186 Debt Service - 172,196 172,196
2008 JB PP-2203 Debt Service - 459,912 459,912
JB PP-2248 Debt Service - 2 2
ZD PP-2618 Debt Service - 206,082 206,082
7D PP-2618 Debt Service - 1 1
ZD PP-2634 Debt Service - 102,323 102,323
7D PP-2711 Debt Service - ! 1
ZS PP-3116 Debt Service - 280,150 280,150
D. MST PP-3228 Debt Service - 425,234 425,234
D. MST PP-3252 Program Funds - 2,729,305 2,729,305
Accrued Interest Receivable

Accrued Interest - Pooled Investments Accrued Int 664,651 F 664,651
TOTAL CASH AND INVESTMENTS $§ 160,957,309 $§ 72,732,623 $ 233,689,932
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City of Las Cruces

Schedule of Joints Powers Agreements
June 30, 2015

Respanstble
Panty for
Operatinns

Description

Dena Ana County

New Mexico Stale University

Wala Resource Rescarch Instilule of NMSU. Town of
Mgsilla, Dona Ana County, Ekephant Bulle Irrigation
District, Village uf Halcg, Sanitatie icl. Dona Ana
Mutual Domestic Waltar Consumers Association. Lower
Rio Grande Public Wrxks Water Woiks Authariry

New Mexica Siate Universiry

United States Geological Survey

City ol Las Cruces

Duin Ana County

Town of Msilla

Village of latch

City of Sunbnd Park

City o Anthony

City of Anthamy

White Sands Missil: Rage

Dona Ana Counly

City vl Las Cruces

Federa) Burcau of Investigation (FBI)

Dowis Ans Courily

City i Las Craiees

City of Las Cruces

an Asw Crmniy

T&A Dary Products §

Enagy Noih Amawi

Daona Ana County: Town of Mesilla

Cuv ol |.as Cruces

United States M shuls Service

Iniingration and Custems Enforcement

WRRI ol N

Toth Paries

Buih I'artws

UsGS

MVRDA

MARDA

MARDA

NVRDA

NMYRDA

NVRDA

ASCMY

ASCMY

ASCMV

ASCMY

AMetra

M

Mumm

SCSWA

SCSWA

Bl Pautics

1LCPI>

Lcrn

ey

Griggs Wahut
Graundwata Joint
Superfund Siic

Suplameats) eeanean

Conceming the |
and Sake ol W

NAISU to the

Aivery
o by

Luwa Riv Grande Water
Usurs Organizaticn

Wastewaia Treaunenl and
Nutrient Recovery

Menitori
Groundwalar-llw Svstem
and KU cam-agquifer
Relaiions o the Mesills
Pasw, Dona Ana County,
N and I Paso County.
™

Opaale 3 combined
commuiications center
Operalit 4 sombined
cammunE) Vel
DOpersie-a combined
e aion gentsp
Opatale a cambined
communications center

Operate a cambined
communicalicns center

Provide assistance with off-
site animal shella savices

Do ile manfitznie Witk ulf-
site aninal sheller savices

Pravide assistance with off-
it el e savfiee

Provide assistance with ol1-
ook el ehdiar gorviess

Investipate/prasecute
avenes by which to
et el Wi smuerits
dungerous offenders

Investigale nascente
avenues by which 1o
convich ank memToHse
dangerous offcndias

Investigaleprosecute
avenues by which 1o
conviet and mearcerile
dangerous offeders

Designing. construcling
founcmy operating. and
sy ruyira] st
waste landfills and 1efaied
Tacilities

Designng. consiructmy,

e R el pasbaned
facililies
\ereement for Sak and
Purchase vl Natural Gas

Metropolita Plannmy
Organization -
wansputatin plannmg

Thhar Bt Surccta Vinfoat
Gang Task Furee wil
ariiires the P tissstad
ol federal state local law

aifmcement tesourees
thiough a well cvardinated
l nst

tigative proseeulive
avenues by wl
convicd and incarcers
dangerous olfendu <

T uivestizale ud a
pursuns who have sclve
chabe il Federil wage s

for ther arrest. (hereby
amprovmp public safety and
reducme vioknt crme

The reimbw sanent af
certom overlume expenses
[ e -
«dpenice pie st 1 M
USC 9704

219

Current

Ieginning Ending ruject Year Audit
Date Mate Amaunt Contritutlons  Respnstlility

11222004 nolspecilied  mol specificd  S218.424 B Doth Partics

212 2007 42806 fol spedificd S64.145 46 Thath Parties

2112005 not specified
7172014 42185
952006 Perpetual
9302006 Perpetual
9352006 Perpetual
¥5 2006 Perpemal
9'3:2006 Perpetual
11:1.°201) Perpetual
3/13:2014 3312016

10:20:2014 60 dav nulice

2012

Perpetual

1172012

rpetual

6122013 30 days notice
101 2001 Perpenust
1011 2001 Perpetual
1213199 Trérpeniil
12434954 Terpenal
91 2008 402016
Kby E 20000 90 das notice
613 2003 P el
972010 477
6012010 Perpemal

ot specified

not specificd

S0 000 00

51,487,964 00
S1.319,516 00
543,706 00
526385 00
S120 35200
$55.965 00
$35 per aninal
535 per animal
S901,787 00

S$901 78700

S18.410 85

§225 543 00

116%% Municipal
Svromnental
Sevices Grass

Reccipis Tax (tas

svenues)

1 8% County
TEnvironmental
Services Gross

Recerpts Tax (fa¥

evenues)

5292 per dth
Proportivnally
(he requred
tocal match Jin
Section 112
Plannina Funide

nol specified

aol speciied

Walter Resource
Research Instilue
of NMsU

usaGs

$1,487,964 00

City 0l Las Cruces

$1,319,516 40 City ol Las Cluces

543,706 00  Ciy of Las Cruces
$2638500  Cily of Las Cruces
S120,35200  City of Las Cruces
§55,96500  Cily of Las Cruces
$15.240 00 City of Las Cruces

City ol Las Cruces
$9U1,787.0¢  City of Las Cruces
S1.7R7 00 City vl'las Cruces
518.410.85  Cily of Las Cruces

5225.543.00  Cily il |Las Critees

522554300 Caywlilas Criges

52462535 00 Ciry of las Cruces

$520490 00 Ciy of Las Cruces

51235419539

SIS.843 00 Cin ol Las Cruces

S17 20215 Twih Parlies
Share

515000 00 Himel 3j3tee

Marahk Sevee

Immngration and
Custonis
Fnfrocoment

ot spexilied



City of Las Cruces

374

Schedule of Vendor Information
June 30, 2015

Name and Physical

In-State/ Qut-vf-

Was the vendor
in-state and

Address per the State Vendor chose Veteran's
S Anmmunt procurement (YorN) preference (Yor
of documentation, of (Based on N) For federal
Tvpeaf § Amount of Awarded  Amended  ALL Vendor(s) that Statitory Sunds answer Brief Deseription of
RFBUWRFPH Procurenient  Awarded Vendor Contract Conmtruct r led Definition) NA ti Neape af Work
: 5 3 Indefinite Cosl / 1705 N Valley Di Sie 6 Sccwity Senvices Price
4-13-0 L« ¢ N
1001 i i SecunityScrices Quantity Las Ciuces, NM 88007 i Agrecment
3 Indefmite Cost / 130N Solano Dr Las Seccurity Services Price
-13-001 Y
. Lile SpeuriConegpis Quantits Craces. NM #8001 N Agrecment
. PO Box 91353 AMF - .
Indch L/ . Sulfur Dioxide P
14-15-003 I8 DPC Induslrics, Inc ndcfiniic Cos Albuguerque, NM Y N O O e
Quantity Agrecment
87119
] . Indefinite Cost / 1150 Southvicw Dr El 2014-2015 Hol Mix for
4-13-00: ITB be M Is LP N N/A
pE i Quantity Paso, TX 79928 ¢ Overlay
Cemex- 181 Westgate . -
1415005 1B Ct Las Cruces. NM N N/A -~ el
88005 eny
Hydrology.
Indefinite Cost / 6000 Uptown Blvd NE Hyd - louy and
14-15-007 RFP Tntera. Inc. nacimie st Ste 220 Albuquerque. Y N \;V mg:o ogy an
Quantity NM 87110 ater :{soumcs
Senvices
261) Broadbent Hvdrology,
- John Shomaker & Indefinite Cost/ Parkway NE Hydrogeology and
14-13-007 RFP Associales Quantity Albuguerque. NM ¥ L Water Resources
87107 Services
Hydrology.
A Lee Wilson & Indcfinne Cost / PO Box 931 Santa Fe. Hydrogeology and
14-15-007 RI N Y N - -
? kG Associates Quantity NM 87504 Water Resources
Services
N Standard T Indefnite Cost / 920 SW 6ih Ave Life and Disability
-1 5- N
e piii Company Quantity Portland. OR 97204 NIA Benefits
Cigna (Lifc Ins ol NA) - : -
14-15-013 RFP 900 SW Fifth Ave N N/A e “g;’ D'r“"""”
Portland. OR 97204 nefils
MelLife - 5 Park Plaza . L
14-15-013 RFP Ste 1900 Invine, CA N N/A S -
92614 nefils
UNUM -2211 Congress . NN
14-15-013 RFP Street Portland. ME N N/A Lite “";j D‘{’“""’"
04122 nelits
Voya - 20 Washington . -
14-15-013 RFP Ave So. Minncapolis. N N/A Life “l‘;’ D‘f““’"“’
MN 355401 nefis
14-15-015 B Green Gu}s Indefinite _Cosl / 5638 Lassiter Rd Las v N L:mdfcupmg Matcrials
Landscaping Quantity Cruces. NM #8011 Pricc Agreement
" : 4 . %
14-15-015 ITB Toro Rack Pioducts Indefinite Fosl/ 711 Badger Rd #490 v N lﬂndfeapmg Malcrials
LLC Quantity Organ, NM $8052 Pricc Agreement
Jobe Materials LP - 5 i
14-15-015 ITB 1150 Southview Dr E1 v N o i
Paso. TX 79924 EScReIeEmen
Event Coordination &
N Helping Hands Event - PO Box 15150 Las Logistical Planning - LC
4-13-014 RFP = S125 000 00 Y N = °
Ji15-016 Planning, & Cruccs, NM SR04 Country Music Feslival
2015
N i i ¢ 24006 .
J4e15-030 B Highland Enterpriscs. Indefinitc _Cosll PO Box 2409 Las v N Road Structures and
Inc Quantity Cruces. NM S80(H Improy ements
1415030 B ReFegadelGoRSIIiion indclinilc Fosl 7 PO Box 830 Fn:mcn:s, v N Road Structurcs and
Quantity NM 88033 [mpros cments
14-15-030 ITB Warren Construction. Indcefinite Fosl ! PO Drawer N Mcsilla. v N Road Structures and
Inc Quantily NM 88046 Impros ements
G. Sandoval
o Construction - 2000 E Road Structures and
14-13-030 B Y N
3036 ! Lohman Axc Sic CLas Improvcments
Cruces. NM 8800}
Smith & Aguirre
Construction Co Inc - Road Structures and
14, 5.031 ™ 4 N
[0 ' 2475 Lakeside Dr Las Improvements
Cruces. NM 88003
Continired
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City of Las Cruces

Schedule of Vendor Information (continued)
June 30, 2015

Was the vendor

Name und Physical  In-State/ Ont-of- in-state and
Address per the State Vendor chose Veteran's
S Asivineiit Pprocurement Yor N) preference (Yor
of documentation, vf (Based on N) For federal
Type of § Awniai of Awarded  Amended  ALL Vender(s) that Statusory Sfunds answer  Brief Description of
RFBA/REPY Procurement  Awurded Vendor Cantroct Canbriit cesgronlid Definition) NA the Scope of Work
< 7 P Pl Putip s . 26 Bulterfield Trail Bh d Replacement af East
! 6 NA
Lk B s 6000 El Paso, TX 79906 ] and Center RAS Pumps
Amadu Ave Wesl
- - Smills & Aguiire 2475 Lakeside Dr Las ADA Improvements
L Construction o beuciinm Co o S16507708 Cruces, NM $8005 Y Y (Archuleta Rd 1o
McSwain Dr)

Amador Ave West
ADA DIuprovements
(Archuleta Rd 1o
McSwain Dr)

Rum Censtruction Co
141501 Cunstiuytmt In¢ - PN Box 1B69 Las v T
Cruees, NM 88004

. ; Swmith & Aguisre 2475 Lukeside Dr Las el st Akl
4 & el 269,609 68 Y ¢
s FARMIMEEE e nstuetion Co Ine ey Cruces, NM 88005 W Water Services Project
Bum Construction Co
Nk it Absinical
1415059 Contirucism Ine - PO Box 1869 Las Y ¥ Iusibbod at Abainialas

Waler Senvices Project
Cruces. NM 83004 m——
Salopek/Sunnse

A Mountain
on Sewer

1177 Scopgins Ave Las

506 i Profissi 4,83 J iy
14-13-060 Conslruction i Prolessional SARYB54 19 Cruces, NM 88005 Y " Improvements Projeet
Construction TLC
Phase [
. . Salopek/Sunrisc
Deming Excavating Ine - Subdivision Sewer

1413060 Condlruetan 1716-C W lladley Ave Y L

e e Improvements Project
Phase [
Salopek/$ i
Morrow Enterprises Ine B, di‘i;s":"‘s‘c‘i;'
11540 Constuction - 6325 W Picacho Ave v N

1 .
Las Cruces NM 7 mprovements Project

Phase |
Rencgade Construction Salopek/Sunrise
i § LLC - 20 Crawford Subdivision Sewer
LA Crpnisinn Bivd Las Cruces, NM Y L Improvements Project
83007 Phase 1
Smith & Aguire Salopek/Sunrise
N Conshiuetion Co Ing - Subdivision Sewer
14-15-060 Conitruiiin 2475 Lakeside Dr Las i N Improvements Project
Cruces. NM 88003 Phase [
Salopek/Sunrise

Spartan Construction of
14-15-060 Construction NM1LC-156 WyauDn N NIA
Las Cruces. NM 88001

Subdivision Sewer
Improvements Project

Phase 1
Wesiem Duilling & Salopek/Sunrise
1415060 Construction e op e L2006 v ¥ -
E Fleming Ave Las Improvements Projeet
Cruces, NM 83001 Thase [
e . 1716-C W Tladley Ave I Manehs Witertie
5. : cming Exan ating. Ine 4 N A N
1415067 Construction Deming Essan ating. Ine 5194518 49 oM iy phynda
A Mountain
Profissional )
i Manilia Waterline
1415067 Construction Construction LLC - v N Ft Mt W dadrin
Extensiai
1177 Scopems Ave Las
Cruces, NM BSU05
DuCruss Constructivn
. : 11.6-240 8 Crawford La Mutiehis Watitime
LS Cymiietin B d Las Cruces NM M B Extens itie
#8007
Vighland Enlemnses
R Inc - 643 § Compress La Manthi Wi
1415467 Cipistrusimi Rd Los Cruees NM ¥ N Extunsiiin

HRI05

Monow Enterprises Inc

1415007 Consbrusinm 6525 W Preachio Ave v N 1.a Matrchs Waesfing

a3 Cruces NN $8007 Fensun
Rencgade Constrsction
. . 11.C - 200 Crawford L Wi Wt
V15067 Coinistdliiili o e v N e
RANT
Smith & Agunre
X Construction Co Inc - Ls Matitihs Watrhme
DB Ciurueinlh 2475 Lukeside Dy Las ¥ i Txwrizin

Cruces, NM B8003
Smithen Construction
1415067 Condiruetm [ne - PO Bux 45 Cabally L M
NM &7931

| Manehu Wittwiling
Fxtensmn

Spartan Constsuction ol

1415467 Conetiusiim NM LLC - 136 Wy att [ N W L Manicha Witiabine

1.as Cruces, NM £8001 Fagnsion
Total Contracting Sves
o x47195 il Wit
1415067 Crpstruetim IR v K La Miichis Witeilisie
Albuquerque, NM e h
angs

Continued
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City of Las Cruces
Schedule of Vendor Information (continued)
June 30,2015

Was the vendor

Name and Physical  InState/ Out-uf- in-stute and
Adilress per the State Vendor  chose Veteran's
S Amount procurement (YorN) preference (Yor
of documentation, of (Based on N) For federat
S Amount of Avwarded  Amended  ALL Vendur(s) that Statutory fumds answer  Hrief Description of
REBVREM Avwarifedt Vel Contruct Contract spanded ition) NA the Scape of Wark
. 3 ) Smth & Aguirre 2475 Lakeside Dr Las
215072 it 34741 43 y N Pas ement Replacement
14150 Condtrutian TS AETE $1314,; e v ement Replacenien
Deming Fxcavating Inc -
J4-15.072 Construgiion 3635 Columbus Rd SE v N Pav ement Replacement
Deming. NM 88030
G Sandoval
N Construction - 2000 £
3 e
1415072 Coupstrating Lobman Ave Ste 6 Las Y N Pavement Replacement
Cruces, NM $800
Highland Enterprises
) Inc - 645 § Compress
1415072 Consiiusiam ey Y N Pay ement Replavenient
83005
Renegade Construction
1415072 Comrtruetin Bll"'fhzs‘t:.’::";“}'ﬂ v N Pavement Replacenient
807
- i ; . 24691 La Plaza Ste 240 ERP Pragram Manager
141507 RFP Schafer Consul 542,635 00 | N N 5
12078 hafer Consuling - Dana Paint. CA 92629 A Resolicitation
Enable LLC- 555
141507 RFP Pdorado Bivd Ste 120 N N/A e <"
Broomtield, CO BX121 esulieation
Indetinite Cost 2525 S Telshor Bivd H16- o Thgeatild
1415079 RFP WorkMed In ndetinig, st 108 Las Cruces, NM Y Y ea i ey
Quantity Sunvikes
¥ 38011
Centrul Medical Sves of
) Southern NM - 20 Oceinjlsul Medical
H15079 REP 1A
LIS Lohnmn Ave Las b Serviis
Cruces. NM 83001
Covenant Clinics LLC -
3961 ELohman Ave Ste Occupational Medical
i Y
1152012 BE 33 Las Cruces, NM Y e Senices
8011
Las Gruces Orthopaedic
. Associates. PC 675 Opeupiationtitl Medic.l
E P i !
[0 e Avurida De Mesila Las Y N Senices
Cruces, NM 88005
. Wit Saiids e 1700 10t St East Mieki Publli
| 34130 Cimsirugins S11 050885 19 Y N
el IMSIERE Conutruition e S8 Alamogordo, NM 88310 Saliety Counphex
Bradbury Stanm
Construction. Inc - 7110
East Mesa Publ
1415180 Construction nd SUNW ¥ N S WX
Salcly Conglux
Albuquerque, NM -
%7107
Classic Industries. Inc - )
1415080 Construction 92) Bleimeyer Rd 1as Y N E::F'.\du; “’:"‘_‘
Cruces. NM 83007 Salety Complex
DND Conuactors, Inc -
. o 205 W Boutz Rd Faul Mesa Puble
Ak Rty Puilding 3. Suite B Lus i N Safly Conplex
Cruces, NM 88003
FSA Construchion. Ine «
3435 Girurd Ave NE Fas Mis & Publy
5080 ons ¥ W
1415080 Construction A uqucrane i
7107
3435 Girard Ave NI
. o sci
1415-083 Construction 1SA Construction Ine ST48,006 % Albuguerque. NM Y N GRS
Center Renuvations
%1107
Classic Industrics Inc = 5 -
11508 Constiuction 921 Blewmeyer R Las ¥ N e ——
Cruces. NM 88007 enler Renovations
Siuth Ruofing Inc - et Serite
115083 Constructin 1655 W Preacho Ave ¥ N Cﬂ‘“f“); N " N
1as Cruces, NM 8%005 cnler Renovatons
Tinberland
- P Constnsction, Inc - 1107 » ; Castaieda Service
- onsiruetion Nudsan Silver City, Cenler Renor ations
NM 88062
Warren Constiuction, Castaneda Servi
|1 5083 Canstruction Tuc - PO Dhawer N v N "

Contismesd
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Mesilla. NM 88046
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City of Las Cruces

Schedule of Vendor Information (continued)
June 30, 2015

Was rhe vendor

Name and Physical  InState/ Ont-of in-state and
Address per the State Vendar chase Veteran's
S Awvivwint procirement (YorN) preference (Yor
of documentatton, of (Bused on M) For federal
Typenf S Awount of Awarded  Atiended — ALL Vendor(s) that Statusory Sunds anvwer  Brief Description of
REBYRFPY Procurement __Awarded Vendor Contruct Coutrner responded Definition) NA the Scope of Waork
1415084 NB  TaserIntematonal Inc 9459215 IO NSy N N/A lhécrABmBectall
Scottsdale, AZ 85253 Camera or Equal
. . Musjrow Enlkapiises, . 6525 W Picacho Ave 2014 Gas Rehabiliation
IRE s $715,851 00 v " ;
Ih1102 Fonstruction o > Las Cruces, NM BR007 Project
DuCross Construction
. LLC - 240/'S Crawtord 2014 Gas Retyabilitition
413 “onstrucl Y N s
LEEEI02 iConstmcion Blvil Las Cruces. NM Projedt
83007
Highland Enterprises
- ) Inc - 645 S Compress 2014 Gas Rebabslitation
1415102 Construct Y N
- enstruction R¢ Las Cruces. NM Projuet
88005
KR Swerdfeger
. Constuction. Inc - 421 2014 Gas Rehubilibiting
41310 Construct . N N
115102 onstuction Industriai Bivd Pusblo Projit
West, CO 81007
Mormow Enterpnses Inc
: 2004 Gan Reliald
1415102 Construction 6525 W Picacho Ave Y N mr:;-“: e
Las Cruces NM 88007 .
Smith & Aguire
. . Construction Co Inc - 2014 Gas Reliabilitalion
14-15-102 Construction 2475 1akeside Dr Las Y N Projtt
Cruces, NM 88005
A Mounian
7 i S s
1415103 Construction Professional 531884983 1177 Scoggins Ave Las Y N FMPS Complee Access
! Cruces. NM 8805 Roud
Construction LLC
Deming Excavating Inc - P
1415105 Constructivn 3635 Columbus Rd SE Y N § }’3’ :" ceess
Deming. NM 88030 .
Highland Enterprises
. Inc - 645 § Conpress EMPS Complex Access
. . =
1415105 Construction — N N
83005
Mans Construclion
S R Company - 1001 E % it EMPS Comples Access
University Ave Ste F2 Road
Las Cruces NM 88001
Momow Enterprises Inc EAIES ool Acee
1415105 Construcion - 6525 W Picacho Ave i H l‘;“" ;‘ Fee
Las Cruces NM 83007 ®
Renegade Construction
e ! LLC - 200 Crawford X IMPS Coiiplex Aevess
FRES g N
' — Blvd Las Cruces. NM ¥ Ruad
38007
Swith & Aguire
- . Constiuction Co Jnc - EMPS Complex Aceess
1) 4 .
1415105 Construction D ¥ N o
Cruces NM 83005
Spartan Construction ol a L
1415105 Cunstuction NM 1LC - 156 Wyatt Dr N NiA EMES C“r:"‘“;”““”
45 Croces, NM #8001 ¥
Timbenand
o § ) Construction, Ine - 1107 EMPS Complex Access
L BaPs O — N Iudson Silver Ciry M M Road
NM 88162
Shructin R 240§ Crawford Divd Amadu 42 fiih
5410 Struc A 7181806 NI,
1415-107 Construstion $7181867 ey e N A R e
Gallardo Construction
. Eondiruciion 1LC- 85U Mote) Bivd u A Anmdor $2Inch
Ste B Las Cruces, NM Intercepton Repan
[
Smutheo Consinuchion Amador 42 Inch
1415197 Construction Ine - 6King Canyon I ¥ N Se——
aballo. NM 87931 ntereeplol Repan
15100 wpp | Advenced Testmgond  Indefinle Cost / 1630 hekory Lp Ste G F . Miiiiiels Teiding
Materials Ine Quantiy Lais Cruces, NM 88005 Sences
A Indetine Cost/ 2805-A Las Vepas Ct ;: Mittenials Teatlihig
V4-15-109 RIP Geo-Test, L ¥ N
5 LAC T Quaniny Lus Cruces. NM 88007 Sérhsen
) Ind Cost/ 475 Archuleta Rd Las Maliils Tesiimng
4-15-109 RIT ¥ 1
SN0 Inc OQuantity Cruces. NM 88905 Sery ks
. Jenacon Consultants,  Indetinne Cost / 1640 Hickory Lp Ste 103 " Mibussils Tesling
1415109 RE® > ;
e Ine Quanty J.as Cruces, NM 88005 ! " Serviied
Contimued
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City of Las Cruces
Schedule of Vendor Information (continued)
June 30, 2015

S Amount of Awarded
Contract

S Amount
of

Amended

Contrict

Name and Physicl
Address per the
proctirement
documentation, of
ALL Vendor(s) that
respanded

In-Stare/ Out-of-
Stare Vendor
(YorN)
(Based on
Statutory
Definition)

Wus the vendaor
in-state and
chose Veteran's
preference (Yor
N) For federal
Jumds answer
NA

Brief Description of
the Scape af Work

Td-13-111

1415111

1413111

[T

1500

15111

1415111

141511

1415-112A

1413-112A

THI3-112A

1415113

1413115

L13-113

14-15-113

13013

1415113

1ed3-113

141503

hd-13-124A

Conringl

Conslniction

Constiuction

Construction

Comulruchuriv

Catistraghion

Cumstiuition

Conntruc sy

Constuction

Construction

Consliuction

Construction

Comilirudion

Cnipmrciim

Comsinuction

Camahrustifn

Construction

Cististirdmrin

Cinlipbrusting

Construction

Consirughirm

Mans Consliuction
Comyany

Snuth & Aguime
Construction Co lne

Maomaw Cnwimpimes
Iz

Yellow Jacket Dilling
Senvices, [LC

£2%4,997 33

$474.371 66

5559458 66

$142,238 57

224

1001 EIniversity Ave
Ste F21as Cruees, NM
RR001
A Mountain
Professional
Cuastiuction LLC -
1177 Scoggins Ave Las
Cruces, NM 88003

Deming Bwavating Ine -
1716-C W Hadley Ave
Las Cruccs. NM 88004

Highland Enlerprises

Inc - 645 S Conpress

Rd Las Cruces, NM
88003

Morrow Enlerprises Inc
6525 W Picacha Ave
Las Cruces NM 88007

Renegade Constructivn
1LC - 200 Crawfond
Bivd Las Cruces, NM
88007
Smith & Aguime
Canstruction Ca Tnc -
2475 Lakeside Dr Las
Cruces. NM 88003
Weslem Building &
Developmenl LLC - 206
EFleming Ave Las
Cruces, NM B8001

2475 Lakeside Dr Las
Cruces. NM BBOO3

Basque Celtic, Inc dba
Bonmanite Attistic
Conerele - 1360 W
Taisano El Paso, TX
79912
Spailan Constiuction ol
NM LLC - 156 Wyt Dr
Las Cruces. NM 88001

6525 W Picacho Ave
Las Cruces NM 88007

Deming Excavating Inc -
1716C W Hadley Ave
Las Cruves. NM 88004

DuCross Consliuction
LLC - 240 8 Crawford
Bhd Las Cruees. NM
RROO7
Tlighland Enterprises
Inc - 645 S Compress
Rd Las Cruces, NM
A8005

Morrow Enterprises Ine
- 6525 W Picacha Ave
Las Cruces NM KS7

Rencgade Constiuctiun
11.C- 200 Crawford
Rhd Las Cruces NM
BROU7
Sty & Apgunre
Cansiruction Co Ine -
2475 Lakeside Dr Lus
Cruces NM 88005

Spastan Construction of
NM LLC - 156 Wyatt I
Las Cinees, NM 88001
Timberland
Canstiuction Inc - 107
N Judson Silver

NM 88062

PO Box 30/ Gilbent, AZ
83299

NA

NrA

N/A

N/A

Sonoma Ranch Bivd
Sauth Readway and
Uility Improvements

Sonoma Ranch Bivd
South Roudway ond
Uiility lngrovenents

Stk B i)
South Roadway and
ULty Tmprovy ements

Sonoma Ranch Bhd
South Roadway and
Utility Iimprovements

Sannha e Tl
South Readway and
Utility Improvenwnts

Sonoim Ranch Bivd
South Rowdway and
Ulility Tmprovements

Sonoma Ranch Blvd
South Roadway and
Utility Inmproy ements

Sonoma Ranch Blvd
South Roadway and
Utilily Improvements

La Liorana Trail
Improvenents Phase If
Re-bid

La Llorona Trail
Tmprovenrents Phiase IT
Re-bid

La Llorona Trai
linprovemienis Phase Il
Re-bid

Laitginn Scwer
Tmprovements Phase It

Lanlana Sewer
Improvenents Phase 11

Lantana Sewer
Improvements Phase 1T

Lantuna Sewer
Tapros ements Phase 1Y

Lantamna Sewe
Tmprovenents Phase 1T

Lantimm Sgwver
Tmprovements Phase 11

[antana Sewer
tpiovements Phise 11

Lantana Sewer
Improvenients Phase 1

Lantana Sewer
Inprovenieats Phase (1

Drill and Consuuct

was-Walnul

Munitonng Wells Re-
bud




379

City of Las Cruces
Schedule of Vendor Information (continued)
June 30, 2015

Was the vendor

Nume and Physical  In-Stare/ Out-of- in-state und
Address per the State Vendor chose Veteran's
$ Amount procurement (YorN) preference (Yor
of documentation, of (Based on N) For federal
Trpe of $ Amount of Awarded  Amended  ALL Vendor(s) that Sratutory Sunds answer Brief Description of
RFBWRFPH Procurement Awarded Vendor Contract Contract responded Definition} NA the Scope of Work
Dcan Dairy Holdings B 9 - .
Le15-133 RFP LLC dba Price's Indcfinite _C05l ! 600N Picdras El Paso. v N Scnior Nutrition
N Quantity TX 79903 Program
Creamerivs N Tty
. 2 Shamroc! ay . o
14-15-133 RFP Shamrock Foods IndsfinilejCose Albuquerque, NM N NA T —
Quantity ’ Piogram
87121
14151133 REP Labatt Food Service N N/A SenicgRuiion
Progiam
6565 Americas Parkway
E Ste 600 Financi dil
14-15-134 RFP Moss Adams LLP $208300.00 gy Y N ingneS
Albuguerque, NM Services
87410
Accounting &
Consulling Group LLP - ) 5 .
8 Fi dit
14-15-134 RFP 2700 San Pedro NE Y N "";:::I.:S" !
Albuquerque, NM ¢
87110
BKD. LLP - 14241 Fi al Audit
14-15-134 RFP Dallas Pkwy Ste 1100 N ""‘s"“? et
Dallas, TX 75254 s
REDW LLC - 7425
_ Jefferson St NE Financial Audit
M=l RER Albuquerque. NM ¥ N Services
847109
;i s 3305 Airport Cir Mabilc Hyvdraulic
14-15-143 Quotes Apex Stages $65.360 00 Pittsburgh, KS 66762 N N/A Concert Stage
. 2701 Candclana NE -
fi Cost/ Bulk Fucl P
L5014 ITB Brewer Oil Company Ind e gt Albuquerque, NM v N/A U rhel e
Quantity Agrecment
- 87107
N Rio Valley Biofucls Indefinite Cost/ PO Box 1300 Anthony. Bulk Fuet Price
14-15-144 ITB - : ’ N N/A
. LLC Quantity NM 88021 Agreement
Las Cruces Barricades Indcfinite Cost / HC30 Box 123 Mesilla Barricades Price
14-15-143 TB - N N/,
Szl ! Inc Quantity Park. NM 88047 e Agreement
R2 Conuactors Indefinite Cost/ PO Box 16015 Las Barricades Price
4-15-143 ITB N N/A
f-13-143 Specialty. Inc Quantity Cruces. NM 88004 Agreement
Audio Visual
H B Electronics. Inc 6000 Gateway Blvd Ste .
-15-147 ITB $83 690 00 1
JEBSI dba HB Pro Sound 2,690,0 E B Paso. TX 79905 i = Equipment for
Conyention Center
Alliance Audio Visual "
14-15-147 ITB e it Y N/A o V'sural
g Blvd NE Albuguerque COE““""?“‘"‘C?'
NM 37107 nyention Lenter
B&H Folo &
Electronics (oioorp -420 udiolVesual
14-13-147 ITB 9th Ave New York NY N N/A : Eqmpv\cnlcfor
1001 om cnbon Center
Rhodes Rescarch - 1983 Audio Visual
1443147 T8 Oxbow Ci Las Cruces Y N/A Equipment for
NM #8012 Convention Center
14:15+163 ss Siema Machinery. Inc $393.022 00 gl N N/A Gradall Excavator

Paso. TX 79915
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City of Las Cruces

Statistical Section Table of Contents
June 30, 2015

This part of the City of Las Cruces’ comprehensive annual financial report presents detailed
information as a context for understanding what the information in the financial statements, note
disclosures, and required supplementary information says about the government’s overall
financial health.

GASB 44 provides the requirements for the schedules contained in this section of the City’s
CAFR.

Content

Financial Trends
These schedules contain trend information to help the reader understand how the City’s
financial performance and well-being have changed over time.

Revenue Capacity
These schedules contain information to help the reader assess the City’s most significant
local revenue source; the sales tax.

Debt Capacity

These schedules present information to help the reader assess the affordability of the
City’s current levels of outstanding debt and the City’s ability to issue additional debt in
the future.

Demographic and Economic Information
These schedules offer demographic and economic indicators to help the reader
understand the environment within which the City’s financial activities take place.

Operating Information
These schedules contain service and infrastructure data to help the reader understand how
the information in the City’s financial report relates to the services the City provides and
the activities it performs.
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Expenses
Governmental actniies:
ral povemment

Conmuwuly development
Congnunity and cufural senvees
Public services

Public works

Information lechnology
Transportauon

Parks and recreation

Interest on long-lerm debt

Sublotal governmental activilies expenses

Busiess-type actmties
Gas
Waler
Waslewaler
Sulid waste
Transit
Other
Interest on bong-term Jdebl

Suhlotal busmess-fype actnilies epenses

Tolal prinruy government expenses

Program Revenues
Govemmental activities:
Charges for services
General Government
Facilnies
Police
Fie
Conmmunity development
Comimwiity & cullural services
Public works
Intormation Technohogy
Transportation
Parks and recreation

Operaling Grants and Comtribulians

General Governmenl
Fauilitics

Paolice

Fue

Comnunity development

Conmunity and cultural services

Puble works
Informution Technulogy
Transportation
Parks and recreation

Capital Grams and Conlrbwions
General Government

Communty development

Communiy and cultural services

Public works

Sublotal govemnent] activitivs revenues

(Continued)
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City of Las Cruces
Changes in Net Position (in 000’s)
Last Ten Fiscal Years
(Unaudited)

Fiseitl Year

T iy WY EI i EIIE EE HIE HIE
16800 & 23804 § 16560 & 30330 % 16400 k16667 & I3105 & 13125 § 16426 3 17433
9018 9648 9857 93518 13629 13242 - - - -
21,822 21426 23814 26944 26,886 26,62 26,719 27,744 28,115 26,926
9,288 10,346 11,290 10611 1,155 11339 11,954 12,408 12,733 12,828
123 4641 547 457 7386 38 1743 4394 1593 4859
E E = = . - 903 9.011 9315 9273
1889 11.774 12525 11524 10306 9813 - - > -
15,604 16,756 19,728 11.083 19,728 0,285 26,085 20,184 21,068 21,883
. E : . 1245 2,048 3,618 334} 3416
E + . - E 1043 10,448 8159 8161
B - . + - 9214 8482 5.120 9.798
2920 ENALY A0 1M 1442 3804 L 3,Hm 140
1250 [[ENGEE i 530 T30 Tl [ETo] 13603 [I[NEE 118672
30367 29.976 30.478 25.095 2583 25501 24043 24.103 10957 10,776
10,655 12,219 11,679 14.787 14,474 13,997 14,194 14,6077 14,306 15,009
8362 8314 8,767 10,878 11217 1212 11832 12383 12,536 13.246
9.335 9172 10,905 10,534 10431 10151 [IREH 11,399 11.438 10,942
- - - 1,167 4,310 4.363 4370 4,450 1,632 4,393
3,801 4,085 107 P . i = - -
S 1616 3421 . - . - - - »
64,103 i, IR 40,430 A3 A0R iy 2ty #3301 (B 134 33 860 54360
$ 155373 8 169941 5 43l § 174488 $ 176420 $ 176,054 $ 182306 $ 179847 § 170047 § 173039
5291 5,038 4676 3,184 1726 4793 1.793 1,871 1,905 1463
14 296 . 340 M0 987 - - 3 -
224 2833 2041 1639 3544 1405 1282 444} 3523 3472
- 61 16 - ) 6 1 889 1,971 2007 1341
3,662 1,607 3,644 2,618 2,615 2.889 790 4,560 207 869
1,404 1.879 3,942 1,920 610 409 1,363 1,378 1,404 1,01
698 2910 2249 1.986 1491 27 244 1468 1.495 1.147
: - - . - 929 187 64 615 472
- - - - 534 1617 1.647 1,264
E - - - - 1433 1334 1,358 1.042
1420 490 310 29 1701 102 91 398 915 202
1,019 688 1,669 955 839 1.269 1,668 1,549 1,578 1211
49 142 440 %) 392 308 736 688 700 57
2727 1 896 2410 1.269 4768 320 308 258 261 202
1,082 1,148 1,262 1224 1,290 789 331 481 490 376
- 554 11 23) 2,909 7.290 952 312 521 100
- - - - 190 211 215 163
E - - 208 364 574 141
- - - 359 465 474 364
1,236 3,344 2,531 3350 15,129 4.226 3,135 549 5,672
134 2903 3043 7257 7.290 an
1071 11832 11508 11415 IA57 2524 630 476 axs -
] I8 232 T304 EERT] ENEFE) EATH 15354 3590 FETE 22781
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City of Las Cruces

Changes in Net Position (in 000’s) — continued

Business-Lype activities:

Clu es for serviees
Gas
Witer
Waste wates
Solid wasie
Trasil
Ouwer

Opuatmg Grants and Contributions
Gas
Water
Waste waler
Solil waste
Transit
Ot

Capilal Grants and Contnbuions
Gas
Watey
Wasle waler
Solid wasie
Transil
Other

Subiotil business-ty pe activities revenues

Tolal primary governmenl revenues

Net (Expense)/Revenue
Guoverrmmental aclivities

Business-lype aclivilies

Total primary govermment nel expense

*General Revenues and Other Changes In Nel Posltion
Governmental activiies:
Taxes
Gross receipls
Property
Franchise
Investment income (Joss)
Hospital net assels received
Tebshor Facibty meome
Othwer
Donitled capital asscts
Licenses and peimits
Fees, fines, franchise lees
Other
Gainiloss) un disposal of fived asscts/sale vf mvestments
Transfers
Total sovemmental actiilics

Busbiess-ty pe uctivities:
Investment mcome
Other
Ganitloss] on disposal ol capital asscts/sale ol mvestments
Capital conliibutions
Tianslers
Total busiess-ny pe actnalies

Total prinary government

*Change in Net Positi
Genemmental actimiies
Husness-type actnilies
Totl primary Govammrnt

Last Ten Fiscal Years
(Unaudited)

Fiswil Year
il Hui? 2iH E{IE ik Ml FITh] iy 204 jLTE]
30498 36 31991 23880 24,693 24498 24.150 24243 10,932 10736
16235 15.140 12941 13182 13221 14 501 15379 15388 14.70] 15,207
11,829 12,070 10,910 10.793 10822 10897 11.59¢ 12,004 11,970 11,570
9,834 10,133 10,194 9710 10,204 10361 11,050 147335 11,589 11818
- - . . 564 60 660 637 37 620
232 263 125 420 - a - - -
- . - L} 1 241 -
- £ 1.368 1614 1763 3.185 2459 2233
1048 2.789 . - - =
16 342 LR} 30 4570 - 97 33
1,569 1398 1.968 1.06Y 2348 602 139
307 2,141 2383 331 2034 590 122
. . - (14 58
427 1141 - - . - - -
TEOIG Ta 20l fadad 63166 LRI frb i [ Fi 52 368 52404
57,933 112516 10275 BT 1133 w7 X} 3 (AL K130 TIIRT
65.361) (63.381) (65740 (75426) (39 913) 174.929) 190,983) (77 144) (86.263) 95,884
108 1,937 1,?5‘;_ el iy [ERLCU] 6498 (2] | 780 [1ARNY (1 868)
(51 418]) 137424 LR Y 73,540} {63,033 PRI [RLRTA (R [CURLET) [CEE]]
66,618 72,887 77,080 88,372 75,230 76,793 R 112 B3,312 81,882 93,684
8483 9353 10.891 . 13.216 13,904 13.28) 13.972 14,263 14,461
2,609 2,999 2983 - 2.7}y 2952 2743 2,691 2701 2.438
3,881 3,902 3,842 (1,720) 3,569 3462 4172 (543) 5,892 3,496
3,308 e B - - . - . E .
297 267 218 139 5473 - . -
2,683 2878 . 363 1]
. 443 1044 . : .
3335 2456 2833 3,091 - -
11,158} At {4,031 {1,232 (3470 VAT &3] eAlE) {31617 2,943
[0 G138 EZET H37RD LLARE] 12 M8 [TIREE] R 1V S50 (NERRES
1.857 3.855 3408 1.397 1,302 306 2258 1827y 1.465 2197
L 239 40 GIR 457 10 38 - - -
= 1443) 46 = . -
231 =
3,154 1431 o BT 4,232 raud B30 EALE WG Pl
3013 #338 1542 6307 LBy (1] R irad (ML 1 R37 5,140
i 0R 190,555 JUN IR 230 79,332 1103778 [IEREEE A K A4T (LX)
1974 26,756 28,076 10,333 34,201 27,279 11,537 19,706 15,327 17.253
13866 [ 10.288 6417 2im () ER U] 3376 5T
ks 8§ 43341 § R & 167§ Wl % 17 MT % 15737 3§ 1ETu; 3 2023

* 1 F1 2013 "Net Assers” changed to "Net Position” GASB Statement No. 63
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General Fund
Non-spendable
Restricted
Committed
Assigned
Unassigned
General fund subtotal
All Other Governmental Funds
Restricted
Committed
Unassigned
All other governmental fuids subtotal

Notes:

384

City of Las Cruces

Fund Balances — Governmental Funds

(Unaudited)

2015 2014 2013 2012 2011
$ 1,431,060 § 1,607,029 § 1,732,121 § 1,531,425 1,330,306
87,037 26,654 109.896 43,994 853,513
5,937,791 7,464,550 6,120,361 5,142,436 5,809,607
3,063,748 4,651,973 6,634,296 4,817,723 4,185,702
31,379,100 22,243 480 20,665,163 25,898,101 21,718,500
41,898,736 35,993,686 35,261,837 37,433,679 33,897,628
80,544,450 61,250,466 58,884,597 58,590,185 34,129,396
20,493,179 16.309,303 19,566,873 21,284,190 33,900,122
- (3,102) - (5,166) .
101,037,629 77,556,667 78,451,470 79,869,209 68,029,518
$ 142936365 $ 113550353 § 113,713307 $ 117,302,888 §$ 101,927,146

*The requirement for statistical data is ten years. GASB 54 was implemented in 2011, therefore, only data fiom 2011-2014 are shown

Prior years' data is available upon request
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City of Las Cruces

Property Tax Rates Per $1,000 Assessed Valuation

Both Residential and Non-Residential—Overlapping Governments
Last Ten Fiscal Years

(Unaudited)
Residential

Fiscal School Total

Year City State County District Other Residential
2006 5.781 1.234 7.852 9.722 1.904 26.493
2007 5.879 1.221 7.979 9.795 1.927 26.801
2008 5.960 1.250 8.029 9.809 1.936 26.984
2009 6.136 1.150 8.249 9.807 1.961 27.303
2010 6.155 1.530 8.388 9.818 1.977 27.868
2011 6.452 1.362 8.736 9.831 2.000 28.381
2012 6.614 1.360 8.989 9.840 2.000 28.803
2013 6.757 1.360 9.202 9.851 2.000 29.170
2014 6.801 1.360 9.255 9.853 2.000 29.269
2015 6.806 1.360 9.267 9.852 2.000 29.285

Non-Residential
Total

Fiscal School Non-

Year City State County District Other Residential
2006 6.831 1.234 12.082 9.954 2.000 32.101
2007 7.120 1.221 12.017 10.014 2.000 32.372
2008 7.120 1.250 11.992 10.014 2.000 32.376
2009 7.120 1.150 12.001 10.004 2.000 32.275
2010 7.120 1.530 12.002 10.014 2.000 32.666
2011 7.120 1.362 12.000 10.014 2.000 32.496
2012 7.120 1.360 11.995 10.014 2.000 32.489
2013 7.120 1.360 11.949 10.014 2.000 32.443
2014 7.120 1.360 11.935 10.013 2.000 32.428
2015 7.120 1.360 11.964 10.013 2.000 32.457

Source: New Mexico Department of Finance & Administration, Local Government Division

Dofia Ana County
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Ratio of Net General Obligation Debt to
Taxable Value and Net General Obligation Bonded Debt Per Capita
Last Ten Fiscal Years
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City of Las Cruces

(Unaudited)
Genenl
Obligation Less Debt Ratio of Net Net Bonded
Fiscal Taxable Bonded Debt Service Nect Bonded Bonded Debt To Debt Per
Year Population Value Qutstanding Fund Debt Taxable Value Capita
2006 86,607 § 1,310349,858 N/A N/A
2007 87,542 1,392,660,408 N/A N/A
2008 89,722 1,637,164,654 N/A N/A
2009 93,680 1,821,352,673 N/A N/A
2010 93,452 1,921,638,946 N/A N/A
2011 97,906 2,031,926,984 N/A N/A
2012 99,665 2,004,239 685 N/A N/A
2013 100,557 2,046,371,786 N/A N/A
2014 101,324 2,076,068,745 N/A N/A
2015 101,408 2,102,950,157 N/A N/A

Source: Dofia Ana County Property Abstract
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City of Las Cruces
Computation of Direct and Overlapping Debt

June 30, 2015
(Unaudited)
Total General Percentage City of
Debt Outstanding Applicable Las Cruces
Jurisdiction As 0f 6/30/2015 To City of Las Cruces Share of Debt

Direct:

City of Las Cruces $ 87,633,148 100.00% $ 87,633,148
Overlapping :

Dofia Ana County 29,246,999 44.54% 13,027,798

Las Cruces School District 138,353,162 65.82% 91,057,773

Dofia Ana County Community College 11,761,882 25.61% 3,012,384
Total Overlapping 179,362,043 107,097,955
Total Direct And Overlapping
General Obligation Bonded Debt $ 266,995,191 $ 194,731,103

Note: Overlapping rates are those of local and county governments that apply to the property owners of the City of
Las Cruces. The percentage applicable to the City was determined by calculating the amount of property tax levied by
the jurisdictions in the City divided by the total property taxes levied by the jurisdictions.

Source: City of Las Cruces; State of New Mexico; Dofia Ana County; Las Cruces School District; Dofia Ana
Branch Community College
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City of Las Cruces

Demographic Data
Last Ten Fiscal Years
June 30, 2015
(Unaudited)
Fiscal Personal Income Per Capita Median School Unemployment
Year Population  (thousands of dollars) Income Age Enroliment Rate %
2006 86,607 § 1,477,429 17,059 30.1 23,100 5.1%
2007 87,542 1,539,951 17,591 325 24.000 4.2%
2008 89,722 2,179,617 24,293 325 23,747 4.5%
2009 93,680 1,784,791 19,052 31.0 24,530 7.2%
2010 93,452 2,640,112 28,251 31.0 24,400 7.9%
2011 97,906 2,757,522 28,165 35.8 24,706 6.9%
2012 99,665 2,959,453 29,694 33.0 24,534 6.8%
2013 100,557 2,015,363 20,042 33.2 24.495 6.9%
2014 101,324 2,145,941 21,179 32.4 24,516 6.6%
2015 101,408 2,176,216 21,460 31.1 24,191 8.2%

Sources:
U.S. Census Bureau
Las Cruces Public Schools
New Mexico Department of Labor
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City of Las Cruces
City Government Employees by Function/Program
Last Ten Fiscal Years
June 30, 2015
(Unaudited)

Fiscal Yeas

2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015

Function/Program

Geneial Govenmment

Cily Adminisiralion 17 17 8 15 18 22 28 21 20 23
Financial Services 49 47 62 39 58 58 42 42 38 42
Human Resources 12 12 14 14 13 14 15 15 13 15
Legal 31 35 46 35 22 26 22 25 25 25
Risk Management** 6 6 7 7 7 9 0 1] 3} [i]
Facllives**
Adiministration** 7 7 12 12 10 10 0 0 0 0
Airport Operations** 4 4 4 4 4 4q 0 0 ] 0
Building Services** 31 32 38 35 34 37 0 0 0 0
Fleet Services** 19 22 24 23, 27 31 0 0 0 0
Parks** 36 60 38 58 72 70 0 0 0 0
Police
Adninistration 38 6l 56 56 64 65 52 64 6l Gl
Oflicers 194 192 204 209 213 24] 209 202 192 198
Fire
Adninisiration " 12 12 13 13 (1] 13 14 13 13
Firefighters and Oflicers 115 109 16 108 104 16 122 123 122 118
Comimunity Development
Adinistration 22 22 22 21 21 19 I 17 16 16
Neighborhood Development 6 7 15 16 16 21 17 13 5 6
Permits and Inspections 19 20 21 22 23 21 23 25 24 19
Commumity and Cullwral Services (PS)**
Administration 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 in 18 24
Convention & Visilors' Bureau 7 8 10 10 10 10 9 10 1] 11
Library 39 37 36 43 40 36 38 26 24 27
Museum Syslems 16 15 18 21 19 31 18 13 13 11
Parks & Recreation** 39 51 26 41 43 47 0 0 0 [
Public Infonmation 6 6 1 7 7 7 6 6 6 6
Senior Programs 41 46 34 59 31 56 45 17 8 7
Transit** 50 51 49 50 49 60 0 ) [ 0
Public Works
Administration 2 2 3 3 3 3 8 9 9 9
Building Services 1] 4] [} 1] 0 0 38 43 42 45
Engineering 41 36 33 50 44 38 34 36 33 33
Sireet Svstens** 49 58 58 33 3] 57 0 0 0 0
Supporl Services
Docunent Services 2 3 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2
Inforrration Tech & Conm 26 28 32 27 19 24 24 25 23 23
Tiansportation**
Administration** 0 0 0 u ] 1) 8 7 8
Airport Operations** } 1] i} [ 1} 0 4 3 3 3
Fleet Senices** 0 0 0 n 0 o 24 26 23 23
Streel Syslems™* U] n 0 ] 0 0 46 34 46 44
Transit** N0 a 0 o 0 n 48 4] 43 41
Parks and Recreation™*
Administration** 0 0 0 Q0 0 b 7 9 15 17
Aquatics** 0 0 i] ] 0 (1} 44 10 n 39
Parks** 0 ] 8] 0 0 [ 32 33 49 51
Recreation and Atbletic Prograns* 0 0 0 0 0 0 31 IR 19 17
Ulililies
Adminisuation®* 0 0 0 0 ] 0 19 20 29 3n
Gas 66 67 77 69 hl 04 62 6% 62 02
Solid Waste 6l 63 74 a7 53 39 42 43 4] 42
Waslew aler 33 35 81 73 | 75 606 81 K9 4
Waler = 48 52 37 33 46 31 30 42 34 40
Tolal Employees 1202 1.243 1316 1315 1,292 1375 1279 1279 1192 1.239

*The requirement for statislical data is ten years. GASB 34 was implemented in 2002 Data [rom 2006 1o 2015 1s shown
**These are changes due (o the 2012 reorganization
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City of Las Cruces
Capital Assets and Infrastructure Statistics by Function/Program
Last Ten Fiscal Years
June 30,2015
(Unaudited)

Fiscal Years

2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015

Function/Program

Area in square miles 56.07 7618 7638 7638 7699 76.99 76.99 76.99 772 76.99
Government facilities and seivices:
Miles of streets 524 537 556 558 563 564 565  375.68 602 496
Number of street lights 4,880 6,392 6,041 7.138 7,360 7,458 7,488 7,533 7,790 7,914
Culture and Recreation:
Community centers 5 3 5 5 5 5 5 4 5 5
Lakes 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1
Pond 1 1 | 1 1 1 1 i 2 2
Parks 78 77 80 80 82 84 84 85 86 92
Park acreage 373 373 600 600 646 678 678 690 720 850
Sports complex 13 13 13 13 13 13 13 13 13 13
Swimming pools 3 3 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4
Shooting range 1 1 i i 1 1 1 1 1 1
Tennis courts 18 18 18 18 18 18 18 19 19 19
Bike path 2 2 2 2 2 2 4 4 4 4
Miles of bike paths 10 10 10 10 10 10 14 14 19 21
Fire Protection:
Number of stations 7/ 7 7 7 7/ 7 7 7/ 7 7
Police Protection:
Number of stations | | | | | | | | | |
Sewerage Systemns:
Miles of sanitary sewers (est.) 435 476 507 525 530 530 536 536 533 550
Miles of storm sewers (mains) 17 17.5 17 17 17 17 17 17 74.7 74.7
Number of treatment plants 2 2 2 2 3 3 3 3 3 3
Number of service connections 33,806 26018 28323 29,329 30,866 31,734 32,094 32,394 32,767 33,098
Water System:
Miles of water mains (est ) 476 505 525 547 558 558 573 580 600 600
Number of service connections 28,835 29,980 31,193 30,521 31,249 31,797 31,924 31,934 32,209 32,380
Transit Sytent:
Miles of Bus Routes 86 86 125 133 133 133 133 133 133 133
Number of Bus Stops 358 358 337 350 350 350 345 345 345 343
Number of Buses 16 16 15 15 15 18 18 18 18 19
Number of Dial-a-Ride Vehicles 17 17 17 17 17 23 21 21 21 20

Sources: Various City departments
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City of Las Cruces
Schedule of Expenditures of State Awards
For the Year Ended June 30, 2015

Pawgram o Cirvent - FY2018
St Printum Arurd Life-dix Diie Expeiitibiirs
ra I'wupram Title Number Prrjm) Amunmt Faproditinrs R AT RS

New Mexico Aging & Long-Term Services Dept.
Tille llIB, C1, NIC2, NE 2014-15-64014 7114 thiu 8115 -} 351,810 8 350,191 S 350,191
Munson Senior Center 2012-1242 02/12 thru 06/16 250,000 243,274 241,197
Munson Senior Center 2013-1127 06/14 thru 06/16 250,000 i) Xy A=h;o0g
Total NM Aging & Long Term Services B51,810 FRa 65 #41,958
NM State Department of Transportation
MPO Seclion 5303 07/13 thru 09/14 73,645 42,705 1,538
MPO Section 5303 10/14 Lhru 0815 72,132 72432 72,132
MPO FHWA P115120 10/14 thie 0919 347,095 166,391 166,391
MPO FHWA P114030 10713 thru 09/14 254,543 245,620 38,620
Community DWI Program 10-CD-05-049 07/01/09-06/30/11 .
Fuel Faim Phase || LRU14-01 09/13 Thru 09/15 537,921 532,856 33,497
Airport Aclion Plan LRU 09/14 thru 02/16 20,078 6,369 6,369
Aiport Maintenance Granl LRU-15-02 09/14 thru 06/30/15 8,997 8,997 8,997
El Paseo Safety improvemenls LC00130 05/14 thru 09/16 28,255 3,955 3,855
Sale Roules lo Schools ‘W100080 07113 thiu 09/15 500,000 498,684 498,684
Las Cruces Streel lmprovements C1142064 10/14 thru 06/18 1,036,000 41,356 41,356
El Paseo Medians SP-1-14{913) 40,663 40,663 40,663
Mesquite Historic Districl Street Lighting €1142063 09/14 thru 06/18 150,000 41,589 41,589
Main Street Rehab D12749 08/11 thru 09/15 1,665,060 1,318,49% 61,018
Total NM State Depl of Transporialion 4,734,389 3,020,813 1,014,810
Children, Youlh and Families Department
Juvedile Cilation Program 15-690-17252-1 07/01/14 thru 08/30/15 333,650 ]
Total Children, Youth and Families Department 335950 | AEG
New Mexico Environment Deparlmenl
WW Seplic Systems (Sewer Systems Conslruclion Project) SAP 13-1449-STB 44412014 thru 06/30/2017 321,000 .
Las Cruces Water System and Wells SAP 14-1737-STB 12/2/2014 hru 6/30/2018 2,000,000 .
Las Cruces Seplic System Remedialion SAP 14-1624-5TB 12/2/2014 thru 6/30/2018 2,750,000 . 147 8l
Total New Mexico Environment Department 457,000 LRI

MM Tourism Department

New Mexico Clean and Beautiful 14-418-6001-0030 71112013 - 6/30/2014 20,000 20650 24 560
Total New Mexico Tourism Department 28,10 i R - N
NM State Library
NM State Library Aid Grant 378 Seclion 18-2-4 B, NMAC 4 5 10/1/14 - 6/30/15 15,560 15,550 15,560
Total New Mexico State Library 15,580 15,560 15,550
NM CULTURAL AFFAIRS - NM ART
Fragile Walers Slate PO 50500-0000027054 10/14/14-5/31115 LT 5,007 BT
Total New Mexico Cuttural Affalrs [ R0 5,007
NM FINANCE AUTHORITY
Waler Trus( Board Planning 235-WTB 08/12 - 08/15 Iflﬂ_l fz0 50,442 5 280
Total New Mexico Finance Authority 100,520 EiNaF] 5360
NM Deparimenl of Health
Emergency Medical Serices Fund-FY14 74412013 - 6/30/2014 20,000 20,000 88
Emergency Medical Senices Fund-FY 15 7/1/2014 - 6/30/2015 20,000 19,727 19,727
Heallhy Kids Healthy Communilies FY15 9/24/2014 - 9/28/2015 25,000 3,960 3,960
Mow Moxigo Trauma Sestem MOA 201502006 08/14/2014 - 05/15/2015 8,669 8,669 8,669
73,669 52,356 32,044
New Mexico Public Regulation Commission
Fire Protection Distribution Fund-FY 14 7/1/2013 - 6/30/2014 570,610 570,610 218,227
Fire Protection Distribution Fund-FY 15 71172014 - 6/30/2015 620,433 391,646 391,646
NMPRC Fire Prolection Equipmenl Granl 211413 - 73013 00 437 #4357
Total New Mexico Public Regulation Commission /70,78 1,00 1537 00,873
New Mexico Energy, Minerals and Nalural Resources DeplL
Las Cruces Tree Slewards Program 15-521-0410-0144 311172015 - 6/30/2016 14,700 Rt 534
Tolal New Mexico Energy Minerals 11, 200 5370 5370
New Mexico Economic Development Department
NMMS Camunez Buildng 13-419-A111284-13008 111572013 - 11/15/2014 100000 o5 124G §7.508
Total New Mexico Economic Development Vo, 08,575 57508
NM State Legislalive Appropriations/Dona Ana County
New Mexico Deparlment of Finance
and AdmimsEration
Mesqute Histonc Distict Lighting 13-1692 09/13 thru 06117 50,000 50,000 50,000
C ity of Hope-| igali 141911 01715 thru 06/18 45,000 30,162 30,162
Webram War Memonal 13-L-1693 09/13 thru 06117 25,000 25,000 25,000
Watram Wor Memaist 13-L-1113 10713 thru 06415 55,000 54,993 54,993
Women's Vietnam War Memaonal 144-1914 thiu 06/18 406,500 5,183 5,183
Hadley Recrealion Area Ballfields 13-1-1690 02/14 \hru 06/17 60,000 60,000 60,000
Klein Park Improvemenls 13-1-1691 09713 thru 06/17 75,000 21,358 21,358
Traffic Sately Management Conlrol Cenler 14-L-1913 09/14 lhru 06/18 725,000 9,188 9,188
Public Safety Campus Fire/Police Easl Mesa 12-L-G-1436 08/12 thiu 06/16 1,214,000 1,003,470 582,108
Law Enforcement Protection Fund LEPF FY 14 71113 thru 6130114 146,855 146,855 4,255
| Erfeicament Frolechion Fursd LEPF FY 15 7/1114 thru 6/30/15 142,800 136,676 136,676
Thomas Branigan Memorial Library GO Bond-2012 GOB13-12-1233 08/08/14-6/30/16 277,986 109,074 108,074
Thomas Branigan Memorial Library GO Bond-2015 GOB15-14-1289 07/31/14-04/01/18 258,254 4,371 4,371
Total Department of Finance and Administration 3,481,395 1,656,330 7,092,369
Total State Assislance 8 15,601,140 § 7,137.676 $ 4,155,218

See notes to schedule of expenditures of state and federal awards.
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City of Las Cruces
Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards
For the Year Ended June 30, 2015

Federul Grant no/ Prilgram ii7 Currefit - FY2015
Federal Grantar/Pass-Thruugh CFDA Puss-Through Prigram Award LifestiDat Exprandituris
Grantar/Program Title Number Identi Ring no. Period Amoinit Esprnditites sl KIS

U.S Department of Housing and Urban Develupment
Comumty Development Black Grant

14218 0712 1o Comp 3 by 695330 S 66689
14218 0713 to Comp 3163712 183316
14218 0714 te Comp o 139 1K 430148
Tolal Commmumty Developnent Block Grant 2279063 1 5] 2y 553
Heme Progiam Granl
M-11-MC-35-0222 1423y M-11-MC-15-0222 011 1o Comp 471404 399.733 3033¢
M-12-MC-35-n222 14239 M-12-MC-35-0222 0712 10 Comp 320014 313698 194 689
M-13-MC-35-n222 14239 M-13-MC-35-0222 17713 10 Comp 320.937 348231 224366
M-14-MC-35-0222 14 239 M-14-MC-35-0222 0714 10 Comp RALR K] 103352 1Hy.332
Tota) Home Program CGirant [REERET [NEETE
Pass-through New Mexico Department of Tousing and Urban Deselopment
Neighbuihwod Stabilization Program 14256 09-NSP-2-G-02 08 hv h2021014 1500000 1484432 23 940
Total US. Departmeat of Housing und Urban Develapment N 5222061 4,311,245 1,270.83%
U.S. Department of Justice
2007 Cops Technology 16710 2007-CKWX-0047 U9/2007-8/2013 370,303 370303 117958
2003 Cops Interoperubility 16710 2005-INWX-0014 9/05 Uuu 813 981360 981 361 51273
2012 Valley View Elementary COPS 16710 2012-CKWX-K0on9 09/01/12 - 08721714 35792 12659 -
20019 COPS CHRP - ARRA 16710 2009-RKWX-0636 G0 - 06115 1,518,784 1,518,784 360,200
2013 Edwad Byime JAG 16734 2013-DJ-BX-0943 107172002 ia 09730716 38554 38354 837
2014 Edward Byime JIAG 16738 2014-DJ-BX-0844 16/01/2013 thiu 09/30/2017 39,034 39,134 39,134
Viclim Assiskee Unil 16575 2014-VA-133A 07/01/13-06/30/14 4242 4,242 -
Victini Assi 16575 2014-VA-233 07/01/13-09/30/14 27568 27,568 3,440
Mt Adbltibiee L) 16575 2014-VA-233 10/01713-09/30/15 31395 11,946 11,946
FDI SNM Gung Task Force 16 % MOA 9/7/10-UNTIL RESCINDED 137,170 124932 -
FDI Sale Streets Vielent Gang Task Force FY 14 16 MOA 07/13-Unlil Rescinded 86,011 35239 17820
FBI Orpanized Ciime Drug Enforcement Task Force FY14 160 MOA 09/19/13 thiu 09/30/14 50,000 24,087 -
US Marshiuls Service (TN MOU 11/3/10-UNTIL RESCINDED 74,000 61,593 19,643
Safc Hawn-Aller School Program 16.726 2010-JL-FX-0420 8/01710-7/31114 250,000 230,000 &
LCPD Seized Assets-DOJ 16 922 NM0070100 INDEFINTTE - 196,438 116078
Meuo Nwcotics Seized Assels-DOJ 16.922 NM0070104 [NDEFINTTE = 163715 163,715
Total US. Department of Justice 3845313 4082554 904494
Excculive Oftice of the President
Office of National Drug Contral Policy
HIDTA-Metro 95 001 G13SNO00GA 01713 THRU 12/14 816223 816,223 39,931
[IDTA-Metra 9500] G14SNO00GA 01/14 TIIRU 12/15 669463 637280 637290
1IDTA-CLC 95001 G14SNODOGA 01714 TIIRU 12115 120010 97,947 97,947
JNIDTA-CL.C 95001 G15SN000GA 01/15 TIRU 12/16 1,606,961 41283 47283
Pass Through I TIDTA- NONE
Communitv of Southcrn NM UP Coalinen PARNAY 95 % 10/05/11) thru complelion 13130 18319 -
Communily of Southern NM UP Coulivon 95 % 95 01/19/13 thru i 11400 244 -
Total Office of Nutiunal Drug Control Policy 3,237,197 1,594,298 799443
U. S. Department of Transportation
Alpuil Action Plin 20 1U6 20106 0914 i 02/16 333.094 114640 114.641
Towd U S DOT Airport lmprovement 355094 114641 (1RSI
Federal Transporlation Adimimistration
Secuon 5307 (Federal Transit Cluster) 20 500 NM-03-0052 9/035 Uiru Completian 1,968,050 1 826338 323
T a3 Cruces IMC construction #3 (Federal Transit Cluster) 20507 NM-90-X103 9/11 thru Completion 394,000 334,393 43,185
Scction 3309 (Federal Transit Cluster) 20507 NM-04-0016 9/10 thru complelion 630,000 630,000
Section 5307 (Federal Transit Cluster) 20507 NM-90-4076G 8/06 tn Completion 518,876 516,312 -
L.C Tiansit M&O Fueility ( Fedeal Timnsit Cluster y 20 500 NM-04-0023 111} thru Comipletion 617500 338.228 208027
Caupita) and Oper uting L for I 1 Federal Transit Cluster) 20 500 NM-90-X074 10/03 thru Completion 1,608 909 1.608.909 .
Sectan 3107 (Federal Transit Cluster) 20507 NM-90-X120 9/13 thru Completion 1,901 298 1839613 630.76)
Secuon 3307 (Federa) Transit Cluster) 20507 NM-90-X109 9/10 4uu Campletion 1297.108 1.297.10% L&4R
Section 3307 (Federal Transit Cluster) 20507 NM-00-X129 9/14 thru Complclion 1920438 726742 726,723
Repl DR Vans (Federal Transit Cluster) 20 500 NM-04-0033 7414 thru Complelion : .
Total Federal Transporwtion Administraion 9.157,850
PPass then New Mexico Depruunent of Homeland
Security and Einergency Management
Traw RRA 1Federal Tranait Cluster) 20507 NM-26-X004-00 07/09 thru cumpletion 1713911 1554132 ALT SR
Tutal Nass thru New Mexico Departnient of Homeland LOTRSLE LS ARTIEN
Federal 1 ighway Admimisiralion
Pass throush Siate Department of Transporialion
STEP 100 DAYS & NIGHTS 2014 20 600 14-RF-D5-049 620/14-09/30/14 15m1 [LU1R] 13330
STED 100 DAYS & NIGHTS 2015 20 600 13-RF-DS-049 10/01/14-09/30/15 13011 A6 1674
DNTXT-TialTie Savens Bureau 2013 20608 13-DD-02-049 10/01714-09/30415 9,981 4624 4n24
QFD-Traflic Safely Bureau 2014 20,608 14-OP-RF-049 10/1/13-9/30/14 17701 1771 A0
OBD-Traflic Safetv Burcau 2013 20 608 15-OP-RF-049 10/1/14-2/3001 5 17711 15026 15026
ODWI-TrarMic Safeis Dureau 2014 20 608 14-AL~-04-049 10/1713-9/20/14 9YKIS 24435 l] 7 )
ODWI-Trallie Sale(s Thureau 2013 20608 15-AL-64-049 10/1/14-9/30/1 5 INBAS 63914 64914
Total Pass Mrovsh State Thghway Department 279095 226,795 131,140

Pass T New Muexico Depa iment of Transportation
s and Bus Facihties rFederal Transit Cluster) 20526 5539 10-1-2013 - 9-30-2015
Total Pass Mru New Mexice Department of Transportation

[T

Total US. Department of Transporiation 13,781,476 11,197,832

(Continued)

See notes to schedule of expenditures of state and federal awards.
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City of Las Cruces
Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards — continued
For the Year Ended June 30, 2015

Federal Grunt noS Prvlgrum ur Currint - FY2015
Federal Grantor/Pass-Through CFDA Pass-Through Progrum Award Life-pi Date Expendiiurey
G iProgpim Tide Number YdenlifiTng no. Peciud Annhaini Expundlinres an wlALIIES
U.S Department of Health und Human Services
Suppurtive Servrees & Serior Cirs - Tille [1-Part. B tAging Cluster) PAY] 2013-14- 63014 T3 thra 6/14 34283 2283
Mcats/Transportation Grant - Tile TN-Part C1 & C2 1 Aging Cluster) 93043 2013-14- 64014 T3 thra 6/14 190,096 140.09¢
Nauienal Fanily Carepivers Support - Title TT-Part T2 93052 2013-14- 64014 N 6414 33303 15,503
Nutrition Services Iy ive Pyogram - Title Nl (Aging Clusles § 93153 2013-14- 64014 71X thru /14 2y} [ i
Totul U.S. Department of Health and Human Sersices ETTNET] iTIRER
U.S. Dept. of Homelund Security
FY12 FEMA SAFER 97 0R3 ENW-2010-FLL-00211 107912011 -1 0/8/2013 1.287336 11711133 -
1lomeland Security-ICE 97 Moa 0671 1/10-UNTTL. RESCINDED 70,000 38709 1130
FY13 FEMA Assistnice (o Firelighlers 97 044 EMW-2013-FO-06419 07-25-14 10 07-24-15 613393 613093 613093
FYi2 FEMA FIRE PREVENTION & SAFETY 97044 EMW-2012-FP-01213 04727713 - 04126/ 14 31200 31,200 1,29%
FYI1 FEMA FIRE DEPT EQUTP 97.044 EMW-20! |-FO-06514 12/9/2011-12/8/2013 399,744 318839 2
2403673 2072974 625341

Pass thi vugh OEM - Dofia Ana County
Operation Stone Garden FY-14 97.067 EME-2011-85-00094-50 1 -DASO 0901111 - 03/31/14 62,500 76587 22302
Operation Stone Garden FY-14 97.067 EME-21)1 3-55-00152-5SU1-DASO 09/01114 - 0831115 631 SLNE]]
Tolal Pass-through OEM - Doia Ana County 124 730 100,945
Tutal U.S. Department of Homeland Security 1329,40% FETERIL]

US Department af the Interior- BLM
Pass tlhough BLM State Ol

Muscum ol Natw e and Seience (MONAS) 15238 LI12AC20088 09712 thru 09/17 50000 15150 15,150
Total US Department of the Interior - BLM An i 15,050 [ERE
Nutlonal Endowment for the Humunilics

House and 1 Tome Exhibit 45,164 MR-229270-15 31115-6/30/15 1,000 - -
Tota) National Enduwment for the Humanit LAhm - -
Tolal Federal Awardy S 29,049,822 § 2] 3K8USE & i 3hh 101

See notes to schedule of expenditures of state and federal awards.
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City of Las Cruces
Notes to the Schedules of Expenditures of State and Federal Awards
June 30, 2015

General

The accompanying schedules of expenditures of state and federal awards presents the
activity of all state and federal award programs for the City of Las Cruces, New Mexico,
(the City). The City’s reporting entity is defined in Note 1 to the City’s financial
statements. The Office of Management and Budget’s (OMB) Circular A-133, Audits of
States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations, sets forth requirements
whereby federal grants may be audited under a “single audit” approach at the same time
the City’s financial statements are audited. All awards received from state and federal
agencies, as well as awards passed through other organizations and government agencies,
are included in the schedules.

Basis of Presentation

The accompanying schedules of expenditures of state and federal awards include the state
and federal grant activity of the City and are presented on the accrual basis of accounting.
The information in these schedules is presented in accordance with the requirements of
OMB Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit
Organizations. Therefore, some amounts presented in the schedules may differ from
amounts presented in, or used in the preparation of, the basic financial statements.

Federal Loans

On May 24, 2010, the City was awarded a promissory note from the U.S. Department of
Housing and Urban Development in the amount of $2,000,000. The note was awarded
under the HUD Section 108 loan guarantee program for the purpose of constructing,
rehabilitating, and improving the Museum of Nature and Science in the City. Land serves
as collateral for the loan and interest is charged at a rate of 1.7 percent. As of the year
ended June 30, 2014, the City expended the full $2,000,000 of the proceeds. Payments on
the loan for the year ended June 30, 2015 included $71,000 in principal and $66,886 in
interest; leaving an outstanding balance of $1,738,000. Proceeds of the loans that were
received and expended in prior years impose no continuing compliance requirements.

Sub-recipients

Of the federal expenditures presented in the schedule of expenditures of state and federal
awards, the City provided federal awards to sub-recipients as follows:

Amount Provided to

CFDA Number Program Name Subrecipients
14218  Community Development Block Grant 3 212,115
14.239 Home Program Grant $ 520,282
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City of Las Cruces
Notes to the Schedules of Expenditures of State and Federal Awards (Continued)
June 30,2015

Reconciliation of the Schedules of Expenditures of State and Federal Awards
The following is a reconciliation of the expenditures reported in the schedules of
expenditures of state and federal awards to the expenditures reported in the financial

statements for the City:

Expenditures in the schedule of expenditures of state

awards $ 4,155,218
Expenditures in the schedule of expenditures of federal
awards 6,566,103
Expenditures financed by other funding sources 18,821,137
Expenditures reported in the statement of revenues,
expenditures, and changes in fund balance/net
position—other governmental fimds/Transit fund 5 29,542,458
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Certified Public Accountants | Business Consutiants

Report of Independent Auditors on Internal Control Over
Financial Reporting and on Compliance and Other Matters
Based on an Audit of Financial Statements Performed in
Accordance with Government Auditing Standards

Mr. Timothy Keller, New Mexico State Auditor
and the Honorable Mayor and City Council Members
of the City of Las Cruces

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of the governmental
activities, the business-type activities, the discretely presented component unit, each major fund, the
aggregate remaining fund information, and the budgetary comparisons for the general fund and major
special revenue funds of the City of Las Cruces, New Mexico (the City) as of and for the year ended
June 30, 2015, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the City’s
basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents and have issued our report thereon dated
November 30, 2015. We have also audited the financial statements of each of the City’s nonmajor
governmental, nonmajor enterprise, internal service funds, and agency funds; and the budgetary
comparison schedules for the debt service fund, special revenue funds, capital project funds,
proprietary funds and the nonmajor governmental funds as of and for the year ended June 30, 2015, and
have issued our report thereon dated November 30, 2015.

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the City’s internal
control over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial statements, but not for
the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the City’s internal control. Accordingly,
we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the City’s internal control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or
detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a
combination of deficiencies, in internal control such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material
misstatement of the entity's financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a
timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal
control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those
charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this
section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material
weaknesses or significant deficiencies and therefore, material weaknesses or significant deficiencies
may exist that were not identified. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any
deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material
weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.
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Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the City’s financial statements are free from
material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws,
regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and
material effect on the determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on
compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit and, accordingly, we do not express
such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed instances of noncompliance or other matters that are
required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards and are described in the accompanying
schedule of findings and questioned costs as items 2015-001 and 2015-003.

The City’s Responses to Findings

The City’s responses to the findings identified in our audit are described in the accompanying schedule
of findings and questioned costs. The City’s responses were not subjected to the auditing procedures
applied in the audit of the financial statements and, accordingly, we express no opinion on them.

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and
compliance and the result of that (esting, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the
entity’s internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in
accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the entity’s internal control and
compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose

%W%w 2P

Albuquerque, New Mexico
November 30, 2015
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Report of Independent Auditors on Compliance For Each Major Federal Program and
Report on Internal Control Over Compliance as Required by OMB Circular A-133

Mr. Timothy Keller, New Mexico State Auditor
and the Honorable Mayor and City Council Members
of the City of Las Cruces

Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program

We have audited the City of Las Cruces, New Mexico’s (the City) compliance with the types of
compliance requirements described in the OMB Circular 4-133 Compliance Supplement that could
have a direct and material effect on each of the City’s major federal programs for the year ended June
30, 2015. The City’s major federal programs are identified in the summary of auditor’s results section
of the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs.

Management’s Responsibility
Management is responsible for compliance with the requirements of laws, regulations, contracts, and
grants applicable to its federal programs.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance for each of the City’s major federal programs
based on our audit of the types of compliance requirements referred to above. We conducted our audit
of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; and OMB Circular A-133, Audits of States,
Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations. Those standards and OMB Circular A-133 require
that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance with
the types of compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on a
major federal program occurred. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about the City’s
compliance with those requirements and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary
in the circumstances.

We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on compliance for each major
federal program. However, our audit does not provide a legal determination of the City’s compliance.

Opinion on Each Major Federal Program

In our opinion, the City complied, in all material respects, with the types of compliance requirements
referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on each of its major federal programs for
the year ended June 30, 2015.
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Report on Internal Control Over Compliance

Management of the City is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal control over
compliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above. In planning and performing
our audit of compliance, we considered the City’s internal control over compliance with the types of
requirements that could have a direct and material effect on each major federal program to determine
the auditing procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on compliance for each major federal program and to test and report on internal control over
compliance in accordance with OMB Circular A-133, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of internal control over compliance. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on
the effectiveness of the City’s internal control over compliance.

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over
compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their
assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance
requirement of a federal program on a timely basis. A material weakness in internal control over
compliance is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance, such
that there is a reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a type of compliance
requirement of a federal program will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A
significant deficiency in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of
deficiencies, in internal control over compliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal
program that is less severe than a material weakness in internal control over compliance, yet important
enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the first
paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over
compliance that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies and, therefore, material
weaknesses or significant deficiencies may exist that were not identified. We did not identify any
deficiencies in internal control over compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses. However,
we identified a deficiency in internal control over compliance, as described in the accompanying
schedule of findings and questioned costs as item 2015-002 that we consider to be a significant
deficiency.

The City’s response to the internal control over compliance finding identified in our audit is described
in the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs. The City’s response was not subjected
to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of compliance and, accordingly, we express no opinion
on the response.

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our
testing of internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements of
OMB Circular A-133. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose.

%W%W 127

Albuquerque, New Mexico
November 30, 2015
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City of Las Cruces
Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs
For the Year Ended June 30,2015

Section I — Summary of Auditors’ Results
Financial Statements
Type of auditors’ report issued: Unmodified

Internal control over financial reporting:

Material weakness identified? No

Significant deficiency identified? None reported
Noncompliance material to financial statements noted? No
Federal Awards

Internal control over major federal programs:
Material weakness identified? No

Significant deficiency identified? Yes

Type of auditors’ report issued on compliance
for major federal programs: See table

Any audit findings disclosed that are required
to be reported in accordance with Section 510(a)
of OMB Circular A-133? Yes
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City of Las Cruces

Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs — continued
For the Year Ended June 30, 2015

Section I — Summary of Auditors’ Results — continued

Identification of major federal programs:

CFDA Number Name of Federal Program ot Cluster Opinion
14218 Community Development Block Grants; Unmodified
Metro Entitlement Grants

20.500/20.507/20.526 Federal Transit Cluster with ARRA Unmodified
20.106 Airport Improvement Program Unmodified
95.001 High Intensity Drug Trafficking Areas Program  Unmodified
93.044/93.045/93.053 Aging Cluster Unmodified
97.044 Assistance to Firefighters Grant Unmodified

Dollar threshold used to distinguish
between type A and type B programs: $300,000

Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee? No
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City of Las Cruces
Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs — continued
For the Year Ended June 30,2015

Section Il — Financial Statement Findings

2015-001 (SA 11-2) — Information Technology (Other Matter)

Criteria — Information Technology (“IT™), including systems and infrastructure are essential and
integral to the efficiency of the City’s operations. IT internal controls are essential to maintain the
confidentiality, integrity, and availability of data. IT internal controls are as important as the
internal controls that surround the input of financial transactions into the City’s general ledger.

Condition/Context — Several areas of the Information Technology infrastructure were identified as
needing enhanced controls. These areas include:

e lack of true role-based user access controls to Munis ERP system and incomplete annual
USer access reviews

e lack of firewall between Mesilla Valley Regional Dispatch Authority, Sunland Park, and the
City’s network.

Role-based user access controls to MUNIS and incomplete annual user access reviews

This allows better management and control of user access by allowing multiple users to be assigned
to specific roles within the system. However, it appears that rather than assigning users to roles, the
ERP Specialist assigned a role to each user. Rather than reducing the number of roles and
simplifying management this approach has increased the roles and management requirements. The
risk is that there is more chance of error and inappropriate access with so many roles to administer.
We understand that the City is working on a role-based user access for the next upgrade for the
system.

We noted that a review of the users’ access control listing for MUNIS was performed during the
year. However, the review was limited on the accounting functions. As such, other areas/modules
(purchase order, requisition, utility billing, budgeting, work orders, etc.) were not covered under the
review. The purpose of this review is to determine whether users have the correct access they need
to perform their duties but no access beyond that. For best-practice, user access controls, a complete
review of user access should be performed annually.
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City of Las Cruces

Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs — continued
For the Year Ended June 30, 2015

Section IT — Financial Statement Findings

2015-001 (SA 11-2) — Information Technology (Other Matter) (continued)

Lack of firewall between Mesilla Valley Regional Dispatch Authority, Sunland Park, and the
City’s network.

There is a close relationship between the City’s network and the Mesilla Valley Regional Dispatch
Authority’s (MVRDA) network. MVRDA is a child domain of the City domain. MVRDA is
connected to the City’s network and there is no firewall between the City and MVRDA. Sunland
Park is connected to MVRDA and by default connected to the City network. The lack of firewall
between these networks presents a high security risk to all three networks and their data. While the
City performs some security measures, these are not considered enough to mitigate the risk
involved. We understand that the City is building a new facility and this issue will be addressed
once the facility is completed.

Recommendations — We recommend the following:

e The City should ensure that a complete review of all user access levels on the MUNIS
ERP system is performed and that true role-based access is implemented. This review
will be easier once the system has “role-based” access levels.

The City should ensure that, as an interim precaution, a firewall is installed between the
MVRDA network and the City’s network. Ideally, MVRDA and Sunland Park should be
entirely separate networks.

Management’s response:
Role-based user access controls to MUNIS and lack of annual user access reviews

Role based security cannot be implemented before the data owner of that particular module
has developed the associated workflow for that function. IT is currently working with
various departments to create security rvoles based on the standardization and
documentation of their processes associated with Munis. The office of the City Manager
has decided that a re- implementation of Munis is necessary and the development of process
documentation and security roles will be a major component of that project. It is
anticipated that the re-implementation process will take 18 to 24 months to complete with a
start date of October 2015.
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City of Las Cruces
Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs — continued
For the Year Ended June 30, 2015

Section II — Financial Statement Findings

2015-001 (SA 11-2) - Information Technology (Other Matter) (continued)

Lack of firewall between Mesilla Valley Regional Dispaich Authority, Sunland Park, and the
City’s network.

This issue cannot be addressed until MVRDA has its own domain controllers and is no
longer a child domain of the City. Given that MVRDA is not planning to address this
issue until they move into their new, facility; it is not anticipated that this will be possible

to remediate until early 2016.

2015-003 — Appropriations to Agencies (Other Matter)

Criteria — In accordance with 2.2.2.10 (O) NMAC:
a. If actual expenditures exceed budgeted expenditures at the legal level of budgetary
control, that fact must be reported in a finding and disclosed in the notes to the
financial statements.

Condition/Context — The following funds over-expended budgeted amounts as of June 30,
2015

e Debt Service Fund ($88,029)

e Judicial Education ($1,852)

Effect — The City was not in compliance with the requirements of 2.2.2.10 (O) NMAC.
Cause — Procedures were not in place to ensure budgetary compliance.

Auditors’ Recommendation — We recommend the City establish adequate procedures to
monitor budget compliance and prohibit spending exceeding the budgeted amounts and
budgeting deficits.

Management’s response — The City agrees with the recommendation. The Office of
Management and Budget guidelines, procedures, and related authorities for periodic budget
adjustments to revenue and expenditures are clearly defined, and are consistent with State of
New Mexico Department of Finance and Administration — Local Government Division budget
adjustment directives. The Office of Management and Budget will work with Municipal
Courts and departments to put into place methods to sustain effective compliance with
processes, procedures and controls necessary to meet requirements of City Budget guidelines,
procedures, and related authorities for periodic budget adjustments.
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City of Las Cruces

Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs — continued
For the Year Ended June 30, 2015

Section I1I — Federal Award Findings and Questioned Costs

2015-002 — Procurement, Suspension, and Debarment (Significant Deficiency)

Federal program information:

Funding agency: Department of Health and Human Services
Title: Aging Cluster
CFDA Number: 93.044/93.045/93.053

Award year and number: July 2014 to June 2015, 2014-15 64014

Funding agency: Executive Office of the President — Office of National Drug
Control Policy
Title: High Intensity Drug Trafficking Program
CFDA Number: 95.001

Award year and number:
= January 2015 to December 2014, GI3SNOO0O6A
» January 2014 to December 2015, G14SNOO0O6A
= January 2015 to December 2016, GISSNOOO6A

Condition/Context — We noted that the City did not follow their policies and procedures to
verify prior to entering into transactions to procure goods or services that cumulatively
exceeded $25,000 with a vendor, when those transactions were entered into by another
department than the Procurement Department, that the vendor was not suspended or debarred
or otherwise excluded from federal contracts. We performed procedures and determined no
payments were made to suspended or debarred vendors.

. Aging Cluster (CFDA 93.044/93.045/93.053) — For one of three vendors tested that
provided goods or services to the City in excess of $25,000, procurement policies and
procedures were bypassed by using purchase cards and the City did not verify that the
vendor was not suspended or debarred.

. High Intensity Drug Trafficking Program (CFDA 95.001) — For the one vendor tested,
the goods or services were procured through the Legal Department and the City did not
verify that the vendor was not suspended or debarred.

Questioned Costs — None
Cause — Two City departments circumvented the City’s established policies and procedures.
Effect — Federal award money could be unintentionally paid to suspended or debarred vendors.

Recommendation — The City should follow their policies and procedures to verify prior to
entering into transactions to procure goods or services exceeding cumulatively $25,000 with a
vendor, when those transactions are entered into outside of the Purchasing Department, that
the vendor was not suspended or debarred or otherwise excluded from federal contracts and
retain documentation of this determination. This may be accomplished by checking the federal
System for Award Management, obtaining vendor certifications, or adding clauses or
conditions to the contract.
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City of Las Cruces
Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs — continued
For the Year Ended June 30, 2015

Section III — Federal Award Findings and Questioned Costs

2015-002 — Procurement, Suspension, and Debarment (Significant Deficiency)
(continued)

Management’s response — Purchasing is implementing a requisition training program that all
requisition initiators will be required to attend before entering into transactions to procure
goods and services. The Purchasing Manager has been working with departments on educating
them as to the usefulness and effectiveness of blanket purchase orders in lieu of using their
purchase cards for routine procurement transactions. Purchasing staff will verify through SAM
that a vendor is not debarred to suspended on all requisitions that are over $25,000 whether
Federally funded or not.
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City of Las Cruces
Summary Schedule of Prior Audit Findings
For the Year Ended June 30, 2015

Prior Audit Findings Current Status

Financial Statement Findings
FS 2014-1 — Fleet Maintenance Allocations Resolved
SA 11-2 — Information Technology Repeat finding; see 2015-001

Federal Award Findings

FA 2014-3 — Transit Reporting Resolved

FA 2014-4 — Human Resources Processes Resolved
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City of Las Cruces
Corrective Action Plan
For the Year Ended June 30, 2015

Person Estimated
Audit Finding Corrective Action Plan . Completion
Responsible

Date
2015-001 See management’s response. IT Director June 30,
Information 2016
Technology
2015-002 See management’s response. Procurement  June 30,
Procurement, Director 2016
Suspension, and
Debarment
2015-003 See management’s response. Budget June 30,
Appropriations to Director 2016
Agencies
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City of Las Cruces
Exit Conference and Financial Statement Preparation
For the Year Ended June 30,2015

An exit conference was conducted on November 24, 2015, in a closed meeting pursuant to
Section 12-6-5 NMSA, 1978, with the following individuals in attendance:

City of Las Cruces

Greg Smith Mayor Pro Tem

William R. Babington City Attorney

Mark Winson Assistant City Manager
Victoria Fredrick Director of Financial Services
Melissa Nelson Accounting Manager
Maria Villa Accounting Manager
Kasandra A. Gandara District 1 City Councilor
Gill Sorg District 5 City Councilor
Joe Anzivino Internal Auditor

Viola Perea Internal Auditor

Moss Adams LLP

Brandon Valentini Partner

Lupita Martinez Senior Manager

Ryan Luetkemeyer Senior Manager

The City's accounting department and independent public accountants jointly prepared the
accompanying financial statements. The City is responsible for the financial statement content.
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This Comprehensive Annual Financial Report
can be made available in alternative formats
by calling the City of Las Cruces Public
Information Office at (575) 541-2200 or

TTY 541-2182.
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